
ENVIVIO INC
Form 424B4
April 25, 2012
Table of Contents

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4)
Registration No. 333-173529

7,755,000 Shares

Common Stock

This is an initial public offering of shares of common stock of Envivio, Inc. Envivio is offering 6,500,000 of the shares to be sold in the offering.
The selling stockholders identified in this prospectus are offering an additional 1,255,000 shares. Envivio will not receive any of the proceeds
from the sale of the shares being sold by the selling stockholders.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the common stock. The common stock has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq
Global Select Market under the symbol �ENVI�.

Envivio is an �emerging growth company� as defined under the federal securities laws and, as such, may elect to comply with certain reduced
public company reporting requirements in future reports after the completion of this offering.

See �Risk Factors� beginning on page 9 to read about factors you should consider before buying shares of the common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or
passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Per Share Total
Initial public offering price $ 9.00 $ 69,795,000
Underwriting discount(1) $ 0.63 $ 4,885,650
Proceeds, before expenses, to Envivio $ 8.37 $ 54,405,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to the selling stockholders $ 8.37 $ 10,504,350

(1) In addition, we have agreed to reimburse the underwriters for certain expenses incurred in connection with this offering. See
�Underwriting.�
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To the extent that the underwriters sell more than 7,755,000 shares of common stock, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an
additional 1,163,250 shares from the selling stockholders at the initial public offering price less the underwriting discount.

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares against payment in New York, New York on April 30, 2012.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. Deutsche Bank Securities

Stifel Nicolaus Weisel

William Blair & Company

Prospectus dated April 24, 2012.
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Through and including May 19, 2012 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus) all dealers effecting transactions in these securities,
whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to a dealer�s obligation to
deliver a prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this prospectus or in any
free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other
information that others may give you. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in
jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

In this prospectus, �Company,� �we,� �us,� and �our� refer to Envivio, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Unless otherwise indicated, all information in this
prospectus assumes no exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares from the selling stockholders. The name �Envivio� is our
trademark. We have a trademark application pending for �Envivo Muse� in the United States. This prospectus also contains trademarks and trade
names that are the property of their respective owners.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

You should read the following summary together with the more detailed information concerning our company, the common stock being sold in
this offering, and our consolidated financial statements appearing in this prospectus. Because this is only a summary, you should read the rest of
this prospectus before you invest in our common stock. Read this entire prospectus carefully, especially the risks described under �Risk
Factors.�

Our Business

Overview

We are a leading provider of software-based IP video processing and distribution solutions that enable the delivery of high-quality video to
consumers. Based on our unique video compression and advanced IP video networking technologies, our solution is designed to enable service
providers and content providers to offer high-quality video anytime, anywhere across a broad array of video formats, networks, consumer
devices and operating systems. We refer to this video experience as TV without Boundaries and believe it is one of the fastest growing
components of the $3.0 billion video infrastructure market. Our software-based solution offers flexibility to our customers, runs on
industry-standard hardware and includes encoders, transcoders and network media processors, all controlled through our network management
system.

We enable service providers and content providers to deliver linear broadcast and on-demand video services to their customers via multiple
screens, such as tablets, smartphones, netbooks, laptops, PCs and TVs. We offer service providers and content providers the ability to deliver
high-quality video to their customers either across their managed networks or outside the boundaries of their network over the open Internet,
referred to as over-the-top, or OTT. Our customers include mobile and wireline telecommunications service providers, cable multiple system
operators, or MSOs, direct broadcast satellite service providers, or DBSs, and content providers, which includes broadcasters and content
publishers, owners, aggregators and licensees. We have sold our solution to over 300 end-customers to date in over 50 countries. We distribute
our products and solutions globally through a network of channel partners, which includes leading telecommunications systems integrators
throughout the world, as well as through our own direct sales force.

Industry Background

In the early 1990s, consumers began to experience the first digital TV technology evolution when it became possible to transmit significantly
more TV channels while utilizing the same amount of bandwidth compared to analog TV. As a result, new service offerings emerged such as
direct broadcast satellite TV and digital cable TV, and the channel offerings available to consumers grew from a few channels to hundreds of
channels. In the mid 2000s, the second wave of digital TV technology evolution began, fueled by new connected devices and increased access to
broadband Internet through wireless and wireline networks. As this technology matured, it became possible for service providers and content
providers to deliver video content to a broad array of devices over mobile and broadband networks. This new era of digital TV technology
enables service providers and content providers to deliver, and consumers to enjoy, a high-quality video experience anytime, anywhere.

We believe the growth in demand for TV without Boundaries is being driven by several key consumer trends, including demand for increased
quality and quantity of video content, demand for video-enabled Internet Protocol, or IP, connected devices, growth in global broadband users
and the shift in how video is consumed in the home. Service providers and content providers must continue
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to launch innovative new service offerings in order to address evolving consumer trends. Traditional telecommunications service providers are
competing with MSOs and DBSs by offering bundled services where consumers can enjoy a single service package and monthly bill covering
broadband Internet, voice and video services, or triple play, and additionally bundling mobile as a fourth service, or quad play. Service providers
who also operate mobile networks can leverage their dual-network presence to offer innovative video services. Broadcasters and content owners,
including BBC, ESPN and HBO, have broadened their means of distribution to consumers beyond the linear broadcast business model to include
direct OTT distribution. In addition, new business models from emerging content providers, including Hulu and Netflix, have circumvented
traditional video delivery models to reach consumers directly via OTT delivery.

Limitations of Existing Technologies

We believe that existing technologies designed to enable video delivery are largely either engineered solely for broadcast-centric applications
serving standard TVs or engineered solely for web delivery of content. Products designed only for broadcast-centric applications do not address
the growing diversity of devices and networks, and products designed only for web delivery of content do not address the technical requirements
of traditional broadcast TV or provide the quality, reliability and manageability expected by service providers. Although the video delivery
models of service providers and content providers historically have had different offerings, consumers are increasingly demanding a similar
video experience across all of their devices. As video service offerings converge and traditional video delivery solutions attempt to address the
needs of their end users in a single solution, the delivery of video increasingly requires new architectures which can fit within newly deployed
datacenters and can accommodate delivery of high-quality video across multiple networks to multiple devices with the flexibility to adapt to a
rapidly evolving market.

The Envivio Solution

Our software-based solution enables the delivery of a converged multi-screen service across mobile, broadband, managed or open networks,
allowing service providers and content providers to offer consumers the same high-quality experience across multiple devices and networks. We
utilize a unified software architecture on standards-based rack-mounted or blade servers in headends or datacenters that provides a scalable and
flexible video delivery platform to service and content providers. We believe our software-based solution offers the following key benefits to our
customers:

� Provides a high-quality video experience � We have designed a solution that enables the delivery of video to consumers for viewing on
multiple screens while maintaining a high-quality video experience. This is done through advanced video encoding algorithms,
networking and adaptive streaming technologies irrespective of whether video is delivered across mobile networks, managed video
networks or OTT.

� Addresses complexities of multi-screen video delivery � Our solution addresses the complexities of the service provider and content
provider ecosystem by providing a platform to effectively enable delivery of video over mobile and IP networks to a wide array of
device and operating system combinations in a number of display formats and resolutions.

� Provides scale with carrier-class reliability � Our solution is designed to meet the stringent requirements of service providers and is
highly reliable, highly scalable and meets top industry certifications.

� Ingests and delivers video in a broad array of formats � Our software-based solution is compatible with all major video formats across
all major codecs, resolutions, frame rates, bitrates and transport profiles. We accommodate the transport of video through different
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networks, such as broadband and mobile networks, or traditional cable and satellite broadcast networks.

� Leverages existing datacenter infrastructure for enhanced video delivery � Using our proprietary software-based solution, service
providers can leverage their existing datacenter infrastructure to deliver enhanced video services without having to deploy additional
costly hardware elements.

� Optimizes video distribution architecture � Our solution is designed to optimize bandwidth and to ensure that video is delivered to the
consumer in a highly efficient manner. Our solution adapts video content at each edge location distributed throughout the network,
eliminating the need for service providers to repetitively deliver the same video content in different formats from the core of the
network to the edge, which consumes valuable capacity and resources.

� Enables new service monetization � Our solution also allows paid or ad-supported services to be delivered to multi-screens. Our video
content protection and linear ad-insertion technologies are tailored for multiple devices, allowing service providers to offer
subscription-based or ad-based business models for multiple devices.

Our video processing and distribution solution is based on a suite of products built upon a proprietary software platform that we have developed
for more than a decade. By combining this proprietary software platform, which conforms to international telecommunications standards, with
the latest generation of industry-standard servers and other third-party products, we have created an innovative suite of video delivery products
addressing multi-screen video applications.

Our Growth Strategy

Our objective is to become the leading multi-screen video delivery solution to service providers and content providers. The key elements of our
growth strategy are:

� Capitalize on our early commercial leadership � We intend to exploit our lead in commercialization of our video processing and
distribution solutions to expand our footprint of customers across leading service providers and content providers.

� Continued innovation of our software-based, multi-screen solution � We intend to leverage our core IP video technology strength to
develop new products with enhanced software-based capabilities to further demonstrate the value of our solution and increase our
long-term revenue opportunities.

� Increase our share of our customers� network footprint � We intend to expand our relationships with our customers by offering
additional products, including the addition of mobile or IPTV capabilities or the extension of our services to new geographies or
content offerings.

� Maximize our sales distribution capabilities to add new customers � We intend to further broaden our customer and geographic
presence through expanded channel partnerships with new and existing partners. We also intend to further develop our direct sales
capabilities to capitalize on the emerging and rapidly growing OTT market.

� Extend our solution through complementary products � We intend to develop new products and features for our customers through
internal development, potential acquisitions and partnerships.
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Risks to our Business

Our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including those identified in �Risk Factors� immediately following this prospectus
summary, that primarily represent challenges we face in connection with the successful implementation of our strategy and the growth of our
business. We compete in rapidly evolving markets and have a limited operating history, which make it difficult to predict our future operating
results. In addition, we expect a number of factors to cause our operating results to fluctuate on a quarterly and annual basis, which may make it
difficult to predict our future performance. Such factors include the capital spending patterns of our customers, our dependence on our channel
partners, our lengthy sales cycle, our reliance on a limited number of suppliers and our competition.

Corporate Information

We were founded in 2000. Our principal executive offices are located at 400 Oyster Point Blvd., Suite 325, South San Francisco, California
94080, and our telephone number is (650) 243-2700. As of January 31, 2012, we had 146 full-time employees. Our website address is
www.envivio.com. We do not incorporate the information on, or accessible through, our website into this prospectus, and you should not
consider any information on, or accessible through, our website as part of this prospectus.
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THE OFFERING

Common stock offered by us 6,500,000 shares

Common stock offered by the selling stockholders 1,255,000 shares

Common stock to be outstanding after this offering 26,657,728 shares

Underwriters� option to purchase additional shares
from the selling stockholders

The underwriters have an option to purchase a maximum of 1,163,250 additional shares
of common stock. All of the shares subject to the option would be sold by the selling
stockholders. The underwriters could exercise this option at any time within 30 days from
the date of this prospectus.

Use of proceeds We intend to use the net proceeds received by us from this offering for working capital
and general corporate purposes, including further expansion of our sales and marketing
efforts, continued investments in research and development and for capital expenditures.
In addition, we may use a portion of the net proceeds of this offering for acquisitions of
complementary businesses, technologies or other assets. However, we do not have
agreements for any material acquisitions at this time. See �Use of Proceeds.�

We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares to be offered by the
selling stockholders. See �Principal and Selling Stockholders.�

Risk Factors See �Risk Factors� beginning on page 9 and the other information included in this
prospectus for a discussion of factors you should consider carefully before deciding to
invest in our common stock.

Nasdaq Global Select Market symbol �ENVI�
The number of shares of common stock that will be outstanding after this offering is based on 20,157,728 shares outstanding as of January 31,
2012, and excludes:

� 2,328,935 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options as of January 31, 2012, at a weighted average
exercise price of $1.15 per share, and 263,768 shares of our common stock issuable upon vesting of outstanding restricted stock units
as of January 31, 2012;

� 516,269 shares of common stock outstanding as of January 31, 2012, that were issued primarily to employees located in France
through stock purchase agreements and paid for by issuances of promissory notes. These shares are legally issued and outstanding, but
are not included in stockholders� equity (deficit) as these shares are subject to repurchase by us under the terms of the applicable stock
purchase agreement or subject to forfeiture under the terms of the applicable promissory note to the extent such note has not been
repaid. We have a right to repurchase these shares at the original purchase price paid for the shares
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upon termination of employment of the holder of such shares to the extent the shares are then unvested. We also have a security
interest in these shares under the terms of the promissory notes that remain outstanding. We do not intend to repurchase these shares in
connection with this offering. For additional information about these shares, please see Note 8. Stock Option Plan�Stock Purchase
Rights and Common Stock Purchase Agreements contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this
prospectus;

� 36,000 shares of common stock, on an as-converted basis, issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants to purchase convertible
preferred stock, which warrants will convert into warrants to purchase common stock immediately prior to the completion of this
offering, at a weighted average exercise price of $12.50 per share; and

� 924,163 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan and 200,000 shares of common
stock, subject to increase on an annual basis, reserved for future issuance under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, which will become
effective in connection with this offering.

Unless otherwise indicated, all information in this prospectus assumes:

� that our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which we will file in connection with the completion of this offering, is in
effect;

� the conversion of all outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock into an aggregate of 6,988,120 shares of common stock,
effective immediately prior to the completion of this offering;

� the conversion of all outstanding shares of our Series 1 common stock into an aggregate of 1,006,206 shares of common stock,
effective immediately prior to the completion of this offering; and

� no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase up to 1,163,250 additional shares of common stock from the selling
stockholders.

All share numbers presented in this prospectus give effect to the 1-for-10 reverse stock split effected on June 10, 2011.

6
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

We derived the summary consolidated statement of operations data for fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 from our audited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that
may be expected in the future. The following summary consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with �Management�s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� and our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included
elsewhere in this prospectus.

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

(in thousands, except share and
per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 16,288 $ 30,004 $ 50,646
Cost of revenue 7,482 11,504 18,492

Gross profit 8,806 18,500 32,154
Operating expenses:
Research and development 4,908 5,152 6,728
Sales and marketing 6,980 8,886 16,206
General and administrative 5,309 6,449 8,561

Total operating expenses 17,197 20,487 31,495

Income (loss) from operations (8,391) (1,987) 659
Interest expense, net (850) (270) (134) 
Other income (expense), net 86 (61) 237

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (9,155) (2,318) 762
Provision for income taxes 22 167 624

Net income (loss) (9,177) (2,485) 138
Deemed dividend on convertible preferred stock �  (2,286) �  
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock �  �  (5) 
Noncumulative dividends to convertible preferred stockholders �  �  (133) 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (9,177) $ (4,771) $ �  

Net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and
diluted(1) $ (18.33) $ (0.58) $ 0.00

Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted(1) 500,550 8,203,001 13,123,524

Pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and
diluted (unaudited)(1) $ 0.00

Shares used in computing pro forma net income per share attributable to common
stockholders (unaudited)(1)
Basic 17,784,246

Diluted 19,242,727
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As of January 31, 2012

Actual Pro Forma(2)
Pro Forma as
Adjusted(3)

(unaudited)
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,405 $ 27,405 $ 76,825
Working capital 19,179 19,179 68,599
Total assets 44,578 44,578 93,998
Warrant liability 103 �  �  
Total debt 1,000 1,000 1,000
Convertible preferred stock 47,764 �  �  
Total stockholders� equity (deficit) (26,688) 21,179 70,599

(1) Please see Note 9 to our audited consolidated financial statements for an explanation of the calculations of our basic and diluted net
income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders and pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders.

(2) The pro forma column in the consolidated balance sheet data table above reflects the conversion of all outstanding shares of our
convertible preferred stock into common stock immediately prior to the completion of this offering and the resulting reclassification of
the warrant liability to additional paid-in capital.

(3) The pro forma as adjusted column in the consolidated balance sheet data table above reflects (i) the conversion of all outstanding shares
of our convertible preferred stock into common stock immediately prior to the completion of this offering, (ii) the resulting
reclassification of the warrant liability to additional paid-in capital and (iii) the receipt of the net proceeds from the sale of 6,500,000
shares of common stock offered by us in this offering at the initial public offering price of $9.00 per share, after deducting the
underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described below,
together with all of the other information in this prospectus, including our consolidated financial statements and related notes included
elsewhere in this prospectus, before making an investment decision. If any of the following risks is realized, our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the trading price of our common stock could
decline and you could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

We depend on the capital spending of telecommunications, cable and satellite service providers, as well as broadcast, media and Internet
content providers for a substantial majority of our revenue and any material decrease or delay in capital spending in these industries would
negatively impact our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

A substantial majority of our historical revenue has been derived from sales to telecommunications, cable and satellite service providers, as well
as, more recently, the emerging broadcast, media and Internet content providers. We expect that revenue from all of these markets will constitute
a substantial majority of our revenue for the foreseeable future. Because many of our customers in these markets purchase our products in
connection with constructing and upgrading their architecture and systems, demand for our products will depend on the magnitude and timing of
capital spending by our customers.

Our customers� capital spending patterns are dependent on a variety of factors, including:

� the impact of industry consolidation;

� overall demand for communications services and consumer acceptance of new video and data services;

� competitive pressures, including pricing pressures;

� access to financing;

� general economic conditions;

� annual capital spending budget cycles of each of the industries that our customers serve;

� federal, local and foreign government regulation of telecommunications and television broadcasting;

� evolving industry standards and network architectures; and

� discretionary consumer spending patterns.
In the past, specific factors contributing to reduced capital spending by our customers have included:
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� uncertainty related to the development of digital video industry standards;

� delays in the evaluation of new services, standards and system architectures by many operators;

� emphasis by operators on generating revenue from existing customers, rather than from new customers through new construction or
network upgrades;

� a reduction in the amount of capital available to finance projects;

� proposed and completed business combinations and divestitures by our customers and the length of regulatory review thereof; and

� bankruptcies and financial restructuring of customers.
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Further, we have a number of international customers to whom sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. The value of the U.S. dollar fluctuates
significantly against many foreign currencies, which includes the local currencies of many of our international customers. If the U.S. dollar
appreciates relative to the local currencies of our customers, then the prices of our products correspondingly increase for such customers. Such
an effect could adversely impact the sale of our products to such customers and result in longer sales cycles, difficulties in collection of accounts
receivable, slower adoption of new technologies and increased price competition in the affected countries. Further, if the U.S. dollar were to
weaken against many major currencies, there can be no assurance that a weaker dollar would lead to growth in capital spending.

As a result of these capital spending issues, we may not be able to maintain or increase our revenue in the future, and our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

We have incurred significant losses since inception and may continue to incur losses in the future.

We have incurred significant losses since our inception, including net losses of $9.2 million and $2.5 million during fiscal years 2010 and 2011,
respectively. As of January 31, 2012, we had an accumulated deficit of $78.8 million. These losses have resulted principally from costs incurred
in our research and development programs and sales and marketing programs. Although we were profitable for fiscal 2012, we may incur
operating losses for at least the foreseeable future as a result of the expenses associated with the continued development and expansion of our
business, including expenditures to hire additional sales and marketing personnel. Additionally, following the completion of this offering, we
expect that our general and administrative expenses will increase due to the additional operational and reporting costs associated with being a
public company. We may also increase our research and development expenses. Our ability to sustain profitability in the future will be affected
by, among other things, our ability to execute on our business strategy, the continued acceptance of our products, the timing and size of customer
orders, the average sales prices of our products, the costs of our products, and the extent to which we invest in our sales and marketing, research
and development, and general and administrative resources. If we are unable to sustain or increase our profitability, our business could be
harmed and our stock price could decline.

We rely on systems integrators, who serve as our channel partners, for a significant portion of our revenue, and disruptions to, or our failure
to develop and manage, our relationships with these channel partners and the processes and procedures that support them could materially
and adversely affect our business.

We generate a significant portion of our revenue through sales to channel partners, principally to assist us with the integration of our
software-based solution with other third-party products to provide a tailored solution for the end-customer. Our aggregate revenue through sales
to channel partners was $12.6 million, $19.2 million and $26.8 million during fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. We expect that
these sales to channel partners will continue to generate a significant percentage of our revenue in the future. Accordingly, our future success is
highly dependent upon establishing and maintaining successful relationships with a variety of channel partners.

We do not have long-term contracts or minimum purchase commitments with any of our channel partners, and our contracts with these parties
do not prohibit them from purchasing or offering products or services that compete with ours. Some of our competitors may have stronger
relationships with certain of our channel partners than we do, and may also provide incentives to these customers to persuade them to favor our
competitors� products or, in effect, to prevent or reduce sales of our products. Our channel partners may independently choose not to purchase or
offer our products. Many of our channel partners are small, are based in a variety of international locations and may have relatively
unsophisticated processes and limited financial resources to conduct their business. Any significant disruption to our sales
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to these channel partners, including as a result of the inability or unwillingness of these channel partners to continue purchasing our products, or
their failure to properly manage their business with respect to the purchase of and payment for our products, could materially and adversely
impact our business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows. Establishing relationships with new channel partners and training
them in our solution requires significant time and resources. Our failure to continue to establish or maintain successful relationships with
channel partners could likewise materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our sales cycles can be long and unpredictable. As a result, our sales are difficult to predict and may vary substantially from quarter to
quarter, which may cause our operating results to fluctuate significantly.

The timing of our sales is difficult to predict. Our sales efforts involve educating our customers about the use and benefits of our software-based
solution, including the technical capabilities of our products and the potential cost savings achievable by organizations deploying our
software-based solution. Customers, particularly in the cable, satellite and telecommunications industries, typically undertake a significant
evaluation process, which frequently involves not only our products but also those of our competitors and can result in a lengthy sales cycle. We
spend substantial time, effort and money on our sales efforts without any assurance that such efforts will produce any sales. In addition,
purchases of our products are frequently subject to budget constraints, multiple approvals, and unplanned administrative, processing and other
delays. The length of a customer�s deployment period may directly affect the timing of any subsequent purchase of additional products by that
customer. In addition, once we deliver our software-based solution to our customers, we may not be able to recognize revenue for the sale until
the customer completes its acceptance procedures. If sales expected from a specific customer for a particular quarter are not realized or
completed in that quarter or at all, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Our operating results are likely to fluctuate significantly and may fail to meet or exceed the expectations of securities analysts or investors,
causing our stock price to decline.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past and are likely to continue to fluctuate in the future, on an annual and a quarterly basis, as a
result of several factors, many of which are outside of our control. Some of the factors that may cause these fluctuations include:

� the level and timing of capital spending of our customers, both in the United States and in foreign markets, due in part to access to
financing, including credit, for capital spending;

� economic and financial conditions specific to the telecommunications, cable and satellite service providers, as well as broadcast,
media and Internet content providers;

� changes in market demand for our products or our customers� services or products;

� the timing and amount of orders, especially from significant customers;

� increases and decreases in the number and size of relatively larger transactions, and projects in which we are involved, from quarter to
quarter;

� the timing of revenue recognition with respect to certain of our sales arrangements, which may include multiple deliverables and
timing of customer acceptance;

� the impact of seasonality in our business, particularly in the first quarter of each fiscal year;

� the timing of completion of our customers� projects;
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� competitive market conditions, including pricing actions by our competitors;

� the level and mix of our international revenue;

� new product introductions by our competitors or by us;

� changes in domestic and international regulatory environments affecting our business;
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� market acceptance of our new or existing products;

� the impact of new revenue recognition accounting standards, which became effective for us beginning in fiscal 2012;

� the evaluation of new services, new standards and system architectures by our customers;

� the cost and availability to us of components and subassemblies;

� the mix of our customer base, by industry and size, and sales channels;

� the mix of our products sold and the effect it has on gross margins;

� changes in our operating and extraordinary expenses, such as litigation expenses and settlement costs;

� write-downs of inventory and investments;

� the impact of applicable accounting guidance that requires us to record the fair value of stock options, restricted stock units and
employee stock purchase plan awards as compensation expense;

� changes in our effective tax rate, including as a result of changes in our valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, changes in
our effective state tax rates, including as a result of apportionment, and changes in our mix of domestic versus international revenue,
as well as proposed amended tax rules related to the deferral of foreign earnings and compliance with foreign tax rules;

� the impact of applicable accounting guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes that requires us to establish reserves for
uncertain tax positions and accrue potential tax penalties and interest;

� the timing of any acquisitions and the financial impact of any such acquisitions;

� the impact of applicable accounting guidance on business combinations that requires us to record charges for certain
acquisition-related costs and expenses and generally to expense restructuring costs associated with a business combination subsequent
to the acquisition date; and

� general economic conditions.
We often recognize a substantial portion of our quarterly revenue in the last month of the quarter. We establish our expenditure levels for
product development and other operating expenses based on projected revenue levels for a specified period, and expenses are relatively fixed in
the short term. Accordingly, even small variations in timing of revenue or revenue recognition, particularly with respect to large individual
transactions, can cause significant fluctuations in operating results in a particular quarter.
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As a result of these factors and other factors, our operating results in one or more future periods may fail to meet or exceed the expectations of
securities analysts or investors. In that event, the trading price of our common stock would likely decline.

We need to develop and introduce new and enhanced products in a timely manner to meet the needs of our customers and to remain
competitive.

All of the markets we address are characterized by continuing technological advancement, changes in customer requirements and evolving
industry standards. To compete successfully, we must continually design, develop, manufacture and sell new or enhanced products that provide
increasingly higher levels of performance and reliability and meet our customers� changing needs. However, we may not be successful in those
efforts if, among other things, our products:

� are not cost effective;

� are not brought to market in a timely manner;

12
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� are not in accordance with evolving industry standards and architectures;

� fail to meet market acceptance or customer requirements; or

� are ahead of the market.
Our encoding products are based on industry video compression standards, which can change rapidly. For example, encoding products based on
the MPEG-2 compression standards are being increasingly replaced by encoding products based on newer standards, such as MPEG-4
AVC/H.264, that have been recently adopted and provide significantly greater compression efficiency, thereby making more bandwidth
available to operators. The availability of more bandwidth is particularly important to those operators seeking to launch, or expand, HDTV
services. We have developed and launched products, including HD encoders, based on these new standards in order to remain competitive, and
are continuing to devote considerable resources to these efforts. As industry standards continue to evolve, however, we must continue to devote
significant resources to address these evolving standards. Our efforts to address these evolving standards may not be successful in the future, or
at all, and we may be unable to compete effectively in our target markets when new industry standards are established.

In order to successfully develop and market certain of our planned products, we may be required to enter into technology development or
licensing agreements with third parties. We cannot assure you that we will be able to enter into any necessary technology development or
licensing agreements on reasonable terms, or at all, or that all of our existing technology license agreements will remain in place.

If we fail to develop and market new and enhanced products in a timely manner, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could
be materially and adversely affected.

The average sales prices of our products may decrease.

The average sales prices for our products may decline for a variety of reasons, including competitive pricing pressures, a change in our mix of
products, anticipation of the introduction of new products or promotional programs. The markets in which we compete are highly competitive
and we expect this competition to increase in the future, thereby leading to increased pricing pressures. Larger competitors with more diverse
product offerings may reduce the price of products that compete with ours in order to promote the sale of other products or may bundle them
with other products. For example, some of our large competitors who provide systems integration may offer video headends at very low prices
or on a bundled basis. Furthermore, average sales prices for our products may decrease over product life cycles. A decline in our average sales
prices in excess of our expectations may harm our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We expect gross margin to vary over time, and our level of gross margin may not be sustainable.

Our level of gross margin may not be sustainable and may be adversely affected by numerous factors, including:

� increased price competition;

� changes in customer or product and service mix;

� introduction of new products;

� our ability to reduce production costs;

� increases in material or labor costs;
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� excess inventory, inventory holding charges and obsolescence charges;

� the timing of revenue recognition and revenue deferrals;
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� changes in our distribution channels or arrangements with our channel sales partners;

� increased warranty costs; and

� inbound shipping charges.
As a result of any of these factors, or other factors, our gross margin may be adversely affected, which in turn would harm our operating results.

Our customer base is concentrated, and we are regularly involved in relatively large transactions. The loss of one or more of our key
customers, or a failure to diversify our customer base, as well as a decrease in the number of such larger transactions, could harm our
business.

Historically, a majority of our revenue has been derived from relatively few customers. Sales to our ten largest customers in fiscal 2012 together
accounted for approximately 58% of our total revenue. In fiscal 2012, sales to Time Warner Cable accounted for 18% of our total revenue. In
fiscal 2011, sales to Huawei Technologies, Birtel Network Technologies and Ericsson, each a channel partner, accounted for 12%, 12% and
11%, respectively, of our total revenue. In fiscal 2010, sales to BJ Taiyu, Huawei Technologies and Nokia, each a channel partner, accounted for
15%, 13% and 12%, respectively, of our total revenue. We expect to see continuing industry consolidation and customer concentration. At the
same time, we are currently targeting large customer accounts, which if successful, could increase our concentration risk on an even smaller
group of customers. Even if we are successful in selling a large volume of products to these large potential customers, we may not be able to
continue to sell such large volumes to these customers, which could cause our operating results to fluctuate significantly and decline.

Additionally, we do not enter into long-term contracts or purchase commitments with our customers, and we have no contractual arrangements
for future sales of our products to existing customers. We sell our solution by entering into purchase orders with our customers. The loss of one
or more of our significant customers, any material reduction in orders by any significant customer, or our failure to qualify our new products
with a significant customer could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, we are
involved in most quarters in one or more large individual transactions, including, from time to time, projects in which we act similar to a systems
integrator. A decrease in the number of larger individual transactions in which we are involved in any quarter could adversely affect our
operating results for that quarter.

We rely on a single third party to manufacture our products, and depend on it for the supply and quality of our products.

We outsource the manufacturing of our products to a single manufacturer, FutureQuest Incorporated, and are, therefore, subject to the risk that
our third-party manufacturer does not provide our customers with the quality and performance that they expect from our products. Our
manufacturer may not view fulfilling our orders a priority in the event it is constrained in its ability to fulfill all of its customer obligations in a
timely manner. In addition, if we need to increase our manufacturing capacity beyond what our current manufacturer is able to provide, we may
not be able to meet customer demand on a timely basis. If we are required, or we desire, to replace our manufacturer or add an additional
manufacturer, we may need to expend a considerable amount of resources, time and money to locate another manufacturer, and as a result, we
may experience a delay in our ability to meet customer demand during the transition process. We place manufacturing orders on a purchase
order basis under the terms of a master agreement with our manufacturer. This agreement is limited to an initial term of one year, with an
automatic renewal feature for additional one-year terms unless either party requests in writing at least 90 days prior to the end of the term not to
renew the agreement. In addition, our manufacturer may terminate this agreement for any reason by providing us 120-days notice of termination.
If we are unable to fulfill customer demand, we may lose revenue opportunities and our reputation could suffer. In addition, we must also predict
the number of products that we will require. If we
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underestimate our requirements, our manufacturer may have inadequate materials and components required to produce our products. This could
result in an interruption of the manufacturing of our products, delays in shipments and deferral or loss of revenue. Quality or performance
failures of our products or changes in our manufacturer�s financial or business condition could disrupt our ability to supply quality products to
our customers and thereby have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We use several key components and subassemblies in our products that are supplied from a single source or a limited number of sources.
The loss of any of these suppliers may cause us to incur additional transition costs, result in delays in the manufacturing and delivery of our
products, or cause us to carry excess or obsolete inventory and could cause us to redesign our products.

While supplies of our components are generally available from a variety of sources, we currently depend on a single source or limited number of
sources for several components for our products. We have also entered into license agreements with some of our suppliers for technologies that
are used in our products, and the termination of these licenses, which can generally be done on relatively short notice without penalty, could
have a material adverse effect on our business. If we lost any of these suppliers and licensors, we could be required to transition to a new
supplier or licensor, which could increase our costs, result in delays in the manufacturing and delivery of our products or cause us to carry excess
or obsolete inventory, and we could be required to redesign our hardware and software in order to incorporate components or technologies from
alternative sources.

In addition, even for certain components for which there are multiple sources, we are subject to potential price increases and limited availability
due to market demand for such components. An increase in demand for components and subassemblies that we use could cause shortages of
these parts and cause an increase in the costs of these parts. If such shortages or price increases occur in the future, our business would be
adversely affected. We carry very little inventory of our products, and we and our manufacturer rely on our suppliers to deliver necessary
components in a timely manner. We and our manufacturer rely on purchase orders rather than long-term contracts with these suppliers, and as a
result, even if available, we or our manufacturer may not be able to secure sufficient components at reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to
build products in a timely manner and, therefore, may not be able to meet customer demands for our products, which could have a material and
adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our products include third-party technology and intellectual property, and our inability to use that technology in the future could harm our
business.

We incorporate certain third-party technologies, including software programs, into our products, and intend to utilize additional third-party
technologies in the future. Licenses to relevant third-party technologies or updates to those technologies may not continue to be available to us
on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. In addition, the technologies that we license may not operate properly or as specified, and we may
not be able to secure alternatives in a timely manner, either of which could harm our business. We could face delays in product releases until
alternative technology can be identified, licensed or developed, and integrated into our products, and we may not be able to do so at all. These
delays, or a failure to secure or develop adequate technology, could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and
cash flows.

We may engage in future acquisitions that could disrupt our business, cause dilution to our stockholders and materially and adversely affect
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

In the future we may acquire other businesses, products or technologies. If we do complete acquisitions, we may not ultimately strengthen our
competitive position or achieve our goals, or such
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acquisitions may be viewed negatively by customers, financial markets or investors. We may also face additional challenges because
acquisitions entail numerous risks, including:

� difficulties in the integration of acquired operations, technologies and/or products;

� unanticipated costs associated with the acquisition transaction;

� the diversion of management�s attention from the regular operations of the business and the challenges of managing larger and more
widespread operations;

� adverse effects on new and existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;

� risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience;

� the potential loss of key employees of acquired businesses; and

� delays in realizing or failure to realize the anticipated benefits of an acquisition.
Competition within our industry for acquisitions of businesses, technologies, assets and product lines has been, and may in the future continue to
be, intense. As such, even if we are able to identify an acquisition that we would like to consummate, we may not be able to complete the
acquisition on commercially reasonable terms or because the target is acquired by another company. Furthermore, in the event that we are able
to identify and consummate any future acquisitions, we could:

� issue equity securities, which would dilute current stockholders� percentage ownership;

� incur substantial debt;

� incur significant acquisition-related expenses;

� assume contingent liabilities; or

� expend significant cash.
We or our customers may face intellectual property infringement and other claims from third parties.

Our industry is characterized by the existence of a large number of patents and frequent claims and related litigation regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights. In particular, leading companies in the telecommunications industry have extensive patent portfolios. From time to
time, third parties may assert in the future, patent, copyright, trademark and other intellectual property rights against us or our customers. Our
suppliers and their customers, including us, may have similar claims asserted against them. Any future intellectual property litigation, regardless
of its outcome, could result in substantial expense and significant diversion of the efforts of our management and technical personnel. An

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 27



adverse determination in any such proceeding could subject us to significant liabilities, temporary or permanent injunctions, or require us to seek
licenses from third parties or pay royalties that may be substantial. Furthermore, necessary licenses may not be available on terms satisfactory to
us, or at all. An unfavorable outcome on any such litigation matter could require that we pay substantial damages or ongoing royalty payments
or could prohibit us from selling certain of our products. Any such outcome could have a material adverse effect on our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows.

Our suppliers and customers may have intellectual property claims relating to our products asserted against them. We have agreed to indemnify
some of our suppliers and customers for patent infringement relating to our products. The scope of this indemnity varies, but, in some instances,
includes indemnification for damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney�s fees, incurred by the supplier or customer in connection with
such claims. If a supplier or customer seeks to enforce a claim for indemnification against us, we could incur significant costs defending against
the underlying claim. An adverse determination in such a proceeding could subject us to significant liabilities.
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If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, our competitive position could be harmed or we could be required to incur
significant expenses to enforce our rights.

We depend on our ability to protect our proprietary technology. We protect our proprietary information and technology through licensing
agreements, nondisclosure agreements and other contractual provisions, as well as through patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws in
the United States and similar laws in other countries. These protections may not be available in all cases or may be inadequate to prevent our
competitors from copying, reverse engineering or otherwise obtaining and using our technology, proprietary rights or products. In addition, third
parties may seek to challenge, invalidate or circumvent our patents, trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets, or applications for any of the
foregoing. Our competitors may independently develop technologies that are substantially equivalent, or superior, to our technology or design
around our proprietary rights. In each case, our ability to compete could be significantly impaired.

We also rely on customary contractual protections with our customers, suppliers, distributors, employees and consultants, and we implement
security measures to protect our trade secrets. We cannot assure you that these contractual protections and security measures will not be
breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any such breach or that our suppliers, employees or consultants will not assert rights to
intellectual property arising out of such contracts.

In addition, our proprietary rights may not be adequately protected because the laws of other countries in which we market our products, such as
some countries in the Asia Pacific region, may offer little or no protection for our proprietary technologies.

To prevent substantial unauthorized use of our intellectual property rights, it may be necessary to prosecute actions for infringement or
misappropriation of our proprietary rights against third parties. Any such action could result in significant costs and diversion of our resources
and management�s attention, and there can be no assurance that we will be successful in such action. Furthermore, many of our current and
potential competitors have the ability to dedicate substantially greater resources to enforce their intellectual property rights than we.
Accordingly, despite our efforts, we may not be able to prevent third parties from infringing or misappropriating our intellectual property.

We have a limited patent portfolio. While we plan to protect our intellectual property with, among other things, patent protection, there can be
no assurance that:

� current or future U.S. or future foreign patent applications will be approved;

� our issued patents will protect our intellectual property and not be held invalid or unenforceable if challenged by third parties;

� we will succeed in protecting our technology adequately in all key jurisdictions in which we or our competitors operate;

� the patents of others will not have an adverse effect on our ability to do business; or

� others will not independently develop similar or competing products or methods or design around any patents that may be issued to us.
The failure to obtain patents with claims of a scope necessary to cover our technology, or the invalidation of our patents, or our inability to
protect any of our intellectual property, may weaken our competitive position and may materially and adversely affect our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows.
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Our products incorporate complex technology and may contain defects or errors, which could negatively affect the performance of our
solution and could harm our reputation and adversely affect our business.

Our products incorporate complex technology that must operate with a significant number and types of devices, which attempt to run new and
complex applications in a variety of environments that utilize different communication industry standards. Our products have contained and may
in the future contain defects or errors. In some cases, these defects or errors have delayed the introduction of our new products. Some errors in
our products have only been discovered after a product has been installed and used by customers. These problems have in the past, and may in
the future cause us to divert the attention of our engineering personnel from our development efforts and cause customer relations problems. We
may also incur significant warranty and repair costs or be subject to liability claims for damages related to product errors or defects. While we
carry insurance policies covering these types of liability claims, which we believe to be reasonable for the level of our business activity, these
policies may not provide sufficient protection in the event of a liability claim. Moreover, errors in our products are most prevalent when new
products are introduced into the market. Any errors or defects discovered in our products after commercial release could result in loss of revenue
or delay in revenue recognition, loss of customers, damage to our brand and reputation, and increased service and warranty cost, any of which
could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We incorporate third-party hardware into our products which could cause errors or failures of our solution and damage our reputation.

We incorporate hardware purchased from third parties into our products. This hardware has in the past, and may in the future contain errors or
defects, which in turn could result in errors or a failure of our solution. We may not learn of these hardware errors or defects until after we have
shipped our solution to our customers. Errors or defects in the third-party hardware that we incorporate into our products could significantly
damage our reputation, even though we did not cause these errors or defects, which could have a material and adverse effect on our operating
results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our ability to sell our products is highly dependent on the quality of our support and service offerings, and our failure to offer high-quality
support and services would harm our operating results and reputation.

Once our products are deployed within our customers� networks, our customers depend on our support organization to resolve any issues relating
to our products. A high level of support is critical for the successful marketing and sale of our products. If we or our channel partners do not
effectively assist our customers in deploying our products, succeed in helping our customers quickly resolve post-deployment issues, and
provide effective ongoing support, it would adversely affect our ability to sell our products to existing customers and would harm our reputation
with potential customers. In addition, as we expand our operations internationally, our support organization will face additional challenges,
including those associated with delivering support, training and documentation in languages other than English. Any failure to maintain
high-quality support and services could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We are an �emerging growth company,� and may elect to comply with reduced public company reporting requirements applicable to
emerging growth companies, which could make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an �emerging growth company,� as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act enacted in April 2012, and, for as long as we
continue to be an �emerging growth company,� we may choose to take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements applicable to
other public companies but not to �emerging growth companies,� including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor
attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or
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Sarbanes Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and
exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden
parachute payments not previously approved. We could be an �emerging growth company� for up to five years, although, if the market value of
our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of any July 31 before the end of that five-year period, we would cease to
be an �emerging growth company� as of the following January 31. We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive if we
choose to rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result of any choices to reduce future disclosure,
there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.

Under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, �emerging growth companies� can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such
time as those standards apply to private companies. However, we have irrevocably elected not to avail ourselves of this exemption from new or
revised accounting standards and, therefore, we will be subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as other public companies that
are not �emerging growth companies�.

We will incur significant increased costs as a result of operating as a public company, our management has limited experience managing a
public company, and our management will be required to devote substantial time to new compliance initiatives.

As a public company and particularly after we cease to be an �emerging growth company,� we will incur significant legal, accounting and other
expenses that we did not incur as a private company. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010, as well as rules
subsequently implemented by the SEC and the Nasdaq Stock Market, or Nasdaq, impose a number of requirements on public companies,
including requiring changes in corporate governance practices. Our management and other personnel will need to devote a substantial amount of
time to these new compliance initiatives. Moreover, these rules and regulations will increase our legal, accounting and financial compliance
costs and will make some activities more time-consuming and costly. For example, we expect these new rules and regulations to make it more
difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and
coverage or incur substantial costs to maintain the same or similar coverage. These rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us
to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors, our board committees or as executive officers.

In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we assess the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
annually and disclosure controls and procedures quarterly. Our compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require that we
incur substantial accounting expense and expend significant management time on compliance-related issues.

We identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting in connection with the audit of our consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, which we have since remediated. If we are unable to maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting, the accuracy and timing of our financial reporting may be adversely affected.

Although our management and independent registered public accounting firm were not required to perform an evaluation of our internal control
over financial reporting as of January 31, 2011 or as of January 31, 2012 in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our
management did not identify any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting in connection with the audit of our
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2012. However, in connection with the audit of our consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, our management and independent registered public accounting firm identified a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, which we have since remediated. A material weakness is a control deficiency, or a
combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood
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that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. Had we or our independent
registered public accounting firm performed an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the provisions of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, additional control deficiencies may have been identified by management or our independent registered public
accounting firm, and those control deficiencies could have also represented one or more material weaknesses. However, we have concluded that
the material weakness identified in fiscal 2011 was successfully remediated as of January 31, 2012.

In connection with the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, our management and
independent registered public accounting firm identified a material weakness related to our ability to properly record certain revenue transactions
in accordance with software revenue recognition guidance for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, which we have since remediated. This
resulted in a more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our annual and interim financial statements would not be prevented or
detected. As a result, audit adjustments to our financial statements were identified during the course of the audit. To remediate this material
weakness, we hired additional finance and accounting personnel with the appropriate expertise and experience, and further developed and
documented our accounting policies and financial reporting procedures around our revenue recognition practices for fiscal 2012. For example,
we recently hired a new senior director of revenue, senior director of sales operations and an assistant controller to improve processes, establish
internal controls and augment existing controls. In addition, we retained consultants to assist with our implementation of new revenue
recognition accounting guidance related to multiple-element arrangements that we adopted as of February 1, 2011, and to advise us on making
further improvements to our internal controls related to revenue recognition in the future. We cannot assure you that we have identified all, or
that we will not in the future have additional, material weaknesses. Accordingly, material weaknesses may still exist when we report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for purposes of our attestation required by reporting requirements under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, or Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act after this offering. The standards required for a
Section 404 assessment under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require us to implement additional corporate governance practices and adhere to a
variety of reporting requirements. These stringent standards require that our audit committee be advised and regularly updated on management�s
review of internal controls. Our management may not be able to effectively and timely implement controls and procedures that adequately
respond to the increased regulatory compliance and reporting requirements that will be applicable to us as a public company. If we fail to staff
our accounting and finance function adequately or maintain internal controls adequate to meet the demands that will be placed upon us as a
public company, including the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we may be unable to report our financial results accurately or in a timely
manner and our business and stock price may suffer. Furthermore, investor perceptions of our company may suffer, and this could cause a
decline in the market price of our stock.

Irrespective of compliance with Section 404, any failure of our internal controls could have a material adverse effect on our stated results of
operations and harm our reputation. If we are unable to implement these changes effectively or efficiently, it could materially and adversely
affect our operations, financial reporting or financial results and could result in an adverse opinion on internal controls from our independent
registered public accounting firm.

We have a limited operating history, which makes it difficult to predict our future operating results.

We were incorporated in January 2000 and began commercial shipments of our products in 2001. As a result of our limited operating history, it
is very difficult to forecast our future operating results. We face challenges in our business and financial planning as a result of the uncertainties
resulting from having had a relatively limited time period in which to implement and evaluate our business strategies as compared to more
mature companies with longer operating histories. In addition, we typically sell our products on a purchase order basis, and not under long-term
contracts, which means we do not have
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extended visibility into our future levels of revenue. These uncertainties make it difficult to predict our future operating results. If the
assumptions we use to plan our business are incorrect or change in reaction to a change in our markets, our operating results, financial condition
and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

We must increase market awareness of our software-based solution and develop and expand our sales channels, and if we are unsuccessful,
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

We must improve the market awareness of our software-based solution and expand our relationships with our channel partners in order to
increase our revenue. We intend to continue to add personnel and to expend resources in our sales and marketing functions as we focus on
expanding awareness of our software-based solution. Further, we believe that we must continue to develop our relationships with new and
existing channel partners to effectively and efficiently extend our geographic reach and market penetration. Our efforts to improve our sales
could result in a material increase in our sales and marketing expense and general and administrative expense, and there can be no assurance that
such efforts will be successful. If we are unable to significantly increase the awareness of our software-based solution, expand our relationships
with channel partners, or effectively manage the costs associated with these efforts, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows
could be materially and adversely affected.

We depend significantly on our international revenue and are subject to the risks associated with international operations, which may
negatively affect our operating results.

Revenue derived from customers outside of the United States during fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012 represented 92%, 77% and 71% of our
revenue, respectively. We expect that international revenue will continue to represent a similar substantial percentage of our revenue for the
foreseeable future. Our international operations and our efforts to maintain and increase revenue in international markets are subject to a number
of risks, which are generally greater with respect to emerging market countries, including the impact on our business and operating results of:

� general economic conditions in international economies, which may adversely affect our customers� capital spending;

� changes in foreign government regulations and standards;

� import and export license requirements, tariffs, taxes and other trade barriers;

� fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

� a significant reliance on distributors, resellers and other third parties to sell our products and solutions, particularly in emerging market
countries;

� difficulty in collecting accounts receivable, especially from smaller customers and resellers, particularly in emerging market countries;

� compliance with the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the Office of Foreign Asset Control regulations,
particularly in emerging market countries;

� the burden of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws, treaties and technical standards;

� fulfilling �country of origin� requirements for our products for certain customers;
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� lack of basic infrastructure, particularly in emerging market countries;

� availability of credit, particularly in emerging market countries; and

� impact of the recent escalating social and political unrest, particularly in the Middle East.
In the past, certain of our international customers accumulated significant levels of debt and have undertaken reorganizations and financial
restructurings, including bankruptcy proceedings. Even where these restructurings have been completed, in some cases these customers have not
been in a position to purchase new equipment at levels we had seen in the past.

Furthermore, payment cycles for international customers are typically longer than those for customers in the United States. Unpredictable
payment cycles could cause us to fail to meet or exceed the expectations of securities analysts and investors for any given period.

The effect of one or more of these international risks could have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates, which could negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations.

While our international revenue has typically been denominated in U.S. dollars, fluctuations in currency exchange rates could cause our products
to become relatively more expensive to customers in a particular country, leading to a reduction in revenue or profitability from sales in that
country. A portion of our overall expenses, primarily from our research and development facility in France, is denominated in Euros, which
subjects us to increased foreign currency risk. We currently do not enter into hedging arrangements to minimize the impact of foreign currency
fluctuations. Our exposure to foreign currency fluctuation may change over time as our business practices evolve and could have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations. Gains and losses on the conversion to U.S. dollars of accounts payable and
other monetary assets and liabilities arising from international operations may contribute to fluctuations in operating results.

Our use of, and reliance on, research and development resources in France may expose us to unanticipated costs or events.

We have a significant research and development center in France and, in recent years, have increased headcount and development activity at this
facility. Our research and development efforts and other operations in France involve significant risks, including:

� difficulty hiring and retaining appropriate engineering personnel due to competition for such limited resources;

� a disruption in relations with our employees;

� fluctuations in currency exchange rates between the Euro and the U.S. dollar; and

� compliance with regulatory requirements, including local employment regulations and organized labor.
Difficulties resulting from the factors above and other risks related to our operations in France could expose us to increased expense, impair our
development efforts and harm our competitive position.

If we do not appropriately manage any future growth, or are unable to improve our systems and processes, our operating results could be
negatively affected.

Our future growth, if it occurs, could place significant demands on our management, infrastructure and other resources. We may need to
increasingly rely on information technology systems, some of

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 35



22

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 36



Table of Contents

which we do not currently have significant experience in operating, to help manage critical functions. Some of our critical information
technology systems are hosted by third parties, and we may have interruptions in our ability to access these systems in a timely manner, which
could disrupt our business. To manage any future growth effectively, we must continue to improve and expand our information technology and
financial infrastructure, operating and administrative systems and controls, and continue to manage headcount, capital and processes in an
efficient manner. We may not be able to successfully implement improvements to these systems and processes in a timely or efficient manner,
which could result in additional operating inefficiencies and could cause our costs to increase more than planned. If we do increase our operating
expenses in anticipation of the growth of our business and this growth does not meet our expectations, our financial results may be negatively
impacted. In addition, our systems and processes may not prevent or detect all errors, omissions or fraud. Our failure to improve our systems and
processes, or their failure to operate in the intended manner, may result in our inability to manage the growth of our business and to accurately
forecast our revenue, expenses and earnings, or to prevent certain losses. Any future growth would add complexity to our organization and
require effective coordination within our organization. Failure to manage any future growth effectively could result in increased costs and harm
our business.

If demand for our products increases more quickly than we expect, we may be unable to meet our customers� requirements.

If demand for our products increases, the difficulty of accurately forecasting our customers� requirements and meeting these requirements will
increase. Forecasting customers� needs and effectively managing our supply chain is particularly difficult in connection with newer products. Our
ability to meet customer demand depends significantly on the availability of components and other materials, as well as the ability of our
contract manufacturers to scale their production. Furthermore, we purchase several key components and subassemblies used in the manufacture
or integration of our products from sole or limited sources. Our ability to meet customer requirements depends in part on our ability to obtain
sufficient volumes of these materials in a timely fashion. Increases in demand on our suppliers and subcontractors from other customers may
cause sporadic shortages of certain components and products. In order to be able to respond to these issues, we may increase our inventories of
certain components and products, particularly for our customers that order significant dollar amounts of our products, and expedited shipments
of our products when necessary, which may increase our costs and could increase our risk of holding obsolete or excessive inventory.
Nevertheless, we may be unable to respond to customer demand if it increases more quickly than we expect. If we fail to meet customers� supply
expectations, our revenue would be adversely affected and we may lose business, which could materially and adversely affect our operating
results, financial condition and cash flows.

We are investing in engineering, sales, marketing, services and infrastructure, and these investments may achieve delayed or lower than
expected benefits, which could harm our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We intend to continue to add personnel and other resources to our engineering, sales, marketing, services and infrastructure functions as we
focus on developing new technologies, growing our market segment, capitalizing on existing or new market opportunities, increasing our market
share, and enabling our business operations to meet anticipated demand. We are likely to recognize the costs associated with these investments
earlier than some of the anticipated benefits, and the return on these investments may be lower, or may develop more slowly, than we expect. If
we do not achieve the benefits anticipated from these investments, or if the achievement of these benefits is delayed, our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.
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Our reported financial results may be adversely affected by changes in accounting principles applicable to us.

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States are subject to interpretation by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or
FASB, the SEC and other various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate accounting principles. A change in these principles or
interpretations could have a significant effect on our reported financial results, and could affect the reporting of transactions completed before
the announcement of a change. In addition, the SEC has announced a multi-year plan that could ultimately lead to the use of International
Financial Reporting Standards by U.S. issuers in their SEC filings. Any such change could have a significant effect on our reported financial
results.

If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies are based on assumptions that change or prove to be incorrect, our
operating results could fall below expectations of securities analysts and investors, resulting in a decline in our stock price.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as described under
�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� in this prospectus, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Our operating results
may be adversely affected if our assumptions change or if actual circumstances differ from those in our assumptions, which could cause our
operating results to fall below market expectations, resulting in a decline in our stock price. Significant assumptions and estimates used in
preparing our consolidated financial statements include those related to revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, valuation of
deferred inventory costs, useful lives of property and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, valuation of equity and liability instruments
and stock-based compensation.

Our future capital needs are uncertain, and we may need to raise additional funds in the future.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, combined with the amounts available under our line of credit facility, will be sufficient
to meet our anticipated cash requirements for at least the next 12 months. We may, however, need to raise substantial additional capital to:

� expand the commercialization of our products;

� fund our operations;

� continue our research and development;

� defend, in litigation or otherwise, any claims that we infringe third-party patents or violate other intellectual property rights;

� commercialize new products; and

� acquire companies and in-license products or intellectual property.
Our future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including:

� market acceptance of our products;

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 38



� the cost of our research and development activities;

� the cost of filing and prosecuting patent applications;

� the cost of defending, in litigation or otherwise, any claims that we infringe third-party patents or violate other intellectual property
rights;
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� the cost and timing of establishing additional sales, marketing and distribution capabilities;

� the cost and timing of establishing additional technical support capabilities;

� the effect of competing technological and market developments; and

� the market for such funding requirements and overall economic conditions.
If we require additional funds in the future, such funds may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all.

We may require additional funds in the future and we may not be able to obtain such funds on acceptable terms, or at all. If we raise additional
funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders may experience dilution. Debt financing, if available, may involve covenants restricting our
operations or our ability to incur additional debt. Any debt or additional equity financing that we raise may contain terms that are not favorable
to us or our stockholders. If we do not have, or are not able to obtain, sufficient funds, we may have to delay development or commercialization
of our products or license to third parties the rights to commercialize products or technologies that we would otherwise seek to commercialize. If
we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it may be necessary to relinquish some rights to
our technologies or our products, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us. If we are unable to raise adequate funds, we may have to
liquidate some or all of our assets, or delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate some or all of our development programs. We also may have to
reduce marketing, customer support or other resources devoted to our products or cease operations. Any of these factors could materially and
adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

If we are not successful in addressing management succession issues and attracting and retaining qualified personnel, our business and
operating results could be materially and adversely affected.

Our future success will depend, to a significant extent, on the ability of our management to operate effectively, both individually and as a group.
We must successfully manage transition and replacement issues that may result from the departure or retirement of members of our executive
management, whether in the context of an acquisition or otherwise. Changes of management personnel in the future could cause disruption to
our operations or customer relationships or a decline in our operating results.

We are also dependent on our ability to retain and motivate our existing highly qualified personnel, including Julien Signès, our President and
Chief Executive Officer. These personnel may terminate employment with us at any time with no advance notice. The replacement of Mr.
Signès likely would involve significant time and costs, and the loss of his services may significantly delay or prevent the achievement of our
business objectives.

Competition for highly skilled personnel is frequently intense, especially in the locations where we have a substantial presence and need for
highly-skilled personnel, including the San Francisco Bay Area and France. We may not be successful in attracting qualified personnel to fulfill
our current or future needs. Competitors and others have in the past attempted, and are likely in the future to attempt, to recruit our employees.
While our employees are required to sign standard agreements concerning confidentiality and ownership of inventions, we generally do not have
employment contracts or non-competition agreements with any of our personnel. The loss of the services of any of our key personnel, the
inability to attract or retain highly qualified personnel in the future or delays in hiring such personnel, particularly senior management and
engineers and other technical personnel, could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.
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We are subject to import and export controls that could subject us to liability or impair our ability to compete in international markets.

Our products are subject to U.S. export controls, and may be exported outside the United States only with the required level of export license or
through an export license exception, in most cases because we incorporate encryption technology into our products. In addition, various
countries regulate the import of certain technology and have enacted laws that could limit our ability to distribute our products or could limit our
customers� ability to implement our products in those countries. Changes in our products or changes in export and import regulations may create
delays in the introduction of our products in international markets, prevent our customers with international operations from deploying our
products throughout their global systems or, in some cases, prevent the export or import of our products to certain countries altogether. Any
change in export or import regulations or related legislation, shift in approach to the enforcement or scope of existing regulations, or change in
the countries, persons or technologies targeted by such regulations, could result in decreased use of our products by, or in our decreased ability
to export or sell our products to, existing or potential customers internationally.

In addition, we may be subject to customs duties that could have a significant adverse impact on our operating results or, if we are able to pass
on the related costs in any particular situation, would increase the cost of the related product to our customers. As a result, the future imposition
of significant increases in the level of customs duties or the creation of import quotas on our products in Europe or in other jurisdictions, or any
of the limitations on international sales described above, could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial
condition and cash flows. Further, some of our customers in Europe have been, or are being, audited by local governmental authorities regarding
the tariff classifications used for importation of our products. Import duties and tariffs vary by country and a different tariff classification for any
of our products may result in higher duties or tariffs, which could have an adverse impact on our operating results and potentially increase the
cost of the related products to our customers.

Our limited use of open source software could impose limitations on our ability to commercialize our products.

Our products contain software modules licensed for use from third-party authors under open source licenses, including the GNU Public License,
the GNU Lesser Public License, the Apache License and others. Use and distribution of open source software may entail greater risks than use
of third-party commercial software, as open source licensors generally do not provide warranties or other contractual protections regarding
infringement claims or the quality of the code. Some open source licenses contain requirements that we make available source code for
modifications or derivative works we create based upon the type of open source software we use. If we combine our proprietary software with
open source software in a certain manner, we could, under certain of the open source licenses, be required to release the source code of our
proprietary software to the public. This could allow our competitors to create similar products with lower development effort and in less time
and ultimately could result in a loss of product sales for us.

Although we monitor our use of open source closely, it is possible our past, present or future use of open source has triggered or may trigger the
foregoing requirements. Furthermore, the terms of many open source licenses have not been interpreted by U.S. courts, and there is a risk that
such licenses could be construed in a manner that could impose unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our
products. In such event, we could be required to seek licenses from third parties in order to continue offering our products, to re-engineer our
products or to discontinue the sale of our products in the event re-engineering cannot be accomplished on a timely basis, any of which could
materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.
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We could be required to provide the source code of our products to our customers.

Some of our customers have the right to require the source code of our products to be deposited into a source code escrow. Under certain
circumstances, our source code could be released to our customers. The conditions triggering the release of our source code vary by customer,
but include, among other things, breach of the applicable customer agreement, failure to provide required product support or maintenance, or if
we are subject to a bankruptcy proceeding or otherwise fail to carry on our business in the ordinary course. A release of our source code would
give our customers access to our trade secrets and other proprietary and confidential information.

Our ability to use net operating losses to offset future taxable income may be subject to certain limitations.

In general, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code, a corporation that undergoes an
�ownership change� is subject to limitations on its ability to utilize its pre-change net operating losses, or NOLs, to offset future taxable income.
Our existing NOLs may be subject to limitations arising from previous ownership changes, and if we undergo an ownership change in
connection with or after this offering, our ability to utilize NOLs could be further limited by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Future
changes in our stock ownership, many of which are outside of our control, could result in an ownership change under Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Our net operating losses may also be impaired under state law. Accordingly, we may not be able to utilize a material portion of
the NOLs.

Changes in our provision for income taxes or adverse outcomes resulting from examination of our income tax returns could materially and
adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our provision for income taxes is subject to volatility and could be adversely affected by the following:

� earnings being lower than anticipated in countries that have lower tax rates and higher than anticipated in countries that have higher
tax rates;

� changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities;

� expiration of, or lapses in, the research and development tax credit laws;

� transfer pricing adjustments;

� tax effects of nondeductible compensation;

� tax costs related to intercompany realignments;

� changes in accounting principles; or

� changes in tax laws and regulations, including possible changes to the taxation of earnings in the United States of our foreign
subsidiaries, and the deductibility of expenses attributable to foreign income, or the foreign tax credit rules.

Significant judgment is required to determine the recognition and measurement attribute prescribed in the accounting guidance for uncertainty in
income taxes. The accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes applies to all income tax positions, including the potential recovery of
previously paid taxes, which if settled unfavorably could adversely impact our provision for income taxes or additional paid-in capital. In
addition, we are subject to the examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly
assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. The
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Our business is subject to the risks of earthquakes, fire and other natural catastrophic events.

Our corporate headquarters are located in the San Francisco Bay Area, a region known for seismic activity. We also have significant research
and development activities in France and facilities in Asia, regions that have experienced fires, floods and other natural disasters. Our customers
and suppliers may also experience a disruption in their business as a result of natural disasters, which could negatively impact our business. A
significant natural disaster, such as an earthquake, flood or fire, occurring at our headquarters, our other facilities or where our channel partners,
suppliers or customers are located, could have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Man-made problems such as computer viruses, terrorism or electrical blackouts may disrupt our operations and could adversely affect our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Despite our implementation of network security measures, our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins and similar disruptions from
unauthorized tampering with our computer systems. Any such event could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and
financial condition. Efforts to limit the ability of third parties to disrupt the operations of the Internet or undermine our own security efforts may
be ineffective. In addition, the continued threat of terrorism and heightened security and military action in response to this threat, or any future
acts of terrorism, may cause further disruptions to the economies of the United States and other countries and create further uncertainties or
otherwise materially harm our business, operating results, and financial condition. Likewise, events such as widespread electrical blackouts
could have similar negative impacts. To the extent that such disruptions or uncertainties result in delays or cancellations of customer orders, our
research and development efforts or the deployment, manufacture or shipment of our products, our operating results, financial condition and
cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Our future growth depends on market acceptance of several broadband services, on the adoption of new broadband technologies and on
several other broadband industry trends.

Future demand for many of our products will depend significantly on the growing market acceptance of, and demand for, emerging broadband
services, including digital video, on-demand video services, HD video, IPTV, mobile video services and high-speed data services. The market
demand for such emerging services is rapidly growing, with many de facto or proprietary systems in use, which increases the challenge of
delivering interoperable products intended to address the requirements of such services.

The effective delivery of these services will depend, in part, on a variety of new network architectures, standards and equipment, such as:

� video compression standards, such as MPEG-4 AVC/H.264, for both standard definition and high definition services;

� delivery of high-speed services, such as fiber-to-the-premises, or FTTP, and digital subscriber line, or DSL, networks designed to
facilitate the delivery of video services by telecommunications operators;

� higher speed mobile technologies, such as LTE or 3G;

� the further adoption of bandwidth-optimization techniques, such as switched digital video and DOCSIS 3.0; and

� the introduction of new consumer devices, such as advanced set-top boxes, personal video recorders, or PVRs, and a variety of
smartphones, such as the iPhone.
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If adoption of these emerging services or technologies is not as widespread or as rapid as we expect, or if we are unable to develop new products
based on these technologies on a timely basis, our revenue will be materially and adversely affected.

Furthermore, other technological, industry and regulatory trends will affect the growth of our business. These trends include the following:

� convergence, or the need of many network operators to deliver a package of video, voice and data services to consumers, including
mobile delivery options;

� the increasing availability of traditional broadcast video content on the Internet;

� the further penetration of telecommunications operators into video service delivery;

� the emergence of a viable mobile video content delivery standard;

� efforts by regulators and governments in the United States and abroad to encourage the adoption of broadband and digital
technologies;

� increased consumer interest in 3D television and content;

� the extent and nature of regulatory attitudes towards such issues as network neutrality, competition between operators, access by third
parties to networks of other operators, local franchising requirements for telecommunications operators to offer video, and other new
services, such as mobile video; and

� the outcome of litigation and negotiations between content owners and service providers regarding rights of service providers to store
and distribute recorded broadcast content, which outcomes may drive adoption of one technology over another in some cases.

If we fail to recognize and respond to these trends by timely developing products, features and services required by these trends, we are likely to
lose revenue opportunities and our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Changes in telecommunications legislation and regulations could harm our prospects and future revenue.

Changes in telecommunications legislation and regulations in the United States and other countries could affect the revenue from our products.
In particular, regulations dealing with access by competitors to the networks of incumbent operators could slow or stop additional construction
or expansion by these operators. Increased regulation of our customers� pricing or service offerings could limit their investments and,
consequently, revenue from our products. The impact of new or revised legislation or regulations could have a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.

Newly adopted regulations will likely impact the demand for product features by our customers. For example, in the United States, these
regulations include the Commercial Advertisement Loudness Mitigation Act and the Twenty-First Century Communications and Video
Accessibility Act of 2010, which address accessibility for the hearing and visually impaired. We may be required to add features to our products
to address these regulations or new regulations in the future. These and other regulations may require us to develop features on a schedule which
may be inflexible and difficult to meet. In addition, certain countries do not currently allow for specific types of video distribution, such as
IPTV, or restrict our customers from delivering video using certain technology. These restrictions could prohibit or limit our ability to sell our
solution in these countries. Changes in legislation and regulations could result in our inability to develop other product features necessary for
particular transactions at the same time, and thus we could lose business and the related revenue.
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The markets in which we operate are intensely competitive.

The markets for our products are extremely competitive and have been characterized by rapid technological change and declining average sales
prices. We may face declining average sales prices during economic downturns as equipment suppliers compete aggressively for customers�
reduced capital spending.

Currently, we compete with companies focused on more traditional broadcast delivery, including Harmonic Inc. We also compete with
companies focused on multi-screen encoding, including Cisco Systems, Inc. (through its acquisition of Inlet Technologies LLC) and RGB
Networks, Inc. (through its acquisition of RipCode, Inc.). Due to the evolving competitive landscape and growing market opportunity, we expect
to encounter direct competition in the future from one or more larger traditional network infrastructure providers that may be one of our systems
integrators, such as Motorola Mobility (in the process of being acquired by Google Inc.) and Ericsson AB. These network equipment companies
may provide, as a package, encoding solutions in combination with other equipment that they traditionally sell to service providers.

Many of our competitors are substantially larger than us, and have greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources than we do. Many
of these large enterprises are in a better position to withstand any significant reduction in capital spending by customers in these markets. They
often have broader product lines and market focus, and may not be as susceptible to downturns in a particular market. These competitors may
also be able to bundle their products together to meet the needs of a particular customer, and may be capable of delivering more complete
solutions than we are able to provide. To the extent large enterprises that currently do not compete directly with us choose to enter our markets
by acquisition or otherwise, competition would likely intensify.

Further, some of our competitors that have greater financial resources have offered, and in the future may offer, their products at lower prices
than we offer for our competing products or on more attractive financing terms, which has in the past caused, and may in the future cause, us to
lose sales opportunities and the resulting revenue or to reduce our prices in response to that competition. Reductions in prices for any of our
products could materially and adversely affect our operating margins and revenue. In addition, many of our competitors have been in operation
longer than we have, and therefore, have more long-standing and established relationships with domestic and foreign customers, making it
difficult for us to establish relationships with and to sell our products to those customers.

If any of our competitors� products or technologies were to become the industry standard, our business would be seriously harmed. If our
competitors are successful in bringing their products to market earlier than us, or if these products are more technologically capable than ours, or
are deemed by customers to be more technologically capable than ours, our revenue could be materially and adversely affected. In addition,
certain companies that have not had a large presence in the broadband communications equipment market have begun to expand their presence
in this market through mergers and acquisitions. The continued consolidation of our competitors could have a significant negative impact on our
business.

If we are unable to compete effectively in any of our markets, or are forced to reduce the prices of our products in order to continue to be
competitive, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Video delivery markets are characterized by rapid technological change.

Video delivery markets are subject to rapid changes, making it difficult to accurately predict the markets� future growth rates, sizes or
technological directions. In view of the evolving nature of these markets, it is possible that Pay-TV service providers, broadcasters, content
providers and other video production and delivery companies will decide to adopt alternative architectures, new business models, or
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technologies that are incompatible with our current or future products. In addition, successful new entrants into the media markets, both
domestic and international, may impact existing industry business models, resulting in decreased spending by our existing customer base.
Finally, decisions by customers to adopt new technologies or products are often delayed by extensive evaluation and qualification processes,
which can result in delays in revenue of current and new products. If we are unable to design, develop, manufacture and sell products that
incorporate, or are compatible with, these new architectures or technologies, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be
materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to various laws and regulations related to the environment and potential climate change that could impose substantial costs
upon us and may adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our operations are regulated under various federal, state, local and international laws relating to the environment and potential climate change,
including those governing the management, disposal and labeling of hazardous substances and waste and the cleanup of contaminated sites. We
could incur costs and fines, third-party property damage or personal injury claims, or could be required to incur substantial investigation or
remediation costs, if we were to violate or become liable under environmental laws. The ultimate costs to us under these laws and the timing of
these costs are difficult to predict.

We also face increasing complexity in our product design as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the presence of certain
substances in electronic products and requiring producers of those products to be financially responsible for the collection, treatment, recycling
and disposal of certain products. For example, the European Parliament and the Council of the European Union have enacted the Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) directive, which regulates the collection, recovery and recycling of waste from electrical and
electronic products, and the Restriction on the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment (RoHS) directive,
which bans the use of certain hazardous materials, including lead, mercury, cadmium, hexavalent chromium, polybrominated biphenyls (PBBs)
and polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) that exceed certain specified levels. Legislation similar to RoHS and WEEE has been or may be
enacted in other jurisdictions, including in the United States, Japan and China. Our failure to comply with these laws could result in our being
directly or indirectly liable for costs, fines or penalties and third-party claims, and could jeopardize our ability to conduct business in such
regions and countries.

We also expect that our operations will be affected by other new environmental laws and regulations on an ongoing basis. Although we cannot
predict the ultimate impact of any such new laws and regulations, they will likely result in additional costs, and could require that we redesign or
change how we manufacture our products, any of which could have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition
and cash flows.

An economic downturn, including developments in the financial markets in the United States and elsewhere in the world, may materially
and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Financial markets in the United States, Europe and Asia have recently experienced extreme disruption, including, among other things, extreme
volatility in security prices, severely diminished liquidity and credit availability, rating downgrades of certain investments and declining
valuations of others. Governments have taken unprecedented actions intended to address extreme market conditions, such as the severe
restrictions on credit and declines in real estate values. While currently these conditions have not impaired our ability to access credit markets
and finance operations, there can be no assurance that there will not be a further deterioration in financial markets and confidence in major
economies. These economic developments affect our business in a number of ways. A tightening of credit in financial markets may adversely
affect the ability of our customers and suppliers to obtain financing for significant purchases and operations, and could result in a decrease in
demand for our products and services. Our
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customers� ability to pay for our solution may also be impaired, which may lead to an increase in our allowance for doubtful accounts and
write-offs of accounts receivable, reducing our cash flow.

Our global business could also be adversely affected by decreases in the general level of economic activity, such as decreases in business and
consumer spending. Our success depends on our ability to effectively plan and manage our resources through rapidly fluctuating economic
market conditions. We are unable to predict the likely duration and severity of any disruption in financial markets and adverse economic
conditions in the United States and other countries. Should these economic conditions result in our not meeting our revenue growth objectives, it
may have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Risks Related to this Offering and Our Common Stock

There may have been potential deficiencies in the process by which we obtained approvals of certain prior amendments to our certificate of
incorporation. As a result, stockholders who acquired shares of our capital stock prior to this offering and who did not participate in our
recent exchange offer could have claims against us for additional or different shares of our capital stock, for monetary damages or both.

There may have been potential deficiencies in the process by which we obtained approvals of prior amendments to our certificate of
incorporation, and in particular the means by which our certificate of incorporation was approved in connection with our Series D preferred
stock financing in 2003, or the Series D charter. Delaware law, which is the state in which we are incorporated, requires a specific ordering of
board and stockholder approvals in order for charter amendments to be properly approved. Our records from the Series D financing, which
occurred nine years ago and among other things effected a 1-for-100 reverse stock split and an automatic conversion into shares of common
stock of all of the then-outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1 preferred stock and Series C2
preferred stock held by any stockholder who did not purchase its full pro rata allocation in the Series D financing, do not provide clear evidence
that the ordering process was correctly adhered to in all instances.

There are Delaware court decisions that have emphasized the importance of strict compliance with the board and stockholder approval
requirements for charter amendments, and the Delaware courts have concluded in those decisions that non-compliance may result in invalidation
of the purported amendments. In the event that a stockholder who acquired shares of our capital stock prior to this offering were to prevail in a
claim that the Series D charter was invalid, persons listed on our stock ledger as owning shares of our capital stock could have claims against us
for additional or different shares, for monetary damages or both, depending on what shares they hold and when they originally purchased them
from us.

Holders of any shares of common stock traceable to shares of common stock outstanding prior to the filing of the Series D charter could have a
claim to a number of shares equal to 100 times the amount currently shown on our stock ledger. This is because the Series D charter effected a
1-for-100 reverse stock split, and if the Series D charter were held to be invalid, then such holders could claim that the reverse stock split never
occurred. Similarly, because the Series D charter, in addition to the reverse stock split described above, provided for the automatic conversion
into shares of common stock of all of the then-outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1 preferred stock
and Series C2 preferred stock held by investors that did not purchase their full pro rata allocation in the Series D financing, holders of any shares
of common stock traceable to such converted preferred shares could have a claim that, were the Series D charter held invalid, such shares of
preferred stock were never converted and are still outstanding in an amount equal to 100 times the amount shown on our stock ledger at the time
of their conversion. A determination that the Series D charter was invalid also could raise concerns about the validity of our subsequently
adopted certificates of incorporation, including those adopted in connection with our Series E, F, G and H preferred stock financings. As a result,
holders
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of any shares of common stock traceable to shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1 preferred stock and Series C2
preferred stock who did purchase their full pro rata allocation in the Series D financing also could have a claim that such preferred shares remain
outstanding in an amount equal to 100 times the amount shown on our stock ledger at the time of their later conversion, and holders of any
shares of capital stock that were purchased, or are traceable only to shares originally purchased, after the filing of the Series D charter could have
contractual or other claims for monetary damages against us based on the amount paid for such shares.

We have consulted with legal counsel regarding the validity of the Series D charter. It is our position and belief, based in part on our
consultation with legal counsel, that the Series D charter was validly approved by our board of directors and stockholders at the time of the
Series D financing, and as a result, the corporate actions effected by the filing of the Series D charter, including the 1-for-100 reverse stock split,
and the conversion into shares of common stock of any shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1 preferred stock
and Series C2 preferred stock held by any stockholder who did not purchase its full pro rata allocation in the Series D financing, validly
occurred.

Nevertheless, to address this matter and any other matters that could raise concerns about our current capital structure, we conducted an
Exchange Offer to provide holders of outstanding shares of capital stock the opportunity to exchange each share of capital stock shown as owned
by such holder, together with any claims relating to the original acquisition of such share, or of the shares from which it was converted or
reclassified, including claims for additional or different shares of our capital stock and claims for monetary damages (each such share, together
with such claims, referred to as an Existing Share), for one share of the same class and series of capital stock (each, referred to as an Exchange
Share). As part of the consideration for the Exchange Shares issued, each participating holder also was required to agree that, following the
Exchange Offer, the Exchange Shares would represent their entire equity interest in and to Envivio (other than unexercised stock options or
warrants outstanding as of the date of the closing of the Exchange Offer) and to provide us a release from any claims that such holder may have
relating to such holder�s acquisition of the outstanding shares being tendered or of the shares from which they were converted or reclassified.

Holders of more than 99% of the Existing Shares, measured on an as-converted basis based on the conversion ratios set forth in our existing
certificate of incorporation, participated in the Exchange Offer and, therefore, surrendered in the exchange all claims relating to the original
acquisition of their shares (or their acquisition of shares upon the conversion or reclassification of those original shares), and also both agreed
that the Exchange Shares they received in the Exchange Offer represent their entire equity interest in and to Envivio (other than unexercised
stock options or warrants outstanding as of the date of the closing of the Exchange Offer) and provided us a release from any and all claims that
such holder may have relating to such holder�s acquisition of the outstanding shares being tendered or of the shares from which they were
converted or reclassified.

Even though we have completed the Exchange Offer with almost all of our outstanding shares participating, the stockholders who did not
participate in the Exchange Offer may bring claims against us for additional or different shares, for monetary damages or both, depending on
what shares they hold and when they originally acquired them from us. These claims, regardless of outcome, could result in substantial expense
and significant diversion of the efforts of our management. In the event each such non-participating stockholder prevails on a claim against us,
we could be required to pay substantial damages or issue additional shares of our common stock, or both, which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows and you may incur additional dilution.
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Our stock price may be volatile. Further, you may not be able to resell shares of our common stock at or above the price you paid.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for shares of our common stock, and an active public market for these shares may not
develop or be sustained after this offering. We and the representatives of the underwriters have determined the initial public offering price of our
common stock through negotiation. This price will not necessarily reflect the price at which investors in the market will be willing to buy and
sell our shares following this offering. In addition, the trading price of our common stock following this offering is likely to be highly volatile
and could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. These factors include:

� actual or anticipated variation in our and our competitors� results of operations;

� announcements by us or our competitors of new products, new or terminated significant contracts, commercial relationships or capital
commitments;

� issuance of new securities analysts� reports or changed recommendations for our stock;

� developments or disputes concerning our intellectual property or other proprietary rights;

� commencement of, or our involvement in, litigation;

� announced or completed acquisitions of businesses or technologies by us or our competitors;

� any major change in our management; and

� general economic conditions and slow or negative growth of our markets.
In addition, the stock market in general, and the market for technology companies in particular, has experienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. Broad market and industry
factors may seriously affect the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. These fluctuations may be
even more pronounced in the trading market for our stock shortly following this offering. In addition, in the past, following periods of volatility
in the overall market and the market price of a particular company�s securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against
these companies. This litigation, if instituted against us, could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our management�s attention and
resources.

If securities or industry analysts issue an adverse opinion regarding our stock or do not publish research or reports about our business, our
stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that equity research analysts publish about us and our
business. We do not control these analysts or the content and opinions included in their reports. The price of our common stock could decline if
one or more equity research analysts downgrade our common stock or if those analysts issue other unfavorable commentary or cease publishing
reports about us or our business. If one or more equity research analysts cease coverage of our company, we could lose visibility in the market,
which in turn could cause our stock price to decline. Further, securities analysts may elect not to provide research coverage of our common stock
after the completion of this offering, and such lack of research coverage may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares by existing stockholders could cause our stock price to decline.
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If our existing stockholders sell, or indicate an intention to sell, substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market after the lock-up
and other legal restrictions on resale discussed in this prospectus lapse, the trading price of our common stock could decline. Based on shares
outstanding as of January 31, 2012, upon completion of this offering, we will have outstanding a total of 26,657,728 shares of common stock. Of
these shares, only the shares of common stock sold in this offering by us
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and the selling stockholders will be freely tradable, without restriction, in the public market immediately after the offering. Each of our directors
and officers, the selling stockholders and certain of our other stockholders, has entered into lock-up agreements with the underwriters that
restrict their ability to sell or transfer their shares. The lock-up agreements pertaining to this offering will expire 180 days from the date of this
prospectus, although they may be extended for up to an additional 34 days under certain circumstances. Our underwriters, however, may, in their
sole discretion, permit our officers, directors and other current stockholders who are subject to the contractual lock-up to sell shares prior to the
expiration of the lock-up agreements. After the lock-up agreements expire, based on shares outstanding as of January 31, 2012, without giving
effect to the sale of shares in this offering by the selling stockholders, up to an additional 20,157,728 shares of common stock will be eligible for
sale in the public market, 12,906,960 of which are held by directors, executive officers and other affiliates and will be subject to volume
limitations under Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and various vesting agreements. In addition,
shares of common stock that are subject to outstanding options as of January 31, 2012 will become eligible for sale in the public market to the
extent permitted by the provisions of various vesting agreements, the lock-up agreements and Rules 144 and 701 under the Securities Act. We
intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act covering all of the shares of common stock subject to options
outstanding and reserved for issuance under our stock plans. This registration statement will become effective immediately upon filing, and
shares covered by this registration statement will be eligible for sale in the public markets, subject to Rule 144 limitations applicable to affiliates
and any lock-up agreements described above. If these additional shares are sold, or if it is perceived that they will be sold, in the public market,
the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Insiders have substantial control over us and will be able to influence corporate matters.

As of March 31, 2012, our directors and executive officers and their affiliates beneficially owned, in the aggregate, 58.6% of our outstanding
capital stock. As a result, these stockholders will be able to exercise significant influence over all matters requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets.
This concentration of ownership could limit stockholders� ability to influence corporate matters and may have the effect of delaying or preventing
a third party from acquiring control over us.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us, which may be beneficial to our
stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the
market price of our common stock.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as expected to be restated immediately prior to the closing of this offering, may have
the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control or changes in our management. These provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts
by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board
of directors, which is responsible for appointing the members of our management. These provisions include the following:

� the right of our board of directors to elect a director to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of our board of directors;

� the classification of our board of directors so that only a portion of our directors are elected each year, with each director serving a
three-year term;

� the requirement for advance notice for nominations for election to our board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted
upon at a stockholders� meeting;

� the ability of our board of directors to alter our bylaws without obtaining stockholder approval;
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� the ability of our board of directors to issue, without stockholder approval, up to 2,500,000 shares of preferred stock with rights set by
our board of directors, which rights could be senior to those of common stock;

� the required approval of holders of at least two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote at an election of directors to adopt, amend or repeal
our bylaws or amend or repeal the provisions of our certificate of incorporation regarding the election and removal of directors and the
ability of stockholders to take action by written consent; and

� the elimination of the right of stockholders to call a special meeting of stockholders and to take action by written consent.
In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware. These provisions may prohibit or restrict large stockholders, in particular those owning 15% or more of our outstanding
voting stock, from merging or combining with us. These provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and under Delaware law could
discourage potential takeover attempts and could reduce the price that investors might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock in the
future and result in our market price being lower than it would without these provisions.

We have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds from this offering and may not use them effectively.

We will have broad discretion in the application of the net proceeds from this offering and could spend the proceeds in ways that do not improve
our results of operations or enhance the value of our common stock. Our failure to apply these funds effectively could have a material adverse
effect on our business, delay the development of our products and cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Purchasers in this offering will experience immediate and substantial dilution in the book value of their investment.

The initial public offering price of our common stock is substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of our common stock
immediately after this offering. Therefore, if you purchase our common stock in this offering, you will incur an immediate dilution of $6.35 in
net tangible book value per share from the price you paid, based on the initial public offering price of $9.00 per share. See �Dilution� for more
information. In addition, new investors who purchase shares in this offering will contribute approximately 36.7% of the total amount of equity
capital raised by us through the date of this offering, but will only own approximately 24.4% of the outstanding share capital. The exercise of
outstanding options and warrants will result in further dilution. For a further description of the dilution that you will experience immediately
after this offering, see �Dilution.�

We have never paid dividends on our capital stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

We have paid no cash dividends on any of our classes of capital stock to date, have contractual restrictions against paying cash dividends and
currently intend to retain our future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business. As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our
common stock will be the sole source of gain for the foreseeable future.
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INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical facts contained in this prospectus,
including statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, strategy and plans, and our expectations for future
operations, are forward-looking statements. The words �believe,� �may,� �will,� �estimate,� �continue,� �anticipate,� �design,� �intend,� �expect� or the negative
version of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking
statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our financial condition,
results of operations, strategy, short-term and long-term business operations and objectives, and financial needs. These forward-looking
statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those described in �Risk Factors.� In light of these risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events and circumstances discussed in this prospectus may not occur, and actual results
could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include,
but are not limited to, statements about:

� anticipated trends and challenges in our business and the competition that we face;

� our intent to leverage our core IP video technology strength to develop new products with enhanced software-based capabilities to
demonstrate the unique value of our solution and increase our long-term revenue opportunities;

� our intent to increase our market share by selling additional products into our existing customers� networks;

� our intent to leverage our relationships with leading systems integrators to expand our market presence;

� our intent to develop new products and features for our customers through internal development, potential acquisitions and
partnerships with third party technologies and products;

� our liquidity and working capital requirements;

� our expectations regarding future expenses; and

� our expectations regarding the use of proceeds from this offering.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, level of
activity, performance or achievements. In addition, neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of
any of these forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statement made by us in this prospectus speaks only as of the date on which it is
made. We disclaim any duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this prospectus to confirm these statements to
actual results or revised expectations.

You may rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. You should read this prospectus and the documents that we reference in this
prospectus and have filed with the SEC as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part completely and with the
understanding that our actual future results, levels of activity, performance and events and circumstances may be materially different from what
we expect. Neither we, the selling stockholders nor any of the underwriters have authorized anyone to provide information different from that
contained in this prospectus. Neither the delivery of this prospectus, nor sale of common stock, means that information contained in this
prospectus is correct after the date of this prospectus. This prospectus is not an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy shares of common
stock in any circumstances under which the offer or solicitation is unlawful.
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This prospectus also contains statistical data and estimates, including those relating to market size and growth rates of the markets in which we
participate, that we obtained from industry publications and reports generated by Cisco, Gartner, Inc.1, or Gartner, and IMS Research. These
publications typically indicate that they have obtained their information from sources they believe to be reliable, but do not guarantee the
accuracy and completeness of their information. Although we have assessed the information in the publications and found it to be reasonable and
believe the publications are reliable, we have not independently verified their data.

1 The Gartner reports described herein, or the Gartner Reports, represent data, research opinion or viewpoints published, as part of a
syndicated service, by Gartner and are not representations of fact. Each Gartner Report speaks as of its original publication date (and not
as of the date of this prospectus) and opinions expressed in the Gartner Reports are subject to change without notice.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock that we are selling in this offering will be $49.4 million, after
deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us. We will not receive any proceeds
from the shares of common stock sold in the offering by the selling stockholders, although we will pay the expenses, other than underwriting
discounts and commissions, associated with the sale of those shares.

The principal purposes of this offering are to obtain additional capital, to create a public market for our common stock and to facilitate our future
access to the public equity markets.

We currently intend to use the net proceeds received by us from this offering for working capital and general corporate purposes, including
further expansion of our sales and marketing efforts, continued investments in research and development and for capital expenditures.
Specifically, we intend to hire additional personnel to support the growth in our business. In addition, we may use a portion of the proceeds
received by us from this offering for acquisitions of complementary businesses, technologies or other assets. We have no agreements with
respect to any material acquisitions at this time and we have not allocated specific amounts of net proceeds for any of these purposes. Based on
our current cash and cash equivalents balance together with cash generated from operations, we do not expect that we will need to utilize any of
the net proceeds to us of this offering to fund our operations during the next 12 months.

We cannot specify with certainty the particular amounts or uses for the net proceeds to be received by us from this offering. Accordingly, our
management team will have broad discretion in using the net proceeds to be received by us from this offering.

Pending the use of proceeds from this offering as described above, we plan to invest the net proceeds in short- and intermediate-term,
interest-bearing obligations, investment-grade instruments, certificates of deposit or direct or guaranteed obligations of the U.S. government.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividend on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain any future earnings and do not expect to
pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of directors
and will be dependent on a number of factors, including our earnings, capital requirements and overall financial conditions. Additionally, under
the terms of our Term Loan and Security Agreement dated as of November 22, 2010, by and between us and Silicon Valley Bank, we must
obtain written consent from Silicon Valley Bank prior to paying any cash dividends.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our cash and cash equivalents and capitalization as of January 31, 2012, as follows:

� our actual cash and cash equivalents and capitalization as of January 31, 2012;

� our pro forma cash and cash equivalents and capitalization after giving effect to the automatic conversion of all outstanding shares of
our convertible preferred stock into common stock, assuming the conversion immediately prior to the completion of this offering, and
the resulting reclassification of the warrant liability to additional paid-in capital; and

� our pro forma as adjusted cash and cash equivalents and capitalization after giving effect to the automatic conversion of all
outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock into common stock, assuming the conversion immediately prior to the
completion of this offering, the resulting reclassification of our warrant liability to additional paid-in capital, and the receipt of the net
proceeds from the sale of 6,500,000 shares of common stock offered by us in this offering at the initial public offering price of
$9.00 per share, after deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

You should read this table in conjunction with �Selected Consolidated Financial Data� and �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations� and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus.

As of January 31, 2012

Actual
Pro

Forma
Pro Forma as

Adjusted
(in thousands, except share

and per share data, unaudited)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,405 $ 27,405 $ 76,825

Warrant liability 103 �  �  
Convertible preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share: 7,286,000 shares authorized,
6,988,120 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares authorized, issued and
outstanding, pro forma (unaudited) and pro forma as adjusted (unaudited) 47,764 �  �  
Stockholders� equity (deficit):
Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share: no shares authorized, issued or outstanding,
actual; 2,500,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding, pro forma
(unaudited) and pro forma as adjusted (unaudited) �  �  �  
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share: 102,000,000 shares authorized, 13,169,608
shares issued and outstanding, actual; 102,000,000 shares authorized, 20,157,728 shares
issued and outstanding, pro forma (unaudited); 26,657,728 shares issued and outstanding,
pro forma as adjusted (unaudited) 13 20 27
Additional paid-in capital 52,955 100,815 150,228
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (825) (825) (825) 
Accumulated deficit (78,831) (78,831) (78,831) 

Total stockholders� equity (deficit) (26,688) 21,179 70,599

Total capitalization $ 21,179 $ 21,179 $ 70,599

If the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares from the selling stockholders were exercised in full, pro forma as adjusted cash and cash
equivalents, common stock and additional paid-in capital, stockholders� equity (deficit) and shares issued and outstanding as of January 31, 2012
would remain the same since the shares subject to the option would be sold by the selling shareholders.
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The number of shares of common stock in the table above excludes the following shares:

� 2,328,935 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options as of January 31, 2012, at a weighted average
exercise price of $1.15 per share, and 263,768 shares of our common stock issuable upon vesting of outstanding restricted stock units
as of January 31, 2012;

� 516,269 shares of common stock outstanding as of January 31, 2012, that were issued primarily to employees located in France
through stock purchase agreements and paid for by issuances of promissory notes. These shares are legally issued and outstanding, but
are not included in stockholders� equity (deficit) as these shares are subject to repurchase by us under the terms of the applicable stock
purchase agreement or subject to forfeiture under the terms of the applicable promissory note to the extent such note has not been
repaid. We have a right to repurchase these shares at the original purchase price paid for the shares upon termination of employment of
the holder of such shares to the extent the shares are then unvested. We also have a security interest in these shares under the terms of
the promissory notes that remain outstanding. We do not intend to repurchase these shares in connection with this offering. For
additional information about these shares, please see Note 8. Stock Option Plan�Stock Purchase Rights and Common Stock Purchase
Agreements contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus;

� 36,000 shares of common stock, on an as-converted basis, issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants to purchase convertible
preferred stock, which warrants will convert into warrants to purchase common stock immediately prior to the completion of this
offering, at a weighted average exercise price of $12.50 per share; and

� 924,163 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan and 200,000 shares of common
stock, subject to increase on an annual basis, reserved for future issuance under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, which will become
effective in connection with this offering.
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DILUTION

If you invest in our common stock in this offering, your ownership interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the initial
public offering price per share of our common stock and the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share of our common stock
immediately after this offering. Net tangible book value dilution per share to new investors represents the difference between the amount per
share paid by purchasers of shares of common stock in this offering and the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share of common
stock immediately after completion of this offering.

Net tangible book value per share is determined by dividing our total tangible assets, including our deferred inventory costs, less our total
liabilities by the number of shares of common stock outstanding. Our historical net tangible book value as of January 31, 2012, was $21.1
million, or $1.60 per share. Our pro forma net tangible book value as of January 31, 2012, was $21.2 million, or $1.05 per share, based on the
total number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of January 31, 2012, after giving effect to the conversion of all outstanding shares of
our convertible preferred stock into common stock assuming the conversion immediately prior to the completion of this offering and the
resulting reclassification of the warrant liability to additional paid-in capital.

After giving effect to our sale of shares of common stock in this offering at the initial public offering price of $9.00 per share, and after
deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible
book value as of January 31, 2012 would have been $70.6 million, or $2.65 per share. This represents an immediate increase in net tangible book
value of $1.60 per share to existing stockholders and an immediate dilution in net tangible book value of $6.35 per share to purchasers of
common stock in this offering, as illustrated in the following table:

Initial public offering price per share $ 9.00
Pro forma net tangible book value per share as of January 31, 2012 $ 1.05
Increase in pro forma net tangible book value per share attributable to new investors 1.60

Pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per share after this offering 2.65

Dilution per share to investors in this offering $ 6.35

If the underwriters� option to purchase 1,163,250 additional shares from the selling stockholders is exercised in full, the pro forma as adjusted net
tangible book value per share after this offering would remain at $2.65 per share. There will be no change in pro forma as adjusted net tangible
book value per share to existing stockholders and there will be no further dilution to new investors purchasing shares in this offering since the
shares subject to the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares would be sold by the selling stockholders.

The following table presents, on a pro forma as adjusted basis as of January 31, 2012, after giving effect to the conversion of all outstanding
shares of convertible preferred stock into common stock assuming the conversion immediately prior to the completion of this offering, the
differences between the existing stockholders and the purchasers of shares in this offering with respect to the number of shares purchased from
us, the total consideration paid, which includes net proceeds received from the issuance of common and convertible preferred stock, cash
received from the exercise of stock options and warrants and the value of any stock issued for services and the average price paid per share (in
thousands, except per share amounts and percentages):

Shares Purchased Total Consideration Average Price
per ShareNumber Percent Amount Percent

Existing stockholders 20,157,728 75.6% $ 100,732 63.3% $ 5.00
New investors 6,500,000 24.4 58,500 36.7 9.00

Totals 26,657,728 100.0% $ 159,232 100.0% $ 5.97
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The exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares in full would not further dilute existing stockholders since the
shares subject to the option to purchase additional shares would be sold by the selling stockholders.

The foregoing calculations are based on 20,157,728 shares outstanding as of January 31, 2012 after giving effect to the conversion of all
outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock into common stock, and excludes the following shares:

� 2,328,935 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options as of January 31, 2012, at a weighted average
exercise price of $1.15 per share, and 263,768 shares of our common stock issuable upon vesting of outstanding restricted stock units
as of January 31, 2012;

� 516,269 shares of common stock outstanding as of January 31, 2012, that were issued primarily to employees located in France
through stock purchase agreements and paid for by issuances of promissory notes. These shares are legally issued and outstanding, but
are not included in stockholders� equity (deficit) as these shares are subject to repurchase by us under the terms of the applicable stock
purchase agreement or subject to forfeiture under the terms of the applicable promissory note to the extent such note has not been
repaid. We have a right to repurchase these shares at the original purchase price paid for the shares upon termination of employment of
the holder of such shares to the extent the shares are then unvested. We also have a security interest in these shares under the terms of
the promissory notes that remain outstanding. We do not intend to repurchase these shares in connection with this offering. For
additional information about these shares, please see Note 8. Stock Option Plan�Stock Purchase Rights and Common Stock Purchase
Agreements contained in our audited consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus;

� 36,000 shares of common stock, on an as-converted basis, issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants to purchase convertible
preferred stock, which warrants will convert into warrants to purchase common stock immediately prior to the completion of this
offering, at a weighted average exercise price of $12.50 per share; and

� 924,163 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan and 200,000 shares of common
stock, subject to increase on an annual basis, reserved for future issuance under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, which will become
effective in connection with this offering.

The sale by the selling stockholders in this offering will cause the number of shares held by existing stockholders to be reduced to
18,902,728 shares, or 70.9% the total number of shares of our common stock outstanding after this offering, and will increase the number of
shares held by new investors to 7,755,000 shares, or 29.1% of the total number of shares outstanding after this offering.

To the extent that any outstanding options are exercised or new options are issued under our incentive plans, there will be further dilution to
investors participating in this offering. If all outstanding options under our 2000 Stock Option Plan and our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan as of
January 31, 2012 were exercised, and if all of our outstanding warrants were exercised for cash, then our existing stockholders, including the
holders of these options and warrants, would own 78.0% and our new investors would own 22.0% of the total number of shares of our common
stock outstanding upon the completion of this offering. In such event, the total consideration paid by our existing stockholders, including the
holders of these options and warrants, would be approximately $104.5 million, or 64.1%, the total consideration paid by our new investors
would be $58.5 million, or 35.9%, the average price per share paid by our existing stockholders would be $4.53 and the average price per share
paid by our new investors would be $9.00 per share.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

We derived the selected consolidated statement of operations data for fiscal years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and the consolidated
balance sheet data as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. We
derived the selected consolidated statement of operations data for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2008 and 2009 and the consolidated balance
sheet data as of January 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 from our audited consolidated financial statements which are not included in this prospectus.
Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in the future. You should read the following selected
consolidated historical financial data below in conjunction with �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations� and our consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this prospectus. The
selected consolidated financial data in this section is not intended to replace the consolidated financial statements and is qualified in its entirety
by the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Year Ended January 31,
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012(3)

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 14,064 $ 18,664 $ 16,288 $ 30,004 $ 50,646
Cost of revenue(1) 7,888 10,085 7,482 11,504 18,492

Gross profit 6,176 8,579 8,806 18,500 32,154

Operating expenses:
Research and development(1) 7,279 7,878 4,908 5,152 6,728
Sales and marketing(1) 8,933 9,698 6,980 8,886 16,206
General and administrative(1) 4,679 5,840 5,309 6,449 8,561

Total operating expenses 20,891 23,416 17,197 20,487 31,495

Income (loss) from operations (14,715) (14,837) (8,391) (1,987) 659
Interest expense, net (389) (1,557) (850) (270) (134) 
Other income (expense), net 563 695 86 (61) 237

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (14,541) (15,699) (9,155) (2,318) 762
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (46) 70 22 167 624

Net income (loss) (14,495) (15,769) (9,177) (2,485) 138
Deemed dividend on convertible preferred stock �  �  �  (2,286) �  
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock �  �  �  �  (5) 
Noncumulative dividends to convertible preferred
stockholders �  �  �  �  (133) 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders(2) $ (14,495) $ (15,769) $ (9,177) $ (4,771) $ �  

Net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted(2) $ (37.32) $ (34.93) $ (18.33) $ (0.58) $ 0.00

Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share
attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted(2) 388,434 451,390 500,550 8,203,001 13,123,524
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(1) Includes employee stock-based compensation as follows:

Year Ended January 31,
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

(in thousands)
Cost of revenue $ 3 $ 2 $ 1 $ 37 $ 3
Research and development 4 7 6 71 89
Sales and marketing 5 15 17 65 279
General and administrative 25 17 21 578 1,279

Total stock-based compensation $ 37 $ 41 $ 45 $ 751 $ 1,650

(2) Please see Note 9 to our audited consolidated financial statements for an explanation of the calculations of our basic and diluted net income
(loss) per share attributable to common stockholders.

(3) We prospectively adopted new accounting guidance with respect to multiple element revenue arrangements for transactions entered into or
materially modified on or subsequent to February 1, 2011. Pro forma revenue that would have been reported for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2012 if the transactions entered into or materially modified on or subsequent to February 1, 2011 were subject to the previous
accounting guidance would have been $45.1 million.

As of January 31,
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 654 $ 6,880 $ 4,330 $ 10,017 $ 27,405
Working capital (deficit) (3,854) 2,886 (1,796) 2,283 19,179
Total assets 14,074 22,157 15,143 26,751 44,578
Warrant liability 309 200 83 196 103
Total debt 5,702 6,345 3,674 �  1,000
Convertible preferred stock 40,692 60,487 65,465 31,421 47,764
Total stockholders� deficit (43,092) (59,034) (68,256) (28,915) (26,688) 
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MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed below. Factors that could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not limited to, those identified below and those discussed in �Risk Factors� included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Overview

We are a leading provider of software-based IP video processing and distribution solutions that enable the delivery of high-quality video to
consumers. Based on our unique video compression and advanced IP video networking technologies, our solution is designed to enable service
providers and content providers to offer high-quality video anytime, anywhere across a broad array of video formats, networks, consumer
devices and operating systems. Our software-based solution runs on industry-standard hardware and includes encoders, transcoders, network
media processors and video gateways, all controlled through our network management system.

We were founded in January 2000 by a small group of talented software and electrical engineers from France Telecom. France Telecom also
agreed to provide us with the reference MPEG-4 software platform developed over four years at France Telecom, and a worldwide and
royalty-free license to several key patents addressing elements of the MPEG-4 standards in exchange for shares of our convertible preferred
stock representing approximately 10% of our outstanding shares at that time. This technology from France Telecom was critical in our early
development efforts because it provided us early access to the technology that would later serve as the basis for an industry standard. Even
though this MPEG-4 platform technology is now widely available as a result of becoming an industry standard, we have made proprietary
developments to our software-based platform that have continued to differentiate us from our competitors.

Since our inception, we have been focused on developing a software-based architecture for processing and distributing IP video to video-enabled
devices at the highest video quality possible. At that time, our software-based approach was a novel strategy for addressing video processing and
distribution as most existing technologies processed and distributed video by designing hardware products for the transfer of video over a fixed
format to standard TVs. These hardware products generally focused on improving quality of video, but did not attempt to address multiple
formats or the challenges created by multiple devices and different networks. Because of our founding team�s software expertise and the
challenge of delivering video to mobile devices, which utilizes multiple formats and has multiple delivery requirements, our solution was
designed from the beginning to provide a flexible solution that could adapt quickly and cost-effectively to the rapidly changing landscape of
technologies, formats and capabilities of mobile devices.

While attempting to address the challenges of processing and distributing video across a rapidly changing landscape of formats, networks,
devices and operating systems, we have maintained our focus on improving the quality of the video delivered by our solution. We originally
focused on developing technologies supported by the MPEG-4 standard, which is an industry standard for a group of audio and video coding
formats and related technology that is capable of providing the highest quality video in the marketplace today. When we initially developed this
technology, the standard in the marketplace was MPEG-2, a previous similar standard available since 1992. Throughout our history, we believe
we have made valuable contributions to the ISO/IEC Moving Picture Experts Group, or MPEG, including having several of our employees sit on
the governing standards body and by contributing several technologies to the video community that fostered the development of MPEG-4 as an
industry standard. We believe these contributions demonstrate our innovation and thought leadership in the video processing and distribution
industry.
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Our software-based approach to developing a flexible solution while delivering high-quality video has led to the development of several key
products throughout our history. In 2001, we completed our first product based on the MPEG-4 standard. In 2002, we developed our first
MPEG-4 webcasting system, which allowed us to address the enterprise market. In 2003, we deployed a news video contribution system in
MPEG-4, which allowed us to address the need to transmit low bitrate video for real-time news gathering. In 2004, our first H.264 live
transmission over satellite was successful, which allowed us to address the needs of satellite providers looking to deliver low bitrate video over
satellite. We focused on our expansion into Asia in 2005 by providing the IPTV system for a service provider in China and a mobile digital TV
service provider in Japan. In 2007, we developed our first all IP-based headend, an innovative and cost-reducing design for consumer video
distribution, and our first AVS encoder, which allowed us to address the expanding video services market in China. In 2008, we introduced the
world�s first three-screen convergence encoder, which enabled operators to deliver video to three screens (mobile, PC and TV) from a single
product. In 2010, we introduced 3D TV support with multi-video encoding standard on our C4 encoder, as well as support for the expanding set
of mobile and web streaming formats. In November 2010, we launched a new class of product, a network media processor, which we call Halo,
which enables the optimization of networks for distribution of multi-screen, multi-format video. In December 2011, we released Muse, our new
multi-screen software designed for live or file-based video transcoding and distribution to any device.

As a result of our close relationship with France Telecom, we initially focused on the telecommunications market both for broadband IPTV
delivery and delivery of video to mobile devices. However, as consumer demands have evolved over time, our solution has become attractive to
a larger set of customers. In reaction to telecommunications companies providing video content and services to multiple devices with IPTV as
well as mobile video services, traditional cable TV service providers have launched innovative services that deliver video content to PCs and
mobile devices. Most recently over-the-top, or OTT, providers have also gained market share by offering innovative and cost-effective video
services to mobile devices, PCs and even TVs for consumers through the open Internet. This set of competing service offerings, when combined
with increased consumer demand for video on multiple screens, led us to design a single solution that addresses the needs of a broader customer
base of service providers and content providers. For example, one of our first major end-customers purchased our IPTV solution in 2008 to
enable delivery of video to TVs over broadband networks. This same customer began providing OTT services in 2009, and purchased our OTT
solution to enable its OTT services. Finally, in 2010, this customer began to offer mobile video content and purchased our solution to address
this video delivery mode as well.

We target several different types of video service providers and content providers, including telecommunications companies and cable, satellite
and OTT providers. These target customers have unique characteristics, including their infrastructure, target consumer demands, scale, delivery
models and business models. We focus on providing video delivery solutions to these customers that allow them to better target their growth
markets, such as mobile TV, Pay-TV, IPTV and OTT. To date, our solution has been deployed by over 300 end-customers worldwide in over 50
different countries.

We outsource the manufacturing of our products to a single manufacturer in California. In some cases, we rely on our manufacturer to procure
the components for our equipment. For certain components, we contract directly with the supplier. We ship our solutions directly from our
manufacturer.

Our products and support services are sold worldwide, primarily through systems integrators, which serve as our channel partners. Our channel
partners assist us with the sales process, systems integration, deployment and support. We employ a sales force that is responsible for managing
our relationships with our channel partners within each geographic territory in which we market and sell our products. To a lesser extent, we also
sell our products and support services directly to end-customers. In many cases, even when we sell our products through channel partners, we
market and work directly with the end-customer to promote our products.
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Since inception, we have expended significant resources on our research and development operations. Our research and development activities
are exclusively conducted in the metropolitan area of Rennes, France, which we believe provides us access to highly qualified engineers on a
cost-effective basis located in what has traditionally been viewed as a top broadcast center of Europe.

Our revenue was $14.1 million, $18.7 million, $16.3 million and $30.0 million in the fiscal years 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively, and
significantly increased to $50.6 million in fiscal 2012, a 69% increase compared to the prior fiscal year. We have incurred losses since inception
as we grew our business and invested in research and development, sales and marketing, and administrative functions. However, we achieved
profitability during the year ended January 31, 2012. As of January 31, 2012, we had an accumulated deficit of $78.8 million.

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations

The following are key factors that impact our results of operations:

Consumer Demand and Infrastructure Capacity

Most of our products are installed into networks operated by telecommunications, cable, satellite and OTT providers to deliver high-quality
video to a consumer. The demand for our products is significantly impacted by the end consumer of video services and the demands these end
consumers place on service providers and content providers to deliver high-quality video across disparate networks and to multiple devices. As
this consumer demand increases, service providers respond by expanding or enhancing their infrastructure and equipment to address these needs.
As the infrastructure capacity increases, high-quality video can be made available to more consumers over broadband and wireless IP networks,
which we believe will also increase the number of global broadband users.

Our solution is designed to address the infrastructure challenge of delivering massive amounts of content over different types of networks to
consumers who are increasingly viewing video on a growing variety of devices, such as tablets, smartphones, laptops, and Internet-enabled TVs
and media players. As consumer expectations of video delivery increase, the demand from telecommunications, cable, satellite and OTT
providers for the type of video delivery solutions that we provide increases. Accordingly, we measure consumer demand for video services by
monitoring a collection of key market metrics, including the introduction of new mobile devices, such as tablets, new access mediums that are
emerging in the digital home, such as Internet-enabled TVs and new video applications, and enhanced product offerings, such as bundling
on-demand video services with other traditional service offerings.

We believe the combination of increased availability of video-enabled connected devices combined with the evolution of the network
infrastructure will, in turn, drive service providers and content providers to seek flexible solutions to deliver video to consumers that can
continue to adapt to changing formats, networks and devices while maintaining the highest possible video quality.

Competitive Environment and Geographic Mix

The market for our products is competitive and our gross margin is impacted by the level of competition we face and the geographic mix of
product sales worldwide. We face significant competition in selling our solution. In any given sales opportunity, the level of competition we face
could impact our gross margin. In addition, our gross margin may be impacted by the location of our target customer as different geographic
regions have different pricing environments based on customer expectation, business models and our customers� revenue opportunity from the
services we enable. For example, we typically experience lower average sales prices in the Asia-Pacific region. We anticipate that our
geographic mix will continue to fluctuate in the future from quarter to quarter, which could impact our future gross margin.
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Average Sales Prices

We may experience a decline in average sales prices as new competitive products are introduced into the marketplace. Changes in average sales
prices cannot always be predicted with certainty. The average sales prices of our products may decline faster than we expect. Competitors may
also anticipate our entry into a market and begin to lower their sales prices even before we introduce our product. Under certain circumstances,
lower prices may increase our sales volume and thus our revenue, but a lower average sales price typically reduces our gross margin. We expect
to continue to face price pressure on our products as average sales prices may decline over time, and there is no assurance that our gross margins
will not decline in the future. As we continue to innovate our software-based solution, we may be able to offset a decline in the average sales
prices of the prior generation of our solution.

Evolution of Hardware Platform

We utilize industry-standard hardware, and therefore, are able to leverage the evolutionary increase in computing power in each new generation
of hardware. In the past, this has allowed us to increase the number of video streams at a given resolution with each new hardware platform, and
we expect this to continue. This increase in performance may offset any potential decline in the average sales prices of the prior generation of
our solution.

Components of Revenue, Cost of Revenue and Operating Expenses

Revenue

Our revenue is derived primarily from the sale of our IP video processing and distribution solutions, which consists of both hardware and
software. Our proprietary software is an essential component in the products we sell and provides a key differentiator between us and our
competitors. Our hardware generally consists of industry-standard components, which are readily available from third-party providers. To a
lesser extent, we derive revenue from professional services as well as support and maintenance of our products. Our maintenance contracts
typically do not include future software enhancements. Our support contracts typically include telephone and email access to technical support
personnel. When we sell an enhanced support offering which provides for software enhancements, we generally provide our customers with
rights to maintenance releases and patches released during the term of the support period.

We prospectively adopted new accounting guidance with respect to multiple element revenue arrangements for transactions entered into or
materially modified on or subsequent to February 1, 2011, as described in the Critical Accounting Policies under ��Revenue Recognition.�

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of third-party manufacturing costs and component costs. Our cost of revenue also includes shipping costs,
third-party logistics costs, write-offs for excess and obsolete inventory and warranty costs. To a lesser extent, our cost of revenue includes
personnel costs associated with our operations and logistics, technical support and professional services teams.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses consist of research and development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative expenses. The largest
component of our operating expenses is personnel costs. Personnel costs consist of salaries and benefits for our employees. We expect our
operating expenses to continue to grow in absolute dollars in the near term, although they are likely to fluctuate as a percentage of revenue.

49

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 69



Table of Contents

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses primarily consist of personnel, engineering, testing and compliance, facilities and professional services
costs. We expense research and development costs as incurred. Research and development expenses are presented net of French research tax
credits. We intend to continue to devote substantial resources to the development of additional functionality for our existing products and the
development of new products.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of personnel costs, sales commissions, travel costs, costs for marketing programs and facilities
costs. We plan to continue to invest in sales and marketing, including increasing the number of our sales personnel worldwide to further expand
our relationships with current and future channel partners and direct customers.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of personnel, professional services and facilities costs related to our executive, finance,
human resource and information technology functions. Professional services costs consist of outside legal and accounting services and
information technology consulting costs. Following the completion of this offering, we expect to incur significant additional accounting and
legal costs related to compliance with rules and regulations enacted by the SEC, including the additional costs of achieving and maintaining
compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as additional insurance, investor relations and other costs associated with being
a public company.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net consists primarily of interest expense on our outstanding debt and interest income on our cash and cash equivalent balances.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net consists primarily of charges to record fair value adjustments for our warrants to purchase convertible preferred
stock and foreign currency transaction gains and losses. Our outstanding warrants are classified as a liability on our consolidated balance sheets
and any changes in fair value are recognized as a component of other income (expense), net. We will continue to record adjustments to the fair
value of the warrants until they are exercised, converted to warrants to purchase common stock, or expire, at which time the warrants will no
longer be remeasured at each balance sheet date. Upon the closing of this offering, our outstanding warrants to purchase convertible preferred
stock will automatically convert into warrants to purchase common stock. Other income (expense), net also includes fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates on receivables and payables denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.

The foreign currency transaction gains and losses relate to transactions that are exercised in a different currency than the respective functional
currency of the company and its subsidiaries.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Although our management and independent registered public accounting firm were not required to perform an evaluation of our internal control
over financial reporting as of January 31, 2011 or as of January 31, 2012 in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our
management did not identify any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting in connection with the audit of our
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2012. However, in
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connection with the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, our management and independent
registered public accounting firm identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, which we have since
remediated. A material weakness is a control deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. Had we or our independent
registered public accounting firm performed an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the provisions of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, additional control deficiencies may have been identified by management or our independent registered public
accounting firm, and those control deficiencies could have also represented one or more material weaknesses. However, we have concluded that
the material weakness identified in fiscal 2011 was successfully remediated as of January 31, 2012.

In connection with the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, our management and
independent registered public accounting firm identified a material weakness related to our ability to properly record certain revenue transactions
in accordance with software revenue recognition guidance for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011, which we have since remediated. In fiscal
2011, this resulted in a more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our annual and interim financial statements would not be
prevented or detected. As a result, audit adjustments to our financial statements were identified during the course of the audit. To remediate this
material weakness, we hired additional finance and accounting personnel with the appropriate expertise and experience, and further developed
and documented our accounting policies and financial reporting procedures around our revenue recognition practices for fiscal 2012. For
example, we recently hired a new senior director of revenue, senior director of sales operations and an assistant controller to improve processes,
establish internal controls and augment existing controls. In addition, we retained consultants to assist with our implementation of new revenue
recognition accounting guidance related to multiple-element arrangements that we adopted as of February 1, 2011, and to advise us on making
further improvements to our internal controls related to revenue recognition in the future. We cannot assure you that we have identified all, or
that we will not in the future have additional, material weaknesses. Accordingly, material weaknesses may still exist when we report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for purposes of our attestation required by reporting requirements under the
Exchange Act, or Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act after this offering. The standards required for a Section 404 assessment under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require us to implement additional corporate governance practices and adhere to a variety of reporting requirements.
These stringent standards require that our audit committee be advised and regularly updated on management�s review of internal controls. Our
management may not be able to effectively and timely implement controls and procedures that adequately respond to the increased regulatory
compliance and reporting requirements that will be applicable to us as a public company. If we fail to staff our accounting and finance function
adequately or maintain internal controls adequate to meet the demands that will be placed upon us as a public company, including the
requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we may be unable to report our financial results accurately or in a timely manner and our business and
stock price may suffer.

Assessing our staffing and training procedures to improve our internal control over financial reporting is an ongoing process. We are currently
not required to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and are therefore not required to make an assessment of the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting. As a result, our management did not perform an evaluation of our internal control over financial
reporting as of January 31, 2011 or 2012. Further, our independent registered public accounting firm has not been engaged to express, nor have
they expressed, an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.

For the fiscal year ending January 31, 2014, pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, management will be required to deliver a report
that assesses the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Under current SEC rules, our independent registered public
accounting firm will not be required to report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting until the later of the year
following the date our first annual report is required to be filed with the SEC, or the date we are no longer an �emerging growth company� under
federal securities laws.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP.
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. In many instances, we could have reasonably used different accounting
estimates, and in other instances changes in the accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period-to-period. Accordingly, actual
results could differ significantly from the estimates made by our management. To the extent that there are material differences between these
estimates and actual results, our future financial statement presentation, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows will be affected.
We believe that the accounting policies discussed below are critical to understanding our historical and future performance, as these policies
relate to the more significant areas involving management�s judgments and estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue from the sale of our IP video processing and distribution solutions, which consist of hardware and integrated software that is
essential to the functionality of the equipment we sell. We also derive revenue from related professional services and support and maintenance
agreements.

We recognize revenue only when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and
collectability is probable. We evaluate each of these criteria as follows:

� Evidence of an arrangement � We generally use contracts and customer purchase orders to determine the existence of an arrangement.

� Delivery � We consider delivery to occur when title has been transferred, except in instances where final acceptance of the
product, system or solution is specified by the customer. In these instances, we defer revenue until all acceptance criteria
have been met. In the case of electronic delivery of the licensed software, title transfers when the customer is given access to
download the software.

� Fixed or determinable fee � We assess whether fees are fixed or determinable at the time of sale. We only consider the fee to be fixed
or determinable if the fee is not subject to refund or adjustment. Our payment terms may vary based on the country in which the
agreement is executed and the credit standing of the individual customer, among other factors. If the arrangement fee is not fixed or
determinable, we recognize revenue as amounts become due and payable.

� Collection is deemed probable � We deem collection to be probable if we expect that the customer will be able to pay amounts under
the arrangement as payments become due. If we determine that collection is not probable, we defer the recognition of revenue until we
actually collect cash from the customer.

Channel partners purchase our products for specific capital equipment projects of end-customers and do not hold inventory. They perform
functions that include importation, delivery to the end-customer, installation or integration, and post-sales service and support. Our agreements
with these channel partners have terms which are consistent with the standard terms and conditions for the sale of our equipment to
end-customers, and we do not provide for product rotation or pricing allowances, as are typically found in agreements with stocking distributors.
Our agreements with channel partners do not provide for return rights. We have long-term relationships with most of our large channel partners
and substantial experience with similar sales of similar products. We recognize revenue from sales to our channel partners upon delivery of the
products, provided that the criteria for revenue recognition have been met.
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In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, amended the accounting standards for revenue recognition to remove
from the scope of industry-specific software revenue recognition guidance any tangible products containing software components and
non-software components that operate together to deliver the product�s essential functionality. In addition, the FASB amended the accounting
standards for certain multiple element revenue arrangements to:

� Provide updated guidance on whether multiple elements exist, how the elements in an arrangement should be separated, and
how the arrangement consideration should be allocated to the separate elements;

� Provide for price hierarchy, where the selling price for an element is based on vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, if
available; third-party evidence, or TPE, if available and VSOE is not available; or the best estimate of selling price, or BESP, if
neither VSOE or TPE is available; and

� Eliminate the use of the residual method and require an entity to allocate arrangement consideration using the selling price hierarchy.
We adopted the new accounting guidance on a prospective basis at the beginning of the fiscal year ending January 31, 2012 for transactions
entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011.

We enter into multiple element revenue arrangements in which a customer may purchase a combination of hardware, software, software
upgrades, hardware and software maintenance and professional services. We account for multiple agreements with a single customer as one
arrangement if the contractual terms or substance of those agreements indicate that they may be so closely related that they are, in effect, parts of
a single arrangement.

For transactions entered into prior to February 1, 2011, the adoption date of the amended revenue standards, we allocate revenue for
arrangements with multiple deliverables, such as sales of our solution with software that include support, training or other professional services,
to the delivered elements of the arrangement using the residual value method based on VSOE of fair value of the undelivered items. VSOE of
fair value for undelivered elements is determined based upon prices paid by the customers for the separate renewal or sales of such services. If
sufficient VSOE of fair value does not exist for the allocation of revenue to the various elements of the arrangement, all revenue from the
arrangement is deferred until the earlier of the point at which (i) such sufficient VSOE of fair value does exist or (ii) all elements of the
arrangement have been delivered. Under those circumstances, if the only undelivered element is post-contract support, the entire fee is
recognized ratably over the contractual post-contract support period, which is typically one year but can be as long as five years.

For transactions, other than stand-alone sales of software, entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011, we allocate the
arrangement fee to each element based upon the relative selling price of such element and, if software and software-related elements, such as
maintenance for the software elements, are also included in the arrangement, we allocate the arrangement fee to each of those software and
software-related elements as a group based on its BESP for those elements. After such allocations are made, the amount of the arrangement fee
allocated to the software and software-related elements is accounted for using the residual method. When applying the relative selling price
method, we determine the selling price for each element using VSOE of selling price, if it exists, or if not, TPE of selling price, if it exists. If
neither VSOE nor TPE of selling price exist for an element, we use BESP for that element. The revenue allocated to each element is then
recognized when the basic revenue recognition criteria are met for that element. The manner in which we account for multiple element
arrangements that contain only software and software-related elements remains unchanged.

Consistent with our methodology under previous accounting guidance, we determine VSOE for each element based on historical stand-alone
sales to third parties. For hardware and software maintenance and professional services, we determine VSOE of fair value based on our history
of stand-alone sales demonstrating that a substantial majority of transactions fall within a narrow range for each service offering.
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We presently are not able to determine TPE for our products, maintenance or professional services. TPE is determined based on competitor
prices for similar elements when sold separately. Generally, our offerings contain a significant level of differentiation such that the comparable
pricing of products with similar functionality cannot be obtained. Furthermore, our go-to-market strategy differs from that of our peers and we
are unable to reliably determine what similar competitor products� selling prices are on a stand-alone basis.

When we are unable to establish the selling price of an element using VSOE or TPE, we use BESP in our allocation of arrangement
consideration. The objective of BESP is to determine the price at which we would transact a sale if the product or service were sold on a
stand-alone basis. We determine BESP for a product or service by considering multiple factors including, but not limited to, historical pricing
practices by geography, customer class and distribution channel and gross margin objectives.

We regularly review VSOE and BESP data provided by actual transactions to update these estimates and the relative selling prices allocated to
each element.

If the transactions entered into or materially modified after February 1, 2011 were subject to previous accounting guidance, our total pro forma
revenues would have been $45.1 million during the year ended January 31, 2012. Similarly, our pro forma deferred revenue would have been
$14.2 million as of January 31, 2012 if the transactions entered into or materially modified after February 1, 2011 were subject to previous
accounting guidance.

The impact of the revised accounting guidance to total revenue for the year ended January 31, 2012 was attributable to our ability to assign
BESP to undelivered elements which previously required VSOE, the recognition of hardware revenue associated with maintenance contracts
previously accounted for ratably over the contract period, and the reallocation of discounts to revenue deliverables.

Revenue from support and maintenance agreements is recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance agreement, which is typically one
year, and we defer the unrecognized revenue portion of the maintenance agreements. We recognize revenue from professional services on the
performance of the services, and we recognize costs associated with services as incurred. Professional services are always combined with
product sales and as such, we do not have VSOE for these services. We do not recognize revenue on such combined arrangements until all
professional services have been delivered to the customer.

Our management must make significant judgments and estimates in connection with determination of the revenue to be recognized in any
accounting period. Because we may have large orders within a particular quarterly period, different judgments or estimates made for any one
large contract or customer could result in material differences in the amount and timing of revenue recognized in any particular period.

Deferred Revenue

A portion of our deferred revenue represents customer payments made in advance for our support and maintenance contracts because we
typically bill our support contracts on an annual basis in advance and recognize the associated revenue ratably over the support period, which
typically is a one-year term, but was as long as five years for certain arrangements entered into during fiscal years 2008 and 2009. Our deferred
revenue also includes arrangements where, in prior years, we did not have VSOE for our support and maintenance services. For transactions
entered into before February 1, 2011, and for stand-alone sales of software that are subject to software accounting, when we do not have VSOE
for our support services, we recognize revenue from the entire arrangement ratably over the support period.

For transactions entered into before February 1, 2011 and for stand-alone sales of software, we also record deferred revenue for arrangements
that include our professional services because we have not
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established VSOE for these services. In these arrangements, we defer the revenue from the entire arrangement until the professional services are
delivered, which typically ranges from approximately two weeks to three months after delivery of the products. For transactions, other than
stand-alone sales of software, entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011, revenue will only be deferred for the portion of
the arrangement relating to undelivered services and support and maintenance, rather than deferring the entire arrangement.

Our deferred revenue also includes arrangements where final acceptance of the product, system or solution is specified by the customer, and the
recognition of revenue for these arrangements is deferred until all acceptance criteria are met.

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation costs related to stock options, share purchase rights and restricted stock units granted to employees based on the
estimated fair value of the awards on the date of grant, net of estimated forfeitures. We estimate the grant date fair value of stock options and
share purchase rights, and the resulting stock-based compensation expense, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the
restricted stock units is the fair value of our common stock on the date of grant. The grant date fair value of the stock-based awards is generally
recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of the respective awards.

We account for stock options issued to non-employees based on the estimated fair value of the awards determined using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The fair value of the equity awards granted to non-employees is remeasured as the awards vest, and the resulting increase
in value, if any, is recognized as expense during the period the related services are rendered.

The fair value of the stock options granted to employees during fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012 was calculated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Expected term (in years) 6.0 6.0 6.0
Expected volatility 57% 59% 55%
Risk-free interest rate 2.5% 2.3% 2.4%
Expected dividend 0% 0% 0%
The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions which determine the fair value of
stock-based awards, including the expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock. These assumptions include:

� Expected term � The expected term represents the period that the stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. For option grants
that are considered to be �plain vanilla,� we used the simplified method to determine the expected term as provided by the SEC. The
simplified method calculates the expected term as the average of the time-to-vesting and the contractual life of the options. For option
grants that are not considered �plain vanilla,� the expected term is based on historical option exercise behavior and post-vesting
cancellations of options by employees;

� Expected volatility � The expected volatility is derived from historical volatilities of several unrelated publicly listed peer companies
over a period approximately equal to the expected term of the award because we have limited information on the volatility of our
common stock since we have no trading history. When making the selections of our industry peer companies to be used in the
volatility calculation, we considered the size, operational and economic similarities to our principal business operations;
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� Risk-free interest rate � The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of grant for zero coupon U.S.
Treasury notes with maturities approximately equal the expected term of the awards; and

� Expected dividend � The expected dividend is assumed to be zero as we have never paid dividends and have no current plans to do so.
In addition to the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, we must also estimate a forfeiture rate to calculate the
stock-based compensation for our awards. Our forfeiture rate is based on an analysis of our actual forfeitures. We will continue to evaluate the
appropriateness of the forfeiture rate based on actual forfeiture experience, analysis of employee turnover and other factors. Quarterly changes in
the estimated forfeiture rate can have a significant impact on our stock-based compensation expense as the cumulative effect of adjusting the rate
is recognized in the period the forfeiture estimate is changed. If a revised forfeiture rate is higher than the previously estimated forfeiture rate, an
adjustment is made that will result in a decrease to the stock-based compensation expense recognized in our financial statements. If a revised
forfeiture rate is lower than the previously estimated forfeiture rate, an adjustment is made that will result in an increase to the stock-based
compensation expense recognized in our financial statements.

We will continue to use judgment in evaluating the expected volatility, expected terms and forfeiture rates utilized for our stock-based
compensation calculations on a prospective basis. As we continue to accumulate additional data related to our common stock, we may have
refinements to the estimates of our expected volatility, expected terms and forfeiture rates, which could materially impact our future stock-based
compensation expense.

We are also required to estimate the fair value of the common stock underlying our stock-based awards when performing the fair value
calculations with the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the common stock underlying our stock-based awards was estimated
on each grant date by our board of directors, with input from management. Our board of directors is comprised of a majority of non-employee
directors with significant experience investing and operating companies in the digital media and communications industries. As such, we believe
that our board of directors has the relevant experience and expertise to determine a fair value of our common stock on each respective grant date.
Given the absence of a public trading market of our common stock, and in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Practice Guide, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation, our board of directors exercised
reasonable judgment and considered numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of our common
stock including:

� contemporaneous and retrospective valuations performed by unrelated third party specialists;

� recent preferred stock financings and the related valuations;

� rights, preferences and privileges of our convertible preferred stock relative to those of our common stock;

� actual operating and financial performance;

� present value of future cash flows;

� likelihood of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering or a sale of our company given prevailing market conditions
and the nature and history of our business;

� illiquidity of stock-based awards involving securities in a private company;

� experience of our management team;
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� industry information such as market size and growth; and

� macroeconomic conditions.

56

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 77



Table of Contents

The independent valuations performed by unrelated third-party specialists were utilized by our board of directors to assist with the valuation of
the common stock, however, management and our board have assumed full responsibility for the estimates. Our board of directors utilized the
fair values of the common stock derived in the third-party valuations as a factor to set the exercise price for options granted during fiscal 2010,
2011 and 2012, however, the fair value of the underlying common stock was subsequently revisited by our board of directors for financial
reporting purposes and sometimes reassessed on a retrospective basis as discussed in greater detail below. In valuing our common stock, the
equity value of our business was determined by taking a weighted combination of the value indications under two valuation approaches, an
income approach and a market approach. The income approach estimates the present value of future estimated cash flows, based upon forecasted
revenue and costs. These future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a discount rate which is derived from an analysis of the
cost of capital of comparable publicly traded companies in the same industry or similar lines of business as of each valuation date and is adjusted
to reflect the risks inherent in the projected cash flows. The market approach estimates the fair value of a company by applying market multiples
of comparable publicly traded companies in the same industry or similar lines of business which are based on key metrics implied by the
enterprise values or acquisition values of the comparable publicly traded companies.

The enterprise values determined by the income and market approaches are then allocated to the common stock using either the option pricing
method or the probability weighted expected return method.

The option pricing method, or OPM, treats common stock and convertible preferred stock as call options on a business, with exercise prices
based on the liquidation preference of the convertible preferred stock. Therefore, the common stock has value only if the funds available for
distribution to the stockholders exceed the value of the liquidation preference at the time of a liquidity event such as a merger, sale or initial
public offering, assuming the business has funds available to make a liquidation preference meaningful and collectible by the stockholders. The
common stock is modeled to be a call option with a claim on the business at an exercise price equal to the remaining value immediately after the
convertible preferred stock is liquidated. The OPM uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to price the call option. The OPM is appropriate
to use when the range of possible future outcomes is so difficult to predict that forecasts would be highly speculative.

The Probability Weighted Expected Return Method, or PWERM, involves a forward-looking analysis of the possible future outcomes of the
business. This method is particularly useful when discrete future outcomes can be predicted with high confidence and with a probability
distribution. Discrete future outcomes considered under the PWERM include non-IPO market based outcomes as well as IPO scenarios. In the
non-IPO scenarios, a large portion of the equity value is allocated to the convertible preferred stock to incorporate higher aggregate liquidation
preferences. In the IPO scenarios, the equity value is allocated pro rata among the shares of common stock and each series of convertible
preferred stock, which causes the common stock to have a higher relative value per share than under the non-IPO scenario. The fair value of the
business determined using the IPO and non-IPO scenarios will be weighted according to our board of directors� estimate of the probability of
each scenario.

Over time, as certainty developed regarding possible discrete events, including an IPO, the allocation methodology utilized to allocate our
enterprise value to the common stock transitioned from the OPM, which was utilized in the January 2010 valuation, to the PWERM, which was
utilized in all subsequent valuations.
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Information regarding stock award grants, other than grants of restricted stock units, to our employees since February 1, 2010 is summarized as
follows:

Grant Date
Number of Shares

Granted
Exercise

Price
Fair Value Per Share

of Common Stock

Aggregate Grant
Date Fair

Value
February 22, 2010 4,000 $ 0.30 $ 0.30 $ 1,000
September 9, 2010 3,000 0.30         1.30 3,000
October 28, 2010 5,500 0.30 2.23 11,000
December 8, 2010 2,127,472 0.30 2.97 5,799,000
April 8, 2011 336,500 5.10 5.10 966,000
May 20, 2011 163,500 7.90 7.90 674,000
September 8, 2011 42,500 7.90 6.27 189,000
March 16, 2012 63,750 8.06 8.06 280,000
The intrinsic value of all outstanding options as of January 31, 2012 was $22.4 million based on the initial public offering price of $9.00 per
share.

In connection with the sale of our Series H convertible preferred stock in fiscal 2011, we undertook a recapitalization which significantly diluted
our outstanding common stock and, therefore, the common stock underlying our outstanding options. As a result, our board of directors
reviewed the equity incentives that remained in place following the Series H convertible preferred stock financing for all of our employees,
including our executive officers. In an effort to provide appropriate incentives and align our employees� interests with those of our stockholders,
our board of directors determined to award refresh options to almost all of our employees in December 2010 following the issuance of our Series
H convertible preferred stock. Our board of directors also determined it was in the best interest of our company and our stockholders to allow
holders of outstanding options with an exercise price higher than the then current fair market value of our common stock, as determined by our
board of directors in good faith at that time, to exchange those options for options with an exercise price equal to the then current fair market
value of our common stock, as determined by our board of directors in good faith at that time. In order to participate in this exchange, holders
were required to forfeit a certain amount of the vested portion of the exchanged option, resulting in replacement options containing new vesting
terms. In addition, the changes to vesting for managers of the company, including our executive officers, was more significant than the changes
to vesting for our non-managers. Our board of directors felt this adjustment to vesting was critical to aligning employees� interest with long-term
stockholder value and to establish future equity incentives for employee performance. As a result, our board of directors granted options and
stock rights to purchase an aggregate of 2,127,472 shares of our common stock in December 2010 and exchanged options to purchase an
aggregate of 61,635 shares of our common stock.

On April 8, 2011, our board of directors granted options and other rights to purchase an aggregate of 216,500 shares of our common stock at an
exercise price of $5.10 per share to new and current employees and options to purchase an aggregate of 120,000 shares to our non-employee
directors at an exercise price of $5.10 per share. In addition, on April 13, 2011, our board of directors granted 349,500 restricted stock units to
current employees.

On May 20, 2011, our board of directors granted options and other rights to purchase an aggregate of 83,500 shares of our common stock at an
exercise price of $7.90 per share to new and current employees and options to purchase an aggregate of 80,000 shares to our non-employee
directors at an exercise price of $7.90 per share.

On September 8, 2011, our board of directors granted options to purchase an aggregate of 42,500 shares of our common stock at an exercise
price of $7.90 per share to new and current employees. Our board of directors also granted restricted stock units for 24,000 shares of our
common stock to new and current employees. In addition, our board of directors granted another 25,000 options to a non-employee with an
exercise price of $7.90 per share.
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On December 8, 2011, the compensation committee of our board of directors approved the grant of restricted stock units with respect to 239,768
shares of our common stock to existing employees, effective as of January 1, 2012.

On March 16, 2012, the compensation committee of our board of directors granted options and other rights to purchase an aggregate of 63,750
shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $8.06 per share to new and current employees. In April 2012, the compensation committee of
our board of directors modified options to purchase an aggregate of 23,500 shares and 4,500 share purchase rights to adjust the vesting
commencement date to be consistent with each award holder�s respective employment start date. No other terms of these awards were changed as
a result of this modification.

No single event caused the valuation of our common stock to increase or decrease from January 2010 through March 2012. Instead, a
combination of the factors described below in each period led to the changes in the fair value of the underlying common stock.

January 31, 2010 Retrospective Valuation

As of January 31, 2010, our board of directors determined a fair value of the common stock to be $0.30 per share. One of the factors our board
of directors took into account in making this determination was a retrospective valuation performed by an unrelated third-party specialist. This
retrospective valuation of the common stock as of January 31, 2010 was completed in July 2010 in conjunction with the Series H convertible
preferred stock financing, in which we sold shares of Series H convertible preferred stock and shares of incentive common stock at $3.35 per
unit to existing investors. Concurrent with the Series H financing, all prior series of convertible preferred stock, with the exception of Series G
convertible preferred stock, were converted to common stock. As a result of the significant change to our capital structure as a result of this
transaction, the valuation was performed on a pro forma basis to incorporate the Series H financing and convertible preferred stock conversion.

This retrospective valuation was prepared on a minority, non-marketable interest basis. Our board of directors determined that they had equal
confidence in both the income and market approaches for this analysis and, therefore, utilized both and weighted them equally to determine the
enterprise value for this valuation. In addition, a weighted average cost of capital, or WACC, of 32.5% was determined to be reasonable and
appropriate given our stage of development and inherent risks.

We then allocated our enterprise value to the common stock utilizing an OPM with the following assumptions: a time to a liquidity event of 3.0
years, a risk-free rate of 1.4% and volatility of 60%. The results from the OPM were then reduced by a 30% marketability discount which
determined the fair value of the common stock to be $0.30 per share as of January 31, 2010. The January 2010 valuation did not consider the
sale of the Series H convertible preferred stock even though it was incorporated into the valuation on a pro forma basis primarily because the
Series H convertible preferred stock was purchased by existing investors that received additional benefits in the form of additional shares of
common stock for participating in the financing. Even if the Series H transaction had been considered, however, there would have been no
change to the fair value of the common stock of $0.30 per share based on a minority, non-marketable interest basis using an OPM.

During the period from January 31, 2010 to the date the valuation was performed in July 2010, we granted 4,000 options with an exercise price
of $0.30 per share on February 22, 2010.

April 6, 2011 Contemporaneous Valuation

As of April 6, 2011, we obtained a contemporaneous valuation performed by an unrelated third-party specialist. As of April 8, 2011, our board
of directors determined a fair value of the common stock to be $5.10 per share. One of the factors our board of directors took into account in
making this determination was this contemporaneous valuation. This contemporaneous valuation was prepared on a minority,
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non-marketable interest basis. For this valuation, the market approach was utilized and the income approach was not used because projected
economic benefits to the stockholders are expected to be realized in the form of an IPO or merger in which market participants are expected to
value the business primarily using valuation multiples derived from market data rather than from the application of discount rates to future
earnings or cash flows. A WACC of 24.3% was then applied to the values derived from the market approach.

We used a PWERM for the April 2011 valuation which requires us to estimate the probability of future scenarios for our business including an
IPO scenario, merger scenario and a liquidation scenario. As noted previously, the OPM is preferred when future outcomes are difficult to
predict and the PWERM becomes useful when discrete future outcomes become more predictable. At the beginning of fiscal 2012, our board of
directors� assessment on the likelihood of discrete events became significantly more clear, specifically for the IPO scenarios; therefore, the
PWERM was utilized to estimate the fair value of the common stock as of April 6, 2011 with the following scenario probabilities: IPO scenario
with 45% probability, merger scenario with 45% probability, and a liquidation scenario with 10% probability. The results from the PWERM
were then discounted by an 18% marketability discount to determine the fair value of the common stock of $5.10 per share.

We granted 3,000, 5,500 and 2,127,472 options on September 9, October 28 and December 8, 2010 with an exercise price of $0.30 per share. In
addition, we modified 61,635 outstanding options, therefore, essentially reissuing these options with a reduced exercise price of $0.30 per share.
The weighted-average exercise price of the awards exchanged was $3.00 per share. For these options granted or modified between September
and December 2010, our board of directors originally estimated the fair value of the underlying common stock to be $0.30 per share, which was
consistent with the January 2010 valuation but less than the value of $5.10 per share as determined by the April 2011 valuation. One of the
factors that our board of directors used to determine the original value of our common stock for options granted on September 9, October 28 and
December 8, 2010 was the independent valuation performed by an unrelated third-party specialist. This valuation of the common stock was as of
January 31, 2010, but was completed as of July 2010 on a retrospective basis taking into account significant events that occurred through July
2010. Our board of directors evaluated other factors and events through the respective grant dates and concluded, on those respective dates, that
no adjustment was necessary to the fair value of our common stock. Although our board of directors continued to believe the original value of
our common stock determined between September and December 2010 was appropriate based on the facts known at that time, with the benefit
of hindsight, this fair value was subsequently revisited for financial reporting purposes and reassessed so that the fair value of the underlying
common stock used to calculate the related stock-based compensation expense for the options granted in September, October and December
2010 was ultimately $1.30, $2.23 and $2.97 per share, respectively. We did not utilize independent valuations to reassess these fair values. We
expect to recognize an aggregate of $5.8 million in stock-based compensation expense related to the awards granted in September, October and
December 2010, which will be recognized generally over the vesting period of the awards. In addition, we will recognize $0.3 million in
additional stock-based compensation related to the incremental cost incurred as a result of the award modifications over the remaining vesting
period of the modified awards. In addition, we granted 336,500 options and other purchase rights on April 8, 2011 with an exercise price equal
to the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock of $5.10 per share as determined in the April 6, 2011 contemporaneous valuation and
349,500 restricted stock units on April 13, 2011.
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No single event caused the valuation of our common stock to increase; rather it was a combination of factors. Through December 2010, our
board of directors continued to believe the original value of our common stock of $0.30 per share was appropriate based on the facts known at
that time. However, with the benefit of hindsight, the fair value of our common stock for these awards was subsequently revisited on a
retrospective basis for financial reporting purposes and we reassessed the fair value of the underlying common stock used to calculate the related
stock-based compensation expense. In connection with this review, we evaluated our business in light of market opportunities for an IPO or
other liquidity event in the near-term. However, our board of directors did not utilize independent retrospective valuations to reassess these fair
values for reporting purposes because it did not believe that there was a single event or series of events that would result in a significant increase
in the fair value of our common stock during the period between September and December 8, 2010. In this context, our board of directors noted
material developments that occurred after December 8, 2010, which it believes are informative to an understanding of why the fair value
increased from December 8, 2010 to April 2011, including the following:

� Primarily, the increase was a result of our progress towards an IPO, including expanded discussions with investment bankers in
February and March 2011 and an organizational meeting that was held in early March 2011. The impact of the IPO progress was
mostly noted in the change in valuation methodologies from the OPM to PWERM and other assumption and projection changes. The
change from OPM to PWERM, however, was significant as such a change generally increases valuations because there tends to be
higher prices allocated to IPO scenarios than to remaining as a standalone private company and other scenarios. This is primarily
because non-IPO scenarios allocate a large portion of the equity value to the convertible preferred stock to incorporate higher
aggregate liquidation preferences. In the IPO scenarios, however, the equity value is allocated pro rata among the shares of common
stock and each series of convertible preferred stock, which causes the common stock to have a higher relative value per share than
under a non-IPO scenario. In addition, in the April 2011 valuation, our board of directors assigned a 45% probability to the possibility
of an IPO. Given that we had already held discussions with investment bankers and started preparation for an IPO in April 2011, a
45% probability was determined to be reasonable.

� The increase was also attributable to business developments during the period between December 8, 2010 and April 2011.
Specifically, although we were obtaining bookings of new business during the third quarter ended October 31, 2010 and the first part
of the fourth quarter ended January 31, 2011, which were meeting current expectations at that time, our bookings were not exceeding
expectations as of December 8, 2010. At that time, there remained a high degree of uncertainty that we would be able to meet our
bookings and revenue plan for fiscal 2011. In addition, our operating expenses during this same timeframe were higher than
anticipated and, as a result, our net income (loss) was below management�s expectations. However, following December 8, 2010, our
results began to vastly exceed expectations in terms of bookings, cash and revenue. We also increased our projections and forecast for
fiscal year 2012. In addition, in light of our significantly improved cash position due to better than anticipated collections in late fiscal
year 2011, we determined we did not need to sell additional equity securities to continue to fund operations, which meant we would
avoid a potentially further dilutive event to the common stock.

� The increase was also due to the change in comparable guideline companies determined to be publicly traded peers. For the April
2011 valuation, our board of directors added 12 comparable guideline companies to the analysis based on discussions with
management and investment bankers regarding the prospects of an IPO. Our board of directors did not remove any of the comparable
guideline companies used in the January 2010 valuation, but the addition of these new companies was significant. As a result, the
metrics used in the January 2010 valuation for the market approach analysis were increased for the April 2011 valuation. These
increases were expected and determined to be reasonable given that we were then progressing toward an IPO, which would generally
necessitate higher multiples than would a private company valuation.
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� The increase was also partially attributable to a decrease in the WACC from 32.5% for the January 2010 valuation compared to 24.3%
for the April 2011 valuation. The decrease was due to lower assessed risk with the projections determined by our board of directors as
it believed that it had a better view of expectations for the business� projections in April 2011 compared to January 2010. Specifically,
we had deferred revenue of $12.1 million as of January 31, 2011, of which more than half was expected to be recognized in the first
half of fiscal 2012 as the product had been shipped but the related revenue had been deferred in accordance with revenue recognition
guidance. In addition, there was a relatively good volume of purchase orders that had been received by the end of fiscal year 2011 in
which the product had not yet been shipped.

As noted above, in view of the significant increase between the fair value of $5.10 per share determined in the contemporaneous valuation
prepared as of April 6, 2011 by an unrelated valuation specialist and our board of director�s adoption of $5.10 per share as fair value as of April
8, 2011, compared to $0.30 per share on December 8, 2010, our board of directors believed it was appropriate to reassess the fair value of
common stock for grants made in fiscal year 2011 on a retrospective basis for reporting purposes. However, our board of directors believed there
was not a single significant event or series of events that would have significantly impacted the fair values of the common stock in September,
October and December 2010. Our board of directors also believed that the primary reasons for the increase in fair value between December 8,
2010 and April 8, 2011 were the changes to valuation methodology and assumptions. Accordingly, without any concrete events or information
our board of directors could point to that would lead to such an increase in fair value for this timeframe, our board of directors applied a
straight-line method to retrospectively increase the fair value of our common stock during this period for purposes of calculating the stock-based
compensation expense.

May 15, 2011 Contemporaneous Valuation

As of May 15, 2011, we obtained a contemporaneous valuation performed by an unrelated third-party specialist. As of May 20, 2011, our board
of directors determined a fair value of our common stock to be $7.90 per share. One of the factors our board of directors took into account in
making this determination was this contemporaneous valuation. Similar to the April 2011 valuation, this contemporaneous valuation was
prepared on a minority, non-marketable interest basis and only the market approach was utilized. A WACC of 24.0% was then applied to the
values derived from the market approach.

We also used a PWERM for the May 2011 valuation with the following scenario probabilities: IPO scenario with 70% probability, merger
scenario with 25% probability and a liquidation scenario with 5% probability. The results from the PWERM were then discounted by an 11%
marketability discount to determine the fair value of our common stock of $7.90 per share.

We granted 163,500 options on May 20, 2011 and used the fair value of the underlying common stock of $7.90 per share as the exercise price
for these options.

The increase in the fair value of our common stock from April 8 to May 20, 2011 was primarily the result of the change in the PWERM scenario
probabilities, most importantly the IPO scenario, which was increased from a probability of 45% in the April 2011 valuation to 70% for the May
2011 valuation. Our board of directors increased the probability for an IPO for the May 2011 valuation primarily due to our initial filing of a
registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission in furtherance of this offering during this interim period on April 15, 2011
and the continued strength of the IPO markets in general. To a lesser extent, the market multiples increased slightly due mostly to higher market
values of our comparable guideline companies as we did not change the guideline companies during this period. The decrease in the
marketability discount from 18% for the April 2011 valuation to 11% for the May 2011 valuation as a result of our progression toward an IPO
also contributed to the increase in the fair value of our common stock.
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September 8, 2011 Valuation

As of September 8, 2011, our board of directors determined the fair value of our common stock to be $6.27 per share. Also on September 8,
2011, our board of directors granted options to purchase an aggregate of 42,500 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $7.90 per
share to new and current employees. Our board of directors also granted restricted stock units for 24,000 shares of our common stock to new and
current employees. In addition, our board of directors granted another 25,000 options to a non-employee director with an exercise price of $7.90
per share. We calculated the grant date fair value of the employee options and restricted stock units using the fair value of $6.27 per share. This
fair value was determined by discounting the fair value determined in the May 15, 2011 contemporaneous valuation to adjust the probabilities of
each scenario, specifically the IPO scenario, after we adjusted our IPO timeline in June 2011.

November 30, 2011 Contemporaneous Valuation

As of November 30, 2011, we obtained a contemporaneous valuation performed by an unrelated third-party specialist. As of November 30,
2011, our board of directors determined the fair value of our common stock to be $5.11 per share. One of the factors our board of directors took
into account in making this determination was this contemporaneous valuation. Similar to the April and May 2011 valuations, this
contemporaneous valuation was prepared on a minority, non-marketable interest basis and only the market approach was utilized. A WACC of
23.0% was then applied to the values derived from the market approach.

We also used a PWERM for the November 30, 2011 valuation with the following scenario probabilities: IPO scenario with 40% probability,
merger scenario with 40% probability and a liquidation scenario with 20% probability. The results from the PWERM were then discounted by a
weighted average marketability discount of approximately 20% to determine the fair value of our common stock of $5.11 per share.

On December 8, 2011, the compensation committee of our board of directors approved the grant of restricted stock units with respect to 239,768
shares of common stock to existing employees, effective as of January 1, 2012. The grant date fair value of our common stock was based on the
fair value determined in November 30, 2011 valuation of $5.11 per share. These restricted stock units contain performance commitments which
only allow the units to vest upon a qualified IPO. As our board of directors did not believe that an IPO was probable under current accounting
standards, no related stock-based compensation was recognized for these awards during the year ended January 31, 2012. If we complete a
qualified IPO prior to the expiration of these awards, we will recognize the vested portion of the grant date fair value of the restricted stock units
as stock-based compensation at that time with the remaining grant date fair value being recognized as the other restricted stock units vest.

February 29, 2012 Contemporaneous Valuation

As of February 29, 2012, we obtained a contemporaneous valuation performed by an unrelated third-party specialist. As of March 16, 2012, our
board of directors determined the fair value of our common stock to be $8.06 per share. One of the factors our board of directors took into
account in making this determination was this contemporaneous valuation. Similar to the April, May and November 2011 valuations, this
contemporaneous valuation was prepared on a minority, non-marketable interest basis and only the market approach was utilized. A WACC of
21.4% was then applied to the values derived from the market approach.

We also used a PWERM for the February 29, 2012 valuation with the following scenario probabilities: IPO scenario with 70% probability,
merger scenario with 25% probability and a liquidation scenario with 5% probability. The results from the PWERM were then discounted by a
weighted average marketability discount of approximately 9% to determine the fair value of our common stock of $8.06 per share.
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The changes in the fair value of our common stock from May 2011 to March 2012 were primarily the result of the change in the PWERM
scenario probabilities, most importantly the IPO scenario, which varied from 70% in the May 15, 2011 valuation to 40% for the November 30,
2011 valuation and back to 70% for the February 29, 2012 valuation. Our board of directors decreased the probability for an IPO for the
November 2011 valuation as we had recently delayed our initial public offering since the May 2011 valuation. With the decrease in the
probability of an IPO, our board of directors also agreed with the increase in the marketability discount from 11% for the May 2011 valuation to
20% for the November 2011 valuation as a result of our delayed IPO, which also contributed to the decrease in the fair value of our common
stock. However, in February 2012 our board of directors increased the probability for an IPO back to 70% and due to the accelerated IPO
timeline reduced the weighted average marketability discount from 20% to 9%, which contributed to an increase in the fair value of our common
stock.

Our stock-based compensation expense for our stock-based awards was recognized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
    2010        2011        2012    

Cost of revenue $ 1 $ 37 $ 3
Research and development 6 71 89
Sales and marketing 17 65 279
General and administrative 21 578 1,279

Total stock-based compensation $ 45 $ 751 $ 1,650

As of January 31, 2012, we had $5.3 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, that is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years. In future periods, our stock-based compensation expense is expected to increase as a
result of our existing unrecognized stock-based compensation to be recognized as these awards vest and as we issue additional stock-based
awards to attract and retain employees.

Warrants to Purchase Convertible Preferred Stock

Freestanding warrants to purchase shares of our convertible preferred stock are classified as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet at fair
value because the warrants may conditionally obligate us to transfer assets at some point in the future. The warrants are subject to
remeasurement at each balance sheet date, and any change in fair value will be recognized as a component of other income (expense), net in the
consolidated statements of operations. We use management judgment to estimate the fair value of these warrants and these estimates, which
include the fair value of the underlying stock and the expected volatility of the stock, are highly judgmental and could differ significantly in the
future.

As of January 31, 2011 and 2012, we had outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate of 36,000 shares of our Series G convertible preferred
stock. During prior years, we also had outstanding warrants to purchase shares of our Series E and F convertible preferred stock. The fair value
of our warrants in the amounts of $0.2 million and $0.1 million was recorded on our consolidated balance sheets as a warrant liability as of
January 31, 2011 and 2012, respectively. The change in fair value of these warrants resulted in gains to other income (expense), net in the
amount of $0.1 million and $0.1 million during fiscal years 2010 and 2012, and a loss in the amount of $0.1 million during fiscal year 2011.

We will continue to record adjustments to the fair value of the warrants until they are exercised, expire or convert into warrants to purchase
shares of our common stock which will occur upon the conversion of all of our outstanding convertible preferred stock into common stock
immediately before an IPO. At that time, the then-current aggregate fair value of these warrants will be reclassified from liabilities to additional
paid-in capital and we will cease to record any related periodic fair value adjustments.
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Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

We record a provision for doubtful accounts based on historical experience and a detailed assessment of the collectability of our accounts
receivable. To assist with the estimate, our management considers, among other factors, the aging of the accounts receivable, including trends
within the age of the accounts receivable, our historical write-offs, the credit-worthiness of each purchaser, the economic conditions of the
purchaser�s industry and general economic conditions. In cases where we are aware of circumstances that may impair a specific purchaser�s
ability to meet their financial obligations to us, we record a specific allowance against amounts due from the customer, and thereby reduce the
net recognized receivable to the amount we reasonably believe will be collected. There is significant judgment involved in estimating the
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Income Taxes

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any
valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets. We make these estimates and judgments about our future taxable income that
are based on assumptions that are consistent with our future plans. As of January 31, 2012, we had recorded a full valuation allowance on our net
deferred tax assets due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize our deferred tax assets in the foreseeable future. These deferred tax assets
primarily consist of net operating loss carryforwards. Should the actual amounts differ from our estimates, the amount of our valuation
allowance could be materially impacted.

Since inception, we have incurred operating losses, and, accordingly, we have not recorded significant provisions for income taxes for any of the
periods presented. Accordingly, there have not been significant changes to our provision for income taxes and we do not expect any significant
changes until we are no longer incurring losses.

As of January 31, 2012, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of $52.9 million and state net operating loss carryforwards of
$47.0 million. Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future earnings, if any, the timing and amount of which are uncertain.
Accordingly, the net deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation allowance. If not utilized, the federal net operating loss
carryforwards will begin to expire in 2021 and the state net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2013. Utilization of these net
operating loss carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation due to applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, and state and
local tax laws if we have experienced an �ownership change� in the past, or if an ownership change occurs in the future, including, for example, as
a result of the shares issued in this offering aggregated with certain other sales of our stock before or after this offering.

We regularly review our tax positions and for benefits to be realized, a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained upon
examination. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is more likely than not to be realized upon settlement. Our
policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters as income tax expense. Through January 31, 2012, approximately
$20,000 of interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits has been recognized.
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Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2012 Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2011

The following table presents our historical operating results and the changes in these results in dollars (in thousands) and as a percentage for the
periods presented:

Year Ended January 31, Increase /
(Decrease)

% Increase /
(Decrease)2011 2012

Revenue $ 30,004 $ 50,646 $ 20,642 69% 
Cost of revenue 11,504 18,492 6,988 61

Gross profit 18,500 32,154 13,654 74

Operating expenses:
Research and development 5,152 6,728 1,576 31
Sales and marketing 8,886 16,206 7,320 82
General and administrative 6,449 8,561 2,112 33

Total operating expenses 20,487 31,495 11,008 54

Income (loss) from operations (1,987) 659 2,646 (133) 
Interest expense, net (270) (134) 136 (50) 
Other income (expense), net (61) 237 298 (488) 

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (2,318) 762 3,080 (133) 
Provision for income taxes 167 624 457 274

Net income (loss) $ (2,485) $ 138 2,623 (106) 

Revenue

Our revenue increased by $20.6 million, or 69%, to $50.6 million in fiscal 2012 from $30.0 million in fiscal 2011. This increase primarily
reflected the significant increase in sales of our IP video processing and distribution solution in the fiscal year ended January 31, 2012, which
was primarily the result of increased consumer demand for multi-screen video services, and our continued growth into the North American
telecommunications and cable services market. In addition, we prospectively adopted new accounting guidance for multiple element revenue
arrangements entered into or materially modified on or subsequent to February 1, 2011, which had a positive impact on our revenue during the
period when compared to the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011 as discussed further in Note 1 of our consolidated financial statements. We
believe that our future revenue will continue to be impacted by consumer demand for multi-screen video services, which in turn impacts the
level of capital expenditures by our target end customers looking to upgrade their IP video processing and distribution capabilities to enable the
delivery of these video services to consumers.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Cost of revenue increased by $7.0 million, or 61%, to $18.5 million in fiscal 2012 from $11.5 million in fiscal 2011, primarily as a result of
increased unit volume during the year ended January 31, 2012 compared to the prior fiscal year in order to meet increasing demand for our
solution. In addition, the adoption of the new accounting guidance for multiple element arrangements increased our cost of revenue during the
year ended January 31, 2012.

Gross margin increased from 62% in fiscal 2011 to 63% in fiscal 2012. Our gross margin increased during the year ended January 31, 2012
primarily as a result of increased unit sales volume while our manufacturing and other fixed costs remained relatively consistent across these
periods. In addition, our gross margin was positively impacted by an increase of our higher margin software-only transactions.
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Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased by $11.0 million, or 54%, to $31.5 million in fiscal 2012 from $20.5 million in fiscal 2011.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by $1.6 million, or 31%, to $6.7 million in fiscal 2012 from $5.2 million in fiscal 2011. Research
and development expenses increased primarily as a result of an increase of $1.2 million in personnel-related expenses and $1.1 million in
professional services related to our use of consultants for certain research and development activities. Research and development expenses are
presented net of French research tax credits, which amounted to $1.2 million for each of the years ended January 31, 2011 and 2012.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased by $7.3 million, or 82%, to $16.2 million in fiscal 2012 from $8.9 million in fiscal 2011, primarily as a
result of an increase of $3.2 million in personnel-related expenses, $1.9 million in commissions and bonuses associated with increased sales,
$1.1 million in travel expenses due to an increase in sales and marketing personnel and $0.4 million in marketing expenses to increase our brand
and global footprint.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by $2.1 million, or 33%, to $8.6 million in fiscal 2012 from $6.4 million in fiscal 2011, primarily
due to an increase of $1.7 million in personnel-related expenses and $0.3 million in professional services related to our use of consultants for
accounting and other administrative activities.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net decreased by $0.1 million, or 50%, to $0.1 million in fiscal 2012 from $0.3 million in fiscal 2011. The decrease was
primarily a result of a decrease in the average outstanding principal amount of borrowings under our credit facilities in the year ended January
31, 2012 compared to the same prior year period, due to our repayment of outstanding notes payable.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net changed by $0.3 million in fiscal 2012 from an expense of $0.1 million in fiscal 2011 to income of $0.2 million in
fiscal 2012. This change was due primarily to a change in our foreign currency gain or loss from a gain of $103,000 in the year ended January
31, 2012 compared to a gain of $52,000 during the year ended January 31, 2011. The difference is also due to the decrease in the fair value of
our convertible preferred stock warrants which resulted in a gain of $0.1 million for the year ended January 31, 2012 compared to a loss of
$0.1 million for the year ended January 31, 2011.
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Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2011 Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010

The following table presents our historical operating results and the changes in these results in dollars (in thousands) and as a percentage for the
periods presented:

Year Ended January 31,
Increase /
(Decrease)

% Increase 
/

(Decrease)2010 2011
Revenue $ 16,288 $ 30,004 $ 13,716 84% 
Cost of revenue 7,482 11,504 4,022 54

Gross profit 8,806 18,500 9,694 110

Operating expenses:
Research and development 4,908 5,152 244 5
Sales and marketing 6,980 8,886 1,906 27
General and administrative 5,309 6,449 1,140 21

Total operating expenses 17,197 20,487 3,290 19

Loss from operations (8,391) (1,987) (6,404) (76) 
Interest expense, net (850) (270) (580) (68) 
Other income (expense), net 86 (61) (147) (171) 

Loss before provision for income taxes (9,155) (2,318) (6,837) (75) 
Provision for income taxes 22 167 145 659

Net loss $ (9,177) $ (2,485) (6,692) (73) 

Revenue

Our revenue increased by $13.7 million, or 84%, to $30.0 million in fiscal 2011 from $16.3 million in fiscal 2010. This increase primarily
reflected an increase in sales of our IP video processing and distribution solution, which was primarily the result of increased consumer demand
for multi-screen video services, and our continued growth into the North American telecommunications and cable services market as well as, to
a lesser extent, the emergence of new OTT content providers that utilized our solution.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Cost of revenue increased by $4.0 million, or 54%, to $11.5 million in fiscal 2011 from $7.5 million in fiscal 2010 primarily as a result of
increased unit volume to meet increasing demand for our solution, partially offset by cost reductions on our converged encoder products which
were shipped during the entire fiscal year and comprised the majority of our revenue in fiscal 2011.

Gross margin increased from 54% in fiscal 2010 to 62% in fiscal 2011. Our gross margin increased in fiscal 2011 primarily as a result of
improved margins from our new generation of converged encoder products which were shipped during the entire year and comprised the
majority of our revenue in fiscal 2011, increased sales in certain geographies that typically have higher average sales prices, and, to a lesser
extent, cost reductions from a switch in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 to a new, more efficient contract manufacturer.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased by $3.3 million, or 19%, to $20.5 million in fiscal 2011 from $17.2 million in fiscal 2010.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by $0.2 million, or 5%, to $5.2 million in fiscal 2011 from $4.9 million in fiscal 2010. Research
and development expenses are presented net of French research tax credits which amounted to $1.5 million in fiscal 2010 and $1.2 million in
fiscal 2011.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased by $1.9 million, or 27%, to $8.9 million in fiscal 2011 from $7.0 million in fiscal 2010, primarily as a
result of an increase of $1.0 million in personnel-related expenses and $0.4 million in travel expenses due to an increase in sales and marketing
personnel, as well as an increase of $0.9 million in commissions and bonuses associated with increased sales. These increases were partially
offset by a decrease of $0.3 million in public relations and other costs related to our marketing materials.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.1 million, or 21%, to $6.4 million in fiscal 2011 from $5.3 million in fiscal 2010, primarily
due to an increase of $1.0 million in personnel-related expenses as a result of an increase in stock-based compensation and cash bonuses, as well
as an increase of $0.3 million in professional services expenses as a result of an increase in the use of outside consultants. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease of $0.2 million in bad debt expense.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net decreased by $0.6 million, or 68%, to $0.3 million in fiscal 2011 from $0.9 million in fiscal 2010. The decrease was
primarily a result of a decrease in the outstanding principal amount of borrowings under our credit facilities during fiscal 2011 due to our
repayment of all our outstanding notes payable and the conversion of our bridge notes into convertible preferred stock in fiscal 2011.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net changed by $0.1 million in fiscal 2011 from income of $0.1 million during fiscal 2010 to an expense of $0.1 million
in fiscal 2011. This change was due primarily to a $0.1 million increase in the fair value of our convertible preferred stock warrants.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following unaudited quarterly consolidated statements of operations for the eight quarters in the period ended January 31, 2012 have been
prepared on a basis consistent with our audited annual consolidated financial statements and include, in the opinion of management, all normal
recurring adjustments necessary for the fair presentation of the financial information contained in those statements. The following consolidated
quarterly financial data should be read in conjunction with our annual consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere
in this prospectus.

Three Months Ended

April 30,
2010

July 31,
2010

October 31,
2010

January 31,
2011

April 30,
2011

July 31,
2011

October 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

(in thousands, unaudited)
Consolidated statement of
operations data:
Revenue $ 5,244 $ 5,762 $ 9,037 $ 9,961 $ 9,903 $ 11,505 $ 13,717 $ 15,521
Cost of revenues 2,219 2,389 3,386 3,510 4,007 4,191 4,834 5,460

Gross profit 3,025 3,373 5,651 6,451 5,896 7,314 8,883 10,061
Operating expenses:
Research and development 1,142 1,114 1,362 1,534 1,503 1,521 1,837 1,867
Sales and marketing 2,002 1,687 2,155 3,042 3,429 3,545 4,251 4,981
General and administrative 1,291 1,501 1,391 2,266 2,131 2,040 2,176 2,214

Total operating expenses 4,435 4,302 4,908 6,842 7,063 7,106 8,264 9,062

Income (loss) from operations (1,410) (929) 743 (391) (1,167) 208 619 999
Interest expense, net (108) (72) (37) (53) (37) (31) (31) (35) 
Other income (expense), net (31) 54 (66) (18) 91 110 56 (20) 

Income (loss) before provision
for income taxes (1,549) (947) 640 (462) (1,113) 287 644 944
Provision for income taxes 28 27 33 79 42 232 160 190

Net income (loss) $ (1,577) $ (974) $ 607 $ (541) $ (1,155) $ 55 $ 484 $ 754

We experienced significant revenue growth commencing in the third quarter of fiscal 2011, with an increase in revenue of 57% compared to the
second quarter of fiscal 2011 and sequential revenue growth since the first quarter of fiscal 2012. We have sustained this strong revenue
performance primarily as a result of a significant increase in consumer demand for multi-screen video services, our continued growth into the
North American telecommunications and cable services market and, to a lesser extent, the emergence of new OTT content providers that utilized
our solution. In addition, we prospectively adopted new accounting guidance for multiple element revenue arrangements entered into or
materially modified on or after February 1, 2011, which had a positive impact on our revenue when compared to historical periods as discussed
in Note 1 of our consolidated financial statements. Although we have not historically experienced a significant impact from seasonality in our
business due to our recent growth, we anticipate that we may experience seasonality in the future, with seasonally slower business in the first
quarter of each fiscal year. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue, or gross margin, similarly significantly improved commencing in the third
quarter of fiscal 2011, increasing from 59% in the second quarter of fiscal 2011 to 63% and 65% in the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2011,
respectively. This increase was primarily caused by improved margins from our new generation of converged encoder products, sales of which
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increased throughout the fiscal year. However, our gross margin declined from 65% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 to 60% in the first
quarter of fiscal 2012 primarily as a result of two large transactions with strategic customers with low average selling prices. Gross margins then
increased from 60% in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 to 64%, 65% and 65% in the second, third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 primarily due
to the absence of the two large transactions from the first quarter, which normalized average selling prices, and an increase in higher margin
software-only transactions.

To accommodate our growth and to continue our strategic investments for future growth, our operating expenses increased in the third and
fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012. Increases in operating expenses have been largely attributable to increasing our sales and marketing
capabilities, growing our investment in research and development and increases in our general and administrative expenses. Our sales and
marketing expenses increased as we hired additional sales personnel worldwide to further expand our relationships with channel partners and
direct customers and as we paid more sales commissions and bonuses associated with increased sales during these periods. Our research and
development expenses increased as we continued to focus our efforts on developing our next generation solutions. We also increased the number
of our general and administrative personnel and incurred additional stock-based compensation expense in these later quarterly periods, which led
to higher general and administrative expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, we have funded our operations primarily with proceeds from issuances of convertible preferred stock and borrowings under our
credit facilities. Since inception, we have raised an aggregate of $95.1 million, net of issuance cost, from the sale of our convertible preferred
stock, including the conversion of convertible promissory notes. We have also funded purchases of equipment and other general corporate
services with proceeds from our borrowings under our credit facilities.

We have incurred operating losses since inception, except for the year ended January 31, 2012, have an accumulated deficit of $78.8 million and
a total stockholders� deficit of $26.7 million as of January 31, 2012. However, we became profitable in fiscal 2012 with net income of $0.1
million. During fiscal 2012, we obtained $16.3 million, net of issuance costs, of additional financing through the issuance of Series I redeemable
convertible preferred stock. Further, as of January 31, 2012, we had $27.4 million in cash and cash equivalents and borrowings outstanding of
$1.0 million as of January 31, 2012. Since inception, we have relied primarily on the proceeds from equity offerings and debt proceeds to
finance our operations. We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents as of January 31, 2012 will be sufficient to fund our operations
and capital expenditures for at least the next 12 months. However, management may in the future elect to finance operations by utilizing our
credit facilities or selling equity securities. If additional funding is required, there can be no assurance that additional funds will be available to
us on acceptable terms on a timely basis, if at all, or that we will generate sufficient cash from operations to adequately fund our operating needs
or sustain profitability. If we are unable to raise additional capital or generate sufficient cash from operations to adequately fund our operations,
we will need to curtail planned activities to reduce costs. Doing so will likely have an unfavorable effect on our ability to execute on our
business plan.

Cash Flows

The following summary of our cash flows for the periods indicated and has been derived from our financial statements which are included
elsewhere in this prospectus (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (3,493) $ 3,657 $ 2,381
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities (819)  (1,310) (2,847) 
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,025 3,489 17,973
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Our primary uses of cash from operating activities have been for personnel costs, purchases of inventory and costs related to our facilities. In the
past, we experienced negative cash flows from operating activities as we expanded our business and generated operating losses. Our cash flows
from operating activities will continue to be affected principally by our working capital requirements and the extent to which we increase
spending on personnel and sales and marketing activities as our business grows.

Cash provided by operating activities of $2.4 million in fiscal 2012 reflected net income of $0.1 million, non-cash charges of $1.6 million for
depreciation and amortization and $1.7 million for stock-based compensation. Our net operating assets (liabilities), excluding cash and cash
equivalents, decreased from net operating liabilities of $9.1 million as of January 31, 2011 to $8.2 million as of January 31, 2012. The decrease
in net operating liabilities was primarily due to a decrease of $3.4 million for deferred revenue and an increase of $1.3 million for other assets,
partially offset by a decrease of $2.6 million for deferred inventory costs and an increase of $1.4 million for accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Deferred revenue decreased during fiscal 2012 primarily due to the timing of revenue recognition, including continued amortization of
pre-existing deferred revenue in prior periods, and fewer transactions subject to deferral as a result of the new revenue recognition rules adopted
during fiscal 2012, while the decrease for other assets was primarily due to initial public offering related costs incurred during fiscal 2012. The
increases in deferred inventory costs and accounts payable and accrued liabilities were primarily the result of our increases in sales and
shipments and the related increase in unit volume to meet increased demand.

Cash provided by operating activities of $3.7 million in fiscal 2011 reflected a net loss of $2.5 million, partially offset by non-cash charges of
$1.0 million for depreciation and amortization and $0.8 million for stock-based compensation. Our net operating assets (liabilities), excluding
cash and cash equivalents, increased from net operating liabilities of $4.9 million as of January 31, 2010 to net operating liabilities of $9.1
million as of January 31, 2011. The increase was primarily a result of an increase of $5.2 million for accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
$4.3 million for deferred revenue, partially offset by an increase of $3.8 million in accounts receivable and $2.0 million of deferred inventory
costs. The increases in accounts receivable and deferred revenue during fiscal 2011 were primarily the result of increases in sales and shipments
of our IP video processing and distribution solution for multi-screen video services and our growth into the North American telecommunications
and cable services markets. Similarly, the increases in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred inventory costs were primarily the result
of our increases in sales and shipments and the related increase in unit volume to meet the increased demand.

Cash used in operating activities of $3.5 million in fiscal 2010 reflected a net loss of $9.2 million and a decrease in deferred revenue of $0.9
million, partially offset by decreases in other assets of $2.2 million and inventory of $1.0 million and non-cash charges of $0.8 million for
depreciation and amortization. The decrease in other assets was principally due to a decrease in the research and development tax credit from our
subsidiary in France due to funds received. Our deferred revenue decreased as a result of the timing of revenue recognition for our sales during
fiscal 2009 and 2010 as a result of a decrease of product shipments at the end of fiscal 2010 and continued amortization of pre-existing deferred
revenue in fiscal 2010.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our investing activities consisted solely of our capital expenditures and amounted to $0.8 million, $1.3 million and $2.8 million in fiscal years
2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively, for purchases of equipment.

72

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 95



Table of Contents

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

To date, we have financed our operations primarily with proceeds from issuances of convertible preferred stock and borrowings under our credit
facilities.

In fiscal 2012, cash provided by financing activities was $18.0 million, primarily as a result of cash proceeds of $16.3 million received from the
issuance of Series I redeemable convertible preferred stock and $1.0 million from our revolving line of credit.

In fiscal 2011, cash provided by financing activities was $3.5 million, primarily as a result of cash proceeds of $6.2 million received from the
issuance of Series H convertible preferred stock, partially offset by the cash payments of $2.7 million on notes payable.

In fiscal 2010, cash provided by financing activities was $2.0 million, primarily as a result of our receipt of $5.0 million in proceeds from the
issuance of Series G convertible preferred stock and $1.0 million from the issuance of bridge loans. These proceeds were partially offset by the
repayment in cash of other debt obligations of $4.0 million.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of January 31, 2012:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations:
Less Than

1 Year
1 to 3
Years

3 to 5
    Years    

More Than
5 Years Total

(in thousands)
Operating lease obligations $ 1,036 $ 1,753 $ �  $ �  $ 2,789
Line of credit $ 1,000 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 1,000

$ 2,036 $ 1,753 $   �  $   �  $ 3,789

Contingent Fees

We have entered into an arrangement with outside legal counsel and other third parties to pay certain contingent fees up to $3.0 million upon an
initial public offering or other liquidity event. Upon successful completion of an initial public offering or other liquidity event, such costs would
be charged against the gross proceeds of the offering.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of January 31, 2012, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to
as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial position due to adverse changes in financial market prices and rates. Our
market risk exposure is primarily a result of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. We do not hold or issue financial
instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore, our revenues are not currently subject to significant foreign currency risk. Our
operating expenses are denominated in the currencies of
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the countries in which our operations are located, and may be subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
particularly changes in the Euro relative to the U.S. dollar. We have a large research and development facility in France and pay our employees
located in France in Euros. To date, we have not entered into any hedging contracts. During fiscal 2012, a 10% appreciation or depreciation in
the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the other currencies in which our expenses are denominated would have had an estimated impact of
approximately $1.3 million on our financial position and results of operations.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We had cash and cash equivalents of $27.4 million as of January 31, 2012. Our cash and cash equivalents are held primarily in cash deposits and
money market funds. We hold our cash and cash equivalents for working capital purposes. Due to the short-term nature of these instruments, we
believe that we do not have any material exposure to changes in the fair value of our investment portfolio as a result of changes in interest rates.
Declines in interest rates, however, will reduce future interest income. During fiscal 2012, a 10% appreciation or depreciation in overall interest
rates would not have had a material impact on our interest income.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (Topic
820)�Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, to add additional disclosures about the different classes of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value, the valuation techniques and inputs used, and the activity in Level 3 fair value measurements. Certain provisions of this update went into
effect for us beginning in the year ended January 31, 2012. The adoption of the provisions did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which requires an entity to
present total comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements and eliminates the option to present the
components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders� equity. This guidance is effective for us
beginning in the first quarter of the year ending January 31, 2013. Retrospective adoption is required and early adoption is permitted. The
adoption of the standard will have no impact on our financial position or results of operations, but will result in a change in the presentation of
our basic consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS

Overview

We are a leading provider of software-based IP video processing and distribution solutions that enable the delivery of high-quality video to
consumers. Based on our unique video compression and advanced IP video networking technologies, our solution is designed to enable service
providers and content providers to offer high-quality video anytime, anywhere across a broad array of video formats, networks, consumer
devices and operating systems. We refer to this video experience as TV without Boundaries and believe it is one of the fastest growing
components of the $3.0 billion video infrastructure market. Our software-based solution runs on industry-standard hardware and include
encoders, transcoders and network media processors, all controlled through our network management system.

We enable service providers and content providers to deliver linear broadcast and on-demand video services to their customers via multiple
screens, such as tablets, mobile handsets, netbooks, laptops, PCs and TVs. This high-quality video can be delivered to end users either across
service providers� managed networks or outside the boundaries of their networks over the open Internet, referred to as over-the-top, or OTT. Our
customers include mobile and wireline telecommunications service providers, cable multiple system operators, or MSOs, direct broadcast
satellite service providers, or DBSs, and content providers, which includes broadcasters and content publishers, owners, aggregators and
licensees. We distribute our products and solutions globally through a network of channel partners, which includes leading telecommunications
systems integrators throughout the world, as well as our own direct sales force.

We differentiate our solution by offering flexibility and scalability to our customers. Our software is pre-loaded on standards-based servers and
is pre-configured based upon each customer�s requirements. Our software-based products enable differentiated features and revenue-enhancing
applications along with a high quality of experience and carrier-class reliability. We provide additional flexibility to our customers by offering
continuous software enhancements and reconfigurations to adapt to the rapidly evolving consumer device landscape. Our solution conforms to
international telecommunications standards. In addition, we work closely with our network of technology partners to support a wide range of
video platforms, formats and features.

We were incorporated in Delaware on January 5, 2000. Our company is based in South San Francisco, California, with our research and
development center located in the metropolitan area of Rennes, France, and further international presence in Australia, Austria, Brazil, China,
England, India, Japan, Singapore and the United Arab Emirates. We have sold our solution to over 300 end-customers to date in over 50
countries. Our customers include the top global service providers, including nine of the top ten global broadband service providers, which
includes three of the top four U.S. cable service providers and eight of the top ten global mobile service providers.

Industry Background

In the early 1990s, consumers began to experience the first digital TV technology evolution when it became possible to transmit significantly
more TV channels while utilizing the same amount of bandwidth compared to analog TV. As a result, new service offerings emerged such as
direct broadcast satellite TV and digital cable TV, and the channel offerings available to consumers grew from a few channels to hundreds of
channels. In the mid 2000s, the second wave of digital TV technology evolution began, fueled by new connected devices and increased access to
broadband Internet through wireless and wireline networks. As this technology matured, it became possible for service providers and content
providers to deliver video content to a broad array of devices over mobile and broadband networks. This new era of digital TV technology
enables service providers and content providers to deliver, and consumers to enjoy, a high-quality video experience anytime, anywhere.
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Consumer Video Trends

We believe the growth in demand for TV without Boundaries is being driven by several key consumer trends, including the following:

� Demand for quality � The emergence of new high definition, or HD, standards for broadcast TV, the broad availability of cost-effective
Blu-ray disc players, which is the new HD standard for stored video, and HD flat-screen TVs, and the availability of numerous HD
Pay-TV services has resulted in consumers expecting and demanding a higher quality video experience. Mobile devices and tablets are
also improving screen resolution to allow for the display of HD video to meet consumer demands. As a result of these trends,
consumers are increasingly demanding higher definition video that is free from video artifacts, including re-buffering, blockiness and
cut screen.

� Demand for anytime access to video content � The availability of cost-effective digital video recorders enabling
time-shifting as well as on-demand services offered by service providers has made consumers increasingly accustomed to
accessing video content anytime they choose. Time-shifting catch-up TV and on-demand are features and services that
allow consumers to choose when they watch video content that would otherwise only be available at fixed timeframes
scheduled by the service provider. According to IMS Research, a third-party research firm, total worldwide video
on-demand households grew from 41.7 million at the end of 2009 to 53.9 million at the end of 2010, a growth rate of
29.3%, and is expected to grow to 157.3 million at the end of 2016, a 2010 to 2016 CAGR of 19.5%.

� Demand for anywhere access to video content � The proliferation of video-enabled mobile devices, such as tablets, smartphones,
netbooks and laptops, is driving demand for video services irrespective of the consumer�s location. According to Gartner Inc., or
Gartner, worldwide smartphone production reached 476.8 million units in 2011, and is expected to climb to 1.1 billion units in 2015, a
CAGR of 26.0%.1 Media tablets, a new category of video-enabled device, are also expected to contribute to the growth in video
consumption. Gartner estimates that in 2011, there were 63.6 million media tablets shipped and that shipments will grow to
326.3 million in 2015, a CAGR of 50.5%.2

� Demand for advanced video services in the home � Video consumption growth is also occurring in the home. The rise in IPTV set top
boxes and OTT set top boxes is expected to continue to drive demand. According to Gartner, IPTV set top boxes and OTT set top
boxes shipped were 39.5 million in 2011 and are expected to grow to 119.1 million in 2015, representing a CAGR of 31.8%.3

As a result of these consumer trends, video consumption has moved beyond the home and a standard TV to an Internet-enabled TV, tablet, PC
and mobile device, which we refer to as multi-screen video. In addition, the number of consumers who have access to high-quality video content
is increasing as broadband devices and connections increase. According to Gartner, the total number of consumer fixed broadband connections
worldwide was 532.7 million in 2011 and is expected to reach in excess of 691.0 million in 2015, a CAGR of 6.7%.4

These consumer trends raise new challenges impacting how service providers and content providers address the delivery of video services to
consumers with the goal of providing high-quality content anytime, anywhere, on any device, or TV without Boundaries.

1 Gartner �Forecast Analysis: Mobile Phones and Consumer Electronics, Worldwide, 4Q11 Update� January 27, 2012.
2 Gartner �Emerging Technology Analysis: Mobile Business Intelligence� July 13, 2011.
3 Gartner �Forecast Analysis: Mobile Phones and Consumer Electronics, Worldwide, 4Q11 Update,� January 27, 2012.
4 Gartner �Forecast: Consumer Fixed Voice, Internet and Broadband Services, Worldwide, 2009 � 2016, 1Q12 Update,� February 24,

2012.
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Key Video Market Segments

Service providers and content providers are addressing evolving consumer demands for video through different market segments. The key video
market segments include:

Managed Subscription Video and IPTV (Digital Pay-TV) � Digital Pay-TV is operated over a managed network and is characterized by having a
high quality of consumer experience and a high standard of security, interactivity and reliability. Digital Pay-TV is the largest video segment by
far with 407.8 million subscribers at the end of 2010 and is expected to grow to 785.4 million subscribers at the end of 2016, according to IMS
Research, a CAGR of 11.5%. Currently, MSOs have maintained the largest percentage of Digital Pay-TV consumers. As traditional
telecommunications service providers have sought growth in average revenue per user and as they attempt to defend against voice, data and
video service bundles offered by MSOs, traditional telecommunications service providers have broadened their suite of services to include
Digital Pay-TV.

According to Cisco Visual Networking Index Global IP Traffic Forecast 2010 � 2015, or Cisco VNI, Managed IP Video traffic is expected to
grow from an estimated 6,839 petabytes, or PB, transmitted per month in 2011 to an estimated 14,848 PB transmitted per month in 2015, a
CAGR of 21%.

Source: Cisco VNI, 2011
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Mobile Video � The combination of advanced, user-friendly mobile devices coupled with the proliferation of 3G, 4G and Wi-Fi broadband
networks, along with innovative business models that support the creation and deployment of video-enabled applications and services, has
accelerated the demand for mobile video.

According to the Cisco Visual Networking Index Mobile Data Traffic Forecast, 2011 � 2016, or Cisco Mobile VNI, mobile video is expected to
grow from an estimated 597 PB in 2011 to 10,804 PB in 2016, a CAGR of 78%.

Source: Cisco Mobile VNI 2012

Over-the-Top Video � As more consumers obtain access to broadband connectivity, it is now possible for broadcasters and content publishers,
owners, aggregators and licensees to target consumers directly over the open Internet infrastructure with an acceptable video and service quality.
OTT can be delivered through any broadband network, such as cable, DSL, 3G and Wi-Fi. Recently, content providers, such as Hulu and
Netflix, have gained broad consumer adoption due to these trends. Many broadcasters and content owners, such as BBC, CBS and ESPN, and
sports leagues, such as the NBA and MLB, have each created a very significant video presence online.

According to Cisco VNI, OTT video consumed on PCs and TVs is expected to grow at a 43% CAGR to 2014.

Source: Cisco, VNI 2011
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Service Provider and Content Provider Trends

Service providers and content providers must continue to launch innovative new service offerings in order to address evolving consumer trends
and video delivery models. Key trends have emerged that impact the way service providers and content providers operate.

� Service providers � Traditional Pay-TV service providers, including MSOs and DBSs, have been challenged, first by traditional
telecommunications service providers, who have gained market share from Pay-TV, and most recently by OTT providers, who have
launched successful services, such as Apple iTunes, Amazon, Google, Hulu, Netflix and Vudu. Traditional telecommunications
service providers are competing with MSOs and DBSs by offering new bundled services where consumers can enjoy a single service
package and monthly bill covering broadband Internet, voice and video services, or triple play, and additionally bundling mobile as a
fourth service, or quad play. Service providers who also operate mobile networks can leverage their dual-network presence to offer
innovative services. For example, Verizon launched My FiOS, an extension of its FiOS network, to its mobile subscribers. In reaction
to this competitive threat, MSOs and DBSs are launching innovative services that deliver video content to PCs and mobile devices.
For example, Time Warner Cable launched TWC TV, which allows Time Warner subscribers to control devices using an iPad or
iPhone throughout the digital home, and watch live television on their iPad or iPhone as well. Broadband service providers have also
been engaged in commercial battles with content delivery network service providers, such as Akamai, Level3 and Limelight, and are
starting to offer competing solutions for efficient video delivery on their own network.

� Content providers � Content providers include broadcasters and content publishers, owners, aggregators and licensors. As wireless and
wireline broadband becomes more readily available, content providers of all types have adopted new business models to capitalize on
the demand for video services as well as the direct access to consumers enabled by the Internet. Broadcasters and content owners,
including Disney, BBC, ESPN and HBO, have broadened their means of distribution to consumers beyond the linear broadcast
business model to include direct OTT distribution. In addition, new business models from emerging content providers, including
Apple iTunes, Amazon, Google, Hulu, Netflix and Vudu, have circumvented traditional service provider and programmer distribution
channels to reach consumers directly via OTT delivery. Those OTT providers compete with traditional service providers by offering
aggressive pricing, à la carte services and innovative new advertising models.

Limitations of Existing Technologies

Existing technologies designed to enable video delivery are largely either engineered solely for broadcast-centric applications serving standard
TVs, or engineered solely for web delivery of content. Products designed only for broadcast-centric applications do not address the growing
diversity of devices and networks, and products designed only for web delivery of content do not address the technical requirements of
traditional broadcast TV or provide the quality, reliability and manageability expected by service providers. Although the video delivery models
of service providers and content providers historically have had different demands, their offerings are converging in the marketplace. As a result
of this convergence, service providers and content providers face the following challenges when delivering video to consumers:

� Quality of experience � Consumers are increasingly demanding a high level of quality for video on whatever device they are using and
wherever they choose to access video. As consumers increasingly demand TV without Boundaries, there is a greater requirement for
service providers and content providers to deliver the same quality of experience historically delivered only through traditional
broadcast services, but do so now across multiple devices and networks. We believe current technologies have not adequately
addressed the numerous video delivery challenges of providing video services across multiple devices and networks, which can
degrade the consumer experience through video artifacts, including re-buffering, blockiness and cut screen.
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� Wide array of video formats � There are an increasing number of content formats, including 3GPP, Adobe HTTP Dynamic Streaming,
Apple HTTP Live Streaming, Microsoft Smooth Streaming or MPEG-DASH. Content must be properly transcoded into these formats
in order to be delivered across the network and displayed on a consumer�s device. For each different format, this process requires a
unique set of algorithms, network packaging, security and access protocols. We believe current hardware-based products do not have
the capabilities to address the full spectrum of video formats necessary to create a comprehensive multi-screen delivery solution.

� Rapidly evolving complex video delivery ecosystem � The process of delivering video through various network technologies, with a
rapidly evolving array of device formats, operating systems and display formats and resolutions, has become extremely complex.
Existing hardware-based products fail to adequately address the complexities of this ever-changing video delivery landscape and do
not answer the technical needs for ad and subscription-based service models. In addition, the hardware-based approach complicates
service provider�s goal of increasingly using virtual networks where software runs on commercial hardware in a centralized datacenter.

� Efficiency of delivery � The large bandwidth requirement for the transfer of video and the capability for advanced devices, such as
tablets, smartphones, laptops and netbooks to consume new video services through the Internet is a tremendous burden on network
capacity. As video delivery moves from single screen to multi-screen, service providers are required to send video in multiple formats
across their network in order to accommodate multiple devices, which further consumes network resources. As a result, service
providers must seek a solution that reduces the burden on their network and minimizes costly network upgrades. Similarly, content
providers must seek a solution that reduces costs incurred from content delivery network providers. As video delivery expands to
multiple screens and formats, existing technologies are not optimized for the efficient delivery of this new trend of services.

Traditionally, service and content providers deployed point solutions to distribute video to each class of device. As these delivery models
converge to meet evolving consumer demands for TV without Boundaries and operators need to significantly scale their services, this silo
approach to video delivery presents inherent limitations and increased costs for service and content providers. Traditional video delivery systems
for service providers have focused on quality of experience without the need to address a wide array of network technologies or growing number
of devices and operating systems. Current video delivery systems designed to address mobile and OTT video services have focused on
addressing multiple network technologies and different devices and operating systems, without supporting traditional TV delivery or addressing
the consumer demand for quality of experience. As these services converge and service providers and content providers attempt to address the
needs of their end users in a single solution, the delivery of video increasingly requires new architectures that can accommodate delivery of
high-quality video across multiple networks to multiple devices with the flexibility to adapt to a rapidly evolving market. In addition, solutions
focused exclusively on OTT video delivery typically handle multiple devices but often lack the quality, scalability and reliability that a service
provider offering a subscription or ad-based premium video service requires.

The Envivio Solution

Our software-based solution is capable of delivering a true converged multi-screen service across mobile, broadband and managed networks,
allowing service providers and content providers to offer consumers the same high-quality experience across multiple devices and networks
through a single converged solution. We utilize a unified software architecture to provide a flexible video delivery platform to service and
content providers that can evolve with the market needs. Our solution is designed to eliminate the need for separate point solutions for each
screen so that service providers and content providers are able to benefit from scale and avoid the added costs of maintaining several hardware
platforms and the related maintenance, redundancy, staff and support that they would otherwise incur
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with separate point solutions for each screen. We believe our solution offers the following key benefits to our customers:

� Provides a high-quality video experience � We have designed a solution that enables the delivery of video to consumers to multiple
screens while maintaining a high-quality video experience through advanced adaptive streaming technologies. Irrespective of whether
video is delivered across mobile networks, managed video networks or OTT, our solution enhances the consumer�s experience by
reducing video artifacts, including re-buffering, blockiness and cut screen. We believe the combination of our technological
sophistication and the flexibility of our solution enables both service providers and content providers to deliver a high quality of
experience to consumers who demand TV without Boundaries.

� Addresses complexities of multi-screen video delivery � Our solution addresses the complexities of the service provider and content
provider ecosystems by providing a platform to effectively enable delivery of video over mobile and IP networks to a wide array of
device and operating system combinations in a number of display formats and resolutions. We provide our solution on a single
platform, which is easy to deploy, easy to maintain and simple to upgrade, rather than a complex series of disparate point solutions.

� Provides scale with carrier-class reliability � Our solution is designed to meet the stringent requirements of service providers and is
highly reliable, highly scalable and meets top industry certifications.

� Ingests and delivers video in a broad array of formats � Our software-based solution is compatible with all major video formats across
all major codecs, resolutions, frame rates, bitrates and transport profiles. We accommodate the transport of video through different
networks, such as broadband and mobile networks, or traditional cable and satellite broadcast networks. In addition, our converged
video delivery solution transcodes content into a wide array of professional video formats, such as 3GPP, Adobe HTTP Dynamic
Streaming, Apple HTTP Live Streaming and Microsoft Smooth Streaming.

� Leverages existing datacenter infrastructure for enhanced video delivery � As service providers are increasingly consolidating
their network and IT infrastructure and deploying cloud-based services, they are looking for ways to reduce the number of hardware
elements throughout their network. Using our proprietary software-based solution, service providers can leverage their existing
datacenter infrastructure to deliver enhanced video services without having to deploy additional costly hardware elements.

� Optimizes video distribution architecture � Our solution is designed to optimize bandwidth and to ensure that video is delivered to the
consumer in a highly efficient manner. We allow service providers to send video using a single format across their network,
irrespective of the number of target devices they want to reach. Our solution adapts video content at each edge location distributed
throughout the network, eliminating the need to repetitively deliver the same video in different formats from the core of the network to
the edge. Service providers, therefore, operate much more efficiently by lowering bandwidth usage, lowering power consumption,
reducing potential network bottlenecks and associated costs.

� Enables new service monetization � Our solution also allows paid or ad-supported services to be delivered to multi-screens. Our video
content protection and linear ad-insertion technologies are tailored for multiple devices, allowing service providers to offer
subscription-based or ad-based business models for multiple devices.

Our Growth Strategy

Our objective is to become the leading multi-screen IP video processing and distribution solution to service providers and content providers. The
key elements of our growth strategy are:

�
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Capitalize on our early commercial leadership � We believe that we have an early lead in time-to-market and commercialization of
our software-based, multi-screen solution. Many of our
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competitors focus on traditional Pay-TV or single-screen solutions. We intend to exploit our lead in commercialization of
our video processing and distribution solutions to expand our footprint of customers across leading service providers and
content providers, and, where possible, expand the breadth of services that we enable our customers to deliver.

� Continued innovation of our software-based, multi-screen solution � We believe our software-based architecture is fundamentally
different than competing architectures. We focus our development efforts on advanced, proprietary video processing technologies,
such as video encoding algorithms, video pre-processing and filtering, content protection and advanced network optimizations,
differentiating our software-based solution from our competitors� technologies. We intend to leverage our core IP video technology
strength to develop new products with enhanced software-based capabilities to further demonstrate the value of our solution and
increase our long-term revenue opportunities.

� Increase our share of our customers� network footprint � We intend to increase our market share by selling additional products into
our existing customers� networks. Typically, the initial order from a new customer covers video delivery for only a small portion of
their possible service offering. We intend to expand our relationships with these customers by offering additional products, including
the addition of mobile or IPTV capabilities or the extension of our services to new geographies or content offerings, as they realize the
benefits of our unique, converged software-based, multi-screen architecture. We have many current customers that are well positioned
to leverage their existing mobile and broadband networks as well as programming to deliver a TV without Boundaries experience.

� Maximize our sales distribution capabilities to add new customers � We have direct relationships with the world�s largest systems
integrators and intend to further leverage our relationships with these leading systems integrators to expand our market presence. We
intend to further broaden our customer and geographic presence through expanded channel partnerships with new and existing
partners. We also intend to further develop our direct sales capabilities to capitalize on the emerging and rapidly growing OTT market.

� Extend our solution through complementary products � We believe that we occupy a key position in the video delivery ecosystem,
which provides an opportunity for us to extend our solutions by offering adjacent and complementary products. We intend to develop
new products and features for our customers through internal development, potential acquisitions and partnerships.
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Our Technology and Products

Our innovative video processing and delivery solution is based on a suite of products built upon a proprietary software platform that our
engineers have developed over more than a decade. By combining this proprietary software platform with the latest generation of
industry-standard servers and other third-party products, we have created an innovative suite of video processing and distribution products
addressing multi-screen video applications.

Core Technologies

We believe our portfolio of compression and distribution technologies is more advanced than those of our competitors. Our software platform is
the foundation of our video processing and distribution products and incorporates the following core technologies:

� Modular software architecture � Our core competencies are in developing advanced media compression and video over IP
technologies, where we deliver a carrier grade, multi-screen solution. We accomplish this by leveraging our contribution to the
MPEG-4 standard and our rights to MPEG-4 related patents. Our modular software architecture provides a common platform of
capabilities and features that allows our products to perform critical video processing and distribution functions, including ingest,
processing, packaging, protection and encryption, network optimizations and monitoring. In addition, our software-based architecture
allows customers to enable features or add capacity through the input of a simple security or license key.

� Envivio Genesis� � Envivio Genesis is a video transport technology that simultaneously supports multiple streams of video at various bit
rates and resolutions through one unified broadcast format. It is compatible with most consumer devices and significantly reduces
backbone bandwidth requirements for multi-screen services when compared with delivering a separate format for each device. This
efficiency means that only a single core content delivery backbone or satellite uplink is needed to distribute Genesis-formatted content
to the edge of the service provider�s internal network, where it is then efficiently reprocessed by our Network Media Processor. Genesis
can also carry picture preview, subtitles, ad-insertion triggers and other synchronized and proprietary metadata to improve the quality
of experience.
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� Multi-core video compression � We have developed a patented set of video processing and compression algorithms designed to
optimize performance on industry-standard, multi-core hardware chipsets. These algorithms are central to all of our encoder and
transcoder products. Due to the evolution in the number and speed of CPU cores, our encoding products have constantly increased
their transcoding capacity. We believe that our video compression technology is designed to optimize bandwidth utilization while
maintaining the highest possible level of video quality. This allows for a reduction in the cost to deliver video, or an increase in the
video quality at a specified network capacity.

Products

Our unified video headend solution and unified delivery infrastructure for live and on-demand multi-screen video delivery are built on our
encoding, transcoding and video distribution products. A headend is the hub of a television system at the central location of the network. The
headend receives video feeds for multiple channels and transmits video to subscribers. Our product suite, which includes 4Caster, Muse, Halo
and 4Manager, enables video headends to be tailored by our customers to serve various combinations of tablets, mobile handsets, netbooks,
laptops, PCs and TVs.

Our hardware can be easily reconfigured by our customers to deliver content to consumers on a broad array of devices with additional software
options that expand device support as new devices are introduced and add support for premium features and applications. Our suite of products
consists of the following:

� Envivio 4Caster� � Our 4Caster standards-based appliance delivers video to mobile, PC and TV from a single platform. We have
designed 4Caster to optimize live and on-demand workflows for video delivery commensurate with the characteristics of both legacy
and current network infrastructures by encoding video input in multiple codecs, resolutions, bit rates and formats. 4Caster utilizes
pre-processing techniques to clean and optimize video sources before encoding. 4Caster is designed to perform high-quality
compression and content encryption to secure high-
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value content from the headend to the edge device that meets the requirements of content owners for quality, content protection and
digital rights management. Our 4Caster product is available in various models to fit the specific requirements of our customers.

� Envivio Muse � Muse is our new multi-screen software architecture designed for live or file-based video transcoding and distribution to
multiple devices. It is designed to significantly improve efficiency and operations compared to architectures that require separate
broadcast and multi-screen headend equipment. Muse is available on industry-standard blade servers or our 4Caster appliances and
enables service providers running large-scale operations to leverage their existing datacenter infrastructure to deliver enhanced video
services. Muse also enables advanced functionality, such as ad-insertion and content protection for mobile devices that facilitates
service monetization and enables immersive end user experiences.

� Envivio Halo� � Our Halo Network Media Processor performs final content adaptation for consumer devices, including protected
adaptive bitrate streams compatible with Apple iOS, Android 3.0 and Microsoft Smooth Streaming enabled consumer devices. We
introduced Halo to our customers in November 2010. Halo Network Media Processors can be added by network operators as needed,
locally or distributed, to support new devices without impacting the headend. When launching a multi-screen service, Halo allows our
customers to significantly reduce bandwidth usage on the network infrastructure.

� Envivio 4Manager � Our 4Manager network management system is specifically engineered to manage next generation video headends
for mobile TV, OTT and IPTV, while continuing to support traditional broadcast distribution networks. 4Manager allows service
providers to monitor and control all headend appliances with a simple yet comprehensive web-based user interface using a
customizable layout. 4Manager is designed to maximize video headend availability and reliability by reporting system malfunctions
and can automatically switch away from a defective unit, minimizing service disruption. This allows service providers to reduce
operational costs and provide a high quality of service for their customers.

We target three primary applications with our products, consisting of multi-screen, IPTV and mobile applications. In fiscal 2011, we derived
46%, 22% and 32% of our total revenue from sales of our products targeting multi-screen, IPTV and mobile applications, respectively. In fiscal
2012, we derived 80%, 10% and 10% of our total revenue from sales of our products targeting multi-screen, IPTV and mobile applications,
respectively.

Services

We offer a suite of services in support of our products, including:

� On-site project assessment � Complete review of content sources, existing systems and middleware to determine the proper interface
and adaptation equipment necessary for our customer to deliver an optimized consumer quality of experience.

� Systems integration � Configure all the equipment with our solution according to network design and plan. We can test and integrate
additional third-party equipment and validate predefined use cases in our labs.

� On-site delivery � Install all equipment and test the operational environment, including redundancy and system monitoring as well as
administer technical training to validate predefined use cases in an operational environment.

� Operational and customer support � Provide different grades of service level agreements and support contracts according to
requirements.

Research and Development

Our investment in research and development is critical to our business as we seek to develop new video processing and delivery solutions and
support emerging technology. Our research and
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development lab is located in the metropolitan area of Rennes, France, where we believe we have ample access to talented video engineers and
can benefit from a cost-effective, stable workforce. We have assembled a team of 47 engineers, substantially all of whom are software engineers,
as of January 31, 2012, with expertise in various fields, including video compression, IP video protocols and user interface. Our success in
developing new products and solutions depends on a variety of factors, including market demand for new products, product performance,
adequate manufacturing processes and effective sales and marketing efforts. Research and development expenses totaled $4.9 million, $5.2
million and $6.7 million for fiscal 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

Sales and Marketing

We primarily sell our video delivery solutions to our customers indirectly through our channel partners, and, to a lesser extent, directly through
our internal sales force.

� Channel sales � As part of our sales efforts, we have developed relationships with channel partners, primarily with large Tier-1 systems
integrators, including telecommunications equipment manufacturers. As of January 31, 2012, we had over 20 active channel
partnerships, including relationships with large telecommunications equipment providers throughout the world. We utilize our channel
partners to assist with our sales into new Tier-1 customers and to manage our sales into Tier-2 and Tier-3 customers. These channel
partners often act as a general contractor for network deployments and will use our products to fulfill the video infrastructure elements
of a deployment. We may seek to selectively add distribution partners, particularly in additional regions outside North America, to
complement or expand our business.

� Direct sales � Our direct sales team sells our products and solutions to service providers and content providers globally. As of January
31, 2012, we had a sales force consisting of 40 employees worldwide. Our direct sales force has historically been focused on
cultivating and selling into large service providers in major international markets. Even when we are partnering with a systems
integrator or other channel partner, our internal sales force directly markets to prospective end-customers and carefully articulates our
product benefits as a key component of an end-to-end solution. We maintain meaningful relationships with large service providers and
intend to grow our direct sales efforts to become a larger portion of our total sales in the future.

Our marketing efforts are focused on building our brand awareness and qualifying sales leads for new and existing customers. We employ a
team of marketing professionals and utilize our network of channel partners for additional marketing efforts. As of January 31, 2012, we had 14
marketing professionals globally. Our marketing team is responsible for branding, product marketing and managing our channel marketing
programs. Our marketing team actively contributes to industry-related standards organizations, markets the Envivio brand at industry
conferences and contributes to publications and other services to continuously promote our brand and products.

Customers and Channel Partners

We sell our video processing and delivery solution directly and indirectly through our channel partners to end-customers that include wireline
and mobile telecommunications service providers, MSOs, DBSs, broadcasters and other content providers. An end-customer deployment of our
solution can involve a varying amount of hardware and software depending on the size and requirements of the network. As of January 31, 2012,
we had over 300 end-customers in over 50 countries. Our customers include the top global service providers, including nine of the top ten global
broadband service providers, which include three of the top four U.S. cable service providers, and eight of the top ten global mobile service
providers.

In fiscal 2012, one of our customers directly accounted for 18% of our total revenue. In fiscal 2011, three of our customers, who are our channel
partners, directly accounted for 11%, 12% and 12%, respectively, of our total revenue. In fiscal 2010, one of these large customers accounted for
13% of our total revenue. In addition, two other customers accounted for 15% and 12% of our total revenue in fiscal 2010.
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We derived 8%, 23%, and 29% of our revenue from sales to customers located in the United States in fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012,
respectively, and 92%, 77%, and 71% of our revenue from international sales in fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. We derived
31%, 24%, and 21% of our revenue from sales to customers located in the Asia Pacific region in fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.
We derived 56%, 44% and 40% of our revenue from sales to customers located in EMEA in fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively.

Manufacturing, Production and Suppliers

We outsource the manufacturing, assembly and testing of our encoding products to FutureQuest Incorporated, a manufacturer located in
California. All of our products are manufactured on a purchase order basis whereby we detail the types and quantities of each of our products to
be manufactured and the associated delivery terms. We have predefined minimum quantities and lead times in our purchase orders to minimize
any product supply shortages that we may encounter due to unexpected fluctuations in demand or manufacturing capacity. We believe that our
manufacturing and logistics processes allow us to preserve our working capital, reduce manufacturing costs and optimize fulfillment while
maintaining product quality and flexibility. Our operations group oversees the manufacturing process and maintains relationships with our
manufacturing partner and other component suppliers. Historically, we have not experienced significant delays in fulfilling customer orders and
we maintain a good track record of on-time delivery. In addition, we have not experienced any significant manufacturing capacity constraints. In
the future, we may need to add manufacturing partners to satisfy our production needs.

We source the components included in our products from various suppliers. We have not historically had any material issues procuring desired
quantities of components necessary for production as a majority are standard off-the-shelf components and are, therefore, typically neither
susceptible to supply shortages nor material lead times. However, any unpredicted shortages to the availability of components may require us to
decrease our manufacturing output for a temporary period.

Competition

The market for our solution is highly competitive and fragmented. With the rapid adoption of video-enabled mobile devices, ubiquitous
broadband connectivity and the growing consumer demand for TV without Boundaries, the market for our products is attracting competition. As
a result, we expect competition in our markets to intensify in the future as existing and new competitors introduce products to meet this demand.
We believe the principal competitive factors in our market include the following:

� Technological leadership;

� Maintaining a high quality of video across a wide array of networks and devices including mobile, OTT and IPTV;

� Product performance, price, reliability and total cost of ownership;

� Domain expertise in video and communications, as well as close relationships with service providers;

� Interoperability with existing headend products and network infrastructure;

� Advanced management systems for video delivery solution reliability and manageability; and

� Comprehensive customer support.
Currently, we compete with companies focused on more traditional broadcast delivery, including Harmonic Inc. We also compete with
companies focused on multi-screen encoding, including Cisco Systems, Inc. (through its acquisition of Inlet Technologies LLC) and RGB
Networks, Inc. (through its acquisition of RipCode, Inc.). Due to the evolving competitive landscape and growing market opportunity, we expect
to encounter direct competition in the future from one or more larger traditional network infrastructure providers that may currently be one of
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(in the process of being acquired by Google Inc.) and Ericsson AB. These network equipment companies may provide, as a package, encoding
solutions in combination with other equipment that they traditionally sell to service providers.

We believe we compete favorably based on video quality across all screens, product performance, architecture and reliability and our expertise
in seamlessly integrating new features and product updates to adapt to the dynamic requirements of service providers and content providers and
evolving technological landscape. We also believe that we offer competitive service and prices. However, some of our current and potential
competitors have significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources and may be able to devote greater resources to the development,
sale and support of their products.

Conditions in our market could change rapidly as a result of technological advancements in video compression and delivery or from continuing
market consolidation. The development of alternative technologies could decrease the demand for our products. We cannot be certain that we
will be able to compete successfully against our current or future competitors, which may negatively affect our results of operations in the future.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property is a key element of the success of our business. We rely on a combination of intellectual property rights, including
patents, trade secrets, copyrights and trademarks, as well as customary confidentiality and other contractual protections. As of January 31, 2012,
we had eight issued U.S. patents and five issued European patents. Our patents will expire on various dates from 2022 to 2028. In particular, we
have patented key technologies related to the implementation of our 4Caster product. The key patents that protect the optimal implementation of
the MPEG-4 algorithms on a generic multi-core computer platform include the following patents that were all issued in the United States: (i) our
patent covering image coding or decoding device and method involving multithreading of processing operations over a plurality of processors,
and corresponding computer program and synchronization signal, which expires in 2024; (ii) our patent covering image encoding or decoding
method and device, with parallelization of processing over several processors and coprocessors, and corresponding computer-readable storage
medium, which expires in 2028; (iii) our patent covering multiple-reference motion estimation method and device, coding method and device,
computer program products and corresponding storage means, which expires in 2025; and (iv) our patent covering method and device for
detecting transitions in a video sequence, method and device for coding, computer program products and corresponding storage means, which
expires in 2025. In addition, we have four patent applications pending in the United States and one patent application pending in Europe. We
have rights to 12 patents licensed to us by France Telecom. We own the registered trademark for Envivio in the United States, Hong Kong and
the European Community and have protection for the Envivio trademark through the Madrid Protocol in China, France, Japan and South Korea.
We also have one trademark application pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark office.

Our core intellectual property is our video processing software platform. Our video processing technology is not materially dependent on any
third-party technology. We protect our intellectual property primarily with patents and by generally requiring our employees and independent
contractors with knowledge of our proprietary information to execute nondisclosure and assignment of intellectual property agreements.
However, the steps we have taken to protect our technology may not be successful in preventing misuse by unauthorized parties in the future. In
addition, if any of our products, patents or patent applications is found to conflict with any patents held by third parties, we could be prevented
from selling our products, our patents may be declared invalid or our patent applications may not result in issued patents.

Employees

As of January 31, 2012, our total headcount was 146 full-time employees. We had 47 research and development employees, 72 sales and
marketing employees and 27 employees in general administrative
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and human resources. As of January 31, 2012, our headcount was 45 employees in the United States, 77 in France, 10 in China and
14 throughout several other countries around the world.

None of our employees is represented by a labor union or is covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We have never experienced any work
stoppages, and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Facilities

Our corporate headquarters is located at 400 Oyster Point Boulevard, Suite 325, South San Francisco, California in an office consisting of
approximately 10,329 square feet. The lease for this office expires in December 2012. In addition to our headquarters, we have a facility in the
metropolitan area of Rennes, France consisting of approximately 1,085 square meters used primarily for research and development, sales and
support. This lease expires October 31, 2013. We also have a representative office in Beijing, China. Additional sales and support functions are
located in regional offices in Tokyo, Japan and Singapore. We believe that our current facilities are suitable and adequate to meet our current
needs. We plan to add new facilities or expand our existing facilities as necessary. We do not foresee any issues finding available space to
accommodate our future expansion plans.

Insurance

From time to time, our products may malfunction or have undetected errors. We have purchased insurance coverage to protect against specific
claims related to the use of our products. We believe our current insurance coverage is adequate to protect against claims resulting from federal,
state or local laws.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in various legal proceedings arising from the normal course of business activities. We are not currently a
party to any material legal proceedings.
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MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers and Directors

Our executive officers and directors, and their ages and positions as of April 1, 2012 are as set forth below:

Name Age Position(s)
Julien Signès 42 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Erik E. Miller 51 Chief Financial Officer
Kevin P. O�Keefe 57 Chief Operating Officer
Anne M. Lynch 56 Vice President, Human Resources
Gianluca U. Rattazzi 59 Chairman of the Board
Kevin E. Dillon(1) 57 Director
Corentin du Roy de Blicquy(2) 36 Director
Marcel Gani(1) 59 Director
Edward A. Gilhuly 52 Director
Terry D. Kramer(2)(3) 52 Director
Clifford B. Meltzer(3) 57 Director
R. David Spreng(1)(2)(3) 50 Director

(1) Member of the Audit Committee
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee
(3) Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
Executive Officers

Julien Signès is one of our founders and has served as our President since our inception in January 2000 and our Chief Executive Officer since
April 2005. Mr. Signès is responsible for the business strategy, executive duties and leadership of Envivio. Mr. Signès received an M.S. degree
in Software and Electrical Engineering from Ecole Polytechnique and Ecole Nationale Supérieure des Télécommunications. Our board of
directors has concluded that Mr. Signès should serve on our board of directors due to his experience gained while developing video processing
and distribution technologies with France Telecom as well as his experience as a co-founder of Envivio and his tenure with Envivio, which
brings industry experience, strategic perspective to our technology development, historic company knowledge as well as continuity to the board
of directors.

Erik E. Miller has served as our Chief Financial Officer since February 2010. From January 2008 to July 2009, Mr. Miller served as Chief
Financial Officer at SigNav Pty. Ltd., a component supplier to the wireless industry, where he was responsible for finance and administration
functions; and from March 2006 to January 2008, Mr. Miller served as Chief Financial Officer at Tangler Pty. Ltd., a social networking
company, where he was responsible for finance and administrative functions. Mr. Miller received a B.S. degree in Business Administration from
the University of California, Berkeley.

Kevin P. O�Keefe has served as our Chief Operating Officer since June 2010. From July 2008 to June 2010, Mr. O�Keefe served as Vice President
of Field Operations at MaxiScale, Inc., a cloud-scale file serving and storage platform solutions company, where he was responsible for business
development, customer service and sales; from July 2007 to June 2008, Mr. O�Keefe served as General Partner at Capital Ten Partners LLC, a
special purpose acquisition company, where he was responsible for identifying acquisition targets; from July 2006 to April 2007, Mr. O�Keefe
served as Vice President, Marketing and Sales at Fabric7, Inc., a manufacturer of computer servers, where he was responsible for all aspects of
business development, customer service, marketing and sales; from December 2004 to July 2006, Mr. O�Keefe served as Director, Sales at
Storage Technology Corporation, a manufacturer of data storage, where he was responsible for sales and services in the New York and New
Jersey region. Mr. O�Keefe received a B.S. degree in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania�s Wharton School.
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Anne M. Lynch has served as our Vice President, Human Resources since January 2011. From May 1995 to August 2008, Ms. Lynch served as
Vice President, Human Resources at Harmonic Inc., a provider of broadcast video products, and Directeur General of Harmonic Europe, where
she was responsible for all human resources functions. From August 2008 to October 2010, Ms. Lynch was pursuing a graduate degree.
Ms. Lynch received a B.A. degree in Languages from Clarke University and a Master of Arts degree in Business Leadership and Ethics from St.
Mary�s College of California.

Directors

Gianluca U. Rattazzi has served as our Chairman of the Board since July 2007 and served as our Executive Chairman, an executive officer
position, from June 2010 until January 2012. From March 2007 to April 2010, Mr. Rattazzi served as President and Chief Executive Officer at
MaxiScale, Inc., a cloud-scale file serving and storage platform solutions company, where he was responsible for strategy and execution. From
March 2000 to March 2007, Mr. Rattazzi served as Co-Founder and Executive Chairman at BlueArc Corporation, a network storage provider
firm where he was responsible for product and strategy management. Mr. Rattazzi previously served on the board of directors of Socket Mobile,
Inc. from June 1998 to April 2009. Mr. Rattazzi received M.S. degrees in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from the University of
California, Berkeley and a Doctorate in Chemistry from the University of Rome. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Rattazzi should
serve on our board of directors due to his background as a technologist, as well as a senior manager of, board member of, founder of, and
investor in numerous technology companies. Mr. Rattazzi has founded companies, serving as Chief Executive Officer throughout all stages of
growth of these companies, including through their start-up phase, the completion of an initial public offering of common stock and continuing
to serve as Chief Executive Officer of the publicly traded corporation. His background provides a broad perspective to our board of directors
into managing a corporation, strategic leadership and industry experience.

Kevin E. Dillon has served as a member of our board of directors since September 2008. Since January 2005, Mr. Dillon has served as General
Partner at Atlantic Bridge, a private equity firm with offices in Dublin and London. Mr. Dillon received a B.A. degree in Economics and Law
from University of Cape Town, a LLB degree in Commercial Law from University of Cape Town, a B. Comm. degree in Accounting from
University of South Africa, a B. Comm. degree in Taxation from University of Cape Town, and a LLM degree in law from Golden Gate
University School of Law. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Dillon should serve on our board of directors due to his background as
an executive in the technology sector and his experience of venture capital investing in technology companies, which provides a diversity of
experience for his service on our board of directors and valuable insight into our industry.

Corentin du Roy de Blicquy has served as a member of our board of directors since February 2007. Mr. du Roy de Blicquy is a Principal at
HarbourVest Partners (U.K.) Limited, a subsidiary of global private equity manager HarbourVest Partners, LLC. He has been with HarbourVest
since March 2003. Mr. du Roy de Blicquy received a B.S. degree in Business Administration from Paris IX Dauphine University. He received
the Chartered Financial Analyst designation in 2002. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. du Roy de Blicquy should serve on our
board of directors due to his experience investing in technology companies as well as his financial background, which brings industry experience
and financial expertise to the board of directors.

Marcel Gani has served as a member of our board of directors since May 2011. Mr. Gani is currently an independent consultant. From
September 2005 to September 2009, he was a lecturer at the Leavey School of Business, Santa Clara University in Accounting and Finance.
From 2005 to 2006 he served as Chief of Staff at Juniper Networks, Inc., a network infrastructure company. From February 1997 to December
2004, Mr. Gani served as Chief Financial Officer of Juniper Networks, Inc. Mr. Gani became Juniper�s Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer in July 2002. From January 1996 to January 1997, Mr. Gani served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of NVIDIA
Corporation, a 3D graphic processor company. Mr. Gani holds an M.B.A. from the University of Michigan. Mr. Gani serves
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on the advisory board of the Zell Lurie Institute for entrepreneurial studies at the University of Michigan. Mr. Gani also serves on the board of
directors and is the chair of the audit committee of Xsigo Systems, a privately held company. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Gani
should serve on our board of directors due to his extensive financial and accounting expertise and his experience in managing the financial and
administrative departments of large publicly traded technology companies. His background provides perspective to our board of directors in
managing a publicly traded company and strong leadership for the audit committee of our board of directors.

Edward A. Gilhuly has served as a member of our board of directors since December 2011. Since May 2006, Mr. Gilhuly has served as
managing partner at Sageview Capital, a private investment firm. Prior to founding Sageview Capital, Mr. Gilhuly was at Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co (KKR) from September 1986 until October 2005, where he became partner in January 1995 and oversaw the KKR�s European
business from December 1998 to December 2004. He also served on KKR�s Investment Committee from its inception in January 2000 until his
departure in October 2005. Since August 2009, Mr. Gilhuly has served on the board of directors of Cinedigm Digital Cinema Corp., a publicly
traded digital cinema services company. Mr. Gilhuly also served on the board of directors of Legrande SA, a publicly traded electrical
installations and information networks company, from December 2002 to May 2011, and MedCath Corporation, a publicly traded health care
provider, from August 1998 to April 2008. Mr. Gilhuly also serves on the board of two private companies. Mr. Gilhuly received a B.A. degree in
Economics and History from Duke University and a M.B.A. from Stanford University. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Gilhuly
should serve on our board of directors due to his significant experience in private equity and finance and experience of having served on over 20
corporate boards, which experience will provide valuable insight and perspective to our board of directors.

Terry D. Kramer has served as a member of our board of directors since May 2011. In April 2011, Mr. Kramer was appointed Entrepreneur in
Residence at Harvard Business School and also a member of its California Research Center Advisory Board. From January 2005 to July 2010,
Mr. Kramer served in various management positions with Vodafone Group Plc, a telecommunications company, serving initially as the Chief of
Staff to the Group CEO from January 2005 to December 2006, then Group Human Resources Director and Chief of Staff from December 2006
to July 2007, then as Group Strategy and Human Resources Director and Chief of Staff from July 2007 to July 2008, then as Group Strategy and
Business Improvement Director from July 2008 to July 2009 and finally as Regional President, Vodafone Americas from August 2009 to July
2010. From the period of 1988 to 2000, Mr. Kramer worked for AirTouch Communications, a predecessor organization of Vodafone, in a
variety of roles including Vice President, Strategy, Corporate Development and Human Resources, President, AirTouch Paging and Vice
President/General Manager of AirTouch Cellular, Southwest Market. Mr. Kramer received a B.A. degree in Economics from UCLA and an
M.B.A. from Harvard University. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Kramer should serve on our board of directors due to his
background as an executive in the telecommunications industry and experience in corporate strategy and human resources management. His
background provides a broad perspective to our board of directors in strategic matters and strong leadership for the compensation committee of
our board of directors.

Clifford B. Meltzer has served as a member of our board of directors since February 2010. Since October 2009, Mr. Meltzer has served in
various capacities at CA Technologies, an IT management company, initially as Corporate Senior Vice President from October 2009 to June
2010, and since June 2010 as Chief Development Officer. From April 2008 to October 2009, Mr. Meltzer served as Vice President at Apple Inc.,
a computer company. From October 2003 to April 2008, Mr. Meltzer served as Senior Vice President at Cisco Systems, Inc., a networking
company. Mr. Meltzer received a B.S. degree in Mathematics from the University of Rochester and a M.S. degree in Computer Science from the
University of Rochester. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Meltzer should serve on our board of directors due to his background as
an executive in the technology sector, which gives him in-depth knowledge of, and exposure to, current technology and industry trends and
developments, and provides our board of directors with valuable insight into our industry and target markets.
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R. David Spreng has served as a member of our board of directors since August 2004. Since 1998, Mr. Spreng has served as Managing General
Partner at Crescendo Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Spreng received a B.S.B. degree in Accounting from University of Minnesota-Twin
Cities. Our board of directors has concluded that Mr. Spreng should serve on our board of directors due to his experience in building companies
from the earliest stages of growth to mature technology companies, as a seasoned investor in various technology companies, and his insight into
capital formation and operational development matters. In addition, Mr. Spreng served on the board of directors of Compellent Technologies,
Inc., a publicly traded network storage solutions company, from December 2006 until its sale to Dell Inc. in February 2011. Our board of
directors found Mr. Spreng�s experience as a recent director of a public company also provides valuable perspective to our board of directors.

Board Composition

Our board of directors is currently composed of nine members, seven of whom are independent. Julien Signès and Gianluca Rattazzi are not
independent as they currently serve or have served as executive officers. Our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that the
number of our directors, which is currently nine members, shall be fixed from time to time by a resolution of the majority of our board of
directors. Each officer serves at the discretion of the board of directors and holds office until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified or
until his or her earlier resignation or removal. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Classified Board

Upon completion of this offering, our board of directors will consist of nine members. Upon completion of this offering, our bylaws will provide
for a board of directors consisting of not fewer than five and not more than 11 directors. The authorized number of directors may be changed by
resolution of our board of directors. In accordance with our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to be filed in connection with this
offering, immediately after this offering, our board of directors will be divided into three classes with staggered three-year terms. At each annual
general meeting of stockholders, the successors to directors whose terms then expire will be elected to serve from the time of election and
qualification until the third annual meeting following election. Our directors will be divided among the three classes as follows:

� The Class I directors will be Edward A. Gilhuly, Corentin du Roy de Blicquy and Julien Signès, and their terms will expire at the
annual general meeting of stockholders to be held in 2013;

� The Class II directors will be Kevin Dillon, Gianluca Rattazzi and David Spreng, and their terms will expire at the annual general
meeting of stockholders to be held in 2014; and

� The Class III directors will be Marcel Gani, Terry Kramer and Clifford Meltzer, and their terms will expire at the annual general
meeting of stockholders to be held in 2015.

We expect that any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors will be distributed among the three classes so
that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-third of the directors.

The division of our board of directors into three classes with staggered three-year terms may delay or prevent a change of our management or a
change of control.

Corporate Governance

We believe our corporate governance initiatives comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC adopted
thereunder. In addition, we believe our corporate governance initiatives comply with the rules of Nasdaq. After this offering, our board of
directors will continue to evaluate our corporate governance principles and policies.
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Our board of directors has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to each of our directors, officers and employees. The code
addresses various topics, including:

� compliance with laws, rules and regulations, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act;

� conflicts of interest;

� insider trading;

� corporate opportunities;

� competition and fair dealing;

� equal employment and working conditions;

� record keeping;

� confidentiality;

� giving and accepting gifts;

� compensation or reimbursement to customers;

� protection and proper use of company assets; and

� payments to government personnel and political contributions.
Our board of directors also adopted a code of ethics for senior financial officers applicable to our Executive Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and other key management employees addressing ethical issues. Upon completion of this offering, the code of business
conduct and ethics and the code of ethics will each be posted on our website. The code of business conduct and ethics and the code of ethics can
only be amended by the approval of a majority of our board of directors. Any waiver to the code of business conduct and ethics for an executive
officer or director or any waiver of the code of ethics may only be granted by our board of directors or our audit committee and must be timely
disclosed as required by applicable law. Our board of directors also adopted whistleblower procedures that establish formal protocols for
receiving and handling complaints from employees. Any concerns regarding accounting or auditing matters reported under these procedures will
be communicated promptly to our audit committee.

Director Independence

In April 2012, our board of directors undertook a review of the independence of our directors and considered whether any director has a material
relationship with us that could compromise his ability to exercise independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities. As a result of this

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 121



review, our board of directors determined that Kevin Dillon, Corentin du Roy de Blicquy, Clifford Meltzer, David Spreng, Terry Kramer,
Marcel Gani and Edward Gilhuly, representing a majority of our directors, are �independent directors� as defined under the rules of Nasdaq.

Lead Director

Our board of directors intends to establish certain corporate governance principles in connection with this offering. Our board of directors
determined as part of our corporate governance principles that one of our independent directors should serve as a lead director at any time when
the title of chairman is held by an employee director. The board of directors has appointed Clifford Meltzer as lead director.

Role of the Board in Risk Oversight

One of the key functions of our board of directors is informed oversight of our risk management process. Our board of directors does not have a
standing risk management committee, but rather administers this oversight function directly through the board of directors as a whole, as well as
through
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various board of directors standing committees that address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. In particular, our board of
directors is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure. Our audit committee has the responsibility to consider and discuss
our major financial risk exposures and the steps our management has taken to monitor and control these exposures, including guidelines and
policies to govern the process by which risk assessment and management is undertaken. Our audit committee also monitors compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, in addition to oversight of the performance of our internal audit function. Our nominating and corporate
governance committee monitors the effectiveness of our corporate governance guidelines, including whether they are successful in preventing
illegal or improper liability-creating conduct. Our compensation committee assesses and monitors whether any of our compensation policies and
programs has the potential to encourage excessive risk-taking.

Board Committees

We have established an audit committee, a compensation committee and a nominating and corporate governance committee. We believe that the
composition of these committees meets the criteria for independence under, and the functioning of these committees complies with the
applicable requirements of, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the current rules of Nasdaq and SEC rules and regulations. We intend to comply with future
requirements as they become applicable to us. Each committee has the composition and responsibilities described below:

Audit committee � David Spreng, Kevin Dillon and Marcel Gani serve on our audit committee. Mr. Gani is chairperson of this committee. Our
audit committee assists our board of directors in fulfilling its legal and fiduciary obligations in matters involving our accounting, auditing,
financial reporting, internal control and legal compliance functions, and is directly responsible for the approval of the services performed by our
independent accountants and reviewing of their reports regarding our accounting practices and systems of internal accounting controls. Our audit
committee also oversees the audit efforts of our independent accountants and takes actions as it deems necessary to satisfy itself that the
accountants are independent of management. Our audit committee is also responsible for monitoring the integrity of our financial statements and
our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as they relate to financial statements or accounting matters. Our board of directors has
determined that Mr. Gani and Mr. Dillon are each an audit committee financial expert, as defined by the rules promulgated by the SEC, and has
the requisite financial sophistication as defined under the applicable rules and regulations of Nasdaq.

Compensation committee � David Spreng, Corentin du Roy de Blicquy and Terry Kramer serve on our compensation committee. Mr. Kramer is
chairperson of this committee. Our compensation committee assists our board of directors in meeting its responsibilities with regard to oversight
and determination of executive compensation and assesses whether our compensation structure establishes appropriate incentives for officers
and employees. Our compensation committee reviews and makes recommendations to our board of directors with respect to our major
compensation plans, policies and programs. In addition, our compensation committee reviews and makes recommendations for approval by the
independent members of our board of directors regarding the compensation for our executive officers, establishes and modifies the terms and
conditions of employment of our executive officers and administers our stock option plans. Following this offering, our compensation committee
will be primarily and ultimately responsible for determining the compensation program for our executive officers.

Nominating and corporate governance committee � Clifford Meltzer, Terry Kramer and David Spreng serve on our nominating and corporate
governance committee. Mr. Meltzer is chairperson of this committee. Our nominating and corporate governance committee is responsible for
making recommendations to our board of directors regarding candidates for directorships and the size and composition of the board of directors.
In addition, our nominating and corporate governance committee is responsible for overseeing our corporate governance guidelines, and
reporting and making recommendations to the board of directors concerning corporate governance matters.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Corentin du Roy de Blicquy, Terry Kramer and David Spreng served as members of our compensation committee during fiscal 2012. None of
the members of our compensation committee is or has in the past served as an officer or employee of our company. None of our executive
officers currently serves, or in the past year has served, as a member of a board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that has
one or more executive officers serving on our board of directors or compensation committee.

Director Compensation

The compensation we pay our non-employee directors is reviewed by our compensation committee and ultimately approved, taking into account
information from our compensation committee, by our full board of directors, which includes one employee director.

Commencing in August 2011, our board of directors established a cash compensation program for our non-employee directors who are not
affiliated with one of our significant stockholders. This group of non-employee directors consisted of Terry Kramer, Marcel Gani and Clifford
Meltzer. This cash compensation program consisted of the following cash payments:

Description of Board Service Cash Amount
General Board Services
Annual Retainer $ 20,000
Meeting Fee None

Committee Chair Services
Annual Cash Retainer
Audit Committee $ 25,000
Compensation Committee 15,000
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 20,000
Meeting Fee (all committees) None

Committee Member Services (Excluding Committee Chair)
Annual Cash Retainer
Audit Committee $ 5,000
Compensation Committee 3,000
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 1,500
Meeting Fee (all committees) None
Commencing upon the consummation of this offering, we will pay all of our non-employee directors cash compensation in accordance with the
program described above.

In February 2012, we began to compensate Gianluca Rattazzi for his services as a non-employee director, including a $20,000 annual cash
retainer consistent with the policy discussed above and an $80,000 annual retainer for his service as our non-executive Chairman of the Board.

We are also required to reimburse our non-employee directors for their reasonable out-of-pocket costs and travel expenses in connection with
their attendance at board and committee meetings.

Under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, which will become effective in connection with this offering, our non-employee directors are eligible to
receive automatic equity grants.

Initial Grants. Each non-employee director who first joins our board of directors after this offering, and who was not previously an employee,
will automatically receive an equity grant under our 2012 Stock
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Incentive Plan on the date of election to our board of directors. Unless our board of directors or compensation committee otherwise provides, the
grant will be a stock option for a number of shares equal to (i) $200,000 divided by (ii) the Black-Scholes value of an option as of the date of
grant. Alternatively, our board of directors or compensation committee may provide for a grant of restricted stock units for a number of shares
equal to (i) $200,000 divided by (ii) the fair market value of one share of our common stock, as defined under the plan, on the date of grant. This
initial grant will vest monthly over a four-year period, subject to full acceleration upon a change of control.

Annual Grants. Our non-employee directors are also eligible to receive automatic annual equity grants under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan. On
the first business day following each regular annual stockholder meeting, beginning with the first meeting after this offering, each non-employee
director who was not elected to our board of directors for the first time at that meeting and who has served on our board of directors for at least
twelve months as of the date of the meeting, will receive an option for a number of shares equal to (i) $50,000 divided by (ii) the Black-Scholes
value of an option on the date of grant. Alternatively, our board of directors or compensation committee may provide for a grant of restricted
stock units for a number of shares equal to (i) $50,000 divided by (ii) the fair market value of one share of our common stock, as defined under
the plan, on the date of grant. These annual grants will vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant, or immediately prior to the next regular
annual stockholder meeting following the date of grant if the meeting occurs prior to the first anniversary date, subject to full acceleration upon a
change of control.

Discretionary Grants. Our board of directors or compensation committee, in its discretion, may change and otherwise revise the terms of the
awards granted to non-employee directors, including the aggregate value or number of shares subject to the awards or the type of award to be
granted.

The following table sets forth a summary of the compensation earned by non-employee directors as of January 31, 2012:

Name
Fees Earned or Paid in

Cash
Option Awards

(1) (2) Total
Kevin E. Dillon �  �  �  
Corentin du Roy de Blicquy �  �  �  
Marcel Gani $ 33,750 �  $ 33,750
Edward A. Gilhuly �  �  �  
Terry D. Kramer 27,375 �  27,375
Clifford B. Meltzer 18,750 �  18,750
R. David Spreng �  �  �  

(1) Amounts listed in this column represent the stock-based compensation expense of awards recognized by us for fiscal 2012, rather than
amounts paid to or realized by the named individual. Our assumptions with respect to the calculation of stock-based compensation
expense are set forth above in �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Critical
Accounting Policies�Stock-Based Compensation.� There can be no assurance that options will be exercised (in which case no value will be
realized by the individual) or that the value on exercise will approximate the compensation expense recognized by us.

(2) See the outstanding equity awards table below for the details of the option awards.
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The following table lists all outstanding equity awards held by non-employee directors as of January 31, 2012:

Name
Option Grant

Date

Number
of

Securities
Underlying
Unexercised

Options �
Exercisable

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options �
Unexercisable

Exercise Price of
Options

Expiration Date
of

Options
Kevin E. Dillon �  �  �  �  �  
Corentin du Roy de Blicquy �  �  �  �  �  
Marcel Gani 5/20/2011 6,666(1) 33,334 $ 7.90 5/19/2021
Edward A. Gilhuly �  � �  �  �  
Terry D. Kramer 5/20/2011 6,666(1) 33,334 7.90 5/19/2021
Clifford B. Meltzer 2/1/2010 9,583(1) 10,417 0.30 1/31/2020

12/8/2010 7,083(2) 12,917 0.30 12/7/2020
R. David Spreng �  �  �  �  �  

(1) Option award vests at a rate of 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the option each month after the vesting commencement date.
All of the shares subject to the option will immediately vest upon a change of control.

(2) Option award vests as to 1/4th of the total number of shares subject to the option one year after the vesting commencement date, and the
remaining shares vest at a rate of 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the options each month thereafter. 25% of the unvested
shares subject to the option immediately vest upon a change of control.

Mr. Rattazzi served as a non-employee director commencing in September 2007 and became an employee director in June 2010. Mr. Rattazzi
ceased serving as an employee director in January 2012. While Mr. Rattazzi served as a non-employee director, he earned $50,000 for his
director services in fiscal 2011. Upon his appointment to our board of directors in fiscal 2008, Mr. Rattazzi received an option to purchase
40,000 shares of our common stock.

In April 2011, we granted each of Kevin Dillon, Corentin du Roy de Blicquy and David Spreng options to purchase 40,000 shares of our
common stock. These options were to begin vesting, if at all, upon the completion of an initial public offering, or the IPO date, on or before
December 31, 2011. If we did not complete an initial public offering on or before December 31, 2011 and prior to a change of control, these
options were to be forfeited automatically. For purposes of the option grants, a change of control meant an acquisition or merger involving us
where our stockholders own less than 51% of the shares of the surviving entity or the sale, lease, exchange or other transfer or disposition by us
of all or substantially all of our assets. These option grants were automatically forfeited in accordance with the original terms because we did not
complete a liquidity event before December 31, 2011.

In May 2011, we granted Marcel Gani and Terry Kramer each options to purchase 40,000 shares of our common stock. These options vest at a
rate of 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the option each month after the vesting commencement date, or May 20, 2011. All of the
shares subject to these options will immediately vest upon a change of control.
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Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Executive Summary

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis discusses the compensation programs and policies for our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and our three other mostly highly compensated executive officers as determined by the rules of the SEC. Our named executive
officers and their positions in fiscal 2012 were:

Julien Signès President and Chief Executive Officer
Gianluca U. Rattazzi Executive Chairman
Erik E. Miller Chief Financial Officer
Kevin P. O�Keefe Chief Operating Officer
Anne M. Lynch Vice President, Human Resources

Mr. Rattazzi served as an executive officer until the commencement of fiscal 2013 at which time he transitioned from serving as our Executive
Chairman to our Chairman of the Board in a non-executive officer capacity. In connection with this transition we entered into a letter agreement
with Mr. Rattazzi which is described in more detail below.

In fiscal 2012, primary responsibility for executive compensation decisions shifted from our board of directors to our compensation committee.
Prior to May 2011, our board of directors approved our executive officer compensation, based on recommendations from our compensation
committee. Following May 2011, our compensation committee approved executive compensation, based on input from our Chief Executive
Officer, except that decisions by our compensation committee for the compensation of our Chief Executive Officer were based on input from our
Executive Chairman. The primary components of compensation for our named executive officers are base salary, cash incentive compensation
and equity-based compensation. The following information should be read together with the compensation tables and related disclosures set
forth below.

Objectives of the Executive Compensation Program

Our executive compensation program is shaped by the competitive market for executives in technology companies, with special emphasis placed
on the digital media and communications industries. We have designed an executive compensation program with the following primary
objectives:

� to attract, retain and motivate talented and experienced executives;

� to provide fair, equitable and reasonable compensation to each executive officer;

� to reward job performance; and

� to further align the interest of our executive officers with that of our stockholders.
Our executive compensation program has focused primarily on attracting executive talent to manage and operate our business, retaining
individuals whose employment is key to our success and growth, and rewarding individuals who help us achieve our business objectives. We
attempt to achieve these objectives while preserving our cash resources, largely through utilizing equity-based compensation. By utilizing
equity-based compensation, we have sought to align the interest of our executive officers and stockholders by motivating executive officers to
increase the value of our stock over time.

Upon the completion of this offering, our compensation committee expects to:
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needs as a public company;
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� use individual and corporate performance goals to align the compensation of our executive officers with our financial performance and
creation of stockholder value;

� use equity-based award programs to continue the long-term correlation between stockholder value and executive compensation; and

� structure our executive compensation program as to not reward unnecessary risk-taking.
In January 2011, our compensation committee began working with a compensation consultant to advise on executive officer market
compensation and trends. Our compensation committee intends to formally retain a compensation consultant to develop our executive officer
compensation programs and policies in the future.

Role of our Compensation Committee and Management

Our compensation committee has overall responsibility for formulating, evaluating and determining the compensation of our named executive
officers, including the compensation of our Chief Executive Officer. Members of our compensation committee are appointed by our board of
directors. Our compensation committee makes its compensation decisions based on input from our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman and
the judgment of its members based on each officer�s performance, tenure and experience.

Elements of Compensation

In fiscal 2012, the three main elements of our compensation program were base salary, long-term equity compensation in the form of stock
options and restricted stock units and a cash bonus incentive plan. Our compensation committee is considering our fiscal 2013 compensation
program for our named executive officers and any changes that may be appropriate as a result of our future status as a public company, including
awarding restricted stock units and other types of equity awards. These deliberations are ongoing, and we expect that formal action will be taken
later in fiscal 2013. Historically, we have not formally benchmarked our compensation program, but we may consider doing so in the future.

Base Salary

We pay each named executive officer a base salary based on the experience, skills, knowledge and responsibilities possessed by such officer.
Base salary is initially set when a named executive officer joins us, and it represents the amount that we believe is necessary to attract and retain
such individual, along with the factors described below. We believe base salaries are an important element in our overall compensation program
because base salaries provide a fixed element of compensation that reflects job responsibilities and value to the company.

The base salaries of our named executive officers were initially set at the time they joined us based on the following:

� nature and responsibility of the position and the base salary of the executive�s former position;

� expertise of the individual executive;

� competitiveness of the market for the executive�s services based on the substantive judgment of the board of directors; and

� recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer, except in the case of his own compensation.
Adjustments are made to the base salaries of our named executive officers based on annual evaluations that take into account the factors listed
above and contribution to overall company performance. In fiscal 2012, we increased the base salary of each of our named executive officers,
except our Executive Chairman, by less than three percent each of their then current base salaries. These increases were substantially consistent
with a general increase in base salary for all our U.S. based employees, which was effected to keep base salaries competitive with the market.
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In March 2012, our compensation committee approved an increase to our Chief Executive Officer�s base salary to $285,000 per year effective
March 16, 2012, of which $30,000 per year will be paid by our French subsidiary in recognition of our Chief Executive Officer�s role as our
French subsidiary�s legal representative in France. Our French subsidiary will start paying this amount effective April 1, 2012.
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Long-Term Equity Compensation

We currently provide our named executive officers with long-term equity compensation through our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, pursuant to
which we grant employees, non-employee members of our board of directors and consultants who provide services to us options to purchase
shares of our common stock and other equity awards. We believe that providing our named executive officers with an equity interest in the
company aligns their interests with that of our stockholders and that the vesting schedule of those equity interests encourages those named
executive officers to remain with us for the long term. Our compensation committee does not apply a rigid formula in allocating stock options
and equity awards to our named executive officers. Our compensation committee exercises its judgment and discretion and considers, among
other things, the role and responsibility of the named executive officer, competitive factors, the amount of stock-based equity compensation
already held by the executive, and the cash-based compensation received by the named executive officer. Typically, our named executive
officers are granted options upon joining us and can be granted additional options from time to time as determined by our compensation
committee.

In fiscal 2011, our board of directors offered all option holders the opportunity to exchange their options that had exercise prices in excess of the
then current fair market value of our common stock for new options with exercise prices at the then current fair market value of our common
stock if they agreed to forfeit a certain amount of vesting on those options that had already accrued. Our Executive Chairman, along with ten
other option holders, elected to participate in this program. The replacement option held by our Executive Chairman immediately vested as to a
certain portion of the shares and the remainder of the shares vests in equal monthly installments over a 48-month period commencing on
October 12, 2010.

In December 2010, the board of directors granted our named executive officers additional options to purchase our common stock in connection
with refresh option grants to a large number of our employees. The refresh option grants were made in connection with a recapitalization
financing that caused prior option awards to be significantly diluted. Our board of directors also made initial option grants to our Chief
Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources in connection with their commencement of services. The option grants to our named
executive officers were intended to meet the board of directors� objective of aligning the interests of our employees with those of our
stockholders. As a result of these awards, our Chief Executive Officer, Executive Chairman, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer
and Vice President, Human Resources held options to purchase approximately 5.0%, 2.5%, 1.0%, 1.2% and less than 1.0%, respectively, of our
total outstanding stock on a fully diluted basis as of December 8, 2010. The board of directors believed that this was an appropriate level of
ownership to motivate these executives to execute our business and financial plan. In addition to considering each executive�s relative ownership
interest in our company in determining the size of these option grants, the board of directors also considered the functional role and
responsibility of each executive�s position, the importance of such position within the organization, and the relative ease or difficulty of
identifying and hiring a well-qualified candidate to assume the individual�s role. The board of directors determined that our Chief Executive
Officer should have the greatest equity interest in the company relative to our other executives and employees as he oversees all functions within
our company.

In April 2011, our board of directors granted to our Executive Chairman a performance-based option to purchase 150,000 shares of our common
stock at an exercise price of $5.10 per share. Our compensation committee had previously reviewed the terms of the option grant and
recommended the approval of the option grant to our board of directors. In light of our Executive Chairman�s role in managing the strategic
direction of our company, our board of directors wanted to more closely align our Executive Chairman�s compensation to a liquidity event for
our stockholders. As a result, this April 2011 option was to be forfeited automatically if we did not complete an initial public offering of our
common stock on a national securities exchange on or before December 31, 2011 or complete a change of control on or before December 31,
2011. If we had completed an initial public offering by December 31, 2011, this option would have commenced vesting as to one-third of the
shares on the first anniversary of the initial public offering, and the remaining two-thirds of the shares underlying the option would have vested
in equal monthly installments over the succeeding 24 month period thereafter. The vesting of the option
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was subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of specified events. Our board of directors evaluated the potential effect that this option grant
might have had on risk-taking and attempted to mitigate any impact this compensation might have had on the decision-making of our Executive
Chairman in evaluating strategic alternatives by applying a time-based vesting schedule upon attainment of a liquidity event, which in turn
would require our Executive Chairman to continue to serve in his role after we achieved a liquidity event. As a result, our board of directors
believed that the terms of this April 2011 grant provide our Executive Chairman with an incentive to continue to act in the long-term interest of
our stockholders. This option grant was automatically forfeited in accordance with its original terms because we did not complete a liquidity
event before December 31, 2011.

In April 2011, our board of directors granted restricted stock units, or RSUs, to our named executive officers as follows: 60,000 RSUs to our
Chief Executive Officer, 150,000 RSUs to our Executive Chairman, 30,000 RSUs to our Chief Financial Officer, 22,500 RSUs to our Chief
Operating Officer and 22,500 RSUs to our Vice President, Human Resources. These RSUs generally would not vest unless we completed an
initial public offering on or before December 31, 2011, except as described below with respect to our Chief Executive Officer, Executive
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer. After the expiration of the lock-up period following the completion of an initial public offering, the RSUs
were eligible to vest as to one-twelfth of the shares subject to the RSU at the end of a fiscal quarter over the following five years, provided that
(i) the named executive officer has continued in employment and (ii) the average closing price of our common stock over the last five trading
days of the fiscal quarter is greater than the following threshold prices in the corresponding fiscal years:

� Fiscal 2012: $11.90 multiplied by the adjustment factor;

� Fiscal 2013: $12.50 multiplied by the adjustment factor;

� Fiscal 2014: $13.10 multiplied by the adjustment factor;

� Fiscal 2015: $13.80 multiplied by the adjustment factor;

� Fiscal 2016: $14.50 multiplied by the adjustment factor; and

� Fiscal 2017: $15.20 multiplied by the adjustment factor.
In each case, the adjustment factor is a ratio determined by dividing the average of the closing price of the Nasdaq Composite index over the last
five trading days at the end of each fiscal quarter by the average of the closing price of the Nasdaq Composite index over the five trading days
following the effective date of our initial public offering. No more than 100% of the RSUs were eligible to vest over the five-year vesting period.

The RSU grants to our Chief Executive Officer, Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer were to also vest, in accordance with the
change of control accelerated vesting provisions described below, if there was a change of control of the company at a value of $250.0 million or
more on or before December 31, 2011 even if an initial public offering is not completed on or before December 31, 2011. If, after completion of
an initial public offering on or before December 31, 2011, there is a change of control at a value of $250.0 million or more, the RSU grants to all
of the named executive officers were to vest in accordance with the change of control acceleration vesting provisions described below. The RSU
grants to our Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources were to be forfeited if an initial public offering is not completed on
or before December 31, 2011. The RSUs were subject to the following accelerated vesting provisions, notwithstanding any contrary provision
contained in the change of control severance agreements applicable to our named executive officers and described below under ��Employment,
Change of Control and Severance Arrangements�:

� the RSUs granted to our Chief Executive Officer and Executive Chairman would vest with respect to no less than 75% of the total
shares subject to the RSU immediately prior to a change of control, and the balance would vest as to one-fourth of the remaining
shares on a quarterly basis, subject to continued employment but without regard to stock price performance, with any
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remaining balance accelerated on the one-year anniversary of the change of control or, if earlier, the officer�s involuntary termination;
and

� the RSUs granted to our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources would vest with
respect to 25% of the unvested shares subject to the RSU immediately prior to a change of control, and the balance would vest as to
one-fourth of the remaining shares on a quarterly basis, subject to continued employment but without regard to stock price
performance, with any remaining balance accelerated upon the involuntary termination of the officer within 18 months following the
change of control.

For purposes of these RSUs, �change of control� and �involuntary termination� are defined in the change of control severance agreement applicable
to each named executive officer and described below under ��Employment, Change of Control and Severance Arrangements.�

All of these RSU awards were automatically forfeited in accordance with their original terms because we did not complete an initial public
offering before December 31, 2011. In December 2011, our compensation committee reviewed our named executive officers� equity incentive
compensation in light of the pending forfeiture of these RSU awards. In order to keep our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Operating Officer incented on a liquidity event, while maintaining their focus on long-term growth and performance, our compensation
committee approved new RSU awards to these three named executive officers as follows: 119,884 RSUs to our Chief Executive Officer; 59,942
RSUs to our Chief Financial Officer; and 59,942 RSUs to our Chief Operating Officer. These new RSU awards were subject to the same vesting
provisions, including the acceleration vesting provisions, described above as applicable to each of these individual executive officers, except that
the deadline for an initial public offering or, in respect of certain vesting provisions, a change of control, was set at June 30, 2013.

Cash Incentive Compensation

Our cash bonus incentive program rewards our named executive officers for meeting and exceeding performance targets set by our
compensation committee. We believe establishing specific objectives with specific compensation rewards encourages our named executive
officers to perform at their highest potential.

In August 2011, our compensation committee adopted a cash bonus incentive program pursuant to which our Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources were eligible to receive a cash bonus upon the attainment of
individual management objectives, an annual revenue target of $43.1 million, an annual gross profit target of $26.1 million and an annual
operating expense target of $26.6 million. The total bonus amount was calculated using a percentage of the target milestones. There was no
minimum bonus amount payable under the plan, but there was a maximum that could have been paid under the program to each participant. Our
board of directors established individual management objectives at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Under the fiscal 2012 cash bonus incentive plan, our Chief Executive Officer was eligible to receive a target cash bonus of $120,000 at plan.
Based on the level of achievement under the plan, our Chief Executive Officer earned a bonus of $147,836 for fiscal 2012. In addition, our board
of directors set the award amounts payable to our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources. Under
the fiscal 2012 cash bonus incentive program, our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources, were
each eligible to receive a target cash bonus equal to $80,000, $160,000 and $50,000, respectively, and earned cash bonuses of $98,557, $197,115
and $61,598, respectively, under the cash incentive bonus program.

Neither the compensation committee nor board of directors had the discretion to decrease or increase bonuses under the cash bonus plan for any
of the named executive officers. However, our compensation committee may determine to grant bonuses outside of the cash bonus plan for
extraordinary performance.
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In March 2012, our compensation committee approved a fiscal year 2013 cash bonus incentive plan pursuant to which our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources are eligible to receive a cash bonus upon the
attainment of company performance targets relating to revenue, gross profit and operating expense. We do not publicly disclose our future
financial targets because such information is an integral part of our business plan, and as such is highly confidential commercial and business
information. Disclosing these targets would provide competitors and other third parties with insights into our planning process and would
therefore cause competitive harm. At the time our compensation committee set these targets, it believed the targets were challenging but
achievable based on its review of the company�s operating plan and their assessment of the general economic environment. Under our fiscal year
2013 cash bonus incentive plan, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human
Resources are eligible to receive a target cash bonus equal to an amount expressed as a percentage of annual base salary paid to each respective
officer. The eligible bonus amounts are equal to 50%, 40%, 80% and 30% for our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources, respectively. The total bonus amount will be calculated using a percentage of the
target milestones. There is no minimum bonus amount payable under the plan, but there is a maximum that could be paid under the program to
each participant.

Transition Letter Agreement

In January 2012, we entered into a letter agreement with Gianluca Rattazzi regarding his transition from serving as our Executive Chairman,
which was an executive officer position, to serving as our non-employee Chairman of the Board. This transition became effective at the
beginning of fiscal 2013. In light of Mr. Rattazzi�s new role, we transitioned his cash compensation from that of an executive officer to that of a
non-employee director. Accordingly, starting in fiscal 2013, we began paying Mr. Rattazzi an annual cash retainer of $20,000 for his services as
a director in accordance with our standard non-employee director compensation program as well as an $80,000 annual retainer for his service as
our Chairman of the Board. We also agreed to pay the monthly premium under COBRA medical benefits for Mr. Rattazzi and any of his
dependents for a period of up to 12 months. So long as Mr. Rattazzi continues to serve on our board of directors, the outstanding equity awards
that he held at the time of his transition will continue to vest. Our compensation committee determined that it was in the best interest of the
company to continue to incentivize Mr. Rattazzi to serve as the Chairman of the Board with both cash compensation and continued vesting of his
equity incentive awards in light of his experience, continuing contributions to the leadership and strategic direction of the company and his
knowledge of the company�s industry and strategic objectives.

Other Supplemental Benefits

We believe it is appropriate and necessary for recruitment and retention to provide our executive officers with other forms of compensatory
benefits, including the following:

Change of control and severance benefits � Certain of our named executive officers are entitled to change of control and severance benefits
pursuant to their change of control severance agreements. We believe these change of control and severance benefits are an essential element of
our executive compensation package that enables us to recruit and retain talented executives, the terms of which are described below under
��Employment, Change of Control and Severance Arrangements.�

Benefits � We maintain broad-based benefits that are provided to all eligible employees, including our 401(k) plan, medical, dental and vision
care plans, our life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance policies and long-term and short-term disability plans. Named executive
officers are eligible to participate in each of these programs on the same terms as non-executive employees. We do not provide any retirement
benefits separate from the 401(k) plan.

Forgiveness of loan � On April 13, 2011, our board of directors agreed to forgive an outstanding loan to our Chief Executive Officer with an
outstanding balance of $69,248 as of such date. Our board of
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directors also agreed to provide our Chief Executive Officer with a tax gross-up payment to cover his income taxes on the cancellation of
indebtedness income.

Tax Considerations

Because of the limitations of Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m), or Code Section 162(m), we generally receive a federal income tax
deduction for compensation paid to our Chief Executive Officer and to certain other highly compensated officers only if the compensation is less
than $1,000,000 per person during any fiscal year or is �performance-based� under Code Section 162(m). In addition to salary and bonus
compensation, upon the exercise of stock options that are not treated as incentive stock options, the excess of the current market price over the
option price, or option spread, is treated as compensation and accordingly, in any year, such exercise may cause an officer�s total compensation to
exceed $1,000,000. Option spread compensation from options that meet certain requirements will not be subject to the $1,000,000 cap on
deductibility, and in the past we have granted options that we believe met those requirements. Additionally, under a special Code Section 162(m)
exception, any compensation paid pursuant to a compensation plan in existence before the effective date of this public offering will not be
subject to the $1,000,000 limitation until the earliest of: (i) the expiration of the compensation plan, (ii) a material modification of the
compensation plan (as determined under Code Section 162(m)), (iii) the issuance of all the employer stock and other compensation allocated
under the compensation plan, or (iv) the first meeting of stockholders at which directors are elected after the close of the third calendar year
following the year in which the public offering occurs. While the board of directors cannot predict how the deductibility limit may impact our
compensation program in future years, it is anticipated that our compensation committee intends to maintain an approach to executive
compensation that strongly links pay to performance. In addition, while the board of directors has not adopted a formal policy regarding tax
deductibility of compensation paid to our named executive officers, the board of directors intends to consider tax deductibility under Code
Section 162(m) as a factor in compensation decisions.

Compensation Policies and Practices as They Relate to Risk Management

We believe that our compensation policies and practices for all employees, including our executive officers, do not create risks that are
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our company. In making this determination, we assessed our executive and broad-based
compensation and benefits programs to determine if the programs� provisions and operations create undesired or unintentional risk of a material
nature. This risk assessment process included a review of our compensation policies and practices and an analysis of our executive compensation
program. Although we reviewed all compensation programs, we focused on the programs with variability of payout, with the ability of a
participant to directly affect payout and the controls on participant action and payout. Based on the foregoing, we believe that our compensation
policies and practices do not create inappropriate or unintended significant risk to us as a whole. We also believe that our incentive
compensation arrangements provide incentives that do not encourage risk-taking beyond the organization�s ability to effectively identify and
manage significant risks, are compatible with effective internal controls and our risk management practices, and are supported by the oversight
and administration of our compensation committee with regard to our executive compensation program.

Several features in our compensation programs, policies and practices mitigate or reduce the likelihood of excessive risk-taking by employees,
including the following:

� the core principles outlined above and compensation program elements discussed below are designed to align goals with stockholder
interests;

� pay typically consists of a mix of fixed and variable compensation, with the variable compensation designed to reward both short- and
long-term corporate performance;

� a significant portion of our executive officers� total direct compensation is in the form of long-term equity compensation that usually
vest over multiple years. Internal controls, the number of people involved and discipline over financial records, financial reporting,
disclosure and external
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communications tend to dilute the ability of any one individual to have a material influence on our financial reporting in a way that
would materially increase the potential value of an individual�s equity award;

� the pool of our annual cash bonus program was dependent upon company financial performance relative to the annual plan and capped
in total by our board of directors when the annual business plan was approved at the beginning of the fiscal year. All individual awards
for executives from the pool were reviewed by our compensation committee in relation to the individual performance against specific
pre-set objectives. All other awards to individual contributors were also reviewed by the committee for reasonableness among the
employees; and

� our compensation committee has the ability to use discretion to reduce payouts under the annual bonuses as appropriate to the
circumstances.

Our determination that our compensation programs, policies and practices do not create risks that are reasonably likely to have a material
adverse effect on our company is based upon the considerations identified above.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table presents information concerning the total compensation of our named executive officers for services rendered to us in all
capacities during fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012:

Name and Principal Position
Fiscal
Year Salary

Stock
Awards(1)

Option
Awards(1)

Non-Equity
Incentive

Plan
Compensation

All Other
Compensation Total

Julien Signès 2012 $ 238,184 $ 918,607(2) � $ 147,836 $ 127,656(3) $ 1,432,283
President and Chief Executive Officer 2011 228,329 � $ 2,055,592 130,287 � 2,414,208
Gianluca U. Rattazzi(4) 2012 200,000 765,000(5) 403,515(5) � � 1,368,515
Chairman of the Board 2011 167,311(6) � 1,194,625 � � 1,361,936
Erik E. Miller(7) 2012 202,710 459,304(8) � 98,557 � 760,571
Chief Financial Officer 2011 200,380 � 353,072 86,858 � 640,310
Kevin P. O�Keefe(9) 2012 202,710 421,054(10) � 197,115 � 820,879
Chief Operating Officer 2011 130,836 � 642,824 113,272 � 886,932
Anne M. Lynch(11) 2012 167,235 114,750(5) � 61,598 � 343,583
Vice President, Human Resources 2011 13,868 � 136,354 � � 150,222

(1) Amounts represent the grant date fair value of shares underlying restricted stock units and stock options, calculated in accordance with
ASC Topic 718. See the notes to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of assumptions made in determining the grant
date fair value and compensation expense of our stock options. Amount listed did not vest and the award expired in fiscal 2012 due to the
failure to satisfy performance criteria that required an initial public offering prior to December 31, 2011.

(2) Includes restricted stock units with an aggregate grant date fair value of $306,000 that did not vest and expired in fiscal 2012 due to the
non-occurrence of an initial public offering by December 31, 2011.

(3) Represents $69,248 of loan forgiveness and $58,408 of tax gross-up payment to cover income taxes related to loan forgiveness.
(4) Mr. Rattazzi became an executive officer in June 2010 and ceased serving as an executive officer in January 2012.
(5) Award did not vest and expired in fiscal 2012 due to the non-occurrence of an initial public offering by December 31, 2011.
(6) Mr. Rattazzi earned $50,000 for his services as a non-employee director in fiscal 2011.
(7) Mr. Miller joined us in February 2010.

106

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 424B4

Table of Contents 137



Table of Contents

(8) Includes restricted stock units with an aggregate grant date fair value of $153,000 that did not vest and expired in fiscal 2012 due to the
non-occurrence of an initial public offering by December 31, 2011.

(9) Mr. O�Keefe joined us in June 2010.
(10) Includes restricted stock units with an aggregate grant date fair value of $114,750 that did not vest and expired in fiscal 2012 due to the

non-occurrence of an initial public offering by December 31, 2011.
(11) Ms. Lynch provided consulting services to us commencing in November 2010 and joined as a full-time employee in January 2011.
Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table presents grants of plan-based awards to our named executive officers during fiscal 2012:

Name

Estimated Future Payouts
Under

Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Awards

Grant Date

All Other
Stock

Awards:
Number
of Shares
of Stock
or Units

All Other Option
Awards:

Number of Securities
Underlying Options(1)

Exercise or
Base
Price

of
Option

Awards(2)

Grant Date
Fair Value of

Stock and
Option

Awards(3)Threshold Target Maximum
Julien Signès �  $ 120,000 $ 180,000 4/13/2011 60,000 �  �  $ 306,000

1/1/2012 119,884 �  �  612,607
Gianluca U. Rattazzi �  � �  4/8/2011 �  150,000 $ 5.10 403,515

4/13/2011 150,000 �  �  765,000
Erik E. Miller �  80,000 160,000 4/13/2011 30,000 �  �  153,000

1/1/2012 59,942 �  �  306,304
Kevin P. O�Keefe �  160,000 240,000 4/13/2011 22,500 �  �  114,750

1/1/2012 59,942 �  �  306,304
Anne M. Lynch �  � �  4/13/2011 22,500 �  �  114,750

(1) See footnotes in ��Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End� below for a discussion of the vesting terms of these options.
(2) Our common stock was not publicly traded during fiscal 2012, and the exercise price of the options was determined by our board of

directors on the grant date based on its determination of the fair market value of our common stock on such grant date.
(3) Amounts represent the grant date fair value of the restricted stock units and stock options granted during fiscal 2012, calculated in

accordance with ASC Topic 718. See the notes to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of assumptions used in
determining the grant date fair value of our stock options. These amounts do not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by
the named executive officer.

Narrative to Summary Compensation Table and Grants Plan-Based Awards Table

Please see ��Compensation Discussion and Analysis� above for a complete description of compensation plans pursuant to which the amounts listed
under the Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table were paid or awarded and the criteria for such payment,
including targets for payment of annual incentives, as well as performance criteria on which such payments were based. The Compensation
Discussion and Analysis also describes the option grants.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table presents certain plan information of equity awards held by our named executive officers as of January 31, 2012:

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options �
Exercisable

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised

Options �
Unexercisable(1)

Exercise
Price of
Options

Grant Date
of Options

Expiration
Date of
Options

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:

Number of
Unearned

Shares That
Have Not

Vested

Equity Incentive
Plan Awards:

Market or
Payout Value
of Unearned

Shares that Have
Not Vested(10)

Julien Signès 36,458(2) 13,542(3) $ 0.30 5/12/2009 5/11/2019
118,055 215,278(4) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020
148,903 271,531(4) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020

119,884(5) $  719,304
Gianluca U. Rattazzi 50,000 �  0.30 5/12/2009 5/11/2019

23,385(6) 16,615(7) 0.30 11/2/2010 11/1/2020
118,055 215,278(4) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020
28,452 51,885(4) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020

Erik E. Miller 34,500(2) 37,500(8) 0.30 1/26/2010 1/25/2020
45,853 83,615(4) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020

59,942(5) 359,652
Kevin P. O�Keefe 83,483 152,235(4) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020

59,942(5) 359,652
Anne M. Lynch 13,541 36,459(9) 0.30 12/8/2010 12/7/2020

(1) Except as otherwise noted, all option awards listed in the table vest at the rate of 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the option
each month following the vesting commencement date. Unless otherwise noted, all option grants may be exercised pursuant to a restricted
stock purchase agreement prior to vesting; any shares purchased prior to vesting are subject to a right of repurchase in our favor in the
event the individual ceases to provide services for any reason which right lapses in accordance with the vesting schedule of the option.
This column therefore represents the unvested shares subject to the options, and the exercisable column represents the vested shares
subject to the option notwithstanding the fact that the entire option is currently exercisable.

(2) All option awards vest as to 1/8th of the total number of shares subject to the option six months after the vesting commencement date, and
the remaining shares vest at a rate of 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the options each month thereafter.

(3) The vesting commencement date is February 27, 2009.
(4) The vesting commencement date is August 6, 2010.
(5) See ��Long-Term Equity Compensation� for a discussion of the vesting terms of these RSUs.
(6) 15,833 shares vest immediately on the vesting commencement date. The remaining shares vest at a rate of 1/48th of the total number of

shares subject to the option each month following the vesting commencement date.
(7) The vesting commencement date is October 12, 2010.
(8) The vesting commencement date is February 1, 2010.
(9) The vesting commencement date is December 8, 2010.
(10) Represents the market value of the shares underlying RSUs as of January 31, 2012, based on the estimated fair value for purposes of

calculating the amount of expense recognized for financial statement reporting purposes of a share of our common stock, or $6.00.
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table shows information regarding vesting of restricted stock held by our named executive officers during fiscal 2012. No stock
options were exercised by our named executive officers during fiscal 2012.

Stock Awards

Name

Number
of

Shares
Acquired on

Vesting

Value
Realized on
Vesting(1)

Julien Signès 375 $ 3,375
Gianluca U. Rattazzi �  �  
Erik E. Miller �  �  
Kevin P. O�Keefe �  �  
Anne M. Lynch �  �  

(1) The value realized upon vesting was calculated by multiplying the number of common shares that vested during fiscal 2012 by the
market price of our common stock, which we have assumed to be $9.00, the initial public offering price per share.

Employment, Change of Control and Severance Arrangements

In April 2006, we entered into an executive employment agreement with Julien Signès, our Chief Executive Officer. This executive employment
agreement set Mr. Signès� base salary at an annual rate of $180,000 and provided that Mr. Signès was eligible to receive an annual bonus of up to
20% of his base salary. Since entering into this agreement, our board of directors has adjusted Mr. Signès� base salary and target bonus amounts.
For fiscal 2011, Mr. Signès� base salary was $235,000 and his target bonus amount was $120,000. Mr. Signès is entitled to participate in all
employee benefit plans, including group health care plans and all fringe benefit plans. Mr. Signès� executive employment agreement provides
that he is an at-will employee and his employment may be terminated at any time by him or us. In April 2011, we entered into an amendment to
Mr. Signès� executive employment agreement to amend the terms and conditions of his executive employment agreement to comply with the
technical requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pursuant to Mr. Signès� executive employment agreement, if Mr. Signès is terminated by us without �cause,� Mr. Signès will provide us with
consulting and advisory services for a period of six months commencing on the date of his termination. Mr. Signès will be entitled to receive a
lump sum payment in the amount of six months of his annual base salary. In addition, if Mr. Signès elects and pays to continue health insurance
under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, or COBRA, we will reimburse Mr. Signès on a monthly basis an amount
equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium contributions for health coverage for Mr. Signès and his
eligible dependents, until the end of the six-month period following his termination date.

In April 2011, we entered into a change of control severance agreement with Mr. Signès, which superseded the terms of Mr. Signès� executive
employment agreement with respect to change of control benefits and severance benefits in connection with a change of control. Pursuant to
Mr. Signès� change of control severance agreement, the vesting and, if applicable, exercisability of Mr. Signès� outstanding equity awards will be
accelerated immediately prior to a �change of control,� as defined below, to the extent necessary so that no less than 75% of the total number of
shares subject to the award are vested, and if applicable, exercisable, with the unvested balance of the award to vest no later than the one year
anniversary of the change of control, subject to Mr. Signès� continued employment. If Mr. Signès� employment terminates as a result of an
�involuntary termination,� as defined below, on, or at any time within 18 months after, a change of control, Mr. Signès will be entitled to a lump
sum payment in the amount of 18 months of his annual base salary plus one and one-half times Mr. Signès� target annual
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bonus for the year in which his termination occurs. Mr. Signès will also be entitled to any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any annual bonus
period which had ended prior to his termination date. In addition, if Mr. Signès elects and pays to continue health insurance under COBRA, we
will reimburse Mr. Signès on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium
contributions for health coverage for Mr. Signès and his eligible dependents, until the earlier of (i) the end of the 18-month period following his
termination date and (ii) the date Mr. Signès or his eligible dependents loses eligibility for COBRA continuation coverage. We will also
accelerate the vesting of all of his outstanding equity awards.

In April 2011, we entered into a change of control severance agreement with Gianluca Rattazzi, our current Chairman of the Board and former
Executive Chairman. Pursuant to Mr. Rattazzi�s change of control severance agreement, the vesting and, if applicable, exercisability of
Mr. Rattazzi�s outstanding equity awards will be accelerated immediately prior to a change of control to the extent necessary so that no less than
75% of the total number of shares subject to the award are vested, and if applicable, exercisable, with the unvested balance of the award to vest
no later than the one year anniversary of the change of control, subject to Mr. Rattazzi�s continued employment. If Mr. Rattazzi�s employment
terminates as a result of an involuntary termination on, or at any time within 18 months after, a change of control, Mr. Rattazzi will be entitled to
a lump sum payment in the amount of 12 months of his annual base salary plus one times Mr. Rattazzi�s target annual bonus for the year in which
his termination occurs. Mr. Rattazzi will also be entitled to any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any annual bonus period which had ended
prior to his termination date. In addition, if Mr. Rattazzi elects and pays to continue health insurance under COBRA, we will reimburse
Mr. Rattazzi on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium contributions for
health coverage for Mr. Rattazzi and his eligible dependents, until the earlier of (i) the end of the 12-month period following his termination date
and (ii) the date Mr. Rattazzi or his eligible dependents loses eligibility for COBRA continuation coverage. We will also accelerate the vesting
of all of his outstanding equity awards. In connection with Mr. Rattazzi�s transition from Executive Chairman to Chairman of the Board, this
change of control severance agreement terminated.

In December 2009, we entered into an offer letter agreement with Erik Miller, our Chief Financial Officer. This offer letter agreement set
Mr. Miller�s base salary at an annual rate of $200,000 and provided that Mr. Miller was eligible to receive an annual bonus of up to $80,000.
Pursuant to the offer letter agreement, Mr. Miller was granted options to purchase 72,000 shares of our common stock under our 2000 Stock
Option Plan. Mr. Miller is also entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans, including group health care plans and all fringe benefit plans.
Mr. Miller�s offer letter agreement provides that he is an at-will employee and his employment may be terminated at any time by him or us. In
April 2011, we entered into an amendment to Mr. Miller�s offer letter agreement to amend the terms and conditions of his offer letter agreement
to comply with the technical requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pursuant to Mr. Miller�s offer letter agreement, if Mr. Miller is terminated by us without �cause,� as defined below, Mr. Miller will be entitled to
receive three months of his annual base salary. In addition, if Mr. Miller elects and pays to continue health insurance under COBRA, we will
reimburse Mr. Miller on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium
contributions for health coverage for Mr. Miller and his eligible dependents, until the end of the three-month period following his termination
date. We will also accelerate the vesting of his unvested outstanding equity awards for an additional three months.

In April 2011, we entered into a change of control severance agreement with Mr. Miller, which superseded the terms of Mr. Miller�s offer letter
agreement with respect to change of control benefits and severance benefits in connection with a change of control. Pursuant to Mr. Miller�s
change of control severance agreement, the vesting and, if applicable, exercisability of Mr. Miller�s outstanding equity awards will be accelerated
immediately prior to a change of control with respect to 25% of the total number of the remaining unvested shares subject to the award. If
Mr. Miller�s employment terminates as a
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result of an involuntary termination on or at any time within 18 months after a change of control, Mr. Miller will be entitled to a lump sum
payment in the amount of 12 months of his annual base salary plus one times Mr. Miller�s target annual bonus for the year in which his
termination occurs. Mr. Miller will also be entitled to any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any annual bonus period which had ended prior to
his termination date. In addition, if Mr. Miller elects and pays to continue health insurance under COBRA, we will reimburse Mr. Miller on a
monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium contributions for health coverage for
Mr. Miller and his eligible dependents, until the earlier of (i) the end of the 12-month period following his termination date and (ii) the date
Mr. Miller or his eligible dependents loses eligibility for COBRA continuation coverage. We will also accelerate the vesting of all of his
outstanding equity awards.

In April 2010, we entered into an offer letter agreement with Kevin O�Keefe, our Chief Operating Officer. This offer letter agreement set
Mr. O�Keefe�s base salary at an annual rate of $200,000 and provided that Mr. O�Keefe was eligible to receive an annual bonus of up to $160,000.
Pursuant to the offer letter agreement, Mr. O�Keefe was granted an option to purchase 235,718 shares of our common stock (on an as-converted
basis) under our 2010 Stock Option Plan. Mr. O�Keefe is also entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans, including group health care
plans and all fringe benefit plans. Mr. O�Keefe�s offer letter agreement provides that he is an at-will employee and his employment may be
terminated at any time by him or us. In April 2011, we entered into an amendment to Mr. O�Keefe�s offer letter agreement to amend the terms and
conditions of his offer letter agreement to comply with the technical requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pursuant to Mr. O�Keefe�s offer letter agreement, if Mr. O�Keefe is terminated by us without �cause,� as defined below, Mr. O�Keefe will be entitled
to receive three months of his annual base salary. In addition, if Mr. O�Keefe elects and pays to continue health insurance under COBRA, we will
reimburse Mr. O�Keefe on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium
contributions for health coverage for Mr. O�Keefe, until the end of the three-month period following his termination date. We will also accelerate
the vesting of his unvested outstanding equity awards for an additional three months.

In April 2011, we entered into a change of control severance agreement with Mr. O�Keefe, which superseded the terms of Mr. O�Keefe�s offer
letter agreement with respect to change of control benefits and severance benefits in connection with a change of control. Pursuant to
Mr. O�Keefe�s change of control severance agreement, the vesting and, if applicable, exercisability of Mr. O�Keefe�s outstanding equity awards will
be accelerated immediately prior to a change of control with respect to 25% of the total number of the remaining unvested shares subject to the
award. If Mr. O�Keefe�s employment terminates as a result of an involuntary termination on, or at any time within 18 months after, a change of
control, Mr. O�Keefe will be entitled to a lump sum payment in the amount of 12 months of his annual base salary plus one times Mr. O�Keefe�s
target annual bonus for the year in which his termination occurs. Mr. O�Keefe will also be entitled to any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any
annual bonus period which had ended prior to his termination date. In addition, if Mr. O�Keefe elects and pays to continue health insurance under
COBRA, we will reimburse Mr. O�Keefe on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of
premium contributions for health coverage for Mr. O�Keefe and his eligible dependents, until the earlier of (i) the end of the 12-month period
following his termination date and (ii) the date Mr. O�Keefe or his eligible dependents loses eligibility for COBRA continuation coverage. We
will also accelerate the vesting of all of his outstanding equity awards.

In January 2011, we entered into an offer letter agreement with Anne Lynch, our Vice President, Human Resources. This offer letter agreement
set Ms. Lynch�s base salary at an annual rate of $165,000 and provided that Ms. Lynch was eligible to receive an annual bonus of up to $50,000.
Pursuant to the offer letter agreement, Ms. Lynch was granted an option to purchase 50,000 shares of our common stock under our 2010 Stock
Incentive Plan. Ms. Lynch is also entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans, including group health care plans and all fringe benefit
plans. Ms. Lynch�s offer letter agreement provides that she is an at-will employee and her employment may be terminated at any time by her or
us.
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In April 2011, we entered into an amendment to Ms. Lynch�s offer letter agreement to amend the terms and conditions of her offer letter
agreement to comply with the technical requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pursuant to Ms. Lynch�s offer letter agreement, if Ms. Lynch is terminated by us without �cause,� as defined below, Ms. Lynch will be entitled to
receive three months of her annual base salary. In addition, if Ms. Lynch elects and pays to continue health insurance under COBRA, we will
reimburse Ms. Lynch on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of premium
contributions for health coverage for Ms. Lynch, until the end of the three-month period following her termination date. We will also accelerate
the vesting of her unvested outstanding equity awards for an additional three months.

In April 2011, we entered into a change of control severance agreement with Ms. Lynch, which superseded the terms of Ms. Lynch�s offer letter
agreement with respect to change of control benefits and severance benefits in connection with a change of control. Pursuant to Ms. Lynch�s
change of control severance agreement, the vesting and, if applicable, exercisability of Ms. Lynch�s outstanding equity awards will be accelerated
immediately prior to a change of control with respect to 25% of the total number of the remaining unvested shares subject to the award. If
Ms. Lynch�s employment terminates as a result of an involuntary termination on, or at any time within 18 months after, a change of control,
Ms. Lynch will be entitled to a lump sum payment in the amount of 12 months of her annual base salary plus one times Ms. Lynch�s target
annual bonus for the year in which her termination occurs. Ms. Lynch will also be entitled to any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any annual
bonus period which had ended prior to her termination date. In addition, if Ms. Lynch elects and pays to continue health insurance under
COBRA, we will reimburse Ms. Lynch on a monthly basis an amount equal to the monthly amount we were paying as the employer-portion of
premium contributions for health coverage for Ms. Lynch and her eligible dependents, until the earlier of (i) the end of the 12-month period
following her termination date and (ii) the date Ms. Lynch or her eligible dependents loses eligibility for COBRA continuation coverage. We
will also accelerate the vesting of all of her outstanding equity awards.

For purposes of the change of control severance agreements above, �change of control� is defined as the occurrence of any of the following events:
(i) the approval by our stockholders of a plan of our complete liquidation or dissolution or the closing of a sale or disposition by us of all or
substantially all of our assets, other than a sale or disposition to one of our subsidiaries or to an entity, the voting securities of which are owned
by our stockholders in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of our voting securities immediately prior to such sale or
disposition; (ii) our merger or consolidation with any other corporation, other than a merger or consolidation which would result in our voting
securities outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent directly or indirectly (either by remaining outstanding or by being
converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) more than 50% of the total voting power represented by our voting securities or such
surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation; (iii) any �person� (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of
the Exchange Act) becoming the �beneficial owner� (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of our securities
representing 50% or more of the total voting power represented by our then outstanding voting securities; or (iv) a change in the composition of
our board of directors, as a result of which fewer than a majority of the directors are �incumbent directors,� which shall mean directors who either
(x) are our directors as of the date of the change of control severance agreement or (y) are elected, or nominated for election, to our board of
directors with the affirmative votes of at least a majority of those directors whose election or nomination was not in connection with any
transactions described in subsections (i), (ii) or (iii) above, or in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest relating to an election of
our directors.

The term �involuntary termination� is defined as (i) without the named executive officer�s express written consent, a material diminution in such
named executive officer�s authorities, duties or responsibilities relative to such named executive officer�s authority, duties or responsibilities in
effect immediately prior to the change of control (provided that for this purpose, such named executive officer�s
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authority, duties and responsibilities will not be deemed to be materially diminished if following a change of control the named executive officer
retains the same authority, duties and responsibilities with respect to our business or the business with which such business is operationally
merged or subsumed (as, for example, where the named executive officer retains his or her position in the surviving entity following a change of
control, but is not given such position in the acquiring entity)); (ii) without the named executive officer�s express written consent, a reduction of
more than 10% of such named executive officer�s total targeted cash compensation assuming target achievement immediately prior to the change
of control, except that neither a reduction proportionate to reductions imposed on all other members of our executive management as part of a
cost reduction effort nor a reduction of such named executive officer�s total targeted cash compensation due to a change of duties as a result of
disability will constitute an involuntary termination; (iii) without the named executive officer�s express written consent, the relocation of such
named executive officer�s principal place of employment to a facility or a location more than 35 miles from its location immediately prior to the
change of control; (iv) any termination of the named executive officer by us which is not effected for �cause,� as defined below; or (v) our failure
to obtain the assumption of the change of control and severance agreement or any other agreement between us and the named executive officer
by any successors contemplated in the change of control and severance agreement.

The term �cause� is defined as (i) gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of the named executive officer�s duties to us where
such gross negligence or willful misconduct has resulted or is likely to result in substantial damage to us or our subsidiaries; (ii) commission of
any act of fraud or dishonesty with respect to us or breach of the named executive officer�s fiduciary duties to us; or (iii) conviction of a felony or
a crime involving moral turpitude or otherwise causing material harm to our standing and reputation.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control

Our named executive officers are entitled to the benefits and payments described below in the event of a change of control or their employment
with us is terminated involving certain circumstances.

Termination not in connection with a change of control � Our named executive officers, except for our Executive Chairman, are entitled to
severance benefits if they are terminated without cause not in connection with a change of control. If our Chief Executive Officer is terminated
without cause not in connection with a change of control, he is entitled to a lump sum payment in the amount of six months of his annual base
salary and the continuation of company-paid premiums for COBRA continuation coverage for six months following termination. In the case of
the termination without cause not in connection with a change of control of our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice
President, Human Resources, each officer would be entitled to three months of annual base salary, the continuation of company-paid premiums
for COBRA continuation coverage for three months following termination and the acceleration of vesting of unvested outstanding equity awards
for an additional three months.

Change of control � Upon a change of control, our named executive officers are each entitled to immediate acceleration of all their unvested
equity compensation, unless otherwise provided in an applicable equity award agreement. In the case of our Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, vesting shall be accelerated so that no less than 75% of the total number of shares subject to the award are vested, and if applicable,
exercisable, with the unvested balance of the award to vest no later than the one year anniversary of the change of control, subject to such
executive officer�s continued employment. In the case of our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human
Resources, vesting shall be accelerated so that no less than 25% of the total number of the remaining unvested shares subject to the award is
vested.
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Termination following a change of control � If a named executive officer�s employment with us terminates as a result of an involuntary
termination within 18 months following a change of control, the named executive officer is entitled to:

� the payment of accrued salary and vacation;

� immediate acceleration of all unvested equity compensation to the extent such options are then outstanding and were outstanding at
the time of the change of control;

� cash payments equal to (i) in the case of our Chief Executive Officer, such officer�s then-current base salary for 18 months, plus one
and one-half times such officer�s target annual bonus for the year in which the termination occurs; and (ii) in the case of our Chairman,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources, such officer�s then-current base salary for 12
months, plus one times such officer�s target annual bonus for the year in which the termination occurs;

� any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any annual bonus period which had ended prior to termination; and

� continuation of company-paid premiums for COBRA continuation coverage for up to 18 months for our Chief Executive Officer and
up to 12 months for our Chairman, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Vice President, Human Resources.

The following table summarizes the payments that would be made to our named executive officers upon termination of employment qualifying
for severance benefits not in connection with a change in control, the occurrence of a change of control or a termination of employment
qualifying for severance benefits following a change of control, assuming that each named executive officer was terminated without cause not in
connection with a change in control on January 31, 2012, that a change of control of our company occurred on January 31, 2012, or in the event
that each named executive officer�s involuntary termination of employment with our company occurred on January 31, 2012 within 18 months
following a change of control, as applicable. Amounts shown do not include (i) accrued but unpaid salary through the date of termination,
(ii) other benefits earned or accrued by the named executive officer during his employment that are available to all salaried employees, such as
accrued vacation, (iii) any earned but unpaid annual bonus for any annual bonus period which had ended prior to termination, or (iv) any equity
awards received by the named executive officers after January 31, 2012.

Name

Termination
without cause

not in connection
with a Change of

Control
Change of

Control

Involuntary
Termination

within 18 months
after a Change

of Control
Julien Signès
Cash Severance $    182,920 � $ 747,599
Acceleration of Stock Options(1) � $ 2,317,361 2,852,001
Continued Health Benefits(2) 13,663 � 40,989

Total 196,583 2,317,361 3,640,589

Gianluca U. Rattazzi
Cash Severance � � 200,000
Acceleration of Stock Options(1) � 1,077,179 1,617,535
Continued Health Benefits(2) � � 34,154

Total � 1,077,179 1,851,689

Erik E. Miller
Cash Severance 50,678 � 291,082
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Acceleration of Stock Options(1) � 262,502 690,356
Continued Health Benefits(2) 5,420 � 21,681

Total 56,098 262,502 1,003,119
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Name

Termination
without cause

not in connection
with a Change

of
Control

Change
of

Control

Involuntary
Termination

within 18 months
after a Change

of Control

Kevin P. O�Keefe
Cash Severance 50,678 � 348,333
Acceleration of Stock Options(1) � 306,848 867,740
Continued Health Benefits(2) 3,671 � 14,685

Total 54,349 306,848 1,230,758

Anne M. Lynch
Cash Severance 41,809 � 192,097
Acceleration of Stock Options(1) � 51,954 207,816
Continued Health Benefits(2) 9,188 � 36,753

Total 50,997 51,954 436,666

(1) The value of accelerated stock options was calculated by multiplying (x) the number of shares subject to acceleration by (y) the
difference between the estimated fair value for purposes of calculating the amount of expense recognized for financial statement
reporting purposes of a share of our common stock on January 31, 2012, or $6.00, and the per share exercise price of the accelerated
option.

(2) Represents the aggregate full premium payments that would be required to be paid to or on behalf of each named executive officer to
provide continued health insurance coverage under COBRA (based on the executive�s health insurance coverage as of January 31, 2012)
for the maximum period available to the named executive officer.

Each executive will not receive a gross-up payment if the executive officer is required to pay excise tax under Section 4999 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

In addition to the benefits described above, our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the acceleration of vesting of awards in certain
circumstances in connection with a change of control of our company. See ��Employee Benefit Plans� below.

Retirement Plans

Except as described below, we currently have no plans that provide for the payment of retirement benefits, or benefits that will be paid primarily
following retirement, including but not limited to tax-qualified defined benefit plans, supplemental executive retirement plans, tax-qualified
defined contribution plans and nonqualified defined contribution plans.

We maintain a 401(k) plan that is tax-qualified for our U.S. employees, including our named executive officers. We do not offer employer
matching or other employer contribution to our 401(k) plan.

Employee Benefit Plans

2000 Stock Option Plan

Our 2000 Stock Option Plan was adopted by our board of directors and subsequently approved by our stockholders. Our 2000 Stock Option Plan
provides for the grant of options and stock purchase rights.

The persons eligible to participate in the plan are employees, non-employee members of our board of directors and consultants who provide
services to us.

Share reserve � As of January 31, 2012, we had reserved a total of 644,366 shares of our common stock for issuance pursuant to the 2000 Stock
Option Plan. As of January 31, 2012, options to purchase 245,574 shares of common stock were outstanding.
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The 2000 Stock Option Plan expired pursuant to its own terms in May 2010 and no additional awards will be granted and no shares of our
common stock remain available for future issuance under the 2000 Stock Option Plan.

Administration � Our board of directors administered our 2000 Stock Option Plan. Under our 2000 Stock Option Plan, the plan administrator has
the power to determine the terms of the awards, including the employees, directors and consultants who will receive awards, the exercise price
of the awards, the number of shares subject to each award, the vesting schedule and exercisability of awards and the form of consideration
payable for shares issued under the 2000 Stock Option Plan.

Stock options � With respect to all incentive stock options granted under the 2000 Stock Option Plan, the exercise price shall not be less than
100% of the fair market value per share of common stock on the date of grant. With respect to all non-statutory options granted under the 2000
Stock Option Plan, the exercise price shall not be less than 85% of the fair market value per share of our common stock on the date of grant.
However, with respect to options granted to any holder of more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of our outstanding stock as of the
grant date, the exercise price of the option shall not be less than 110% of the fair market value per share of our common stock on the grant date.
The term of an option may not exceed ten years (five years in the case of an option granted to any holder of more than 10% of our voting
shares).

After termination of an employee, director or consultant, other than due to death or disability, he or she may exercise his or her option, to the
extent vested, for a period of 30 days following such termination. If termination is due to disability, the option will remain exercisable, to the
extent vested, for a period of six months following such termination. If termination is due to death, the option will remain exercisable, to the
extent vested, for a period of six months following the date of death. However, an option may not be exercised later than the expiration of its
term. Options granted under the 2000 Stock Option Plan will fully vest and become exercisable immediately prior to an acquisition or a merger
of the company.

Transferability � Our 2000 Stock Option Plan does not allow for the transfer of options under the 2000 Stock Option Plan other than by will, the
laws of descent and distribution and may be exercised during the lifetime of the optionee only by such optionee.

Stock purchase rights � The plan administrator may grant stock purchase rights under the 2000 Stock Option Plan alone, in addition to, or in
tandem with other awards granted under the 2000 Stock Option Plan and/or cash awards made outside of the 2000 Stock Option Plan. The terms
of the stock purchase right will provide for the number of shares of common stock the award recipient may purchase, the exercise price and the
time within which the award recipient must accept such offer. The award recipient may accept the offer by executing a stock purchase
agreement. With respect to all stock purchase rights granted under the 2000 Stock Option Plan, the exercise price shall not be less than 85% of
the fair market value per share of our common stock on the date of grant. The stock purchase agreement may grant the company a right to
repurchase such shares upon the termination of the purchaser�s employment for any reason at the original purchase price paid by the award
recipient. The repurchase option will lapse at a rate determined by the plan administrator, but in the case of officers, directors and consultants,
the repurchase option will lapse at the rate of at least 20% per year over five years. Once a stock purchase right is exercised, the purchaser will
generally have all of the rights of a stockholder with respect to such shares, other than the right to transfer such shares before vesting.

Adjustments � Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the company, in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend
(but only on our common stock), recapitalization, combination reclassification of our common stock or any other increase or decrease in the
number of issued shares effected without our receipt of consideration (excluding the conversion of any convertible securities), proportionate
adjustments will be made to the number of shares of our common stock covered by each outstanding option or stock purchase right, the
maximum number or class of securities issuable
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under the 2000 Stock Option Plan, the number of shares that have been authorized for issuance under the 2000 Stock Option Plan but as to
which no options or stock purchase rights have yet been granted or that have been returned to the 2000 Stock Option Plan upon cancellation or
expiration of an option or stock purchase right or repurchase of shares from an optionee or purchaser and exercise price per share under each
outstanding option or each outstanding stock purchase right.

Corporate transaction � Upon a merger, consolidation, or reorganization of the company with or into another corporation, our 2000 Stock Option
Plan provides that the successor corporation or its parent or subsidiary will assume or substitute an equivalent award for each outstanding award
under the 2000 Stock Option Plan. If there is no assumption or substitution of outstanding awards, such awards will terminate as of a date fixed
by our board of directors which is at least 30 days after the notice to the optionee or purchaser.

Termination � The 2000 Stock Option Plan had a term of ten years and expired pursuant to its own terms in May 2010.

Amended and Restated 2010 Stock Incentive Plan

Our Amended and Restated 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, or the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, was adopted by our board of directors in June 2010
and was subsequently approved by our stockholders. The 2010 Stock Incentive Plan was subsequently amended and restated in April 2011. The
purpose of the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan is to promote the long-term success of the company and the creation of stockholder value by:
(i) encouraging our employees, directors and consultants to focus on critical long-rage objectives, (ii) encouraging the attraction and retention of
our employees, directors and consultants with exceptional qualifications, and (iii) linking employees, directors and consultants directly to
stockholder interests through increased stock ownership.

Our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the grant of nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock units and restricted stock awards to our
employees, directors and consultants and our subsidiaries� employees and consultants, and incentive stock options, within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, which may be granted only to our employees and our subsidiaries� employees. Our board of directors
administers our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. The administrator has the authority to determine the terms and conditions of the awards granted
under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan.

Share reserve � As of January 31, 2012, 3,661,422 shares of common stock have been authorized for issuance under the 2010 Stock Incentive
Plan. As of January 31, 2012 options to purchase a total of 2,347,129 shares of common stock were outstanding under the 2010 Stock Incentive
Plan. If an option or an award to purchase restricted stock expires or is cancelled for any reason, the shares allocable to the unexercised portion
of such option or award will become available for future award under the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. If a share previously issued under the 2010
Stock Incentive Plan is reacquired pursuant to a forfeiture provision, then such a share will again become available for award under the 2010
Stock Incentive Plan.

Administration � Our board of directors administers the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. The board of directors may delegate any of its administrative
functions to a committee. Subject to the provisions of our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, the administrator may take all actions it deems necessary
or advisable for the administration of the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. All actions of the administrator will be final and binding on all persons.

Stock options � The administrator may grant incentive and/or nonstatutory stock options under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan; provided that
incentive stock options are only granted to employees. The exercise price of options granted under the plan must be equal to or greater than
100% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. The term of an option may not exceed ten years. Provided, however,
that an incentive stock option held by an optionee who owns more than 10% of the
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total combined voting power of all classes of our stock, our parent or any of our subsidiary corporations, may not have a term in excess of five
years and must have an exercise price of at least 110% of the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date. The exercise price for an
option may be paid in cash or cash equivalents. In addition, the administrator may allow for payment by surrender of shares, promissory note,
cashless exercise, pledge of shares or other forms of payment as may be permitted by our board of directors. Subject to the provisions of our
2010 Stock Incentive Plan, the administrator determines the remaining terms of the options (e.g., exercisability and vesting). The administrator
may permit an optionee to exercise his or her option as to shares that have not vested, subject to the Company�s right to repurchase any shares
unvested as of the optionee�s termination of service at the lower of the original exercise price or the then-current fair market value of the shares.
After an optionee�s termination of service, the optionee may exercise his or her option, to the extent vested as of the date of termination, for a
period of three months (or twelve months in the case of termination due to death or disability) following such termination. However, in no event
may an option be exercised later than the expiration of its term.

Restricted shares � The plan administrator may award restricted shares or grant stock purchase rights under the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. The
terms of the award of restricted shares will be set forth in a restricted share agreement between the purchaser and us. Any right to acquire shares,
other than options, shall automatically expire if not exercised by the purchaser within thirty days after we communicate the grant of such right to
the purchaser. Awards of restricted shares or shares received upon the exercise of a stock purchase right may be subject to forfeiture conditions,
rights of repurchase, rights of first refusal and other restrictions as set forth in the applicable restricted share agreement. Once a stock purchase
right is exercised, the purchaser will generally have all of the rights of a stockholder with respect to such shares, other than the right to transfer
such shares before vesting.

Transferability � Our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan generally does not allow for options to be transferred in any manner other than by will or the
laws of descent and distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent permitted by our board of directors, a nonstatutory stock option
may be transferred to a family member or trust to the extent permitted by applicable laws.

Stock units � Stock units give purchasers the right to acquire a specified number of shares of stock at a future date upon the satisfaction of certain
conditions, including any vesting arrangement as set forth in a restricted stock unit agreement. Unlike restricted stock, the stock underlying stock
units will not be issued until the stock units have vested and are settled, and purchasers of stock units generally will have no voting or dividend
rights prior to the time the vesting conditions are satisfied and the award is settled. The restricted stock unit agreement will provide whether
vested stock units will be settled in cash or in common stock or in a combination of cash and common stock. Subject to the terms of the 2010
Stock Incentive Plan, our board of directors will determine the terms and conditions of any stock unit award, which will be set forth in a stock
unit agreement to be entered into between us and each purchaser.

Adjustments � If any change is made in our common stock subject to the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan including a subdivision, stock dividend,
dividend payable in a form other than stock that has a material effect on our shares, a combination or consolidation, a recapitalization, a spin-off
or a similar occurrence, then equitable adjustments will be made to one or more of the following: the number of shares available under the 2010
Stock Incentive Plan, the number of shares covered by each outstanding option or the exercise price under each outstanding option and the price
of shares subject to our right to repurchase.

Corporate transaction � If the Company is a party to a merger or other reorganization, outstanding awards under the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan
will be subject to the terms of the agreement of merger or reorganization. Such agreement may provide for one or more of the following: (i) the
continuation of outstanding options by the company, (ii) if the Company is the surviving corporation, the assumption of the outstanding awards
by the surviving corporation or its parent or subsidiary, (iii) the substitution by the surviving corporation or its parent or subsidiary of its own
awards for the awards under
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the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, (iv) immediate exercisability or vesting and accelerated expiration of outstanding options under the 2010 Stock
Incentive Plan followed by the cancellation of such awards, or (v) settlement of the full value of the outstanding awards under the 2010 Stock
Incentive Plan in cash or cash equivalents followed by cancellation of such awards.

Plan amendments and termination � Our board of directors may at any time amend, suspend or terminate the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. Certain
amendments which materially alter or impair the rights of existing option holders require an optionee�s consent. Our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan
will automatically terminate on June 15, 2020, unless we terminate it sooner.

Upon the completion of this offering, the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan will be terminated and no shares of our common stock will remain available
for future issuance under the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan. Shares originally reserved for issuance under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan but which
are not issued or subject to outstanding grants on the effective date of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, and shares subject to outstanding options
under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan on the effective date of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan that are subsequently forfeited or terminated for any
reason before being exercised, and shares subject to vesting restrictions under the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan that are subsequently forfeited, up
to a number of additional shares not to exceed an aggregate of shares, will again become available for awards under our 2012 Stock Incentive
Plan on the date the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan becomes effective.

Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Incentive Plan

General � Our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan was adopted by our board of directors and approved by our stockholders in June 2011 and was amended
and restated in April 2012. The 2012 Stock Incentive Plan will become effective in connection with this offering.

The 2012 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code to employees and the granting of nonstatutory stock options to employees, non-employee directors, advisors and consultants. The 2012
Stock Incentive Plan also provides for the grants of restricted stock, stock appreciation rights and stock unit awards to employees, non-employee
directors, advisors and consultants.

Administration � The compensation committee of our board of directors will administer the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, including the
determination of the recipient of an award, the number of shares subject to each award, whether an option is to be classified as an incentive stock
option or nonstatutory option, and the terms and conditions of each award, including the exercise and purchase prices and the vesting or duration
of the award.

At the discretion of our board of directors, our compensation committee may consist solely of two or more �non-employee directors.� To the
extent required by our board of directors, the composition of our compensation committee may satisfy the requirements for plans intended to
qualify for exemption under Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act and Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. Our board of directors may
appoint one or more separate committees of our board of directors, each consisting of one or more members of our board of directors, to
administer our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan with respect to employees who are not subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Subject to
applicable law, our board of directors may also authorize one or more officers to designate employees, other than employees who are subject to
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, to receive awards under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan
and/or determine the number of such awards to be received by such employees subject to limits specified by our board of directors.

Authorized shares � Under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, 200,000 shares of our common stock have been authorized for issuance plus any
shares remaining available for future grant under the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan on the effective date of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan. In
addition, the number of
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shares that have been authorized for issuance under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan will be automatically increased on the first day of each fiscal
year beginning in fiscal 2014 and ending in fiscal 2023, in an amount equal to the least of (i) 2,000,000 shares, (ii) 4% of the outstanding shares
of our common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year or (iii) another amount determined by our board of directors.
Shares subject to awards granted under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan that are forfeited or terminated before being exercised or settled, or are not
delivered to the participant because such award is settled in cash will again become available for issuance under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan.
Shares withheld to satisfy the grant, exercise price or tax withholding obligation related to an award will again become available for issuance
under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan. However, shares that have actually been issued shall not again become available unless forfeited. No more
than the total number of shares that are reserved for issuance under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan may be delivered upon the exercise of
incentive stock options granted under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan plus, to the extent allowable under applicable law, any shares that again
become available for issuance under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan. In addition, shares originally reserved for issuance under our 2010 Stock
Incentive Plan which are subject to outstanding grants on the effective date of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, and shares subject to outstanding
options under our 2010 Stock Incentive Plan on the effective date of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan that are subsequently forfeited or terminated
for any reason before being exercised, and shares subject to vesting restrictions under the 2010 Incentive Stock Plan that are subsequently
forfeited, up to a number of additional shares not to exceed an aggregate of 3,500,000 shares, will again become available for awards under our
2012 Stock Incentive Plan on the date the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan becomes effective.

No participant in the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan can receive option grants, restricted shares, stock appreciation rights or stock units totaling more
than an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares in any calendar year, except in the participant�s first year of employment in which the participant may
receive equity awards totaling up to 2,000,000 shares. No participant in the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan may be paid more than an aggregate of
$5,000,000 in cash during any calendar year with respect to equity awards that are payable in cash.

Types of Awards �

� Stock options � A stock option is the right to purchase a certain number of shares of stock, at a certain exercise price, in the future.
Under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, incentive stock options and nonstatutory options must be granted with an exercise price of at
least 100% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Incentive stock options granted to any holder of more
than 10% of the voting shares of our company must have an exercise price of at least 110% of the fair market value of our common
stock on the date of grant. No incentive stock option can be granted to an employee if as a result of the grant, the employee would
have the right in any calendar year to exercise for the first time one or more incentive stock options for shares having an aggregate fair
market value in excess of $100,000. The stock option agreement specifies the date when all or any installment of the option is to
become exercisable. We expect that 1/4th of the total number of shares subject to the options will vest and become exercisable 12
months after the vesting commencement date for options granted, and the remaining options will vest and become exercisable at a rate
of 1/48th of the total number of shares subject to the options each month thereafter. Each stock option agreement sets forth the term of
the options, which is prohibited from exceeding ten years (five years in the case of an incentive stock option granted to any holder of
more than 10% of our voting shares), and the extent to which the optionee will have the right to exercise the option following
termination of the optionee�s service with the company. Payment of the exercise price may be made in cash or cash equivalents or, if
provided for in the stock option agreement evidencing the award, (i) by surrendering, or attesting to the ownership of, shares which
have already been owned by the optionee, (ii) by delivery of an irrevocable direction to a securities broker to sell shares and to deliver
all or part of the sale proceeds to us in payment of the aggregate exercise price, (iii) by delivery of an irrevocable direction to a
securities broker or lender to pledge shares and to deliver all or part of the loan proceeds to us in payment of the aggregate exercise
price, (iv) by a �net exercise� arrangement,
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(v) by delivering a full-recourse promissory note or (vi) by any other form that is consistent with applicable laws, regulations and
rules.

� Restricted stock � Restricted stock is a share award that may be subject to vesting conditioned upon continued service, the achievement
of performance objectives or the satisfaction of any other condition as specified in a restricted stock agreement. Participants who are
granted restricted stock awards generally have all of the rights of a stockholder with respect to such stock, other than the right to
transfer such stock prior to vesting. Subject to the terms of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, our compensation committee will determine
the terms and conditions of any restricted stock award, including any vesting arrangement, which will be set forth in a restricted stock
agreement to be entered into between us and each recipient. Restricted stock may be awarded for such consideration as our
compensation committee may determine, including without limitation cash, cash equivalents, full-recourse promissory notes, future
services or services rendered prior to the award, without cash payment by the recipient.

� Stock unit � Stock units give recipients the right to acquire a specified number of shares of stock at a future date upon the satisfaction of
certain conditions, including any vesting arrangement, established by our compensation committee and as set forth in a stock unit
agreement. Unlike restricted stock, the stock underlying stock units will not be issued until the stock units have vested and are settled,
and recipients of stock units generally will have no voting or dividend rights prior to the time the vesting conditions are satisfied and
the award is settled. Our compensation committee may elect to settle vested stock units in cash or in common stock or in a
combination of cash and common stock. Subject to the terms of the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, our compensation committee will
determine the terms and conditions of any stock unit award, which will be set forth in a stock unit agreement to be entered into
between us and each recipient.

� Stock appreciation rights � Stock appreciation rights typically will provide for payments to the recipient based upon increases in the
price of our common stock over the exercise price of the stock appreciation right. The exercise price of a stock appreciation right will
be determined by our compensation committee, which shall not be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant. Our compensation committee may elect to pay stock appreciation rights in cash or in common stock or in a combination of cash
and common stock.

Other Plan Features �

Under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan:

� Unless the agreement evidencing an award expressly provides otherwise, no award granted under the plan may be transferred in any
manner (prior to the vesting and lapse of any and all restrictions applicable to shares issued under such award), other than by will or
the laws of descent and distribution.

� Nondiscretionary, automatic grants of nonstatutory stock options will be made to outside directors. Any outside director who first
joins our board of directors on or after the effective date, will be automatically granted an initial nonstatutory option to purchase
shares of our common stock that have a value of $200,000, calculated using the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant, upon first becoming a member of our board of directors. The initial option will vest and become exercisable over four years in
equal monthly installments. On the first business day after each of our regularly scheduled annual meetings of stockholders, each
outside director will be automatically granted an option to purchase shares of our common stock that have a value of $50,000,
calculated using the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant, provided that the outside director has served on our
board of directors for at least six months. Each annual option will vest and become exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of
grant, or immediately prior to the next regular annual meeting of the company�s stockholders following the date of grant if the meeting
occurs prior to the first anniversary date. The options granted to outside directors will have a per share exercise price equal to 100% of
the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant and will become fully vested if we are subject to a change
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of control. In addition, such options will terminate on the earlier of (i) the day before the tenth anniversary of the date of grant or
(ii) the date 12 months after the termination of the outside director�s termination of service for any reason.

� In the event of a recapitalization, stock split or similar capital transaction, our compensation committee will make appropriate and
equitable adjustments to the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan, including the share number
in the formula for automatic annual increases, the limitation regarding the total number of shares underlying awards given to an
individual participant in any calendar year, the number of shares that can be issued as incentive stock options and other adjustments in
order to preserve the benefits of outstanding awards under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan.

� Generally, if we merge with or into another corporation, we will provide for full exercisability or vesting and accelerated expiration of
outstanding awards or settlement of the intrinsic value of the outstanding awards in cash or cash equivalents followed by cancellation
of such awards unless the awards are continued if we are the surviving entity, or assumed or substituted for by any surviving entity or
a parent or subsidiary of the surviving entity.

� If we are involved in an asset acquisition, stock acquisition, merger or similar transaction with another entity, our compensation
committee may make awards under the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan by the assumption, substitution or replacement of awards granted
by another entity. The terms of such assumed, substituted or replaced awards will be determined by our compensation committee in its
discretion.

� Awards under our 2012 Stock Incentive Plan may be made subject to the attainment of performance criteria including cash flows,
earnings per share, earnings before interest, taxes and amortization, return on equity, total stockholder return, share price performance,
return on capital, return on assets or net assets, revenue, income or net income, operating income or net operating income, operating
profit or net operating profit, operating margin or profit margin, return on operating revenue, return on invested capital, market
segment shares, costs, expenses, regulatory body approval for commercialization of a product or implementation or completion of
critical projects.

� The 2012 Stock Incentive Plan terminates ten years after its initial adoption, unless terminated earlier by our board of directors. Our
board of directors may amend or terminate the plan at any time, subject to stockholder approval where required by applicable law.
Any amendment or termination may not materially impair the rights of holders of outstanding awards without their consent.

Limitation on Liability and Indemnification Matters

Our certificate of incorporation contains provisions that limit the personal liability of our directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent
permitted by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, or the DGCL. Consequently, our directors will not be personally liable to us
or our stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for:

� any breach of the director�s duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;

� any act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

� unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the DGCL; or

� any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.
Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that we are required to indemnify our directors, in each case to the fullest extent permitted
by the DGCL. Our bylaws also provide that we shall advance expenses incurred by a director in advance of the final disposition of any action or
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us to secure insurance on behalf of any officer, director, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her actions in that capacity
regardless of whether we would otherwise be permitted to indemnify him or her under the provisions of the DGCL. We have entered into
agreements to indemnify our directors and expect to continue to enter into agreements to indemnify all of our directors. Prior to the closing of
the offering, we plan to amend and restate our indemnification agreements with our directors and enter into indemnification agreements with
each of our officers. With certain exceptions, these agreements provide for indemnification for related expenses including, among other things,
attorneys� fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by any of our directors in any action or proceeding. We believe that these
bylaw provisions and indemnification agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors. We also maintain directors�
and officers� liability insurance.

The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage stockholders from
bringing a lawsuit against our directors for breach of their fiduciary duty of care. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation
against our directors and officers, even though an action, if successful, might benefit us and other stockholders. Further, a stockholder�s
investment may be adversely affected to the extent that we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers. At
present, there is no pending litigation or proceeding involving any of our directors, officers or employees for which indemnification is sought,
and we are not aware of any threatened litigation that may result in claims for indemnification.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the cash and equity compensation arrangements of our directors and executive officers discussed above under
�Management�Director Compensation� and �Executive Compensation,� the following is a description of transactions since February 1, 2009, to
which we have been a party in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed $120,000 and in which any of our directors, executive
officers, beneficial holders of more than 5% of our capital stock, or entities affiliated with them, had or will have a direct or indirect material
interest.

Sales of Convertible Preferred Stock

The following table summarizes purchases of our convertible preferred stock since February 1, 2009 by holders of more than 5% of our capital
stock and their affiliated entities. None of our directors or executive officers purchased shares of our convertible preferred stock during this time
period. Each outstanding share of our Series G convertible preferred stock is convertible into one share of our common stock, each outstanding
share of our Series H convertible preferred stock is convertible into one share of our common stock and each outstanding share of our Series I
convertible preferred stock is convertible into one share of our common stock upon the completion of this offering. All of our outstanding
convertible preferred stock will convert into 439,549 shares of our Series 1 common stock and 6,548,571 shares of our Series 2 common stock
assuming the conversion immediately prior to the closing of this offering.

Shares of Preferred Stock
Incentive

Common Stock Aggregate
Purchase PricePurchasers Series G1 Series G2 Series H1 Series H2 Series I1 Series I2 Series 1 Series 2

Executive Officers and
Directors:
None �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  
5% Stockholders:
Atlantic Bridge Ventures
GP Ltd.(1). �  �  �  271,155 �  �  �  746,046 $ 908,642
Entities affiliated with
Crédit Agricole Private
Equity(2) 30,622 46,760 89,550 89,550 150,000 100,000 777,571 424,142 3,067,446
Entities affiliated with
Crescendo Ventures(3) �  103,767 �  595,253 �  �  �  1,848,709 3,291,838
Fonds de solidarité des
travailleurs du Québec �  �  �  254,349 �  �  �  653,767 852,323
HarbourVest International
Private Equity Partners
V-Direct Fund L.P.(4) �  218,847 �  379,582 �  �  �  2,220,745 4,007,578
Sageview Capital
Master, L.P.(5) �  �  �  �  �  2,500,000 �  �  15,000,000
Saints Capital VI, L.P. �  �  �  110,002 �  �  �  908,687 368,620

Total 30,622 369,374 89,550 1,699,891 150,000 2,600,000 777,571 6,802,096 $ 27,496,447

(1) Kevin Dillon, a director of Envivio, is affiliated with this entity.
(2) The purchasers were Crédit Lyonnais Venture 1 and Crédit Lyonnais Venture Capital.

(3) The purchasers were Crescendo Holdings IV, LLC, Crescendo IV AG & Co. Beteiligungs KG, Crescendo IV Coinvestment Fund, LLC,
Crescendo IV Entrepreneur Fund A, L.P., Crescendo IV Entrepreneur Fund, L.P. and Crescendo IV, L.P. David Spreng, a director of
Envivio, is affiliated with these entities.
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(4) Corentin du Roy de Blicquy, a director of Envivio, is affiliated with this entity.
(5) Edward Gilhuly, a director of Envivio, is affiliated with this entity.
In September 2009, we sold 30,622 shares of Series G1 convertible preferred stock and 369,374 shares of Series G2 convertible preferred stock
for $12.50 per share and received total consideration of an aggregate of $5.0 million. Between June and August 2010, we sold 89,550 shares of
Series H1 convertible preferred stock, 1,848,722 shares of Series H2 convertible preferred stock, 777,571 shares of incentive Series 1 common
stock and 8,717,016 shares of incentive Series 2 common stock for $3.351 per unit and received total consideration of approximately $6.5
million. In connection with this Series H financing, all outstanding shares of Series B, C, D, E and F convertible preferred stock converted into
shares of common stock. Also in June 2010, we converted the outstanding principal balance of our outstanding convertible promissory notes in
the amount of $1.0 million plus accrued interest in the amount of approximately $4,800 into 299,855 shares of Series H2 convertible preferred
stock simultaneously with our Series H financing. Between December 2011 and January 2012, we sold 150,000 shares of Series I1 convertible
preferred stock and 2,600,000 shares of Series I2 convertible preferred stock for $6.00 per share and received total consideration of an aggregate
of $16.5 million.

Convertible Note Financing with Current Investors

The convertible promissory notes referenced above which converted into shares of Series H2 convertible preferred stock in June 2010 were
issued pursuant to a convertible note purchase agreement dated December 30, 2009. Under that agreement, principal and accrued interest
outstanding converted into shares of Series H2 convertible preferred stock at a pre-determined rate calculated by dividing the total principal and
accrued interest outstanding on the date of our Series H offering by the price per share paid for the shares. Therefore, the outstanding principal
balance of the convertible promissory notes in the amount of approximately $1.0 million plus accrued interest in the amount of approximately
$4,800 converted into 299,855 shares of Series H2 convertible preferred stock. Entities affiliated with Crescendo Ventures participated in the
convertible note financing and, through its affiliated entities, holds more than 5% of our capital stock. These entities purchased an aggregate of
$1.0 million in convertible promissory notes, which converted into an aggregate of 299,855 shares of Series H2 convertible preferred stock. On
January 31, 2012, this investor owned an aggregate of 3,428,847 shares, or 16.6% of our outstanding capital stock, on a fully diluted basis.

Related Party Transaction Policy

We have adopted a formal policy that our executive officers, directors, holders of more than 5% of any class of our voting securities, and any
member of the immediate family of and any entity affiliated with any of the foregoing persons, are not permitted to enter into a related party
transaction with us without the prior consent of our audit committee, or other independent members of our board of directors in the event it is
inappropriate for our audit committee to review such transaction due to a conflict of interest. Any request for us to enter into a transaction with
an executive officer, director, principal stockholder, or any of their immediate family members or affiliates, in which the amount involved
exceeds $120,000 must first be presented to our audit committee for review, consideration and approval. In approving or rejecting any such
proposal, our audit committee is to consider the relevant facts and circumstances available and deemed relevant to our audit committee,
including, but not limited to, whether the transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third party
under the same or similar circumstances and the extent of the related party�s interest in the transaction. All of the transactions described above
were entered into prior to the adoption of such policy.

Although we have not had a written policy for the review and approval of transactions with related persons prior to May 2011, our board of
directors has historically reviewed and approved any transaction where a director or officer had a financial interest, including all of the
transactions described above. Prior to approving such a transaction, the material facts as to a director�s or officer�s relationship or interest as to the
agreement or transaction were disclosed to our board of directors. Our board of directors would
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take this information into account when evaluating the transaction and in determining whether such a transaction was fair to the company and in
the best interests of all of our stockholders. In addition, for each related party transaction described above, the disinterested directors in the
context of each such transaction approved the applicable agreement and transaction.

Investors Rights Agreement

Holders of our convertible preferred stock are entitled to certain registration rights with respect to the common stock issued or issuable upon
conversion of the convertible preferred stock. See �Description of Capital Stock�Investors Rights Agreement� for additional information.

Stock Option Grants

Certain stock option grants to our directors and related option grant policies are described in �Management�Director Compensation.�

Other Transactions

We have entered into various employment related agreements and compensatory arrangements with our executive officers that, among other
things, provide for compensatory and certain change of control and severance benefits. For a description of these agreements and arrangements,
see �Management�Executive Compensation�Employment, Change of Control and Severance Arrangements.�

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification agreements with certain of our non-employee directors, all of which we plan to amend and restate prior to
the closing of the offering. Prior to the closing of the offering, we plan to enter into indemnification agreements with our other directors and our
officers. The indemnification agreements and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws require us to indemnify these individuals to the fullest
extent permitted by Delaware law. See �Management�Limitation on Liability and Indemnification Matters.�

Indebtedness of Management

From January 2003 to May 2008, we loaned Julien Signès an aggregate of $558,764 at interest rates ranging from 2.7% to 4.6% per annum,
pursuant to secured promissory notes. These notes were full recourse notes and were secured by a pledge of stock. The aggregate amount of
indebtedness of Mr. Signès outstanding under these notes as of January 31, 2011 was $691,185. On April 12, 2011, Mr. Signès repaid $626,820
of his notes in connection with the sale to a third party of certain shares of our common stock held by Mr. Signès. In addition, on April 13, 2011,
our board of directors agreed to forgive an aggregate of $69,248 of outstanding principal and accrued interest, which Mr. Signès owed as of
April 13, 2011. We also agreed to provide Mr. Signès a tax gross-up payment to cover his income taxes on the cancellation of indebtedness
income.
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PRINCIPAL AND SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information regarding the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned on March 31, 2012, and
immediately following consummation of this offering, assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase
1,163,250 additional shares from the selling stockholders by:

� Each person who is known by us to beneficially own 5% or more of our common stock;

� Each of our directors and named executive officers;

� All of our directors and executive officers as a group; and

� each selling stockholder.
We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with SEC rules. Except as indicated by the footnotes below, we believe, based on the
information furnished to us, that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all
shares of common stock that they beneficially own, subject to applicable community property laws.

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 20,679,497 shares of common stock outstanding at March 31, 2012, assuming the conversion of all
outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock into 6,988,120 shares of our common stock, but does not reflect the exercise of any
warrants or options to purchase common stock or convertible preferred stock. For purposes of the table below, we have assumed that 27,179,497
shares of common stock will be outstanding upon completion of this offering. In computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially
owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, we deemed to be outstanding all shares of common stock subject to options,
warrants or other convertible securities held by that person or entity that are currently exercisable or exercisable on or before May 30, 2012,
which is 60 days after March 31, 2012. We did not deem these shares outstanding, however, for the purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of any other person. Beneficial ownership representing less than one percent is denoted with an �*.�
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Except as otherwise set forth below, the address of each of the persons listed below is 400 Oyster Point Boulevard, Suite 325, South San
Francisco, California 94080. Unless otherwise indicated, based on the information supplied to us by or on behalf of the selling stockholder, the
selling stockholder is not a broker-dealer or an affiliate of a broker-dealer.

Shares Beneficially
Owned Prior to the

Offering
Number of Shares

Being Offered Shares Beneficially Owned After the Offering

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Shares(1)
Percentage

(%)
No

Exercise
Full

Exercise

No
Exercise

Full
Exercise

Shares(1)
Percentage

(%) Shares(1)
Percentage

(%)
Executive Officers and Directors:
Julien Signès (2) 806,117 3.8% 91,615 �  714,502 2.6% 714,502 2.6% 
Gianluca U. Rattazzi (3) 503,670 2.4% 50,000 �  453,670 1.6% 453,670 1.6% 
Erik E. Miller (4) 201,468 1.0% 25,863 �  175,605 * 175,605 *
Kevin P. O�Keefe (5) 235,718 1.1% 29,252 �  206,466 * 206,466 *
Anne M. Lynch (6) 50,000 * 4,947 �  45,053 * 45,053 *
Kevin E. Dillon (7) 1,417,201 6.9% 67,312 74,408 1,349,889 5.0% 1,275,481 4.7% 
Corentin du Roy de Blicquy (8) �  �  �  �  �  �  �  �  
Marcel Gani (9) 40,000 * �  �  40,000 * 40,000 *
Edward Gilhuly (10) 2,500,000 12.1% 400,000 500,000 2,100,000 7.7% 1,600,000 5.9% 
Terry D. Kramer (11) 40,000 * �  �  40,000 * 40,000 *
Clifford B. Meltzer (12) 40,000 * 3,957 �  36,043 * 36,043 *
R. David Spreng (13) 3,428,847 16.6% 114,027 126,049 3,314,820 12.2% 3,188,771 11.7% 
All Executive Officers and Directors as a group
(12 persons) (14) 9,263,021 41.0% 786,973 700,457 8,476,048 29.9% 7,775,591 27.5% 

5% Stockholders:
Atlantic Bridge Ventures GP Ltd. (7) 1,417,201 6.9% 67,312 74,408 1,349,889 5.0% 1,275,481 4.7% 
Entities affiliated with Crédit Agricole Private Equity
(15) 2,293,489 11.1% 76,251 84,291 2,217,238 8.2% 2,132,947 7.8% 
Entities affiliated with Crescendo
Ventures (13) 3,428,847 16.6% 114,027 126,049 3,314,820 12.2% 3,188,771 11.7% 
Fonds de solidarité des travailleurs du Québec (F.T.Q.)
(16) 1,159,580 5.6% 47,497 52,503 1,112,083 4.1% 1,059,580 3.9% 
HarbourVest International Private Equity Partners
V-Direct Fund L.P. (17) 3,639,939 17.6% �  �  3,639,939 13.4% 3,639,939 13.4% 
Sageview Capital Master, L.P. (10) 2,500,000 12.1% 400,000 500,000 2,100,000 7.7% 1,600,000 5.9% 
Saints Capital VI, L.P. (18) 1,550,572 7.5% 101,970 112,719 1,448,602 5.3% 1,335,883 4.9% 

Other Selling Stockholders:
Budworth Investments Limited (19) 168,613 * 11,299 12,489 157,314 * 144,825 *
France Télécom Technologies Investissements (20) 321,891 1.6% 51,022 56,401 270,869 1.0% 214,468 *
Harbinger (BVI) Venture Capital Corp.(21) 362,929 1.8% 24,399 26,971 338,530 1.2% 311,559 1.1% 
Inno Strategy Limited (22) 165,920 * 11,152 12,328 154,768 * 142,440 *
Innova Investment Partners, Ltd. (23) 65,319 * 4,452 4,920 60,867 * 55,947 *
Jonathan Fram and Leslie Fram Trust U/T/A
March 20, 2001 24,527 * 1,526 1,688 23,001 * 21,313 *
Maton Fund II L.P. (24) 608,544 2.9% 32,298 35,702 576,246 2.1% 540,544 2.0% 
NTT Leasing Capital (U.S.A.), Inc. (25) 216,897 1.0% 14,493 16,021 202,404 * 186,383 *
Reinhard Mohn GmbH (26) 2,884 * 458 506 2,426 * 1,920 *
Sienna Corporation (27) 1,800 * 286 316 1,514 * 1,198 *
Stéphane Couvreur 31,245 * 1,965 2,172 29,280 * 27,108 *
SVIC No. 11 New Technology Business Investment
L.L.P. (28) 828,252 4.0% 27,538 30,440 800,714 2.9% 770,274 2.8% 
Entities affiliated with Venture Lending and Leasing
(29) 112,622 * 12,055 13,326 100,567 * 87,241 *
Alexander MacAulay 100,734 * 9,966 �  90,768 * 90,768 *
Arnaud Perrier (30) 66,484 * 6,578 �  59,906 * 59,906 *
Boris Felts (31) 66,015 * 6,578 �  59,437 * 59,437 *
Gall Le Garrec 22,150 * 2,191 �  19,959 * 19,959 *
Gilles Guilgué 66,483 * 6,578 �  59,905 * 59,905 *
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Jean-Pierre Henot 100,734 * 9,966 �  90,768 * 90,768 *
Jodi Benassi (32) 15,250 * 1,509 �  13,741 * 13,741 *
Michaël Ropert 11,045 * 1,000 �  10,045 * 10,045 *
Jean Marie LeCorre 10,000 * 1,000 �  9,000 * 9,000 *
Tim Gray (33) 26,874 * 4,000 �  22,874 * 22,874 *
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(1) Unless otherwise indicated, includes shares owned by a spouse, minor children and relatives sharing the same home, as well as entities owned or
controlled by the named person. Also includes options and warrants to purchase shares of common stock exercisable on or prior to March 31, 2012. Unless
otherwise noted, shares are owned of record and beneficially by the named person.

(2) Includes 803,767 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 466,861 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(3) Consists of 503,670 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 265,534 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior
to March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(4) Consists of 201,468 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 112,721 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior
to March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(5) Consists of 235,718 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 142,413 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior
to March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(6) Consists of 50,000 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 34,375 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(7) Elaine Coughlan, Brian Long and Kevin Dillon are Controlling Shareholders of Atlantic Bridge Ventures GP Ltd. and share voting and dispositive power
over these shares. Each of these individuals disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his or her pecuniary interest therein. The
principal business address of Atlantic Bridge Ventures GP Ltd. is 31 Kildare Street, Dublin 2, Republic of Ireland.

(8) Excludes 3,639,939 shares held by HarbourVest International Private Equity Partners V-Direct Fund L.P. Mr. du Roy de Blicquy is an employee of
HarbourVest Partners (U.K.) Limited, a subsidiary of HarbourVest Partners, LLC, the managing member of the general partner of the general partner of
HarbourVest International Private Equity Partners V-Direct Fund L.P. Mr. du Roy de Blicquy does not have voting power or dispositive rights over shares
held by HarbourVest International Private Equity Partners V-Direct Fund L.P. and disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by HarbourVest
International Private Equity Partners V-Direct Fund L.P.

(9) Consists of 40,000 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 31,667 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(10) Edward Gilhuly, one of our directors, and Scott M. Stuart are Co-Presidents of Sageview Capital MGP, LLC, which ultimately controls the general partner
of Sageview Capital Master, L.P. As Co-Presidents, Mr. Gilhuly and Mr. Stuart share control, voting and dispositive power over these shares. Each of
these individuals disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. The principal business address of
Sageview Capital Master, L.P. is 55 Railroad Avenue, 1st Floor, Greenwich, CT 06830.

(11) Consists of 40,000 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 31,667 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(12) Consists of 40,000 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 21,668 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(13) Represents 452,653 shares held by Crescendo Holdings IV, LLC, 110,324 shares held by Crescendo IV AG & Co., Beteiligungs KG, 194,255 shares held
by Crescendo IV Coinvestment Fund, LLC, 10,616 shares held by Crescendo IV Entrepreneur Fund A, L.P., 26,153 shares held by Crescendo IV
Entrepreneur Fund, L.P. and 2,634,846 shares held by Crescendo IV, L.P. David Spreng, one of our directors, is the Managing Member of Crescendo
Ventures IV, LLC, which is the General Partner of Crescendo IV, L.P., Crescendo IV Entrepreneur Fund, L.P. and Crescendo IV Entrepreneur Fund A,
L.P., and which is the Manager of Crescendo Holdings IV, LLC. He is also the Managing Member of Crescendo German Investments IV, LLC, which is
the Managing Partner of Crescendo IV AG & Co. Beteiligungs KG and is the Managing Member of Crescendo IV Coinvestment Fund, LLC. Mr. Spreng
holds voting and dispositive power over these shares. Mr. Spreng disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary
interest therein. The principal business address of Crescendo Ventures is 600 Hansen Way, Palo Alto, California 94304.

(14) Includes 1,914,623 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 1,106,906 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on
or prior to March 31, 2012, such right which lapses over time.

(15) Includes 335,979 shares held by Crédit Lyonnais Venture 1, 1,870,740 shares held by Crédit Lyonnais Venture Capital and 86,770 shares held by Lion
Capital Investissement. Antoine Colboc is the Head of Venture Capital of Crédit Agricole Private Equity, which is the managing company of Crédit
Lyonnais Venture 1, Crédit Lyonnais Venture Capital and Lion Capital Investissement. Mr. Colboc holds voting and dispositive power over these shares.
Mr. Colboc disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. The principal business address of Crédit
Agricole Private Equity is 100 Boulevard du Montparnasse, 75682 Paris Cedex 14, France.

(16) Voting and dispositive power with respect to these shares is ultimately shared by Fonds de solidarité des travailleurs du Québec�s board of directors, which
consists of Michel Arsenault, Louis Bolduc, Yvon Bolduc, Alain DeGrandpré, Daniel Boyer, Denise Martin, Michel Ouimet, Réjean Parent, Daniel Roy,
Louise St-Cyr, Jérome Turcq, Pierre-Maurice Vachon, Lucie Levasseur, Yves Ouellet, Jean-Pierre Fortin and Jean-Pierre Ouellet. The principal business
address of Fonds de solidarité des travailleurs du Québec is Bureau 200, 545, Boulevard Crémazie Est, Montreal (Québec) H2M 2W4 Canada.

(17) John M. Toomey, Jr., William A. Johnston, Gregory V. Stento and D. Brooks Zug are members of the Investment Committee of HarbourVest Partners,
LLC, which is the Managing Member of HIPEP V-Direct Associates LLC, which is the General Partner of HIPEP V-Direct Associates L.P., which is the
General Partner of HarbourVest International Private Equity Partners V-Direct Fund L.P. The individuals listed herein share voting and dispositive power
over these shares, but disclaim beneficial ownership except to the extent of their pecuniary interest therein. The principal business address of HarbourVest
International
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Private Equity Partners V-Direct Fund L.P. is c/o HarbourVest Partners, LLC, One Financial Center, 44th Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02111.
(18) Kenneth Sawyer, David Quinlivan and Ghia Griarte are the Managing Members of Saints Capital VI LLC, which is the General Partner of Saints Capital

VI L.P. The individuals listed herein share voting and dispositive power over these shares, but disclaim beneficial ownership except to the extent of his or
her pecuniary interest therein. The principal business address of Saints Capital VI, L.P. is 475 Sansome Street, Suite 1850, San Francisco, California
94111.

(19) Chih-Kai Cheng has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 7th FL, 187 Tiding Blvd. Sec.2,
Neihu, Taipei, Taiwan.

(20) Cédric Testut has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 6, place d�Alleray 75015 Paris
France.

(21) Chih-Kai Cheng has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 7th FL, 187 Tiding Blvd. Sec.2,
Neihu, Taipei, Taiwan.

(22) Chih-Kai Cheng has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 7th FL, 187 Tiding Blvd. Sec.2,
Neihu, Taipei, Taiwan.

(23) Chih-Kai Cheng has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 7th FL, 187 Tiding Blvd. Sec.2,
Neihu, Taipei, Taiwan.

(24) Jaff Lin has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 20010 Spaich Ct., Saratoga, CA 95070.
(25) Masaaki Nogawa has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address for this stockholder is 2-1, Shibaura 1-chome

Minato-ku, Tokoyo 105-6791, Japan.
(26) Reinhard Mohn GmbH is a limited liability company entirely owned by Bertelsmann AG. Bertelsmann AG itself is a privately held stock corporation. 80.9

percent of the capital shares in Bertelsmann AG are held indirectly by foundations (Bertelsmann Stiftung, Reinhard Mohn Stiftung, BVG-Stiftung) and
19.1 percent are held indirectly by the Mohn family. The Bertelsmann Verwaltungsgesellschaft (BVG) controls all voting rights in the Bertelsmann AG
Annual General Meeting.

(27) Bhaskar Srinivasan has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address for this stockholder is 41350 Christy St., Fremont,
CA 94538.

(28) Consists of 828,252 shares held by SVIC No. 11 New Technology Business Investment L.L.P., or SVIC No. 11 Fund. Myung-ku Kang, Chief Financial
Officer of Samsung Venture Investment Corporation, holds voting and dispositive power over the securities held by SVIC No. 11 Fund. Mr. Kang
disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares held by SVIC No. 11 Fund. The principal business address of this stockholder is 29th Fl. Samsung
Electronics Bldg., 1320-10, Seocho 2-dong, Seocho-gu, Seoul, Korea 137-857.

(29) Includes 81,330 shares held by Venture Lending and Leasing IV, LLC, of which 18,000 shares are subject to warrants which are immediately exercisable,
and 31,292 shares held by Venture Lending and Leasing V, LLC, of which 18,000 shares are subject to warrants which are immediately exercisable.
Martin Eng has voting and dispositive power over these shares. The principal business address of this stockholder is 104 La Mesa Dr., Suite 102, Portola
Valley, CA 94028.

(30) Consists of 66,484 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 36,523 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time.

(31) Includes 63,979 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 34,292 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time and 2,031 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2012.

(32) Consists of 3,250 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 1,964 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or
prior to March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time and 12,000 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2012.

(33) Consists of 13,000 shares subject to options which are immediately exercisable, 7,855 of which are subject to Envivio�s right of repurchase on or prior to
March 31, 2012, which right lapses over time and 13,874 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2012.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

General

The following is a summary of the rights of our common stock and preferred stock and certain provisions of our restated certificate of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, as they will be in effect upon the completion of this offering. For more detailed information,
please see our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement of
which this prospectus is part.

Immediately following the completion of this offering, our authorized capital stock will consist of shares, with a par value of $0.001 per share,
of which:

� 100,000,000 shares will be designated as common stock; and

� 2,500,000 shares will be designated as preferred stock.
As of January 31, 2012, we had outstanding 6,988,120 shares of convertible preferred stock (which are convertible into an aggregate of
6,988,120 shares of common stock assuming the conversion immediately prior to the closing of this offering) and 13,685,877 shares of common
stock, held of record by 160 stockholders. In addition, as of January 31, 2012, 2,328,935 shares of our common stock were subject to
outstanding options, 263,768 shares of our common stock issuable upon vesting of outstanding RSUs, and warrants exercisable for up to an
aggregate of 36,000 shares of our capital stock that do not expire upon the completion of this offering were outstanding. For more information
on our capitalization, see �Capitalization.�

Common Stock

Pursuant to our restated certificate of incorporation that will be in effect immediately prior to the closing of this offering, the holders of common
stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. This restated certificate of incorporation does not
provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors. Subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock,
the holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared by the board of directors out of legally
available funds. However, the current policy of the board of directors is to retain earnings, if any, for operations and growth. Upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of the company, subject to the rights, if any of the holders of our preferred stock, the holders of common stock are
entitled to share ratably in all assets that are legally available for distribution. The holders of common stock have no preemptive, subscription,
redemption or conversion rights. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected
by, the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock, which may be designated solely by action of the board of directors and issued in the
future.

Preferred Stock

The board of directors is authorized, subject to any limitations prescribed by law, without further vote or action by the stockholders, to issue
from time to time shares of preferred stock in one or more series without stockholder approval. Each such series of preferred stock shall have
such number of shares, designations, preferences, voting powers, qualifications, and special or relative rights or privileges as shall be determined
by the board of directors, which may include, among others, dividend rights, voting rights, liquidation preferences, conversion rights and
preemptive rights.

Warrants

As of January 31, 2012, there were warrants outstanding exercisable for an aggregate of 36,000 shares of preferred stock, at a weighted average
exercise price of $12.50 per share, which will convert into warrants to purchase 36,000 shares of common stock immediately prior to the
completion of this offering.
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Investors Rights Agreement

Upon completion of this offering, without giving effect to the sale of shares in this offering by the selling stockholders, the holders of an
aggregate of 10,436,840 shares of our common stock that were issued or are issuable upon the exercise of our outstanding warrants and the
conversion of our convertible preferred stock (including the convertible preferred stock issued upon the exercise of all outstanding preferred
warrants), assuming the conversion effective immediately prior to the closing of this offering, or their transferees, will be entitled to the rights
described below with respect to registration of the resale of such shares under the Securities Act pursuant to an Amended and Restated Investors
Rights Agreement by and among us and certain of our stockholders dated December 2, 2011, as amended on January 25, 2012 and April 4,
2012.

Registration of shares of common stock in response to the exercise of the following rights would result in the holders being able to trade these
shares without restriction under the Securities Act when the applicable registration statement is declared effective. We generally must pay all
expenses, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, related to any registration effected pursuant to the exercise of these registration
rights.

The registration rights terminate upon the earlier of a change of control, or with respect to the registration rights of an individual holder, when
such holder can sell all of such holder�s registrable securities in any three-month period without registration, in compliance with Rule 144 of the
Securities Act or another similar exemption.

Demand registration rights � If, at any time beginning 180 days after the consummation of this offering, the holders of not less than 40% of the
outstanding registrable securities request in writing that an amount of securities having a proposed aggregate offering price of at least $8,000,000
be registered, we may be required to register their shares. We are only obligated to effect two registrations in response to these demand
registration rights of the holders of registrable securities. Depending on certain conditions, however, we may defer such registration for up to
90 days. The underwriters of any underwritten offering have the right to limit the number of shares registered by these holders for marketing
reasons.

Piggyback registration rights � If at any time we propose to register any shares of our common stock under the Securities Act after this offering,
subject to certain exceptions, the holders of registrable securities will be entitled to notice of the registration and to include their share of
registrable securities in the registration. The underwriters of any underwritten offering have the right to limit the number of shares registered by
these holders for marketing reasons, subject to certain limitations.

Form S-3 registration rights � The holders of not less than 20% of the outstanding registrable securities may request in writing that we effect a
registration on Form S-3 under the Securities Act, when registration of our shares under Form S-3 becomes possible, and when the proposed
aggregate offering price of the shares to be registered by the holders requesting registration is at least $1,000,000, subject to certain exceptions.
We are only obligated to effect two registrations in response to these Form S-3 registration rights.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Delaware Law and Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

Certain provisions of Delaware law, our restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws to become effective upon
completion of this offering could have the effect of delaying, deferring or discouraging another party from acquiring control of us. These
provisions, which are summarized below, are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids.
These provisions are also designed, in part, to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to first negotiate with our board of directors.
We believe that the benefits of increased protection of our potential ability to negotiate with an unfriendly or unsolicited acquirer outweigh
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the disadvantages of discouraging such proposals, including proposals that are priced above the then-current market value of our common stock,
because, among other reasons, the negotiation of such proposals could result in an improvement of their terms.

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws � Our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws to become effective upon
completion of this offering include provisions that:

� authorize the board of directors to issue, without further action by the stockholders, up to 2.5 million shares of undesignated preferred
stock;

� classify our board of directors so that only a portion of our directors are elected each year, with each director serving a three-year term;

� require that any action to be taken by our stockholders be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting and not by written
consent;

� specify that special meetings of our stockholders can be called only by the board of directors, the chairman of the board, the chief
executive officer or the president;

� establish an advance notice procedure for stockholder approvals to be brought before an annual meeting of our stockholders, including
proposed nominations of persons for election to the board of directors;

� provide that directors may be removed only for cause; and

� provide that vacancies on our board of directors may be filled only by a majority of directors then in office, even though less than a
quorum.

Delaware anti-takeover statute � We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL regulating corporate takeovers. In general,
Section 203 prohibits a publicly-held Delaware corporation from engaging, under certain circumstances, in a business combination with an
interested stockholder for a period of three years following the date the person became an interested stockholder unless:

� prior to the date of the transaction, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the
transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

� upon completion of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder
owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes
of determining the voting stock outstanding, but not the outstanding voting stock owned by the interested stockholder, (i) shares
owned by persons who are directors and also officers and (ii) shares owned by employee stock plans in which employee participants
do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange
offer; or

� at or subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combination is approved by the board of directors of the corporation and
authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of
the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.
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Generally, a �business combination� includes a merger, asset or stock sale, or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the �interested
stockholder.� Generally, an �interested stockholder� is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns or, within three years prior to the
determination of interested stockholder status, did own 15% or more of a corporation�s outstanding voting stock. We expect the existence of this
provision to have an anti-takeover effect with respect to transactions our board of directors does not approve in advance. We also anticipate that
Section 203 may discourage business combinations or other attempts that might result in a premium over the market price for the shares of
common stock held by our stockholders.
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The provisions of DGCL, our restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws to become effective upon completion of
this offering could have the effect of discouraging others from attempting hostile takeovers and, as a consequence, they may also inhibit
temporary fluctuations in the market price of our common stock that often result from actual or rumored hostile takeover attempts. These
provisions may also have the effect of preventing changes in our management. It is possible that these provisions could make it more difficult to
accomplish transactions that stockholders may otherwise deem to be in their best interests.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC. The transfer agent�s address is 6201
15th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219.

Listing

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol �ENVI.�
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CERTAIN MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

TO NON-U.S. HOLDERS

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to non-U.S. holders (as defined below) with respect
to the ownership and disposition of our common stock, but does not purport to be a complete analysis of all the potential tax considerations
relating thereto. This summary is based upon the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code,
Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, administrative rulings and judicial decisions, all as of the date hereof. These authorities may be
changed, possibly retroactively, so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those set forth below. We have not sought
and do not plan to seek any ruling from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, with respect to statements made and the conclusions
reached in the following summary, and there can be no assurance that the IRS or a court will agree with our statements and conclusions.

This summary does not address the tax considerations arising under the laws of any U.S. state or local or any non-U.S. jurisdiction or under U.S.
federal gift and estate tax laws. In addition, this discussion does not address tax considerations applicable to an investor�s particular
circumstances or to investors that may be subject to special tax rules, including, without limitation:

� banks, insurance companies or other financial institutions;

� persons subject to the alternative minimum tax;

� tax-exempt organizations;

� dealers in securities or currencies;

� �controlled foreign corporations,� or �passive foreign investment companies,� each as defined for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

� partnerships or entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or any investors in such entities;

� traders in securities that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for their securities holdings;

� persons that own, or are deemed to own, more than five percent of our common stock (except to the extent specifically set forth
below);

� certain former citizens or long-term residents of the United States;

� persons who hold our common stock as a position in a hedging transaction, �straddle,� �conversion transaction� or other risk reduction
transaction;

� persons who do not hold our common stock as a capital asset within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code
(generally, for investment purposes); or
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� persons deemed to sell our common stock under the constructive sale provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.
If a partnership or entity classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes is a beneficial owner of our common stock, the tax
treatment of a partner generally will depend on the status of the partner and upon the activities of the partnership. Accordingly, partnerships that
hold our common stock, and partners in such partnerships, should consult their tax advisors.

You are urged to consult your tax advisor with respect to the application of the U.S. federal income tax laws to your particular situation,
as well as any tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our common stock arising under the U.S. federal estate or
gift tax rules or under the laws of any U.S. state or local or any non-U.S. or other taxing jurisdiction or under any applicable tax treaty.
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Non-U.S. Holder Defined

For purposes of this discussion, you are a non-U.S. holder if you are a beneficial owner of our common stock (other than a partnership or entity
classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) that is not:

� an individual citizen or resident of the United States;

� a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes created or organized in the United States or
under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof;

� an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or

� a trust (i) whose administration is subject to the primary supervision of a U.S. court and which has one or more U.S. persons who have
the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (ii) which has made a valid election to be treated as a U.S. person.

Distributions

If we make distributions on our common stock, those payments will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid
from our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. To the extent those distributions
exceed both our current and our accumulated earnings and profits, they will constitute a return of capital and will first reduce your basis in our
common stock, but not below zero. Any excess will be treated as gain from the sale or other disposition of the common stock and will be treated
as described below under ��Gain on Disposition of Common Stock.�

Any dividend paid to you generally will be subject to U.S. withholding tax either at a rate of 30% of the gross amount of the dividend or such
lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty, unless the dividends are effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S.
trade or business, as discussed below. In order to receive a reduced treaty rate, you must provide us with an IRS Form W-8BEN or other
appropriate version of IRS Form W-8 prior to the distribution date properly certifying qualification for the reduced rate.

Dividends received by you that are effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S. trade or business (and, if required by an applicable income
tax treaty, are attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by you in the U.S.) generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the
same graduated rates applicable to U.S. persons, net of certain deductions and credits, subject to an applicable income tax treaty providing
otherwise. In addition, if you are a corporate non-U.S. holder, dividends you receive that are effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S.
trade or business may also be subject to a branch profits tax at a rate of 30% or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax
treaty. Payment of effectively connected dividends that are included in the gross income of a non-U.S. holder generally are exempt from
withholding tax if you provide us with an IRS Form W-8ECI or other applicable IRS Form W-8 prior to the distribution date properly certifying
such exemption.

If you are eligible for a reduced rate of withholding tax pursuant to a tax treaty, you may be able to obtain a refund of any excess amounts
currently withheld if you timely file an appropriate claim for refund with the IRS.

Gain on Disposition of Common Stock

You generally will not be required to pay U.S. federal income tax on any gain realized upon the sale or other disposition of our common stock
unless:

� the gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S. trade or business (and, if an income tax treaty applies, the gain is
attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by you in the
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United States), in which case you will be required to pay tax on the net gain derived from the sale (net of certain deductions or credits)
under regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates, and for a non-U.S. holder that is a corporation, such non-U.S. holder may be
subject to a branch profits tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty;

� you are an individual who is present in the United States for a period or periods aggregating 183 days or more during the calendar year
in which the sale or disposition occurs and certain other conditions are met, in which case you will be required to pay a flat 30% tax on
the gain derived from the sale, which tax may be offset by U.S. source capital losses (even though you are not considered a resident of
the United States) subject to applicable income tax or other treaties providing otherwise; or

� our common stock constitutes a U.S. real property interest by reason of our status as a �United States real property holding corporation�
for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or a USRPHC, at any time within the shorter of the five-year period preceding the disposition or
your holding period for our common stock. In general, a corporation is a USRPHC if the fair market value of its U.S. real property
interests (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code and applicable Treasury regulations) equals or exceeds 50% of the sum of the fair
market value of its worldwide (U.S. and foreign) real property interests and its other assets used or held for use in a trade or business.
We believe that we are not currently and will not become a USRPHC. However, because the determination of whether we are a
USRPHC depends on the fair market value of our U.S. real property relative to the fair market value of our other business assets, there
can be no assurance that we will not become a USRPHC in the future. Even if we become a USRPHC, however, as long as our
common stock is regularly traded on an established securities market, such common stock will be treated as a U.S. real property
interest only if you actually or constructively hold more than five percent of such regularly traded common stock at any time during
the five year (or shorter) period that is described above.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Generally, we must report annually to the IRS the amount of dividends paid to you, your name and address, and the amount of tax withheld, if
any. A similar report will be sent to you. Pursuant to applicable income tax treaties or other agreements, the IRS may make these reports
available to tax authorities in your country of residence.

Payments of dividends or of proceeds on the disposition of common stock made to you may be subject to additional information reporting and
backup withholding at a current rate of 28% unless you establish an exemption, for example by properly certifying your non-U.S. status on a
Form W-8BEN or another appropriate version of IRS Form W-8. Notwithstanding the foregoing, backup withholding and information reporting
may apply if either we or our paying agent has actual knowledge, or reason to know, that you are a U.S. person. Payment of the proceeds from a
disposition of our common stock by a non-U.S. holder effected through a non-U.S. office of a non-U.S. broker generally will not be subject to
information reporting or backup withholding if the payment is not received in the United States. However, information reporting, but generally
not backup withholding, will apply to such a payment if the broker has certain connections with the United States unless the broker has
documentary evidence in its records that the beneficial owner thereof is a non-U.S. holder and specified conditions are met or an exemption is
otherwise established.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax; rather, the U.S. income tax liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the
amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund or credit may generally be obtained from the IRS, provided
that the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.
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Foreign Account Tax Compliance

Recently enacted federal legislation, generally applicable to payments made after December 31, 2012, imposes a 30% U.S. withholding tax on
dividends on our common stock and the gross proceeds from a disposition of our common stock paid to (i) a �foreign financial institution� (as
specifically defined in this new legislation) unless such institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury to collect and disclose
information regarding U.S. account holders of such institution (including certain account holders that are foreign entities with U.S. owners) and
(ii) a non-financial foreign entity unless such entity provides the payor with a certification identifying the substantial U.S. owners of the entity,
which generally includes any U.S. person who directly or indirectly owns more than 10% of the entity. If payment of withholding taxes is
required, non-U.S. holders that are otherwise eligible for an exemption from, or reduction of, U.S. withholding taxes with respect to such
dividends and proceeds may seek a refund or credit from the IRS to obtain the benefit of such exemption or reduction. You are encouraged to
consult with your own tax advisor regarding the possible implications of this legislation on your investment in our common stock.

The preceding discussion of U.S. federal tax considerations is for general information only. It is not tax advice. Each prospective
investor should consult its own tax advisor regarding the particular U.S. federal, state and local and non-U.S. tax consequences of
purchasing, holding and disposing of our common stock, including the consequences of any proposed change in applicable laws.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Before this offering, there has not been a public market for shares of our common stock. Future sales of substantial amounts of shares of our
common stock, including shares issued upon the exercise of outstanding options and warrants, in the public market after this offering, or the
possibility of these sales occurring, could cause the prevailing market price for our common stock to fall or impair our ability to raise equity
capital in the future.

Upon the completion of this offering a total of 26,657,728 shares of common stock will be outstanding, assuming that there are no exercises of
options or warrants after January 31, 2012. Of these shares, all 7,755,000 shares of common stock sold in this offering by us and the selling
stockholders, plus any shares sold upon exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares from the selling stockholders, will be
freely tradable in the public market without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act, unless these shares are held by �affiliates,�
as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

The remaining 18,902,728 shares of common stock will be �restricted securities,� as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act.
These restricted securities are eligible for public sale only if they are registered under the Securities Act or if they qualify for an exemption from
registration under Rules 144 or 701 under the Securities Act, which are summarized below.

Subject to the lock-up agreements described below and the provisions of Rules 144 and 701 under the Securities Act, these restricted securities
will be available for sale in the public market as follows:

Date Number of Shares
On the date of this prospectus �
Between 90 and 180 days after the date of this prospectus �
At various times beginning more than 180 days after the date of this prospectus 18,902,728
In addition, of the 2,592,703 shares of our common stock that were subject to stock options and restricted stock units outstanding as of January
31, 2012, options to purchase 860,091 shares of common stock were vested as of January 31, 2012 and will be eligible for sale at various times
beginning more than 180 days following the effective date of this offering. In addition, as of January 31, 2012, we had outstanding warrants to
purchase convertible preferred stock which shall convert into warrants to purchase an aggregate of 36,000 shares of common stock immediately
prior to the closing of this offering.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144, beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, a person who is not our affiliate and has not been our affiliate at
any time during the preceding three months will be entitled to sell any shares of our common stock that such person has beneficially owned for
at least six months, including the holding period of any prior owner other than one of our affiliates, without regard to volume limitations. Sales
of our common stock by any such person would be subject to the availability of current public information about us if the shares to be sold were
beneficially owned by such person for less than one year.

In addition, under Rule 144, a person may sell shares of our common stock acquired from us immediately upon the closing of this offering,
without regard to volume limitations or the availability of public information about us, if:

� the person is not our affiliate and has not been our affiliate at any time during the preceding three months; and

� the person has beneficially owned the shares to be sold for at least six months, including the holding period of any prior owner other
than one of our affiliates.
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Beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, our affiliates who have beneficially owned shares of our common stock for at least six
months, including the holding period of any prior owner other than one of our affiliates, would be entitled to sell within any three-month period
a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of:

� 1% of the number of shares of our common stock then-outstanding, which will equal approximately 266,577 shares immediately after
this offering; and

� the average weekly trading volume in our common stock during the four calendar weeks preceding the date of filing of a Notice of
Proposed Sale of Securities Pursuant to Rule 144 with respect to the sale.

Sales under Rule 144 by our affiliates are also subject to manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the availability of current
public information about us.

Rule 701

In general, under Rule 701, any of our employees, consultants or advisors who purchase shares from us in connection with a compensatory stock
or option plan or other written agreement in a transaction before the effective date of this offering that was completed in reliance on Rule 701
and complied with the requirements of Rule 701 will, subject to the lock-up restrictions described below, be eligible to resell such shares 90 days
after the effective date of this offering in reliance on Rule 144, but without compliance with certain restrictions, including the holding period,
contained in Rule 144.

Lock-Up Agreements

In connection with this offering we and our officers, directors, the selling stockholders and the remaining holders of substantially all of our
common stock have agreed with the underwriters, subject to certain exceptions, not to dispose of or hedge any of our common stock or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock, file or cause to be filed a registration statement covering shares of common stock
or any securities that are convertible into, exchangeable for, or represent the right to receive, common stock or any substantially similar
securities, or publicly disclose the intention to do any of the foregoing, during the period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the
date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. This agreement is subject to
certain exceptions, and is also subject to extension for up to an additional 34 days, as set forth in �Underwriting.�

Registration Rights

Upon completion of this offering, without giving effect to the sale of shares in this offering by the selling stockholders, the holders of
10,436,840 shares of common stock that were issued or are issuable upon the exercise of our outstanding warrants and the conversion of our
convertible preferred stock (including the convertible preferred stock issuable upon exercise of all outstanding preferred warrants), assuming the
conversion of our convertible preferred stock into common stock effective immediately prior to the closing of this offering, or their transferees,
will be entitled to various rights with respect to the registration of these shares under the Securities Act. Registration of these shares under the
Securities Act would result in these shares becoming fully tradable without restriction under the Securities Act immediately upon the
effectiveness of the registration. See �Description of Capital Stock�Investors Rights Agreement� for additional information.

Registration Statements

We intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act covering all of the shares of common stock subject to options
outstanding or reserved for issuance under our stock plans. We expect to file this registration statement as soon as practicable after this offering.
However, none of the shares registered on Form S-8 will be eligible for resale until the expiration of the lock-up agreements to which they are
subject.
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UNDERWRITING

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in an underwriting agreement dated the date of this prospectus, we and the selling stockholders have
agreed to sell to the underwriters named below, and the underwriters, for whom Goldman, Sachs & Co., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated are acting as representatives, have severally agreed to purchase, the respective numbers of shares of
common stock appearing opposite their names below:

Underwriters Number of Shares
Goldman, Sachs & Co. 3,295,875
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. 2,132,625
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 1,744,875
William Blair & Company, L.L.C. 581,625

Total 7,755,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several underwriters are subject to various conditions, including approval of
legal matters by counsel. The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters are obligated to purchase all the shares of common stock in
the offering if any are purchased, other than those shares covered by the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares from the selling
stockholders described below. If an underwriter defaults, the underwriting agreement provides that the purchase commitments of the
non-defaulting underwriters may be increased or the underwriting agreement may be terminated.

The underwriting agreement provides that we and the selling stockholders will indemnify the several underwriters against liabilities specified in
the underwriting agreement under the Securities Act, or will contribute to payments that the underwriters may be required to make relating to
these liabilities.

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares of common stock to purchasers on or about April 30, 2012.

The underwriters have an option to purchase up to an additional 1,163,250 shares from the selling stockholders to cover sales by the
underwriters of a greater number of shares than the total number set forth in the table above. They may exercise that option for 30 days. If any
shares are purchased pursuant to this option, the underwriters will severally purchase shares in approximately the same proportion as set forth in
the table above.

Determination of Offering Price

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. The initial public offering price was determined through
negotiations between us and the underwriters. In addition to prevailing market conditions, the factors considered in determining the initial public
offering price included the valuation multiples of publicly-traded companies that the representatives of the underwriters believed were
comparable to us, our financial information, our history and prospects and the outlook for our industry, an assessment of our management, our
past and present business operations and relationships, and the prospects for, and timing of, our future sales and an assessment of these factors in
relation to market values and various valuation measures of other companies engaged in activities similar to ours.

We cannot assure you that an active or orderly trading market will develop for our common stock or that our common stock will trade in the
public markets subsequent to this offering at or above the initial public offering price.
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Commissions and Discounts

Shares sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus.
Any shares sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at that price less a concession of not more than $0.378 per share from the
initial public offering price. If all the shares are not sold at the initial public offering price, the underwriters may change the offering price and
the other selling terms. The offering of the shares by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters� right to
reject any order in whole or in part.

The following table summarizes the compensation to be paid to the underwriters by us and the selling stockholders and the proceeds, before
expenses, payable to us and the selling stockholders. Such amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters�
option to purchase 1,163,250 additional shares from the selling stockholders:

Total

Per Share
No

Exercise
Full

Exercise
Public offering price $ 9.00 $ 69,795,000 $ 80,264,250
Underwriting discount 0.63 4,885,650 5,618,498
Proceeds, before expenses, to us 8.37 54,405,000 54,405,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to selling stockholders 8.37 10,504,350 20,240,753
We estimate that the expenses of this offering payable by us, not including underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately
$5.0 million, which includes expenses incurred on behalf of the selling stockholders. In addition, we will reimburse certain legal fees incurred by
the underwriters in connection with this offering.

Indemnification of Underwriters

We and the selling stockholders will indemnify the several underwriters against some civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities
Act and liabilities arising from breaches of our representations and warranties contained in the underwriting agreement. If we are unable to
provide this indemnification, we and the selling stockholders will contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of
those liabilities.

No Sales of Similar Securities

The underwriters will require all of our directors and officers, the selling stockholders and certain other of our stockholders to agree, subject to
certain exceptions, not to offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge, grant any option to purchase, make any short sale or otherwise dispose of any shares
of common stock, or any options or warrants to purchase any shares of common stock, or any securities convertible into, exchangeable for or
that represent the right to receive shares of common stock without the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. for a period of 180 days
after the date of this prospectus.

We have agreed that for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus, we will not, without the prior written consent of Goldman, Sachs
& Co., offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any securities that are substantially similar to the common stock, including but not
limited to any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common stock or any such
substantially similar securities except for the shares of common stock offered in this offering, the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise
of outstanding options and warrants on the date of this prospectus and the shares of our common stock that are issued under our 2012 Stock
Incentive Plan, which will become effective in connection with this offering.

The 180-day restricted period described in the preceding two paragraphs will be automatically extended if: (i) during the last 17 days of the
180-day restricted period we release earnings results or announce material news or a material event or (ii) prior to the expiration of the 180-day
restricted period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period following the last day of the
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180-day period, in which case the restrictions described in the preceding paragraph will continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day
period beginning on the date of release of the earnings results or the announcement of the material news or material event.

Nasdaq Global Select Market Listing

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol �ENVI.�

Short Sales, Stabilizing Transactions and Penalty Bids

In order to facilitate this offering, persons participating in this offering may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the
price of our common stock during and after this offering. Specifically, the underwriters may engage in the following activities in accordance
with the rules of the SEC.

Short sales � Short sales involve the sales by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to purchase in the offering.
Covered short sales are short sales made in an amount not greater than the amount of additional shares for which the underwriters� option
described above may be exercised. The underwriters may cover any covered short position by either exercising their option to purchase
additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to cover the covered short position, the
underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which
they may purchase additional shares pursuant to the option described above. Naked short sales are any short sales that create a short position
greater than the amount of additional shares for which the option described above may be exercised. The underwriters must close out any naked
short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that
there may be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who
purchase in this offering.

Stabilizing transactions � The underwriters may make bids for or purchases of the shares for the purpose of pegging, fixing or maintaining the
price of the shares, so long as stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

Penalty bids � If the underwriters purchase shares in the open market in a stabilizing transaction or syndicate covering transaction, they may
reclaim a selling concession from the underwriters and selling group members who sold those shares as part of this offering. Stabilization and
syndicate covering transactions may cause the price of the shares to be higher than it would be in the absence of these transactions. The
imposition of a penalty bid might also have an effect on the price of the shares if it discourages presales of the shares.

The transactions above may occur on the Nasdaq Global Select Market or otherwise. Neither we, the selling stockholders nor the underwriters
make any representation or prediction as to the effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of the shares. If these
transactions are commenced, they may be discontinued without notice at any time.

Discretionary Accounts

The underwriters have informed us that they do not intend sales to discretionary accounts to exceed 5% of the total number of shares of common
stock offered by them. The underwriters have informed us that they do not intend to confirm sales to discretionary accounts without the prior
specific written approval of the customer.
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Relationships

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities
trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging,
financing and brokerage activities. From time to time, certain of the underwriters and/or their respective affiliates have directly and indirectly
engaged in various financial advisory, investment banking and commercial banking services for us and our affiliates, for which they received
customary compensation, fees and expense reimbursement. In addition, from time to time, certain of the underwriters and their affiliates may
effect transactions for their own account or the account of customers, and hold on behalf of themselves or their customers, long or short
positions in our debt or equity securities or loans, and may do so in the future. In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the
underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or
related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers, and
such investment and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the issuer. The underwriters and their respective affiliates
may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments
and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Sales Outside of the United States

No action has been taken in any jurisdiction (except in the United States) that would permit a public offering of the common shares, or the
possession, circulation or distribution of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any other material relating to us or the
common shares in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, the common shares may not be offered or sold,
directly or indirectly, and none of this prospectus or any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the common shares may be
distributed or published, in or from any country or jurisdiction except in compliance with any applicable rules and regulations of any such
country or jurisdiction. Each of the underwriters may arrange to sell common shares offered hereby in certain jurisdictions outside the United
States, either directly or through affiliates, where they are permitted to do so.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each member state of the European Economic Area that has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a relevant member state),
with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that relevant member state (the relevant
implementation date), an offer of shares of common stock described in this prospectus may not be made to the public in that relevant member
state prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the shares of common stock that has been approved by the competent authority in that
relevant member state or, where appropriate, approved in another relevant member state and notified to the competent authority in that relevant
member state, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, except that, with effect from and including the relevant implementation date, an
offer of securities may be offered to the public in that relevant member state, subject to any variation in that member state by any measure
implementing the Prospectus Directive in that member state, at any time:

� to legal entities which are authorized or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorized or regulated, whose
corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

� to any legal entity that has two or more of (i) an average of at least 250 employees during the last financial year; (ii) a total balance
sheet of more than �43,000,000; and (iii) an annual net turnover of more than �50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or consolidated
accounts;

� to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining
the prior consent of the underwriters; or
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� in any other circumstances that do not require the publication of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive;
provided that no such offer of shares of common stock shall require us or any underwriter to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the
Prospective Directive.

Each purchaser of shares of common stock described in this prospectus supplement located within a relevant member state will be deemed to
have represented, acknowledged and agreed that it is a �qualified investor� within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive.

For purposes of this provision, the expression an �offer to the public� in any relevant member state means the communication in any form and by
any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or
subscribe for the securities, as the expression may be varied in that member state by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that
member state, and the expression �Prospectus Directive� means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in each
relevant member state.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

This prospectus and any other material in relation to the shares described herein is only being distributed to, and is only directed at, persons in
the United Kingdom that are qualified investors within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospective Directive (�qualified investors�) that also
(i) have professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
(Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as amended, or the Order, (ii) who fall within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order or (iii) to whom it may
otherwise lawfully be communicated (all such persons together being referred to as �relevant persons�). The shares are only available to, and any
invitation, offer or agreement to purchase or otherwise acquire such shares will be engaged in only with, relevant persons. This offering
memorandum and its contents are confidential and should not be distributed, published or reproduced (in whole or in part) or disclosed by
recipients to any other person in the United Kingdom. Any person in the United Kingdom that is not a relevant person should not act or rely on
this prospectus or any of its contents.

The distribution of this prospectus in the United Kingdom to anyone not falling within the above categories is not permitted and may contravene
FSMA. No person falling outside those categories should treat this prospectus as constituting a promotion to him, or act on it for any purposes
whatever. Recipients of this prospectus are advised that we, the underwriters and any other person that communicates this prospectus are not, as
a result solely of communicating this prospectus, acting for or advising them and are not responsible for providing recipients of this prospectus
with the protections which would be given to those who are clients of any aforementioned entities that is subject to the Financial Services
Authority Rules.

Notice to Prospective Investors in France

The prospectus (including any amendment, supplement or replacement thereto) has not been approved either by the Autorité des marchés
financiers or by the competent authority of another State that is a contracting party to the Agreement on the European Economic Area and
notified to the Autorité des marchés financiers; no security has been offered or sold and will be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, to the
public in France within the meaning of Article L. 411-1 of the French Code Monétaire et Financier except to permitted investors, or Permitted
Investors, consisting of persons licensed to provide the investment service of portfolio management for the account of third parties, qualified
investors (investisseurs qualifiés) acting for their own account and/or a limited circle of investors (cercle restreint d�investisseurs) acting for their
own account, with �qualified investors� and �limited circle of investors� having the meaning ascribed to them in Articles L. 411-2, D. 411-1, D.
411-2, D. 411-4, D. 744-1, D. 754-1 and D. 764-1 of the French Code Monétaire et Financier; none of this prospectus or any other
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materials related to the offer or information contained therein relating to our securities has been released, issued or distributed to the public in
France except to Permitted Investors; and the direct or indirect resale to the public in France of any securities acquired by any Permitted
Investors may be made only as provided by Articles L. 411-1, L. 411-2, L. 412-1 and L. 621-8 to L. 621-8-3 of the French Code Monétaire et
Financier and applicable regulations thereunder.

Notice to the Residents of Germany

This document has not been prepared in accordance with the requirements for a securities or sales prospectus under the German Securities
Prospectus Act (Wertpapierprospektgesetz), the German Sales Prospectus Act (Verkaufsprospektgesetz), or the German Investment Act
(Investmentgesetz). Neither the German Federal Financial Services Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fur
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht�BaFin) nor any other German authority has been notified of the intention to distribute the securities in Germany.
Consequently, the securities may not be distributed in Germany by way of public offering, public advertisement or in any similar manner AND
THIS DOCUMENT AND ANY OTHER DOCUMENT RELATING TO THE OFFERING, AS WELL AS INFORMATION OR
STATEMENTS CONTAINED THEREIN, MAY NOT BE SUPPLIED TO THE PUBLIC IN GERMANY OR USED IN CONNECTION
WITH ANY OFFER FOR SUBSCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES TO THE PUBLIC IN GERMANY OR ANY OTHER MEANS OF
PUBLIC MARKETING. The securities are being offered and sold in Germany only to qualified investors which are referred to in Section 3,
paragraph 2 no. 1, in connection with Section 2, no. 6, of the German Securities Prospectus Act. This document is strictly for use of the person
who has received it. It may not be forwarded to other persons or published in Germany.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Switzerland

This document does not constitute a prospectus within the meaning of Art. 652a of the Swiss Code of Obligations. The shares of common stock
may not be sold directly or indirectly in or into Switzerland except in a manner which will not result in a public offering within the meaning of
the Swiss Code of Obligations. Neither this document nor any other offering materials relating to the shares of common stock may be
distributed, published or otherwise made available in Switzerland except in a manner which will not constitute a public offer of the shares of
common stock in Switzerland.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

The shares may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to �professional investors� within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not
result in the document being a �prospectus� within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no advertisement,
invitation or document relating to the shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong
(except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to
persons outside Hong Kong or only to �professional investors� within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Singapore

This offering circular has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this offering circular and
any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares may not be circulated
or distributed, nor may the shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or
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purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and
Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the �SFA�), (ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with
the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable
provision of the SFA.

Where the shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 by a relevant person which is: (a) a corporation (which is not an accredited
investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of
whom is an accredited investor; or (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each
beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries� rights and
interest in that trust shall not be transferable for 6 months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the shares under Section 275 except: (1)
to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance
with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (2) where no consideration is given for the transfer; or (3) by operation of law.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Japan

The securities have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (the Financial Instruments
and Exchange Law) and each Initial Purchaser has agreed that it will not offer or sell any securities, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for
the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity
organized under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan, except pursuant
to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any
other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP, Palo Alto,
California. Paul Hastings LLP, Palo Alto, California is representing the underwriters in this offering.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 and for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2012
included in this prospectus, have been so included in reliance on the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, appearing elsewhere herein, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of common stock offered
hereby. This prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration
statement or the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. For further information about us and the common stock offered hereby, we refer you to
the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules filed thereto. Statements contained in this prospectus regarding the contents of any
contract or any other document that is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement are not necessarily complete, and each such statement is
qualified in all respects by reference to the full text of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement. Upon
completion of this offering, we will be required to file periodic reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC pursuant to the
Exchange Act. You may read and copy this information at the Public Reference Room of the SEC, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580,
Washington D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the public reference rooms by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
The SEC also maintains an Internet website that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, like us, that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is www.sec.gov.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Envivio, Inc.

South San Francisco, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Envivio, Inc. as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, convertible preferred stock and stockholders� deficit and comprehensive income/(loss), and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended January 31, 2012. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Envivio,
Inc. at January 31, 2011 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31,
2012, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted new accounting rules for revenue recognition, effective
February 1, 2011.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

San Francisco, California

March 15, 2012
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except for share and per share amounts)

January 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

Pro Forma
Stockholders�
Equity as of
January 31,

2012
(Note 1)

(unaudited)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,017 $ 27,405
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $655 and $133 8,073 8,499
Inventory 11 108
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,544 2,456
Deferred inventory costs, current portion 3,815 1,547

Total current assets 24,460 40,015
Property and equipment, net 1,777 3,016
Deferred inventory costs, net of current portion 392 100
Other assets 122 1,447

TOTAL ASSETS $ 26,751 $ 44,578

LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 6,051 $ 7,035
Accrued compensation 3,474 4,615
Accrued liabilities 1,776 929
Deferred revenue, current portion 10,876 7,257
Line of credit �  1,000

Total current liabilities 22,177 20,836
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 1,181 1,400
Warrant liability 196 103 $ �  
Other non-current liabilities 691 1,163

Total liabilities 24,245 23,502

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)

CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK:

Convertible preferred stock, issuable in Series G and H, par value $0.001 per
share�45,360,000 and 4,536,000 shares authorized; 4,238,120 and 4,238,120 shares
issued and outstanding; liquidation preference of $32,500 actual; no shares issued
or outstanding, pro forma (unaudited) 31,421 31,421 �  
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, issuable in Series I, par value $0.001 per
share�none and 2,750,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding; liquidation
preference of $16,500; no shares issued or outstanding, pro forma (unaudited) �  16,343 �  
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Total convertible preferred stock 31,421 47,764 �  

STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY (DEFICIT):

Common stock, par value $0.001 per share�250,000,000 and 102,000,000 shares
authorized; 12,946,607 and 13,169,608 shares issued and outstanding actual;
20,157,728 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma (unaudited) 13 13 20
Additional paid-in capital 50,606 52,955 100,815
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (565) (825) (825) 
Accumulated deficit (78,969) (78,831) (78,831) 

Total stockholders� equity (deficit) (28,915) (26,688) $ 21,179

TOTAL LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY (DEFICIT) $ 26,751 $ 44,578

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except for share and per share amounts)

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Revenue $ 16,288 $ 30,004 $ 50,646
Cost of revenue 7,482 11,504 18,492

Gross profit 8,806 18,500 32,154

Operating expenses:
Research and development 4,908 5,152 6,728
Sales and marketing 6,980 8,886 16,206
General and administrative 5,309 6,449 8,561

Total operating expenses 17,197 20,487 31,495

Income (loss) from operations (8,391) (1,987) 659
Interest expense, net (850) (270) (134) 
Other income (expense), net 86 (61) 237

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (9,155) (2,318) 762
Provision for income taxes 22 167 624

Net income (loss) (9,177) (2,485) 138
Deemed dividend on convertible preferred stock �  (2,286) �  
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock �  �  (5) 
Noncumulative dividends to convertible preferred stockholders �  �  (133) 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (9,177) $ (4,771) $�  

Net income (loss) per share attributable common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (18.33) $ (0.58) $ 0.00

Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted 500,550 8,203,001 13,123,524

Pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted
(unaudited) $ 0.00

Shares used in computing pro forma net income per share attributable to common
stockholders (unaudited)
Basic 17,784,246

Diluted 19,242,727
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Stockholders� Deficit and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(in thousands, except for share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders�

DeficitShares Amount Shares Amount 
Balance as of February 1, 2009 3,629,914 60,487 38,670 �  6,265 (278) (65,021) (59,034) 
Issuance of Series G convertible preferred
stock for cash, net of issuance costs of $22 399,996 4,978 �  �  �  �  �  �  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
share-based awards �  �  5,768 �  5 �  �  5
Stock-based compensation �  �  �  �  45 �  �  45
Comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment �  �  �  �  �  (95) �  (95) 
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  (9,177) (9,177) 

Total comprehensive loss (9,272) 

Balance as of January 31, 2010 4,029,910 65,465 44,438 �  6,315 (373) (74,198) (68,256) 
Issuance of Series E and F convertible
preferred stock upon exercise of warrants 96,484 10 �  �  �  �  �  �  
Conversion of Series B, C, D, E and F
convertible preferred stock to common
stock (2,126,401) (40,704) 3,407,582 3 40,701 �  �  40,704
Issuance of Series H convertible preferred
stock and common stock for cash, net of
issuance costs of $288 1,938,272 5,645 8,825,837 9 2,640 �  �  2,649
Issuance of Series H convertible preferred
stock and common stock from conversion
of bridge loans 299,855 1,005 668,750 1 199 �  �  200
Deemed dividend on convertible preferred
stock �  �  �  �  �  �  (2,286) (2,286) 
Stock-based compensation �  �  �  �  751 �  �  751
Comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment �  �  �  �  �  (192) �  (192) 
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  (2,485) (2,485) 

Total comprehensive loss (2,677) 

Balance as of January 31, 2011 4,238,120 $ 31,421 12,946,607 $ 13 $ 50,606 $ (565) $ (78,969) $ (28,915) 
Issuance of Series I redeemable convertible
preferred stock for cash, net of issuance
costs of $162 2,750,000 16,338 �  �  �  �  �  �  
Accretion of redeemable convertible
preferred stock �  5 �  �  (5) �  �  (5) 
Stock-based compensation �  �  �  �  1,650 �  �  1,650
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
share-based awards �  �  223,001 �  704 �  �  704
Comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment �  �  �  �  �  (74) �  (74) 
Cumulative translation adjustment
reclassified into earnings �  �  �  �  �  (186) �  (186) 
Net income �  �  �  �  �  �  138 138

Total comprehensive loss (122) 
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Balance as of January 31, 2012 6,988,120 $ 47,764 13,169,608 $ 13 $ 52,955 $ (825) $ (78,831) $ (26,688) 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ (9,177) $ (2,485) $ 138
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 835 1,048 1,554
Amortization of debt discount 194 58 �
Stock-based compensation 45 751 1,650
Recognition of cumulative translation adjustment �  �  (186) 
Inventory provision 277 82 �  
Bad debt expense 215 35 194
Fair value remeasurement of warrant liability (117) 113 (93) 
Forgiveness of note related to common stock purchase awards �  �  69
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 903 (3,779) (621) 
Inventory 1,006 116 (97) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 185 182 22
Deferred inventory costs 289 (2,037) 2,560
Other assets 2,217 (30) (1,320) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 20 5,177 1,422
Deferred revenue (929) 4,298 (3,400) 
Other non-current liabilities 544 128 489

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (3,493) 3,657 2,381

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (819) (1,310) (2,847) 

Net cash used in investing activities (819) (1,310) (2,847) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from notes payable and related warrants �  �  1,000
Payments on notes payable (3,958) (2,727) �  
Proceeds from issuance of bridge loans and related warrants 1,000 �  �  
Proceeds from issuance of Series G convertible preferred stock, net of issuance costs 4,978 �  �  
Proceeds from issuance of Series H convertible preferred stock and common stock, net of issuance costs �  6,206 �  
Proceeds from issuance of Series I redeemable convertible preferred stock, net of issuance costs �  �  16,338
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 5 �  635
Proceeds from exercise of Series E and Series F convertible preferred stock warrants �  10 �  

Net cash provided by financing activities 2,025 3,489 17,973

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (263) (149) (119) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,550) 5,687 17,388
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�Beginning of period 6,880 4,330 10,017

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�End of period $ 4,330 $ 10,017 $ 27,405
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SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 813 $ 233 $ 79

Cash paid for income taxes $ 10 $ 35 $ 26

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Conversion of bridge loans to Series H convertible preferred stock and common stock $ �  $ 1,205 $ �  

Conversion of Series B, C, D, E and F convertible preferred stock to common stock $ �  $ 40,704 $ �  

Deemed dividend on convertible preferred stock $ �  $ 2,286 $ �  

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock $ �  $ �  $ 5

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Envivio, Inc. (the �Company�) was incorporated in the state of Delaware on January 5, 2000. The Company is a leading provider of IP video
processing and distribution solutions to mobile and broadband service providers, cable multiple system operators, direct broadcast satellite
service providers and content providers, which includes broadcasters and content publishers, owners, aggregators and licensees. The Company is
headquartered in South San Francisco, California and maintains operations in North America, Europe (including research and development
operations in France) and Asia Pacific.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. The
Company has incurred recurring operating losses since inception except for the year ended January 31, 2012 which resulted in operating income
of $0.7 million and net income of $0.1 million. The Company has an accumulated deficit of $78.8 million and a total stockholders� deficit of
$26.7 million as of January 31, 2012. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company�s operating results for the year ended January 31, 2012
reflected higher revenue and gross profit compared to prior periods. During fiscal 2012, the Company obtained $16.3 million, net of issuance
costs, of additional funding through the issuance of Series I redeemable convertible preferred stock. In addition, the Company produced
operating and net income during the year ended January 31, 2012 compared to incurring operating and net losses in prior years. Further, as of
January 31, 2012, the Company had positive working capital of $19.2 million, $27.4 million in cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
outstanding of $1.0 million. Since inception, the Company has relied primarily on the proceeds from equity offerings and debt proceeds to
finance its operations. Management plans to continue to finance the Company�s operations with a combination of equity issuances, debt
arrangements and cash provided by operations. However, there can be no assurance that additional funding will be available to the Company on
acceptable terms on a timely basis, if at all, or that the Company will generate sufficient cash from operations to adequately fund its operating
needs or sustain profitability. If the Company is unable to raise additional capital to fund its operations or generate sufficient cash from
operations to adequately fund its operations, it will need to curtail planned activities to reduce costs. Doing so will likely have an unfavorable
effect on the Company�s ability to execute on its business plan. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Basis of Presentation

The Company�s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reverse Stock Split

On June 10, 2011, the Company effected a 1-for-10 reverse stock split of its common stock and convertible preferred stock. Accordingly, all
share and per share amounts for all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, have been adjusted
retroactively, where applicable, to reflect this reverse stock split.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent
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assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, allowances for
doubtful accounts, valuation of deferred inventory costs, useful lives of property and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, valuation of
equity and liability instruments and stock-based compensation. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments of the carrying
values of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

Unaudited Pro Forma Stockholders� Equity

The pro forma financial information as of January 31, 2012 presents the equity-related components of the Company�s consolidated balance sheet
as though all of the Company�s convertible preferred stock outstanding had automatically converted into shares of common stock upon the
completion of a qualified initial public offering of the Company�s common stock. In addition, the pro forma stockholders� equity assumes the
reclassification of the warrant liability to additional paid-in capital upon completion of a qualified initial public offering of the Company�s
common stock. The shares of common stock issuable and the proceeds expected to be received in the initial public offering are excluded from
such pro forma information.

Risk and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to a number of risks similar to other comparable companies in the video processing and distribution industry. These
risks include, but are not limited to, the level of capital spending by telecommunications, cable and satellite service providers, as well as, more
recently, the emerging broadcast, media and Internet content providers, its reliance on channel partners, a lengthy sales cycle, dependence on the
development of new products and services, unfavorable economic and market conditions, competition from larger and more established
companies, limited management resources, dependence on a single contract manufacturer and a limited number of suppliers, and the rapidly
changing nature of the video processing and distribution industry. Failure by the Company to anticipate or to respond adequately to
technological developments in its industry, changes in customer or supplier requirements, changes in regulatory requirements or industry
standards, or any significant delays in the development or introduction of products could have a material adverse effect on the Company�s
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid marketable securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase to
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of demand deposits and money market funds and is stated at amounts that
approximate fair value.

The Company has a compensating balance requirement of $1.0 million under its revolving line of credit. This balance was included in cash and
cash equivalents as of January 31, 2011 and 2012.

Accounts Receivable and Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at invoiced amounts and do not bear interest. The Company generally does not require collateral and
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and provides an allowance for expected losses. The Company maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts based upon the age of its accounts receivable, current economic trends, credit-worthiness of the customers and customer
payment history. The Company writes off accounts receivable against the allowance when it determines a balance is uncollectible and no longer
actively pursues collection of the receivable.
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The following table presents the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands):

Year ended January 31,
    2011        2012    

Allowance�beginning of period $ 632 $ 655
Bad debt expense 35 194
Write-offs, net of recoveries and other adjustments (12) (716) 

Allowance�end of period $ 655 $ 133

Concentration of Risks

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. Cash and cash equivalents consist of money market funds and demand deposits with financial institutions which may
exceed FDIC limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to its cash and cash equivalents. Two customers accounted for 41%
and 23% of accounts receivable as of January 31, 2011, and one of the same customers accounted for 25% of accounts receivable while another
customer accounted for 15% of accounts receivable as of January 31, 2012.

Certain of the components and subassemblies included in the Company�s products are obtained from a single source or a limited group of
suppliers. In addition, the Company relies on a single third party to manufacture its products. Although the Company seeks to reduce
dependence on those sole source and limited source suppliers and its manufacturer, the partial or complete loss of certain of these sources could
have a material adverse effect on the Company�s operating results, financial condition and cash flows, and damage its customer relationships.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market value. Inventories are comprised of hardware and related component parts of its
finished goods. The Company establishes provisions for excess and obsolete inventories after evaluating historical sales, future demand, market
conditions, expected product lifecycles and current inventory levels to reduce such inventories to their estimated net realizable value. Such
provisions are made in the normal course of business and charged to cost of revenue in the consolidated statement of operations. During the
years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, the Company recorded charges to the statement of operations for excess and obsolete inventories
of $277,000, $82,000 and $0.

Deferred Inventory Costs

Deferred inventory costs represent the cost of products that have been delivered to the customer, but product revenue associated with the
arrangement has been deferred as a result of not meeting the revenue recognition criteria. The deferred inventory costs are recognized when the
related revenue is recognized.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years. Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost with any reimbursement
from the landlord being accounted for as deferred rent, which is amortized using the straight-line method over the lease term. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease term. Costs for demo inventory held by the
Company�s customers are also included within property and equipment as of January 31, 2011 and 2012. Demo inventory is depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assets which are two years. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
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Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred offering costs represent specific incremental costs directly attributable to the Company�s initial public offering of securities, which will
be charged against the gross proceeds from the offering once completed. As of January 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company had deferred offering
costs of zero and $1.3 million included within other assets.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for indicators of possible impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment exists if the carrying amounts of such assets exceed the estimates of future net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by such assets. Should impairment exist, the impairment loss would be measured based on the
excess of the carrying value of the asset over the estimated fair value of the asset. As of January 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company has not written
down any of its long-lived assets as a result of impairment.

Revenue Recognition

The Company�s revenue is derived primarily from two sources: (i) product revenue from the sale of IP video processing and distribution
solutions, including hardware and software products, and (ii) revenue from the sale of related professional services and support and maintenance
agreements. The Company�s revenue from professional services and support and maintenance represents less than 10% of the total revenue for
each of the reported years. Support typically includes telephone and email access to technical support personnel. Software updates provide
customers with rights to software product enhancements and to maintenance releases and patches released during the term of the support period.

The Company recognizes revenue only when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or
determinable and collectability is probable. The Company evaluates each of these criteria as follows:

� Evidence of an arrangement � Contracts or customer purchase orders are used to determine the existence of an arrangement.

� Delivery � Delivery is considered to occur when title has been transferred, except in instances where final acceptance of the product,
system or solution is specified by the customer. In these instances, revenue is deferred until acceptance criteria have been met. In the
case of electronic delivery of the licensed software, title transfers when the customer is given access to download the software.

� Fixed or determinable fee � The Company assesses whether fees are fixed or determinable at the time of sale. The Company only
considers the fee to be fixed or determinable if the fee is not subject to refund or adjustment. The Company�s payment terms may vary
based on the country in which the agreement is executed and the credit standing of the individual customer, among other factors. If the
arrangement fee is not fixed or determinable, revenue is recognized as amounts become due and payable.

� Collection is deemed probable � Collection is deemed probable if the Company expects that the customer will be able to pay amounts
under the arrangement as payments become due. If the Company determines that collection is not probable, it defers the revenue until
cash collection.

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) amended the accounting standards for revenue recognition to remove from
the scope of industry-specific software revenue recognition guidance, any tangible products containing software components and non-software
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components that operate together to deliver the product�s essential functionality. In addition, the FASB amended the accounting standards for
certain multiple element revenue arrangements to:

� Provide updated guidance on whether multiple elements exist, how the elements in an arrangement should be separated, and
how the arrangement consideration should be allocated to the separate elements;

� Provide for price hierarchy, where the selling price for an element is based on vendor specific objective evidence (�VSOE�), if available;
third-party evidence (�TPE�), if available and VSOE is not available; or the best estimate of selling price (�BESP�), if neither VSOE nor
TPE is available;

� Eliminate the use of the residual method and require an entity to allocate arrangement consideration using the selling price hierarchy.
The new accounting guidance was adopted by the Company on a prospective basis at the beginning of the fiscal year ending January 31, 2012
for all transactions, except for stand-alone sales of software, entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011.

The Company enters into multiple element revenue arrangements in which a customer may purchase a combination of hardware, software,
software upgrades, hardware and software maintenance and professional services. The Company accounts for multiple agreements with a single
customer as one arrangement if the contractual terms or substance of those agreements indicate that they may be so closely related that they are,
in effect, parts of a single arrangement.

For transactions entered into prior to February 1, 2011, the adoption date of the amended revenue standards, the Company allocates revenue for
arrangements with multiple deliverables, such as sales of our solution with software that include support, training or other professional services,
to the delivered elements of the arrangement using the residual value method based on VSOE of fair value of the undelivered items. VSOE of
fair value for undelivered elements is determined based upon prices paid by the customers for the separate renewal or sales of such services. If
sufficient VSOE of fair value does not exist for the allocation of revenue to the various elements of the arrangement, all revenue from the
arrangement is deferred until the earlier of the point at which (i) such sufficient VSOE of fair value does exist or (ii) all elements of the
arrangement have been delivered. Under those circumstances, if the only undelivered element is post-contract support, the entire fee is
recognized ratably over the contractual post-contract support period, which is typically one year but can be as long as five years.

For transactions entered into on or subsequent to February 1, 2011, the Company allocates the arrangement fee to each element based upon the
relative selling price of such element and, if software and software-related elements, such as maintenance for the software elements, are also
included in the arrangement, the Company allocates the arrangement fee to each of those software and software-related elements as a group
based on its BESP for those elements. After such allocations are made, the amount of the arrangement fee allocated to the software and
software-related elements is accounted for using the residual method. When applying the relative selling price method, the Company determines
the selling price for each element using VSOE of selling price, if it exists, or if not, TPE of selling price, if it exists. If neither VSOE nor TPE of
selling price exist for an element, the Company uses its BESP for that element. The revenue allocated to each element is then recognized when
the basic revenue recognition criteria are met for that element. The manner in which the Company accounts for multiple element arrangements
that contain only software and software-related elements remains unchanged.

Consistent with the Company�s methodology under previous accounting guidance, it determines VSOE for each element based on historical
stand-alone sales to third parties. For hardware and software maintenance and professional services, the Company determines the VSOE of fair
value based on the Company�s history of stand-alone sales demonstrating that a substantial majority of transactions fall within a narrow range for
each service offering. The Company is presently not able to determine VSOE of fair value for its professional services due to lack of stand-alone
sales of such services.
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The Company is presently not able to determine TPE for its products, maintenance or professional services. TPE is determined based on
competitor prices for similar elements when sold separately. Generally, the Company�s offerings contain a significant level of differentiation such
that the comparable pricing of products with similar functionality cannot be obtained. Furthermore, the Company�s go-to-market strategy differs
from that of its peers and it is unable to reliably determine what similar competitor products� selling prices are on a stand-alone basis.

When the Company is unable to establish the selling price of an element using VSOE or TPE, it uses BESP in its allocation of arrangement
consideration. The objective of BESP is to determine the price at which the Company would transact a sale if the product or service were sold on
a stand-alone basis. The Company determines BESP for a product or service by considering multiple factors including, but not limited to,
historical pricing practices by geography, customer class and distribution channel and gross margin objectives.

The Company regularly reviews VSOE and BESP data provided by actual transactions to update these estimates and the relative selling prices
allocated to each element.

If the transactions entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011 were subject to previous accounting guidance, the pro forma
total revenues would have been $45.1 million during the year ended January 31, 2012. Similarly, the Company�s pro forma deferred revenue
would have been $14.2 million as of January 31, 2012 if the transactions entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011 were
subject to previous accounting guidance.

The impact of the revised accounting guidance to total revenue for the year ended January 31, 2012 was attributable to the ability to assign
selling price to undelivered elements which previously required VSOE, the recognition of hardware revenue associated with maintenance
contracts previously accounted for ratably over the contract period, and the reallocation of discounts to revenue deliverables.

Revenue from support and maintenance services arrangements are recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance agreement, which is
typically one year. The unrecognized revenue portion of the maintenance agreements billed is recorded as deferred revenue. The costs associated
with services are recognized as incurred. The Company recognizes revenue from professional services on the performance of the services. The
Company does not have VSOE of fair value for professional services as they are always combined with product sales. The Company recognizes
the revenue on such combined arrangements when all professional services have been delivered to the customer.

Revenue from channel partners is recognized on delivery, provided that the criteria for revenue recognition have been met. The Company�s
agreements with these channel partners have terms which are consistent with the standard terms and conditions for the sale of the Company�s
equipment to end users and do not provide for product rotation or pricing allowances, and do not allow for sales returns.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs incurred for inventory purchases and product shipments are recorded in cost of revenue in the Company�s
consolidated statements of operations.

Deferred Revenue

A portion of the Company�s deferred revenue represents customer payments made in advance for support and maintenance contracts because the
Company typically bills support contracts on an annual basis in advance and recognizes the associated revenue ratably over the support period,
which can range from one to five years. Deferred revenue also includes arrangements where, in prior years, the Company did not have VSOE of
fair value for support and maintenance services. For transactions entered into or materially modified before February 1, 2011 and for stand-alone
sales of software that are subject to
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software accounting, when the Company does not have VSOE of fair value for the support services, revenue from the entire arrangement is
recognized ratably over the support period.

For transactions entered into or materially modified before February 1, 2011 and for stand-alone sales of software, the Company also records
deferred revenue for arrangements that include undelivered professional services because the Company has not established VSOE of fair value
for these services. In these arrangements, the Company defers the revenue from the entire arrangement until the professional services are
delivered, which typically ranges from two weeks to three months after the delivery of the product. For transactions, other than stand-alone sales
of software, entered into or materially modified on or after February 1, 2011, revenue will only be deferred for the portion of the arrangement
relating to undelivered services and support and maintenance rather than deferring the entire arrangement.

Deferred revenue also includes arrangements where final acceptance of the product, system or solution is specified by the customer, and the
recognition of revenue for these arrangements is deferred until all acceptance criteria are met.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

The Company charges product development costs to expense as incurred until technological feasibility is attained and all other research and
development activities for the hardware components of the product have been completed. Technological feasibility is attained when the
planning, design and testing phase related to the development of the Company�s software has been completed and the software has been
determined viable for its intended use. The time between the attainment of technological feasibility and the completion of software development
has historically been relatively short with immaterial amounts of development costs incurred during this period. Accordingly, the Company has
not capitalized any software development costs.

Foreign Currency Translation

For each of the Company�s foreign subsidiaries, the functional currency is its local currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into U.S. dollars using period-end exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars using average exchange
rates in effect during each period. The effects of foreign currency translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss,
a separate component of stockholders� deficit. Also recorded as foreign currency translation adjustments are transaction gains and losses on
long-term intercompany balances for which settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable future.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax expense or benefit is the result of
changes in the deferred tax asset and liability. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets where, based
upon the available evidence, management concludes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company follows the accounting guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. The accounting guidance requires a
more-likely-than-not threshold for financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Company records a liability for the difference between the benefit recognized and measured and the tax position taken or expected to be
taken on the Company�s tax return. To the extent that the assessment of such tax
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positions changes, the change in estimate is recorded in the period in which the determination is made. The Company establishes reserves for
tax-related uncertainties based on estimates of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. These reserves are established
when the Company believes that certain positions might be challenged despite the Company�s belief that the tax return positions are fully
supportable. The reserves are adjusted in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the outcome of a tax audit. The provision for income
taxes includes the impact of reserve provisions and changes to reserves that are considered appropriate.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the provision for income taxes in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Accrued interest and penalties are included within other non-current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Warranty

The Company generally provides a warranty for its products, software and services. The initial warranty period for all products commences on
the date of purchase and continues in effect for the following consecutive 12 months for hardware and 90 days for software. The warranty period
can be extended if the customer has purchased a support agreement. The warranty period continues for the duration of a valid support agreement
between the Company and the customer under which the payment of support and maintenance fees is current. To date, the Company�s warranty
expense has not been significant. Therefore, the Company did not provide for a warranty accrual as of January 31, 2011 and 2012.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all stock-based payment awards made to employees and directors based on the estimated
fair value of the awards on the date of grant. The Company determines the grant date fair value of the awards using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model and recognizes the related stock-based compensation generally on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the
awards. Stock-based compensation expense is based on the value of the portion of stock-based payment awards that are ultimately expected to
vest. As such, the Company�s stock-based compensation is reduced for the estimated forfeitures at the date of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. In the event of a modification, the fair value of the awards immediately
before and after the modification is determined and the incremental values, if any, are also recognized over the remaining vesting period of the
modified awards.

Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

The Company accounts for its freestanding warrants for shares to purchase the Company�s convertible preferred stock that are contingently
redeemable as liabilities at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets because these warrants may obligate the Company to redeem these
warrants at some point in the future. The warrants are subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date, and any change in fair value is
recognized within other income (expense) on the consolidated statements of operations. The Company will continue to adjust the warrant
liability for changes in fair value until the earlier of the exercise or expiration of the warrants, or if they become common stock warrants after the
conversion of the convertible preferred stock immediately before the initial public offering. At that time, the warrant liability related to the
warrants will be reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). For the Company, other comprehensive
loss includes foreign currency translation adjustments. Total comprehensive income (loss) has been disclosed in the consolidated statements of
convertible preferred stock, stockholders� deficit and comprehensive income (loss).
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures and reports its cash equivalents and convertible preferred stock warrant liabilities at fair value. The accounting guidance
for fair value measurements provides a framework for measuring fair value and expanding related disclosures. Fair value is defined as the price
that would be received for an asset or the exit price that would be paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most advantageous market in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The guidance also establishes a hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs, when available. The guidance requires that each fair value measurement be classified and disclosed in
one of the following three categories:

� Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

� Level 2: Observable inputs (other than Level 1 prices) such as quoted prices for similar assets at the measurement date; quoted prices
in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

� Level 3: Unobservable inputs that involve management judgment and are supported by little or no market activity.
The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The Company�s Level 1 assets consist of its money market accounts. The Company�s Level 3 liabilities consist of its convertible
preferred stock warrants. The Company did not have any other financial assets or liabilities that are measured and reported at fair value.

As of January 31, 2012, the carrying value of the line of credit approximate fair value principally because of the short-term nature of this
liability. As of January 31, 2011, there were no notes payable or line of credit outstanding.

Foreign Tax Credits

The Company�s foreign tax credit asset consists primarily of amounts due from the Government of France for research and development
incentives provided to the Company�s French subsidiary. The French research tax credit is general and does not target any specific sector or type
of company. Eligible expenditures include human and material resources allocated to research and development, subcontracted research and
development costs, technological costs and patent protection. The amounts due from the Government of France are determined on a cost
reimbursement basis. The French research tax credit is deducted from the French tax to be paid; or in the event taxes are not due it is refunded.
As the French research tax credit is related to the Company�s research and development expenditures and is refundable regardless of whether any
French tax is owed, the credits earned of $1.5 million, $1.2 million and $1.2 million during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012,
were recorded as a reduction of research and development expenses.

Common Stock

The Company has two classes of common stock, consisting of Series 1 common stock (�Series 1�) and Series 2 common stock (�Series 2�), which
are identical except with respect to voting rights. The Series 1 do not have the right to vote, except as required by law, and the Series 2 are
allowed one vote on all matters subject to a vote of the stockholders. Further, there are a number of safeguards built into the Company�s
Certificate of Incorporation, as well as Delaware law, which preclude the board of directors from declaring or paying unequal per share
dividends on the Series 1 and Series 2 stock. Specifically, Delaware law provides that amendments to the Company�s Certificate of
Incorporation, which would have the effect of adversely altering the rights, powers or preferences of a given class of stock (in this case the right
of the Series 1 to receive an equal dividend to any declared dividend on the Series 2), must be approved by the class of stock adversely affected
by the proposed amendment.
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Net Income (Loss) per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders is calculated using the two class method, by subtracting from net income (loss) the noncumulative dividends on all outstanding
shares of convertible preferred stock and the accretion of the redeemable convertible preferred stock to its redemption amount, to reflect the
rights of the preferred stockholders to receive dividends in preference to common stock.

The diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by giving effect to all potential common stock
equivalents outstanding for the period determined using the treasury-stock method. For purposes of this calculation, convertible preferred stock,
stock options to purchase common stock, stock purchase rights and warrants to purchase convertible preferred stock are considered to be
common stock equivalents but have been excluded from the calculation of diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders as their effect is not dilutive.

The Company has two classes of common stock; however, because the liquidation and dividend rights are identical, the undistributed earnings
are allocated on a proportionate basis and the resulting net income (loss) per share of common stock will, therefore, be the same for both Series 1
and Series 2 common stock on an individual or combined basis. Therefore for the calculations of the basic and diluted net income (loss) per
share attributable to common stockholders, the Company combined the weighted-average Series 1 and Series 2 common stock.

Pro Forma Net Income per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Pro forma basic and diluted net income per share attributable to common stockholders have been computed to give effect to the assumed
conversion of the convertible preferred stock into common stock upon a qualified initial public offering of the Company�s common stock. The
numerator in the pro forma basic and diluted net income per share calculation consist of the Company�s net income for the year less gains
resulting from remeasurements of the warrant liability as these amounts will be reclassified to additional paid-in capital upon a qualified initial
public offering and earnings allocated to participating securities to calculate the pro forma net income attributable to common stockholders.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (Topic
820)�Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, to add additional disclosures about the different classes of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value, the valuation techniques and inputs used, and the activity in Level 3 fair value measurements. Certain provisions of this update went into
effect for the Company beginning in the year ended January 31, 2012. The adoption of the provisions did not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which requires an entity to
present total comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements and eliminates the option to present the
components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders� equity. This guidance is effective for the
Company beginning in the first quarter of the year ending January 31, 2013. Retrospective adoption is required and early adoption is permitted.
The adoption of the standard will have no impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations, but will result in a change in the
presentation of the Company�s basic consolidated financial statements.
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2. Balance Sheet Items

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands):

January 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

Foreign tax credits refundable $ 1,391 $ 1,241
Prepaid expenses 1,153 1,215

Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 2,544 $ 2,456

Property and equipment, net consist of the following (in thousands):

January 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

Computers and equipment $ 3,864 $ 6,318
Software 1,089 1,177
Furniture and fixtures 797 890
Leasehold improvements 128 129

Total property and equipment 5,878 8,514
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,101) (5,498) 

Property and equipment, net $ 1,777 $ 3,016

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $835,000, $1.0 million and $1.6 million during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and
2012.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company�s financial assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis is as follows (in thousands):

January 31, 2011   Total    Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  
Assets:
Money market funds (included in cash and cash equivalents) $ 165 $ 165 $ �  $ �  
Liabilities:
Warrant liability 196 �  �  196

January 31, 2012
Assets:
Money market funds (included in cash and cash equivalents) $ 25,783 $ 25,783 $ �  $ �  
Liabilities:
Warrant liability 103 �  �  103
The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in the fair value of the Company�s Level 3 financial liabilities (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,

2010 2011 2012
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Fair value�beginning of period $ 200 $ 83 $ 196
Change in fair value of Level 3 liabilities (117) 113 (93) 

Fair value�end of period $ 83 $ 196 $ 103
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4. Debt

Debt outstanding as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 consisted of the following (in thousands):

January 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

Line of credit $     �  $ 1,000
Notes payable �  �  

�  1,000
Less: current portion �  (1,000) 

Long-term debt $ �  $ �  

Notes Payable

In June 2007, the Company entered into a debt agreement with a commercial lender that provided the Company with debt financing in the form
of notes payable for up to $6.0 million for general corporate purposes. As security for the borrowing, the Company granted a first priority
security lien on all assets. The notes were payable over two to three years with interest only payments for the first six months and carried interest
rates ranging from prime plus 0.75% to 9.25%. This debt facility expired during the year ended January 31, 2011. During the years ended
January 31, 2008 and 2009, the Company drew down $4.5 million and $0.8 million in notes payable that were due on various dates between
August 2010 and January 2011. The Company did not draw on these notes during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 or 2012. All amounts
drawn on these notes were fully repaid as scheduled during the year ended January 31, 2011. To facilitate the note agreements during the year
ended January 31, 2008, the Company issued warrants to acquire 22,936 shares of Series F convertible preferred stock to the lender. The
outstanding notes payable balances were reduced by the fair value of the warrants of $301,000 which was recorded as a debt discount and
amortized over the term of the notes.

In May 2008, the Company entered into another debt agreement with the same lender to borrow up to $3.0 million in the form of notes payable.
The notes were secured by all of the Company�s assets and were due in December 2010. All amounts drawn on these notes were fully repaid as
scheduled during the year ended January 31, 2011. The Company drew the entire amount of the loan in July 2008 and issued warrants to
purchase 36,000 shares of Series G convertible preferred stock in connection with this borrowing. The notes payable were reduced by the fair
value of the warrants of $249,000 which was recorded as a debt discount and amortized over the term of the notes. The notes were generally
payable over one to two years and carried an interest rate of 15%. This debt facility expired during the year ended January 31, 2011.

As of January 31, 2011 and 2012, outstanding amounts underlying these notes payable were zero. The unamortized discounts on the notes
payable were zero as of January 31, 2011 and 2012. Amortization of the debt discounts related to the warrants issued with the notes was
$194,000, $58,000 and $0 during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

During the year ended January 31, 2010, the Company entered into secured convertible note and warrant purchase agreements with various
investors for total proceeds of $1.0 million. The convertible notes carried an interest rate of 1% and were due in June 2010. The convertible
notes and accrued interest of $5,000 converted into 299,855 shares of Series H convertible preferred stock at the purchase price of $3.35 per
share upon completion of the financing in June 2010 and, accordingly, no amounts were outstanding under these convertible notes after the
conversion.

There was no amount outstanding under this bridge loan as of January 31, 2011 and 2012.

Line of Credit

In November 2010, the Company entered into a revolving line of credit with a commercial lender that allows for draws of up to $5.0 million for
general corporate purposes. Amounts borrowed must be repaid
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prior to the maturity date in November 2012. Interest accrues at a floating per annum rate equal to either the (i) greater of (x) the prime rate plus
2.75% or (y) 6.75% if the liquidity ratio for the immediately preceding month does not meet a minimum threshold or (ii) greater of (x) the prime
rate plus 1.75% or (y) 5.75% in all other instances. The Company paid commitment fees in the amount of $106,000 and a good faith deposit of
$25,000 to facilitate the agreement. The lender for this line of credit has a first priority perfected security interest in all of the Company�s assets.
The credit facility contains financial covenants which effectively require the Company to maintain no less than $1.0 million in outstanding
borrowings throughout the term of the arrangement as well as maintain a ratio of unrestricted cash and eligible accounts receivable to current
liabilities of at least 1.50 to 1.00. As of January 31, 2012, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under the line of credit facility.

The Company drew down $1.0 million under this line of credit during the year ended January 31, 2012. As of January 31, 2011 and 2012, the
Company had zero and $1.0 million outstanding under this line of credit.

5. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases facilities under operating leases expiring at various dates through 2017. As of January 31, 2012, future minimum payments
under the Company�s noncancellable leases are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending January 31,
Future Lease

Payments
2013 $ 1,036
2014 894
2015 610
2016 249
Thereafter �  

Total $ 2,789

Rental expense totaled $603,000, $581,000 and $769,000 during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

Contingent Fees

The Company has entered into an arrangement with outside legal counsel and other third parties to pay certain contingent fees up to $3.0 million
upon an initial public offering or other liquidity event. Upon successful completion of an initial public offering or other liquidity event, such
costs would be charged against the gross proceeds of the offering.

Litigation Matters

The Company is subject to claims and assessments from time to time in the ordinary course of business. The Company is not currently a party to
any litigation matter that, individually or in the aggregate, is expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company�s business, financial
condition or results of operations.

Indemnification

The Company may in the ordinary course of business agree to defend and indemnify some customers against legal claims that the Company�s
products infringe on certain U.S. patents or copyrights. Certain of the Company�s employment agreements or arrangements with members of the
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board of directors also include indemnification provisions. The terms of such obligations may vary. To date, the Company has not been required
to make any payments resulting from such infringement or director indemnifications and no amounts have been accrued for such matters.

6. Stockholders� Deficit

The Company�s convertible preferred stock consist of Series G and H convertible preferred stock and Series I redeemable convertible preferred
stock and the Company�s common stock consist of Series 1 and Series 2 common stock. The Series G and H convertible preferred stock and the
Series I redeemable convertible preferred stock are individually referred to as Series G, Series H and Series I and collectively as convertible
preferred stock. As of January 31, 2011, the Company was authorized to issue an aggregate of 45,360,000 shares of convertible preferred stock
and 250,000,000 shares of common stock. During the year ended January 31, 2012, the Company amended its Certificate of Incorporation (�COI�)
to amend the number of authorized shares and to designate a new series of redeemable convertible preferred stock. As of January 31, 2012, the
authorized number of shares has been reduced to 7,286,000 shares of convertible preferred stock and 102,000,000 shares of common stock.

Common Stock

The designations and rights of the Series 1 and Series 2 common stock are identical except for their respective voting rights as the Series 1 do
not have the right to vote, except as required by law, and the Series 2 are allowed one vote on all matters subject to a vote of the stockholders.
The holders of common stock, including shares legally outstanding from stock purchase rights that are exercised with notes, are also entitled to
receive non-cumulative dividends whenever funds are legally available and if declared by the board of directors, subject to the rights of all
classes of stock outstanding.

Shares of common stock authorized, issued and outstanding, by series, as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 consist of the following:

January 31, 2011

Authorized
Issued and

Outstanding
Series 1 20,000,000 1,006,206
Series 2 230,000,000 11,940,401

250,000,000 12,946,607

January 31, 2012

Authorized
Issued and

Outstanding
Series 1 2,000,000 1,006,206
Series 2 100,000,000 12,163,402

102,000,000 13,169,608

Shares of common stock reserved for issuance on an as-if converted basis is as follows as of January 31, 2011 and 2012:

January 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

Conversion of convertible preferred stock 4,238,120 6,988,120
Exercise and vesting of stock-based awards 2,796,760 3,108,972
Available for option grants 105,315 924,163
Exercise of Series G warrants 36,000 36,000

7,176,195 11,057,255
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Convertible Preferred Stock

During the year ended January 31, 2009, the Company issued 870,319 shares of Series G at a purchase price of $12.50 per share and received
aggregate proceeds of $10.9 million. At the same time, the Company issued 729,678 shares of Series G in exchange for the conversion of bridge
loan principal and interest of $9.1 million. The Company incurred issuance costs related to the Series G issuances of $205,000.

During the year ended January 31, 2010, the Company issued 399,996 shares of Series G at a purchase price of $12.50 per share and received
aggregate proceeds of $5.0 million. The Company incurred issuance costs related to the Series G issuances of $22,000.

In June 2010, the Company amended its COI to amend the automatic conversion features for the outstanding shares of Series B, C, D, E and F
convertible preferred stock, individually referred to as Series B, Series C, Series D, Series E and Series F, such that these shares would
automatically convert into common stock immediately prior to the consummation of the sale of $3.0 million of the yet to be issued Series H
without any further action by the convertible preferred stockholders. The automatic conversion rate, which was not amended within the updated
COI, is as follows: each share of the Series B will convert into 72 shares of common, each share of the Series C will convert into 52 shares of
common, each share of the Series D will convert into 1 share of common, each share of the Series E will convert into 1 share of common, and
each share of the Series F will convert into 1.1428 shares of common. Also in conjunction with the amendment to the automatic conversion
features for the convertible preferred stock, the Company amended all outstanding Series E and F warrants, consisting of warrants to purchase
99,684 shares of Series E and warrants to purchase 61,137 shares of Series F, to reduce the number of shares underlying the warrants to 60% of
the original number of shares underlying the warrants. In addition, the Series E and F warrant exercise price was reduced to $0.10 per share from
$12.50 per share for the Series E warrants and $20.60 per share for the Series F warrants.

Following the amending of the COI in June 2010, the Company completed two financing rounds by issuing 2,238,127 shares of Series H at a
purchase price of $3.35 per share to existing investors in the Company. The Company received gross proceeds of $7.5 million, which included
the conversion of the principal and accrued interest on a $1.0 million bridge loan received in December 2009. The Company incurred offering
expenses of $288,000 related to the Series H financing. As an incentive to participate in the Series H financing, the Company�s existing
stockholders were offered the opportunity to receive additional shares of common stock (�Incentive Shares�) if they purchased at least their full
pro rata portion of the Series H financing, which was calculated based on the aggregate respective liquidation preferences for the outstanding
convertible preferred stock. The existing holders of convertible preferred stock would not be penalized, however, if they did not participate, as
the Incentive Shares were issued to participating stockholders in addition to the Series H purchased by participating stockholders. The number of
Incentive Shares to be issued was based on the series of the currently outstanding convertible preferred stock held by each Series H participant
as follows: at a rate of 107.430618 shares of common for each share of the Series B, 77.588779 shares of common for each share of Series C,
1.492092 shares of common for each share of Series D, 1.865115 shares of common for each share of Series E, and 3.073709 shares of common
for each share of Series F. As a result, the Company issued 9,494,587 Incentive Shares with the shares of Series H issued during the Series H
financing.

The Series E and F warrants were exercised immediately before the conversion of the Series E and F into common stock. Then immediately
upon the closing of the Series H financing, after the exercise of the warrants, the outstanding shares of Series B, C, D, E and F converted into
3,407,582 shares of common stock and only shares of Series G and H remained outstanding after the conversion and financing.

The Company accounted for the Series H financing based on the fair value of the shares of Series H and common stock issued. The $2.3 million
excess of the fair value of the shares of Series H and Incentive Shares issued over the proceeds received in the financing of $7.5 million,
including the
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conversion of the principal and accrued interest on a $1.0 million bridge loan received in December 2009, was recognized as a deemed dividend
on the convertible preferred stock directly through the accumulated deficit in the statements of convertible preferred stock, stockholders� deficit
and comprehensive income (loss) and as a charge to the net loss attributable to the common stockholders on the statement of operations during
the year ended January 31, 2011.

In December 2011, the Company sold 2,500,000 shares of newly authorized Series I for $6.00 per share, which raised $15.0 million in gross
proceeds. In January 2012, the Company redesignated the then-outstanding Series I into Series I2. Concurrently, the Company authorized and
sold 150,000 shares of Series I1 and an additional 100,000 shares of Series I2 at $6.00 per share. The Company received gross proceeds of $1.5
million from the second round of financing. The Company incurred offering expenses of $162,000 related to the Series I financing.

As of January 31, 2011, the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock were as follows (in thousands, except for
share and per share amounts):

Series
Issuance Price

per Share
Conversion

Ratio
Shares

Authorized

Shares Issued
and

Outstanding
Carrying

Value
Liquidation
Preference

Series G1 $ 12.50 1.000 2,000,000 199,999 $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Series G2 12.50 1.000 18,360,000 1,799,994 22,272 22,500
Series H1 3.35 1.000 1,000,000 89,550 266 300
Series H2 3.35 1.000 24,000,000 2,148,577 6,383 7,200

45,360,000 4,238,120 $ 31,421 $ 32,500

As of January 31, 2012 the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock were as follows (in thousands, except for
share and per share amounts):

Series
Issuance Price

per Share
Conversion

Ratio
Shares

Authorized

Shares Issued
and

Outstanding
Carrying

Value
Liquidation
Preference

Series G1 $ 12.50 1.000 200,000 199,999 $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Series G2 12.50 1.000 1,836,000 1,799,994 22,272 22,500
Series H1 3.35 1.000 100,000 89,550 266 300
Series H2 3.35 1.000 2,400,000 2,148,577 6,383 7,200
Series I1 6.00 1.000 150,000 150,000 895 900
Series I2 6.00 1.000 2,600,000 2,600,000 15,448 15,600

7,286,000 6,988,120 $ 47,764 $ 49,000

The significant rights and preferences of the various series of convertible preferred stock outstanding as of January 31, 2012 are as follows:

Conversion Rights

Holders of Series G1, H1 and I1 have the option to convert each share into one share of Series 1 common stock and holders of Series G2, H2 and
I2 have the option to convert each share into one share of Series 2 common stock at any time. In addition, the convertible preferred stock will
automatically convert into the applicable series of common stock upon an initial public offering with net proceeds of not less than $50.0 million
and with a public offering price of not less than (1) $9.00 per share if the offering occurs prior to the end of the three year period after the first
issuance of the Series I and (2) $6.70 per share thereafter.

Voting Rights
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and the Series G1, H1 and I1 do not have voting rights, except
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as required by law. In regards to the selection of the nine directors for the Company�s board of directors, the Series G2 holders will elect three
directors, the Series H2 holders will elect one director, the Series I2 holders will elect one director, the Series 2 common stockholders will elect
one director, and the Series G2, H2, I2 holders and Series 2 common stockholders, voting together on an as-converted basis, will elect the
remaining three directors.

Dividend Rights

The holders of Series G, H and I are entitled to receive annual noncumulative dividends at a rate of $1.00, $0.27 and $0.52 per share as adjusted
for stock splits, stock dividends, reverse stock splits, stock combinations, reorganizations, and the like, out of any assets available when and if
declared by the board of directors. The dividends do not accrue to the holders if not declared in a particular period and the Company has not
declared any dividends to date.

Liquidation Preferences

In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of Series H and I are entitled to receive $3.35 and $6.00
per share and any declared but unpaid dividends prior to any other distributions on any other shares of convertible preferred or common stock.
After payments of all liquidation preferences are made to the holders of the Series H and I, the holders of Series G are entitled to receive $12.50
per share and any declared but unpaid dividends prior to any other distributions. Any remaining assets after distribution to the holders of
Series G, H and I will be distributed pro rata among all common and convertible preferred stockholders on an as-converted basis. For purposes
of this section, a merger or sale in which more than 50% of the outstanding voting power or capital stock are no longer held by the Company�s
stockholders, or the sale of all or substantially all of the Company�s assets, will be deemed to be a liquidation of the Company.

Redemption Rights

The outstanding shares of Series G and H are not mandatorily redeemable. The Series I, however, are contingently redeemable because these
shares allow for redemption by the holders with written consent of at least 50% of the Series I holders at any time after the fifth anniversary of
the Series I issuance date, or December 2, 2011. Upon such a redemption request, the Company will redeem the outstanding shares of Series I by
paying cash equal to the Series I original issue price of $6.00 per share plus any declared but unpaid dividends on these shares.

The Company records accretion of convertible preferred stock for the difference between the initial recorded amount and the redemption value
of the Series I. During the year ended January 31, 2012, the Company recorded accretion of $5,000.

7. Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

Warrants

The Company has granted warrants to purchase shares of convertible preferred stock to investors as incentives during stock issuances, warrants
to lenders as additional consideration for loans and warrants to a supplier as compensation for services. The warrants are fully vested upon
issuance, immediately exercisable and expire five to eight years after issuance.

At various dates during the year ended January 31, 2008, corresponding to the related drawdown of the Company�s notes payable, the Company
issued warrants to purchase 22,936 shares of Series F with an exercise price $20.60 per share to a lender. The warrants were exercisable at any
time and were subject to expiration in March 2015. The fair value of these warrants of $301,000 was recorded as a debt discount and a warrant
liability on the consolidated balance sheet on the dates of issuance. In conjunction with the June 2010 amendment to the convertible preferred
stock conversion features, the number of shares underlying the warrant was reduced to 60% of the original number. In addition, the warrant
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exercise price was reduced to $0.10 per share. These warrants were exercised as part of the Series H financing in June 2010, and the underlying
Series F was subsequently converted into common stock. Upon exercise, the related warrant liability was reclassified to convertible preferred
stock, and then subsequently converted to common stock and reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

During the year ended January 31, 2009, in conjunction with the issuance of a bridge loan in the form of a convertible note, the Company issued
warrants to purchase 38,201 shares of Series F with an exercise price of $20.60 per share. In conjunction with the June 2010 amendment to the
convertible preferred stock conversion features, the number of shares underlying the warrant was reduced to 60% of the original number. In
addition, the warrant exercise price was reduced to $0.10 per share. The warrants were exercisable at any time and expire at various dates
through July 2012. These warrants were exercised as part of the Series H financing in June 2010, and the underlying Series F was subsequently
converted into common stock. Upon exercise, the related warrant liability was reclassified to convertible preferred stock, and then subsequently
converted to common stock and reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

At various dates during the year ended January 31, 2009, corresponding to the related drawdown of the Company�s notes payable, the Company
issued warrants to purchase 36,000 shares of Series G with an exercise price of $12.50 per share. The warrants are exercisable at any time and
expire in June 2015. These warrants had not been exercised and were still outstanding as of January 31, 2011 and 2012.

The above convertible preferred stock warrants were accounted for as warrant liabilities and debt discounts on the Company�s notes payable. The
warrant liabilities are remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period until they are exercised or expire.

Warrant activity during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 was as follows:

Series E
Warrants

Exercise
Price

Series F
Warrants

Exercise
Price

Series G
Warrants

Exercise
Price

January 31, 2009 99,684 $ 12.50 61,137 $ 20.60 36,000 $ 12.50
Warrants granted �  �  �  
Warrants expired or forfeited �  �  �  
Warrants exercised �  �  �  

January 31, 2010 99,684 $ 12.50 61,137 $ 20.60 36,000 $ 12.50
Warrants granted � � �  
Warrants expired or forfeited (39,878) (24,459) �  
Warrants exercised (59,806) (36,678) �  

January 31, 2011 �  $ �  �  $ �  36,000 $ 12.50
Warrants granted �  �  �  
Warrants expired or forfeited �  �  �  
Warrants exercised �  �  �  

January 31, 2012 �  $ �  �  $ �  36,000 $ 12.50

The Company calculated the fair value of the warrants during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Year Ended January 31,
2010       2011            2012      

Contractual term (in years) 1.3 - 5.4 4.4 3.4
Expected volatility 59% - 67% 75% 54%
Risk-free interest rate 0.3% - 2.3% 1.5% 0.30%
Expected dividend 0% 0% 0%
The fair value of the warrant liability was estimated to be $83,000, $196,000 and $103,000 as of January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012. The change
in the fair value of the convertible preferred stock
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warrants resulted in a gain of $117,000 and $93,000 during the years ended January 31, 2010 and 2012 and a loss of $113,000 during the year
ended January 31, 2011, which has been included in other income (expense), net in the statements of operations.

8. Stock Option Plan

Stock Option Plans

The Company adopted a stock option plan (the �2000 Plan�) in 2000. Under the 2000 Plan, as amended, the Company was able to grant options to
purchase up to 1,181,689 shares of common stock to certain employees, directors and consultants. Under the terms of the 2000 Plan, the
Company may grant incentive stock options (�ISO�), nonstatutory stock options (�NSO�), common stock purchase agreements (�CSPA�) and stock
purchase rights (�SPR�). Such options are exercisable at prices generally equal to the fair value of the Company�s common stock at the date of
grant, as determined by the board of directors. Awards granted under the 2000 Plan generally vest over four years with a six-month cliff period
and may be exercised for a period of up to ten years. Vested options generally expire 30 days after termination of employment. In December
2010, the board of directors approved the decrease in the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan to
644,366 shares. No shares are available for future grant under the 2000 Plan as of January 31, 2011 and 2012.

The Company adopted a new 2010 stock incentive plan (the �2010 Plan�) in June 2010. The aggregate number of shares which may be issued
under the 2010 Plan is 2,301,422 and 3,661,422 shares as of January 31, 2011 and 2012. The 2010 Plan provides that only employees are
eligible for the grant of ISOs and that employees, consultants and outside directors are eligible for the grant of NSOs. The 2010 Plan also allows
for the grant of SPRs and restricted stock units (�RSU�). Awards granted under the 2010 Plan also generally vest over four years with a six-month
cliff period and may be exercised for a period of up to ten years. Vested options generally expire three months after termination of employment.
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The following table summarizes the stock-based award activity for the 2000 Plan and the 2010 Plan during the years ended January 31, 2010,
2011 and 2012:

Shares
Available
for Grant

Stock Options
and SPRs

Outstanding

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life
(Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

January 31, 2009 358,588 782,762 2.60 8.6 �  
Options granted (288,500) 288,500 0.30
SPRs and CSPAs granted (20,000) 20,000 0.30
Options expired and forfeited 42,472 (42,472) 2.00
SPR and CSPAs expired and forfeited 16,641 (16,641) 2.00
Exercised �  (3,371) 0.30

January 31, 2010 109,201 1,028,778 1.40 8.8 �  
Additional options authorized 1,764,096 �  �  
Options granted (1,743,476) 1,743,476 0.30
SPRs and CSPAs granted (396,496) 396,496 0.30
Options expired and forfeited 223,100 (223,100) 2.00
SPR and CSPAs expired and forfeited 148,890 (148,890) 2.00
Exercised �  �  �  

January 31, 2011 105,315 2,796,760 0.60 9.0 9,405
Additional options authorized 1,360,000 �  �  
Options granted (559,000) 559,000 6.24
SPRs and CSPAs granted (8,500) 8,500 6.42
RSUs granted (613,268) �  �  
Options expired and forfeited 281,450 (281,450) 4.96
SPRs and CSPAs forfeited and expired 14,605 (14,605) 0.30
RSUs expired 349,500 �  �  
Plan shares expired (5,939) �  �  
Exercised � (223,001) 2.48

Outstanding�January 31, 2012 924,163 2,845,204 1.15 8.5 14,269

Vested and expected to vest�January 31, 2011 2,366,233 0.65 8.9 7,854

Vested�January 31, 2011 644,105 1.57 6.5 1,600

Vested and expected to vest�January 31, 2012 2,775,578 1.13 8.5 13,947

Vested�January 31, 2012 1,185,409 0.83 8.0 6,208
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Additional information regarding the Company�s stock options outstanding and vested and exercisable as of January 31, 2011 is summarized
below:

Options Outstanding Options Vested

Exercise Prices
Stock Options
Outstanding

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life
(Years)

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price per

Share
Stock Options
Outstanding

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price per

Share
$0.30 2,447,607 9.7 $0.30 299,735 $0.30
1.60 69,913 5.1 1.60 68,952 1.60
1.90 6,500 7.4 1.90 4,843 1.90
2.00 175,000 3.1 2.00 174,087 2.00
3.80 19,810 6.3 3.80 18,572 3.80
4.20 77,122 3.8 4.20 77,122 4.20
65.00 750 1.3 65.00 746 65.00
250.00 58 0.3 250.00 48 250.00

2,796,760 9.0 0.60 644,105 1.57

Additional information regarding the Company�s stock options outstanding and vested and exercisable as of January 31, 2012 is summarized
below:

Options Outstanding Options Vested

Exercise Prices
Stock Options
Outstanding

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life
(Years)

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price per

Share
Stock Options
Outstanding

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price per

Share
$0.30 2,410,854 8.7 $0.30 1,005,556 $0.30
1.60 19,913 4.0 1.60 19,913 1.60
1.90 4,500 6.4 1.90 4,426 1.90
2.00 67,900 2.1 2.00 67,900 2.00
3.80 16,813 5.3 3.80 16,813 3.80
4.20 30,616 2.8 4.20 30,616 4.20
5.10 63,500 9.2 5.10 7,591 5.10
7.90 231,000 9.4 7.90 32,486 7.90
65.00 50 0.5 65.00 50 65.00
250.00 58 0.0 250.00 58 250.00

2,845,204 8.5 1.15 1,185,409 0.83

All of the Company�s outstanding stock-based awards are exercisable at any time without regard to vesting. Accordingly shares exercised prior to
vesting are included within the outstanding stock options as of each year end.

Stock Purchase Rights and Common Stock Purchase Agreements

The Company grants SPRs to its French employees and in limited past instances, CSPAs to service providers in the U.S. The SPRs and CSPAs
provide the holder with a note equal to the aggregate exercise price of the related options, therefore, allowing the holder to legally exercise the
related options at the time of issuance in consideration of the notes. Generally, the SPRs and CSPAs are subject to a vesting period of four years
with the Company retaining the right to repurchase unvested shares at the aggregate exercise price of the underlying options. In the event that a
holder�s status as an employee ceases service for any reason, the notes and the related options are cancelled. As of January 31, 2011 and 2012,
431,334 and 412,830 shares were subject to repurchase under the provisions of the SPRs and 310,746 and 103,439 shares were subject to
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The notes receivable issued to employees in conjunction with the SPRs and CSPAs are secured by the underlying shares and carry interest rates
ranging from 2.1% to 5.9%. While the note terms indicate
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that they are full recourse, the Company has not pursued recourse in instances when a note receivable balance exceeds the fair value of the
shares at the date of repurchase, and accordingly, the exercises of the SPRs and CSPAs has been considered to be nonsubstantive. Notes
receivable relating to the SPRs and CSPAs are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet due to the nonsubstantive exercise consideration.
Accordingly, the SPRs and CSPAs have been accounted for as stock options and are included within the outstanding stock options as of each
year end.

From January 2003 to May 2008, the Company loaned an executive officer an aggregate of $559,000 at interest rates ranging from 2.7% to 4.6%
per annum, pursuant to CSPAs. These notes were also indicated to be full recourse notes and secured by a pledge of stock, however, the notes
and the related exercises of the underlying options were also considered to be nonsubstantive and, as a result, the notes and legally outstanding
shares were not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet due to the nonsubstantive transactions. The aggregate amount of indebtedness of this
executive officer as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 was $691,000 and zero. On April 12, 2011, the executive officer repaid $627,000 of these
notes and accrued interest in connection with the sale to a third party of certain shares of the Company�s common stock held by the executive
officer. In addition, on April 13, 2011, the Company�s board of directors agreed to forgive an aggregate of $69,000, representing the remaining
outstanding principal and accrued interest which the executive officer owed as of April 13, 2011. The Company also agreed to provide the
executive officer with a tax gross-up payment to cover the executive officer�s income taxes on the cancellation of indebtedness income which
was recorded as compensation expense. The repayment of the notes was considered to be in substance, a purchase of common shares, and the
total consideration of $696,000 has been reflected as such in the accompanying consolidated statements of convertible preferred stock and
stockholders� deficit and comprehensive income (loss).

Restricted Stock Units

The Company grants RSUs to employees and executives of the Company. The Company first granted RSUs during the year ended January 31,
2012. During the year, the Company granted 613,268 RSUs to employees and executives of the Company that vest in accordance with specified
milestones related to the Company�s stock price performance following an initial public offering and, in some cases, are subject to acceleration
under certain circumstances, including a change in control. The Company did not recognize any stock-based compensation related to RSUs with
performance conditions during the year ended January 31, 2012. A summary of the Company�s restricted stock unit activity for the year ended
January 31, 2012 is presented below:

RSUs
Outstanding

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Value
January 31, 2011 �  $         �  
Granted 613,268 6.30
Cancelled and forfeited (349,500) 5.10

January 31, 2012 263,768 $ 7.90
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Stock-Based Compensation

The total employee stock-based compensation expense during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
 2010  2011  2012 

Cost of revenue $ 1 $ 37 $ 3
Research and development 6 71 89
Sales and marketing 17 65 279
General and administrative 21 578 1,279

$ 45 $ 751 $ 1,650

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of the Company�s stock options on each grant date. The
Black-Scholes option-pricing model takes into account inputs such as the exercise price, the fair value of the underlying common stock at the
grant date, expected term, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend.

� Expected term � The expected term represents the period that the stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. For option grants
that are considered to be �plain vanilla,� the Company used the simplified method to determine the expected term as provided by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The simplified method calculates the expected term as the average of the time-to-vesting and
the contractual life of the options. For option grants that are not considered �plain vanilla,� the expected term is based on historical
option exercise behavior and post-vesting cancellations of options by employees.

� Expected volatility � The expected volatility is derived from historical volatilities of several unrelated publicly listed peer companies
over a period approximately equal to the expected term of the award because the Company has limited information on the volatility of
the common stock since it has no trading history. When making the selections of industry peer companies to be used in the volatility
calculation, the Company considered the size, operational and economic similarities to the Company�s principle business operations.

� Risk-free interest rate � The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at the time of grant for zero coupon U.S.
Treasury notes with maturities approximately equal to the expected term of the awards.

� Expected dividend � The expected dividend is assumed to be zero as the Company has never paid dividends and has no current plans to
do so.

The weighted average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the Company�s stock-based awards at the grant dates during the years ended
January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:

Year Ended January 31,
    2010        2011        2012    

Expected term (in years) 6.0 6.0 6.0
Expected volatility 57% 59% 55% 
Risk-free interest rate 2.5% 2.3% 2.4% 
Expected dividend 0% 0% 0% 
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In addition to the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, the Company must also estimate a forfeiture rate to calculate the
stock-based compensation for the awards. The forfeiture rate is based on an analysis of actual forfeitures and the Company will continue to
evaluate the appropriateness of the forfeiture rate based on actual forfeiture experience, analysis of employee turnover and other factors.
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The Company is also required to estimate the fair value of the common stock underlying the stock-based awards when performing the fair value
calculations with the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the common stock underlying the stock-based awards was estimated
on each grant date by the board of directors, with input from management. The board of directors is comprised of a majority of non-employee
directors with significant experience in the digital media and communications software industries. Given the absence of a public trading market
of the Company�s common stock, and in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Guide, Valuation of
Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation, the board of directors exercised reasonable judgment and considered
numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of the common stock, including among other things,
the rights, preferences and privileges of the convertible preferred stock, business performance, present value of future cash flows, likelihood of
achieving a liquidity event, illiquidity of the Company�s capital stock, management experience, stage of development, industry information and
macroeconomic conditions. In addition, the Company�s board of directors utilized independent valuations performed by an unrelated third-party
specialist to assist with the valuation of the common stock; however, the Company and the board of directors have assumed full responsibility
for the estimates. These third-party specialist valuations were performed as of January 31, 2010, April 6, 2011, May 15, 2011 and November 30,
2011. The board utilized the fair values of the common stock derived in the third-party valuations to set the exercise price for options granted
during the years ended January 31, 2011 and 2012. Although the board of directors continued to believe the original value of the Company�s
common stock determined was appropriate based on the facts known at that time, the fair value of the underlying common stock for options
granted during the years ended January 31, 2011 and 2012 was subsequently revisited by the board of directors for financial reporting purposes
and reassessed on a retrospective basis so that the fair value of the underlying common stock used to calculate the related stock-based
compensation expense was increased accordingly.

The total estimated fair value of employee options and stock purchase rights granted during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012
was $47,000, $5.6 million, and $1.8 million. The weighted average estimated fair value of those options granted during the years ended
January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 was determined to be $0.16, $2.72, and $3.27 per option. The intrinsic value of options exercised during the
year ended January 31, 2012 was $457,000 but was not significant during the years ended January 31, 2010 and 2011.

As of January 31, 2012, total compensation cost not yet recognized for unvested awards was $5.3 million and is expected to be recognized over
the following 2.6 years, based on the weighted average vesting term.

Options Granted to Non-Employee

During the year ended January 31, 2012, the Company granted options to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock to a non-employee at an
exercise price of $7.90 per share. The Company accounts for non-employee options based on the fair value of the awards as they vest. The fair
value of the stock options is calculated at each reporting date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. For the calculation as of January 31,
2012, the Company used the following assumptions: remaining contractual life of 9.6 years, expected volatility of 57%, risk-free interest rate of
1.83% and expected dividend of 0%. In connection with options granted to a non-employee, the Company recognized stock-based compensation
expense of $9,000 for the year ended January 31, 2012.

Modification of Stock-Based Awards

During the year ended January 31, 2011, the Company implemented a stock option exchange program whereby all holders of stock options with
exercise prices of more than $0.30 were given the opportunity to exchange their stock-based awards for similar awards at a reduced exercise
price of $0.30 per share under revised vesting schedules. The Company completed the option exchange program in November 2010 and ten
individuals participated in the program. As a result, the Company cancelled and reissued 61,635 stock options.
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The exchange program is considered a modification of the stock-based awards, which requires the calculation of incremental compensation cost.
The total incremental compensation cost resulting from the exchange program was $339,000. The Company has elected to recognize the
remaining unamortized original grant date fair value over the vesting period of the original award and the incremental cost over the vesting
period of the new awards.

As of January 31, 2012, one of the Company�s board members transitioned from being an employee to a non-employee director. As part of the
transition agreement, the vesting terms of 283,778 unvested options as of January 31, 2012 that were granted when the board member was an
employee were modified to allow the continued vesting of the options under the original vesting periods. The options would have been forfeited
if the terms were not modified. The Company accounted for this transaction as a modification of a vesting condition whereby the remaining
unrecognized compensation cost of the originally measured award is no longer used and the fair value of the options expected to vest is
measured and recognized over the remaining service period. In addition, the incremental cost of vested options was measured and recognized
upon modification. The incremental cost relating to vested options is immaterial while the compensation cost relating to unvested options of $1.6
million will be recognized over a weighted average term of 2.5 years.

9. Net Income (Loss) per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

The following table sets forth the computation of the Company�s basic and diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 (in thousands, except for share and per share amounts):

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (9,177) $ (4,771) $ �  
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted 500,550 8,203,001 13,123,524
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and
diluted $ (18.33) $ (0.58) $ 0.00
The following outstanding shares of common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation of diluted net income (loss) per share
attributable to common stockholders for the periods presented because including them would have been antidilutive:

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Convertible preferred stock 4,029,910 4,238,120 6,988,120
Stock options to purchase common stock 504,702 2,054,680 2,328,935
Shares purchased with notes 524,076 742,080 516,269
Convertible preferred stock warrants 196,821 36,000 36,000
Restricted stock units �  �  263,768
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The following table sets forth the computation of the Company�s pro forma basic and diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders during the year ended 2012 (in thousands, except for share and per share amounts):

Year Ended
January 31, 2012

(unaudited)
Net income $ 138
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities (93) 
Adjustment to earnings allocated to participating securities (1) 

Pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ 44

Shares used in computing net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted 13,123,524
Weighted-average pro forma adjustments to reflect assumed conversion of convertible preferred stock 4,660,722

Shares used in computing pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic 17,784,246
Weighted average effect of dilutive stock options 1,458,481

Shares used in computing pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders, diluted 19,242,727

Pro forma net income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ 0.00

10. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations consists mainly of state and foreign taxes incurred by foreign
subsidiaries. The Company�s net income (loss) before provision for income taxes during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Domestic $ (11,783) $ (4,088) $ (1,183) 
International 2,628 1,770 1,945

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes $ (9,155) $ (2,318) $ 762
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The components of the provision for income taxes during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
  2010    2011    2012  

Current:
Federal $   �  $ �  $ �  
State �  �  90
Foreign 22 167 261

Total current 22 167 351

Deferred:
Federal �  �  �  
State �  �  �  
Foreign �  �  273

Total deferred �  �  273

Total provision for income taxes $ 22 $ 167 $ 624

Significant components of deferred tax assets as of January 31, 2011 and 2012 are as follows (in thousands):

January 31,
2011

January 31,
2012

Current deferred tax assets:
Reserves and accruals $ 717 $ 4,769
Deferred revenue, net 688 982
Other 2 7

1,407 5,758
Valuation allowance (1,407) (5,013) 

Current deferred tax assets $ �  $ 745
Current deferred tax liability:
Change in accounting method �  (745) 

Net current deferred tax asset (liability) $ �  $ �  

Non-current deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 23,333 $ 20,733
Fixed assets 130 �  
Stock-based compensation 77 298
Tax credits 197 93
Other 330 403

24,067 21,527
Valuation allowance (24,067) (20,413) 

Non-current deferred tax assets $ �  $ 1,114
Non-current deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets �  (369) 
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Change in accounting method �  (745) 

Net non-current deferred tax liabilities �  (1,114) 

Net non-current deferred tax asset (liability) $ �  $ �  
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Reconciliations of the statutory federal income tax to the Company�s effective income tax rate during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and
2012 are as follows:

Year Ended January 31,
    2010        2011        2012    

Statutory federal rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0% 
State tax�net of federal benefit 4.9 5.6 36.3
French research tax credit 5.7 18.2 (54.2) 
Changes in reserves for uncertain tax positions (2.7) (13.1) 43.8
Stock-based compensation (0.2) (8.2) 47.5
Other (6.4) (1.2) (2.6) 
Change in valuation allowance (35.5) (42.5) (22.7) 

Provision for income taxes (0.2)% (7.2)% 82.1% 

The Company provided a full valuation allowance for net operating losses, credits and other deferred tax assets for the state of California and the
United States. Foreign deferred tax assets are immaterial. A valuation allowance is provided when based upon the available evidence,
management concludes that it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company maintained
a full valuation allowance as of January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 due to the uncertainty of realizing future tax benefits from its net operating loss
carry-forwards and other deferred tax assets. There was a decrease in the valuation allowance during the year ended January 31, 2010 of
$149,000 and an increase of $989,000 during the year ended January 31, 2011 and a decrease of $48,000 during the year ended January 31,
2012.

The Company has not accrued U.S. income taxes on accumulated undistributed earnings in its foreign subsidiaries because the earnings are
intended to be indefinitely reinvested. It is not practicable to determine the income tax liability that might be incurred if these earnings were to
be repatriated to the U.S.

As of January 31, 2012, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of $52.9 million, and California net operating loss
carryforwards of $47.0 million. The Company�s federal and state net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2021 and 2013.

As of January 31, 2012, the Company had foreign tax credit carryforwards of $93,000 available to offset U.S. federal income taxes. Unutilized
foreign tax credits are allowed as a business deduction upon expiration.

Federal and California tax laws impose substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating loss and credit carryforwards in the event of an
�ownership change� for tax purposes, as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company has determined that ownership
changes under Section 382 have occurred and that certain tax attributes will expire due to the limitations imposed by Section 382. Accordingly,
the Company has reduced its net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state purposes by $8.6 million and $3.4 million as of January 31,
2012. In addition, the Company has reduced federal research credit carryforwards by $173,000 as of January 31, 2012.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company remains open for audit by the United States Internal Revenue Service and state tax authorities since inception. The Company
remains open for audit by the French tax authorities for the years 2008 through 2012. Most other foreign jurisdictions have statute of limitations
that range from three to six years. The Company is not currently under examination by income tax authorities in federal, state or other foreign
jurisdictions.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the gross unrecognized tax benefits during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and
2012 is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
 2010  2011 2012

Unrecognized benefit�beginning of period $ 414 $ 663 $ 945
Gross increases�current period tax adjustments 249 282 365
Gross decreases�prior period tax adjustments �  �  (33) 

Unrecognized benefit�end of period $ 663 $ 945 $ 1,277

As of January 31, 2012, the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $1,277,000 of which $622,000 offsets tax attributes.
Unrecognized tax benefits of $655,000, if recognized, would affect the effective income tax rate in the period or periods recognized. The net
unrecognized tax benefits were classified as a non-current liability in the consolidated balance sheet as of January 31, 2012.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. The Company accrued net interest
and penalties of $3,000, $4,000 and $0 during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012. In addition, the Company recorded liabilities
for accrued interest and penalties of $20,000 and $20,000 as of January 31, 2011 and 2012.

The Company does not believe there will be an increase or decrease of unrecognized tax benefits that may occur within the next 12 months. To
the extent there is an increase or decrease, the Company believes any impact to the effective tax rate would be immaterial.

11. 401(k) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company established a defined contribution plan that meets the requirements of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the �401(k)
Plan�) and covers substantially all eligible employees. Employees may elect to have a percentage of their compensation contributed to the 401(k)
Plan, subject to certain guidelines issued by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company may contribute to the 401(k) Plan at the discretion of
the Board of Directors. To date, the Company has made no contributions to the 401(k) Plan.

12. Segment Information

The Company�s solutions enable customers to deliver video services over broadcast, cable, internet, mobile and satellite networks. Operating
segments are defined as components of an enterprise that engage in business activities for which separate financial information is available and
evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Company�s chief operating
decision maker is its chief executive officer. The chief executive officer reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis, for
purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. The Company has one business activity and there are no segment
managers who are held accountable for operations, operating results beyond revenue goals or gross margins, or plans for levels or components
below the consolidated unit level. Accordingly, the Company has a single reporting segment.
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The Company�s revenue by geographic region, based on the location at which each sale originates, is summarized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended January 31,
2010 2011 2012

Americas $ 2,282 $ 9,706 $ 19,655
Asia Pacific 4,969 7,229 10,521
EMEA 9,037 13,069 20,470

$ 16,288 $ 30,004 $ 50,646

Included within the Americas total in the above table is revenue from sales originating in the U.S. of $1.3 million, $7.0 million and $15.1 million
during the years ended January 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

The Company�s property and equipment, net by geographic region is summarized as follows (in thousands):

As of January 31,
2011 2012

Americas $ 789 $ 1,600
Asia Pacific 4 5
EMEA 984 1,411

$ 1,777 $ 3,016

Customers representing 10% or greater of total revenue for the periods presented were as follows (in percentages):

Year Ended January 31,
Customers     2010        2011        2012    
Customer A 13% 12% *
Customer B * 12 *
Customer C * 11 *
Customer D 15 * *
Customer E 12 * *
Customer F * * 18% 

* Less than 10%
13. Subsequent Events

For our consolidated financial statements, we evaluated subsequent events through March 15, 2012, the date of issuance of our consolidated
financial statements.

14. Events Subsequent to the Date of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm�s Report (Unaudited)

On April 10, 2012, the Company modified options to purchase an aggregate of 23,500 shares and 4,500 SPRs to adjust the vesting
commencement date to be consistent with each award holder�s respective employment start date. No other terms of these awards were changed as
a result of this modification.

On April 10, 2012, the Company made certain changes to the notes issued to employees in conjunction with the SPRs and CSPAs (i) to waive
any payment acceleration of the notes in connection with an initial public offering and (ii) to authorize the partial release of the Company�s
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7,755,000 Shares

Envivio, Inc.

Common Stock

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Deutsche Bank Securities

Stifel Nicolaus Weisel

William Blair & Company

Through and including May 19, 2012 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus), all dealers effecting transactions in these securities,
whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to a dealer�s obligation to deliver a
prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.
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